
THe Leo Frank Case

AN ai^ed millionaire of New York
had a lawyer named Patrick, and

this lawj^er poisoned his old

client, forged a will in his own favor;

was tried, convicted and sentenced—

and is now at lil^erty, a pardoned man.

Through the falling out among Wall
Street thieves, it transpires that the

sensational clemency of Governor John
A. Dix, in favor of Albert T. Patrick,

was inspired by a mining transaction

involving millions of dollars.

Patrick says, that he was "pardoned

on the merits of the case."

It was a negligible coincidence that

his brother-in-law, Milliken, who had
for years resisted the Wall Street

efforts to get his Golden Cycle mine,

yielded it, when Patrick got the far-

don.

Such is life in these latter days, when
Big Money makes and unmakes Presi-

dents, makes and unmakes legislation,

makes and unmakes the policies of the

greatest Eepublic.

There was a man of the name of

Morse ; and he was a parlous knave, to

be sure. He, also, lived in New York,

and he was an adept in the peculiar

methods of Wall Street.

To Charles W. Morse, it seemed good
to organize an Ice Trust, and he did

it. To prevent Nature from interfer-

ing too impertinently with his honest

designs, he sent boats up the Hudson,
to destroy the ice which was in pro-

cess of formation on the river.

There is no law against the breaking

of ice—so far as I know—and therefore

the curses, the imprecations and the

idle tears of the independent ice-dealers

availed them nothing.

Summer came in due course; and
with it came stifling heat in crowded
tenements, the struggle for fresh air

and the cool drink, and the sickness

that pants lor a chance to live. Charles

W. Morse had the ice. Nobody else

had any. Charles W. Morse made new
rules for the ice market: he not only
raised the price, but refused to sell any
quantit}^ of his frozen water for less

than ten cents.

It seems a fearful thing that our
Christian civilization should have
reached a stage at which any one man,
witholding a ten-cent block of ice, can
condemn a sick child to death, but it is

a fact. Unless the daily papers of New
York and Jersej^ were the most arrant
liars, the weaker invalids in the sar-

dine-boxes, called tenements, died like

flies.

Day after day, the editors pleaded
with Morse, begging him to rescind the

new rules, and to sell to the poor the

five cent piece of ice that they had for-

merly been able to obtain.

The editorial appeals made to Morse
might have softened the heart of the

stoniest despot that ever sent human
beings to the block, but they did not

soften Charles W. Morse.

His relentless car was driven right

on. day after day, week after week;
and the victims that were crushed un-

der his golden wheels, were pitiful lit-

tle children.

Later, he made a campaign against

the Morgan wolves of Wall Street, and
he came to grief. The Morgan wolves
turned upon him, and brought him
down. His methods were the orthodox
Morgan methods, but he was a poacher
on the Morgan preserves; and so, he
was sent to the penitentiary, not so

much because he was a criminal, as be-

cause he was a trespasser.

Being in prison, Morse craved a par-

don, and Abe Hummel was not at hand
to get it for him. Abe was in Europe^
for his health. Abe had got Morse a

wife by the gentle art of taking her

away from an older man. Morse had
looked upon the wife of Dodge; and
while doing so his memory went back
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to the time when King David gazed

upon the unveiled charms of Bath-

sheba. Dodge could not be sent the

way of Uriah, but the woman could

be taken by the modern process of the

divorce-court. Abe Hummel found the

evidence : Abe managed the case : Abe
mildly took a penitentiary sentence

which rightly belonged to Morse: Abe
spent a short while in prison, and ]Morse

took Mrs. Dodge: Abe got out of jail

and went to Europe—afterwards, Morse

went to jail, and also went to Europe.

Morse was in the Atlanta peniten-

tiary, and he was a very sick man. His

lawyer said so; his doctor said so; the

daily papers said so. Morse was suffer-

ing from several incurable and neces-

sarily fatal maladies. His lawyer said

so: his doctor said so; and the daily

papers said so. Morse was a dying

man: he had only a few days to live:

his will had been made : the funeral ar-

rangements were about complete: the

sermon on the virtues of the deceased

was in course of preparation; the

epitaph was practically written; and

all that Morse wanted was, that Dodge's

wife and his own should not have to

bear throughout the remainder of her

chequered existence, as the ex-wife of

both Dodge and Morse, the bitter recol-

lection that the man who took her from

Dodge had died in prison.

Therefore, heavens and earth moved
mightily for the pardon of Morse, the

dying man. President Taft was so

afraid that any delay might seem hard-

hearted, and that Morse's death in the

penitentiary might haunt him with re-

proach the remainder of his life,

he hurriedly pardoned one of the

grandest rascals that ever was caught

in the toils of the law\

Of course, the man was shamming
all along; and with indecent haste he

revealed himself as the robust, impu-

dent, unscrupulous knave that he had
been, when he was virtually murdering

the destitute sick in New York.

These cases are cited because they

are recent, and have been universally

discussed. They are examples of what
Big Money can do, when it has a fixed

purpose to gull the public, influence

the authorities, and use the newspapers
to defeat Justice.

Let us now consider the undisputed

facts in the case of Leo Frank, about

whom so much has been said, and in

whose interest Big Money has waged
such a campaign of villification against

the State of Georgia.

Far and wide, the accusation has been

strewn, that we are prejudiced against

this young libertine, because he is a

Jew. If there is such a racial dislike

of the Hebrews among us, why is it

that, in the formation of the Southern

Confederacy, we placed a Jew in the

Cabinet, and kept him there to the

last? Why is it, we are constantly

electing Jews to the State legislatures,

and to Congress?

The law-partner of the best criminal

advocate at our bar, is a Jew. I refer

to Judge H. D. D. Twiggs of Savan-

nah, and his able associate, Mr. Simon
Gazan.

The law-partner of the Governor of

Georgia, is a Jew. I refer, of course,

to Mr. Benjamin Phillips, the partner

of Hon. John M. Slaton.

The daughters of our best people are

continually intermarrying with Jews;

and Gentiles are associated with Jews

in fraternal orders, volunteer military

companies, banldng and mercantile

firms, &c., &c.

The truth of the matter is, that the

lawyers and detectives employed to save

Leo Frank were themselves the authors

of the hue and cry about his being a

Jew, and they did it for the sordid pur-

pose of influencing financial supplies.

Wealthy Israelites all over the land

have been appealed to, and their racev

pride aroused, in order that the lawyers

and the detectives might have the use

of unlimited funds. The propaganda

in favor of Frank has been even more

expensive than that in favor of Morse.
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The rich Jews of Athens, Athmta,
Baltimore, New York, Philadelphia.
Chicago, &c., have furnished the sinewa
of war. I dare say the campaiirn has
not cost less than half-a-million dol-

lars. The lawyers have probably
been paid at least $100,000. The Burns
Detective Agency has no doubt finserod

$100,000. The publicity bills in the

daily papers must be enormous.
Under the law of Georgia, no man

can he convicted on the evidence of an
accomplice. The testimony in the case,

apart from that of the accomplice, must
be of such a character as to exclude
€very other reasonable hypothesis, save
that of the defendant's guilt.

Has any civilized State a milder code
than that? Could any sane person ask
that the law of Georgia should be more
faA'orable to the accused?

The newspapers whicli sold them-
selves to the Burns propaganda, have
said, and repeated, that Leo Frank was
convicted on the evidence of a low-
down, drunken negro.

It is not true. Under the law of
Georgia. thaU^cannot be done. And in

the Frnii c case, it Avas not done.

Befon going into the facts of this

most horrible case, let us get our bear-

ings by referring to other celebrated

•cases. Take, for instance, the case of
Eugene Aram, which still possesses a

melancholy interest, though the mur-
derer paid his penalty 155 years ago.

"The Dream of Eugene Aram"' is one of
Thomas Hood's fine poems; and Bul-
wer made the story the basis of one
of his best novels.

Eugene Aram, the learned, respected

schoolmaster, was convicted upon
the evidence of his accomplice. Apart
from this, there was almost nothing
against the accused. There was not
even an identification of the skeleton

of the deceased, which for thirteen

years had been buried in a cave. For
thirteen years the scholarly Aram had
been leading a correct, quiet life, whei\
he was arrested. His character, pre-

vious to the crime, was unblemished.

Without the accomplice, there was no
proof of the corpus delicti, nor of any
motive; nor was there any corrobora-

tion that excluded the idea of defend-

ant's innocence.

But there was testimony to the effect

that Aram was in company with Clark
(the deceased) the last time Clark was
seen in life; and Aram (like Frank)
did not even try to tell what had be-

come of the deceased.

This was the circumstance that

weighed most against Aram—who con-

fessed, after sentence of death

!

One of the most celebrated of Ameri-
can cases was the murder of Dr. Park-

man, of Boston, by Professor Webster,

a man of great eminence and of

spotless character, whose friends

were numerous and of the highest

standing. All New England was pro-

foundly stirred when it was learned

that Dr. Parkman had disappeared,

and that he had last been seen entering

the College where he went for the pur-

pose of seeing Professor AVebster on a

matter of business.

In this case the controlling factor

was, that Dr. Parkman had disap-

peared into the Professor's rooms, and
had never reappeared. What loent with

him? "\Aniat became of him? Profes-

sor Webster could not answer.

When Rufus Choate, the greatest

criminal lawyer in New England, was
applied to by the friends of Professor

Webster, he offered to take the case if

they would consent for him to plead

mnnslavghter. He meant to put the

defense on the line, that the two men
had had a quarrel in the laborator}^;

and that, in the heat of passion, the

Professor had killed the Doctor. Web-
ster's friends declined this proposition,

and Choate refused the case.

Webster was convicted, and con-

fessed^ after sentence of death

!

In the case of Henry Clay Beattie,

the testimony was about on a par, in

character and convincing power, with
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that against Frank; yet, Beattie con-

tinned to lustily cry out, "I am inno-

cent ! They are about to commit judi-

cial murder,"' and there were num-
bers of our most intelligent people who
believed what he said.

Ile^ also, confessed, after he lost lioye

of reprieve

.

The standard books on evidence teach

young lawyers that one of the most
striking phases of human nature is,

the inclination to believe.

toiling to save a wretched miscreant

who was as guilty as hell, and who
didn't deserve a day out of the Book
of Life of any respectable lawyer.

And I venture to predict that when
Frank's attorneys get through with

their labors for this detestable Sodom-
ite, they will never again be what they

were—in health, standing, or practice.

Leo Frank came down from New
York, to take charge of a factory where

young Gentile girls worked for He-

MARY PHAGAN

Trained lawyers, entrusted with the

lives of the Beatties, the Patricks, the

Beckers, the Woodfolks, and the

Franks, realize the value of the con-

stant repetition, "I am innocent. I

didn't do it ! They are about to com-
mit judicial murder!"

Realizing it, they make use of it.

Sometimes, they overdo it

!

In the Tom Woodfolk case, a

splendid gentleman and first-class law-

yer, John Rutherford, actually w^orked

himself to death, for a guilty monster
who. among his victims, killed a pretty

little girl.

In the Flanigan case, the best crimi-

nal lawj^er in North Georgia, Hon. Bill

Glenn .made himself a nervous wreck,

brews, at a wage-scale of five or six

dollars a week.

1^0 Frank was a typical young Jew-

ish man of business who loves pleasure,

and runs after Gentile girls. Every
student of Sociology knows that the

black man's lust after the white wo-

man, is not much fiercer than the

lust of the licentious Jeio for the

Gentile.

Leo Frank was reared in the environ-

ment of "the gentleman friend," whose
financial aid is necessary to the $5-a-

week girl. He lived many years in that

atmosphere. He came in contact with

the young women who are paid the $5-

a-week ,and who are expected to clothe

themselves, find decent lodgings, and
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pa}' doctor's bills out of the regular

wage of five dollars a week.

Leo Frank knew what this sys-

tem meant to the girls. In fact,

we all know what it means, but we
don't like to say so. We prefer not to

interrupt our bounties to Chinese chari-

ties, or check our provisioning of Bel-

gian derelicts.

How gay a life Leo Frank led among
the wage-slaves of the North, we do
not know; but Avhen he arrived in At-

lanta, he seems to have kept the pace,

from the very beginning.

To his Rabbi, he was a model j'^oung

man : to the girls in the factory, he was
a C3'nical libertine. The type is famil-

iar.

If the seducer wore a badge, as the

policeman does, he would never seize

his prey. If all the immoral men were
to appear so, when they go to church,

the hopeless minority of the virtuous

might have to limit their devotional

exercises to family prayer.

With prurient curiosity, Frank used

to hover about the private room, where
the ^irls changed their dresses, &c.

A girl from the fourth floor, spent

some time, frequently, in this pri-

vate room, in company with Frank,
and they were alone. Neither Frank
nor the woman from the 4th floor had
any legitimate business alone in the

private room of the girls. One of
Franh'^s oxen witnesses^ a white girl,

testified to these facts.

Such things cannot be done in a fac-

tory, without being known to some-

body ; and that somebody is sure to tell

the others.

That is why Mary Phagan detested

him and repulsed him. She was a good
girl ; and, while her poverty forced her

to work under Frank, she was de-

termined not to yield to him in any
dishonorable way. Her resistance had
the natural result of whetting his de-

praved appetite.

The lawyers of the defense put

Frank's character in evidence, proving

by certain witnesses that it was good.

The prosecution had no right to

question these witnesses as to details.

Then, the State put up witnesses who
swore that Frank's character, as to las-

C'iviousness, icas had. Again, the State

could not go into details. But the de-

fense could have done so. The law al-

lows a defendant, thus attacked, to

cross-examine the witnesses, as to the

particular facts and circumstances

which cause them to swear that the

defendant is a man of bad character.

In other words, the law of Georgia

authorizes Leo Frank to have inquired

of each one of these witnesses,

—

"Wiat moves you to testify that I

am lascivious? What is it that you
know against me? ^ATiat are the facts

upon which you base your opinion?

Tell me what you saw me do ! Tell me
what's in your mind, and perhaps I can

explain, rebut, and remove the evil

efi^ect of your testimony."

ThaVs the j)osition in which our law

places a defendant. It gives Mm the

privilege of sifting the witness, and of

drawing from him the particular in-

cidents, or circumstances, which have

caused him to believe that the defend-

ant is bad.

It often happens that, when the de-

fendant cross-examines these witnesses

against his character, they give flimsy

and absurd reasons, thus bringing ridi-

cule upon themselves, and vindication

to the accused!

All lawyers know this; and all law-

yers, %i'ho feel sure of their client^ never

fail to put these character-witnesses

through a course of sprouts.

Confident of the integrity of their

client, they know that a cross-examina-

tion of the character-witnesses will de-

velop the fact, that they have been

jaundiced by personal ill-will, and have

made mountains out of mole-hills.

But Leo Frank's lawj-ers did not

dare to ask any character-witness why
she swore that Frank was a man of

lascivious character

!
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^Messrs. Rosser and Arnold knew
their client, IjCo Frank; they did not

dare to ask a single witness the simple

question, "Why do you sAvear that

Iiank's character is bad?"
They did not dare to ask, "1F,A«^ is it

that you knoiv on him?''''

They KNE^y that the answers would

ruin Avhatever chance Frank had; and

that it would be suicidal to ask those

white girls to go into the details of

Frank's hideous private life.

In this connection, there is another

ominously significant fact that should

be weighed : Frank and his lawyers did

not otter to allow Mm to be cross-ex-

amined. Under our law, it is the right

of the defendant to make his statement

to the jury, and his attorneys may di-

rect his attention to any fact which he

omits. But the State cannot ask him
a single question, unless he voluntarily

makes that proposition.

In this case, where the defendant

claimed that the only material evidence

against him was that of "a drunken ne-

gro," an innocent man would have joy-

fully embraced the ofortunity to save

his life, and clear his name.

Isn't it so? Can you imagine what
objection you would have had to being

questioned, had you been in Frank's

place? You are innocent: you could

have accounted for yourself at the time

Mary Phagan was being done to death

:

you would have gladly said, "Ask me
any question you like. / have nothing

to hide. I am not afraid of that ne-

gro. I know that I didn't commit the

crime. I know that I can tell you
where / was, when Marv Phagan was
killed."

Did Frank do that?

No. indeed ! He sat there and heard

Jim Conley's story. He sat there, and
listened, hour after hour, as Luther
Rosser, the giant of the Atlanta bar,

cross questioned the negro, and vainly

exhausted himself in herculean eiforts

to shatter the rock of Jim Conley's

simple and straightforward account of

the crime.

He sat there as Jim Conley fitted the

damning facts on him, Frank, and he

did not dare to do what the negro had
done. He did not dare to allow the

Solicitor-General to cross-question him,

as Rosser had cross-questioned Jim.

Innocent? Was that the courage of

conscious innocence?

No. Frank prepared a careful state-

ment, and recited it to the jury, and

did not offer to answer any question.

He knew tliat he could not afford it.

Helen Ferguson had often gotten

Mary Phagan's pay-envelope; and had

Frank allowed Helen to do this, one

more time, he would not now be where

he is—and poor Mary Phagan would

not be a memory of horror to him, and

to us.

"Why wouldn't he let Helen Ferguson

draw the pay-envelope that time ? Ah,

he wanted Mary to come back.

The next day was the Memorial Day

:

the next day is the Jewish Sabbath;

the next day, in the morning, Mary
Phagan is one of the sweetest flowers of

the Sunny South ; the next day, in the

morning, she is seen of all men, rosy,

joyous, pure and full of life and hope;

the next day, in the morning, she goes

to Frank for the withheld pay-enve-

lope, with its poor one dollar and

twenty cents; and when she is lost to

sight, on her way to the den where

Frank is waiting for he?', she is lost

FOREVER.

No man or woman ever sees her more,

until the lifeless body is found in the

basement.

There were scratch-pad notes lying

beside her; and Frank says that the

"drunken Jim Conley," not only raped

and killed the girl while he, Frank,

was unconsciously at his usual work in

his office, but that Conley alone got the

body down to the basement, and then

secured the scratch-pad, and composed

those four notes.

In those notes, the negro is not only

made to say that a negro "did it, by his

self," but the negro is described so par-

ticularly, that he can be advertised for;
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and no attempt is made to laj- it on the

white man "who is the only other man
in the building!

Marvellous negro, Jim.

^Mary Phagan was barely fifteen

3'ears old, and the evidence is all

one way, as to what kind of girl

she had been. As far back as the early

days of March, 1913, Leo Frank had
begun to ogle her, hang about her, and
try to lead her in conversation. The
little white boy. Willie Turner, swore
to it. and no attempt was made to im-
peach him. He saw Frank endeavor to

force his attentions on Mary, in the

metal room; and he sa-^r the girl back
off. and say to Frank that she must go
to her work. He heard Frank when he
made the effort to use the job-lash on
Mary, saying to her significantly, •'/

am the Superintendent of this fac-

tory.''''

What did that mean? He had not

spoken to her about her work, or about

the factor}' affairs. He was trying to

get up a personal "chat," as he had a

habit of doing with other women
of the place; and when she excused

herself and was backing away from
the man whom she instinctively

dreaded, he used that species of em-
ployer's intimidation, '"I am the Su-
perintendent of this factor}^" Mean-
ing what?
Meaning, '"It lies in my power to fire

you, if 3^ou displease me."

Dewey Hewell, a white girl who had
worked in the factory under Frank

—

and who knew him only too well—testi-

fied that she had heard Frank talking

to ]Mary frequently, and had seen him
place his hands on her shoulders, and
call her by her given name.

Gantt testified that Frank noticed

that he, Gantt, knew Mary Phagan,
and remarked to him, Gantt, "I see

that you know Mary, pretty well."

Yet, Frank afterwards said that he

did not know Mary Phagan

!

Frank had been monkeying with
girls who depended on him for work.

Lascivious in character, according
to twenty white girl witnesses, whom
Rosser and Arnold dared not cross-

examine. Leo Frank's lewdness drove
him toAvard Mary Phagan, as two
white witnesses declared. She re-

pulsed him, as the evidence of white
witnesses showed.

Her work-mate applied for the pay-
envelope on Friday, April 25th. Frank
refused it, and Mary went for it on
the morning of the 2f)th. She is seen

to go up in the elevator towards
Frank's office on the second floor.

He says that she came to him^ in his

ofice, and got her pay!
No mortal eye ever saw that girl

again, until her bruised and ravished

body—with the poor under garments
all dabbled in her virginal blood

—

was found in the basement.

Where was Leo Franl-?

It was proved by Albert McKnight
that Frank went to his home, some-
time near 2 o'clock that day. (his folks

were absent) stood at the side-board

in the dining room, for five or ten min-
utes, did not eat a morsel, and went
out again, toward the city.

A determined effort was made to

break down this evidence, but it failed.

On that same day, Frank wrote to

his Brooklyn people, that nothing

"startling" had happened in the fac-

tory, since his rich uncle had left. He
stated that the time had been too short

for anj'thing startling to have hap-

pened. The tragedy had already oc-

curred.

That night he did something which

he had never done before : he called up
the night-watchman, Newt Lee, and

asked him over the telephone if any-

thing had happened at the factory.

Mary Phagan's body was lying in

the basement; and in his agony of sus-

pense and nervousness, Frank was tidy-

ing to learn whether the corpse had
been found!
At three o'clock that same night,

Xewt Lee found the bodv. and gave
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ll:e alarm. Detective Sharpe called

Frank over the telephone, asking that

he come to the factory at once. Two
men were sent for him, and he was
found nervously twitching at his col-

lar, and his questions were, "\Vliat"s

the trouble ? Has the night watchman
reported anything? Has there been a

tragedy?"

Why did he think there had been a

tragedy at the factory?

If he had paid off Mary Phagan as

he says, and she had gone her way out

of the building and into the city—to

see the Confederate Vets parade, or

for something else—why was he calling

up Newt Lee, Saturday night, asking

if anything had happened at the fac-

tory?

NOBODY THEN Ri\EW THAT
ANYTHING TRAGIC HAD HAP-
PENED TO MARY, ANYWHERE!
He was haunted by the dead girl

who lay in the basement. To save his

soul, he could not get her off his mind.

The gruesome thing possessed him,

held him, tortured him. Thundering
in his brain, all the time, were the ter-

rific words, "^6 sure your sin will find

you oxitP''

During the dreadful hours that fol-

lowed Frank's return to the factory,

his agitated mind cast about for a

theory, a scape-goat, that would keep

the bloodhounds off his own trail. He
insinuatingly directed suspicion toward
Newt Lee, the negro who was never

there at all during the middle of the

days. He not only hinted at Lee, and
suggested Lee, but after somebody had
planted a bloody shirt on Lee's premi-

ses, Frank asked that a search be made
at Lee's house. The bloody shirt was
found, bloody on both sides. Unless
the carrier of the dead body shifted it

from one side to the other, there was
no way to account for blood on both

sides of any shirt. But, worst of all I

whoever planted the dirty old shirt,

and smeared the blood on it. forgot to

saturate it with the sweat of a nesrro

!

There Avas none of the inevitable, and

unmistakable African scent on that

soiled garment—and yet the armpits

of a laboring negro ooze lots of Afri-

can scent.

Not only did Frank try to fix guilt

on Lee, but he hinted suspicion of

Gantt, the man who went to the factory

on the fatal Saturday, after Mary
had been killed, to get two pairs of old

shoes which he had left on one of the

upper floors.

Frank demurred at Gantt's going

in, and made up a tale about the sweep-

ing out of a pair of old shoes along

with the litter and trash. But Gantt

caught Frank in the falsehood, by ask-

ing him to describe the shoes that had

been swept out. Frank "fell to it,''

and described one pair. "But I left

two pairs!'' exclaimed Gantt, and

Frank was silenced. Gantt went up,

got the shoes, and left. Yet Frank
tried to fasten suspicion on him.

Now, use your mother wit:

Why did Frank never cast a sus-

picious eye, or a suspicious tcord. TO-
WARD JIM CONLEY?
He was read}^ to put the dogs on the

tracks of Newt Lee, the negro who
worked there at night. He was ready

to lead the pack in the direction ot

Gantt. the white man who came on

Saturday to get his old shoes.

But he was not ready to breathe the

slightest hint toward Jim Conle5\

whom all the ivitnesses placed in the

factory, WITH FRANK, durlvr/ the

very time that Mary Phagan must have

been ravished.

^SVhy did he keep the hounds off the

trail of Jim Conley? AVhy did he

point the finger of suspicion toward

Gantt and toward Lee, and never to-

ward Conley?
There is but one answer—and you

know what that is. Frank cordd not

put the dogs after Conley, WITHOUT
BEING RUN DOWN, HIMSELF!

In vain did the detectives endeavor

to trace evidence against Lee, and
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against Gantt. In vain, did they labor

to get the trail away from that factory.

It was right there, and no earthly in-

genuity could move it.

On Monday, Frank telegraphed to

Adolf Montag, who was in New York,

that the factory had the case well in

hand and that the mystery would be

solved. He had employed a Pinkerton

detective, and this detective, for-

tunately, pinned Frank down as to

where he was, at the crucial hour, that

Saturday.

Scott asked Frank—"'Were you in

your office, from twelve o'clock until

Mai'y Plmgan entered your office.^ and
thereafter until ten minutes before one

o'clock, when you went- to get Mrs.

White ovt of the hidldingf
And Frank, answering his own de-

tective, said that he was. Thus, his

own admission, before his arrest, placed

him near the scene of the crime, AT
THE TIME IT WAS COMMITTED.

Scott again asked—"Then, from 12

o'clock to 12:30, every minute of that

hcdf hour., you were at your office?"

Frank answered, "Yes."

But he lied. The unimpeachable

white girl, Monteen Stover, testified

that she went to Frank's office, during

that half hour, AND NOBODY WAS
THERE!
No wonder the infamous William J.

Burns did his utmost, afterwards, to

frighten this young woman and to

force her to take back what she had
sworn. No wonder he sent the Rabbi
after her. He himself threatened her,

and then entrapped her in the law office

of Samuel Boorstein, and tried to hold

her there against her will!

The brassy, shallow, pretentious

scoundrel ! He richly deserves to be in

the penitentiary himself!

Mind you ! When Frank told his

detective, Scott, that he was in his

office during the half-hour between 12

o'clock and half-past twelve, he did not

hnow that Monteen Stover had been

there. He had not seen her: he had
not heard her. He was employed at

something else, somewhere else. At
what? And where?

In his statement, which he had had
months to prepare, he said that he
might have gone to the water closet.

In the note that lay beside Mary
Phagan's body, she is made to say that

she was going to the water closet, when
the tall negro, all by "his self," as-

saulted her.

And it was on the passage to THIS
toilet, (adjoining Frank's own toilet,)

that the crime was committed.

The Avater-closet idea is in those tell-

tale notes

—

and where else? In Leo
Frank's final statemen to the jury!

Would "a drunken brute of a ne-

gro," after raping and killing a white

woman within a few steps of a white

man's private office, with the white man
inside of it, linger at the scene of his

awful crime to compose four notes?

Would he need any theory about the

water closet?

Would \\e have been in an agony of

labor to account for the presence of his

victim, at that place? Not at all.

He would have left that point to take

care of itself, and he would have struck

a bee line for the distant horizon. Ne-

groes committing rapes on white wo-

men, do not tarry. Never! NEVER!

!

They go, and they keep going, as

though all the devils of hell were after

them; for they Tcnow what will happen

to them, if the white men get hold of

them.

Jim Conley—where was he, at the

time when Frank was not in his

office?

Mrs. Arthur Wiite swore that Jim
Conley, or a negro man that looked

like him, was at his place of duty, down
stairs. He was sitting down, and there

was nothing whatever to attract any

especial attention to him. This was at

thirty-five minutes after twelve—and

Mary Phagan had already been to



WATSON'S MAGAZINE. 149

Frank's office, hy his own statement,

and had got her pay envelope, and

gone away. Gone where

f

Toward the toilet?

If so, Frank knew it, and Conley

didn't, for Conley was helow, on an-

other floor. Mrs. Wliite puts him
there.

Who, then, wrote the note about the

Avater closet, and made Mary say she

went to it "to make water?"

Where was Mary, when Monteen
Stover looked into Frank's vacant

office? Where was Frank, THEN?
The note said Mary went toward the

toilet "to make water;" Frank's state-

ment was that he must have been at the

toilet, when Monteen looked into his

office. Great God! Then, Frank puts

himself at the very place where the

note puts Mary Phagan!
Did you ever know the circumstances

to close in on a man, as these do on

Frank ?

Out of liis 01071 mouth, this lascivious

ci'iminal is convicted.

The men's toilet used by Frank, and

to which he said he may have uncon-

sciously gone, "teas only divided hy a

partition from the ladie''s room to which
the note said Mary had gone.

THEREFORE. FRANK PLACES
HIMSELF WITFI MARY, AT THE
TIME OF THE CRIME!
Why did he pretend that he did not

know Mary by sight? Why did he go

to the Morgue twice, and shrink away
without looking at her; and then after-

wards, in his statement, describe her

appearance on the cooling table, as

fully and as circumstantially, as though

he had been a physician, making an

expert examination?

Wh}^ was he so completely knocked

up by suspense and anxiety, that he

'"''tremhled and shook like an aspen,^''

on his way to the police station?

And Avhj'-, why did this white man
never flare up with blazing wrath

against the negro who accused him of

the awful crime, and gladlv embrace

the opiDortunity to face the negro and
put him to shame?
Where is the innocent white man,

who is afraid to face a guilty negro?
"NA^iere is the white man who would

have tamely taken that negro's fearful

accusation, as Frank took it? Would
you have failed to face Conley?

Apart from ever}^ word that Jim
Conley uttered, we have the following

facts.

Frank's bad character for lascivious-

ness : his pursuit of Mary Phagan, and

her avoidance of him : his withholding

her pay-envelope Friday afternoon and
thus making it necessary for her to re-

turn to his office on Saturday: hia

presence in his office in the forenoon,

and her coming into it at noon, to get

the pay-envelope : her failure to reap-

pear down-stairs, or up-stairs, and the

absence of both Frank and Mary, from

his office, during the halfhour that fol-

lowed Mary's arrival in the office : the

presence of Conley on the lower floor,

at the necessary time of the crime : the

inability of Frank to account for him-

self, at the necessary time of the crime :

the utter failure of Frank to explain

what became of Mary : his desperate at-

tempt to place himself in his office at

the time of the crime, and the unex-

pected presence of Monteen Stover

there, and her evidence that he was
out : his incriminating lie on that point,

and his nervous hurry to get Mrs.

White out of the building: his strange

reluctance to alloAv Gantt to go in for

his old shoes, and his falsehood on that

subject: his refusal to allow Newt Lee

to enter the building at -i o'clock, P. M.,

although the night-watchman came at

that hour, and begged to be allowed to

go in and sleep : his conduct that night,

calling up Lee, and asking the officers

about the "tragedy,'' when no tragedy

had been brought home to him by any
knoAvledge save his own : his efforts

to throw the officers off the scent:

his amazing failure to hint a sus-

jyicion of Jim Conley: his equally
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guilty fear of calling Daisy Hop-
kins to the stand—Dais3\ the wo-

man who was shown conclusively to

have visited Frank at the factory, and
who had no business there except in

her peculiarly shameful line of busi-

ness. It was this woman that Conley
said he had watched through the key-

hole, when Frank was sodomizing with

her, and Frank's lawyers dared not put

her up^ as a witness.

The blood marks are found, in the

direction of the men's toilet and the

metal room ; and Mary's bloody draw-

ers and bloody garter-straps show that

she bled from her virginal womb, be-

fore she died. Around her neck was

the cord that choked her to death. On
her head was the evidence of a blow.

Frank could not have been off that

floor. He could not have been far

away. He had been in his office,

with Mary^ just a few minutes

before. He was hack in his o/fice.

at 12:35, seen by Mrs. A\niite, and
jumping nervously as she saw him.

He stated that his temporary absence

from his office may have been caused

by a call of nature. Such a 'call would
have carried him directly toward the

place where the note said Mary went,

fo7' the same jmrpose!

Had you been on the jury, with all

these links of circumstances fastening

themselves together in one great iron

chain of conviction, what would you
have believed, as to Frank's guilt?

Now consider Conley:

He was Frank's employee, and to

some extent his trusty. Frank didn't

mind Conley's knowing about Daisy
Hopkins, and other things of the same
kind. Frank did not want Rabbi Marx
to know anything of his secret sins,

but he did not care if Conley knew.

Therefore, Conley was the person to

whom he wotild naturally turn when
the Mary Phagan adventure went
wrong. Frank needed help to dispose

of the body, for Frank had a vast deal

at stake. His social position, his busi-

ness connections, his fellowship in the

B'nai B'rith. his standing in the syna-

gogue, his wife and mother and father

and uncle—all these imperatively de-

manded that Frank dispose of that ter-

rilAe dead girl!

Would Conley have cared what be-

came of her body?
Do negroes who violate white women

stay to dispose of the bodies? Never
in the world. Their first thought is to

get away themselves., and they do it,

whenever they can.

Wiat hindered Jim Conley, if he

was the rapist, from being in the

woods, sixty miles away, by the time

Mary's body was found Sunday morn-
ing? Nothing!

If he had raped and killed the girl,

he could securely have gone out of the

building, out of the city, and out of the

State, before anybody knew what had
become of Mary Phagan.
Frank couldnH afford to run!

He had to stay.

Ask yourself this question

:

Was it more natural for a negro to

rape a white girl, and stay where he

was, in the helief that he could lay the

cnnie on a white man; or was it more
natural for a white man to do it, remain
where he was, and hope to fix it on a

negro?
It is unnecessary to relate Jim Con-

ley's evidence in detail. He made out

a complete case against Frank, and he

was corroborated by white witnesses at

every point where any of the fact-s

came within the knowledge of others.

Of course, there could be no witnesses

to what he and Frank did with Mary's

corpse, but so far as the physical indi-

cations of the crime existed, they cot;-

tradicted Frank, and corroborated

Conley.

According to the allegations made
by Conley's lawyer, William M. Smith,

the friends of Leo Frank made strenu-

ous efforts to corrupt Conley, then scare

him. and perhaps poison him, before

the trial came on.
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William J. Burns afterwards made
a fool of Smith ; but Smith did not

attempt to escape from the allegations

which he had formally, in a legal

paper, made against the friends of

Frank. According to Smith, Conley's

life was in danger, and measures were

taken to protect it.

This is the Smith that the New York
Times, World, &c., made such a loud

noise over, when he went into a deal

with Burns, to play the Nelms case

against the case of Frank.

The indictment against Frank was
found by the grand jury, on May 24th,

1913. He had been in jail since the

Coroner's jury had committed him
May 8th.

His trial commenced on the 28th of

July, and more than 200 witnesses were

examined.

On the 25th of August the Judge,

L. S. Eoan, charged the jury, and they

went to their room for deliberation.

In a comparatively short time, they re-

turned, saying they had made a ver-

dict, and defendant's attorneys, waiv-

ing his personal attendance, polled the

jury. That is, each juror was asked

if the verdict of guilty was Ms verdict.

This perfunctory right is the only

one that the law allows a defendant at

that stage of the trial.

Frank was asked on August 26th

what he haa to say, as to why sentence

should not be pronounced on him. He
had nothing of consequence to say, and
he was sentenced to be hanged on Oc-
tober 10th, 1913.

On October 31, Judge Roan denied a

motion for new trial, and the case was
taken to the Supreme Court, ivhich re-

viewed the evidence and sustained

Judge Roan, Feb. 17, 1914.

An extraordinary motion for ' new
trial was made and overruled in April,

1914.

Then, the lawyers of Frank raised

the point, that he had not been per-

sonally present when the jury rendered

their verdict. This was treated as

trifling with the law and with the

court.

It never w\as a right, under English

and American law, for a defendant to

be personally present all the time; and
it is the law that whatever he can

waive, during his trial, his attorneys

can waive.

Had Frank beeft personally present,

he could not have done anything more
than his lawyers did; to-wit, poll the

jury. That is a formal, valueless

right Avhich is almost never exercised,

a7id wliicK never has panned aid re-

sults in Georgia.

Jurors do not bring in a verdict until

they are agreed : the verdict is each

juror's verdict. Otherwise, there is a

dead-lock and a mistrial.

After the best criminal lawyers of

the Atlanta bar had exhausted them-

selves in behalf of Leo Frank, the case

was given to that calliope detective,

William J. Burns—the fussy charlatan

who hunts for evidence with a brass-

band, and a search light.

With an uproarious noise, he invaded

Georgia, and breezily assumed that the

Frank case had just begun. He began

it all over again. He went to the fac-

tory to look over the physical indica-

tions, just as though the crime had not

been commited a year before Burns got

to Atlanta.

He raised his voice, in a boastful

roar, and invited mankind to watch

him, "the Great Detective," as he went

sleuthing over the premises of that

factory. The way the man talked was
something phenomenal, prodigious,

cyclonic, cataclysmic. Every morning

the papers were full of Burns, the

Great Detective. Every day we had to

eat, drink and digest Burns. Every
night we had to think, talk and dream
about Burns. The whole State, and

all the papers, got to looking toward

Atlanta, as a Mussulman does toward

Mecca, for Burns was there.
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AVith inconceivable rapidity, Burns
made up his mind, and announced his

decision. Nay, he roared it from the

castellated battlements, so that the

whole human race could hear.

He had discovered 'that the crime on
Mary Phagan had been committed by
a moral pervert of the worst type. He
had discovered that no one who had
been suspected and arrested, was guilty.

The miscreant who* did the deed was
"at large," and Burns knew where to

get him when he wanted him.

Then Burns shot out of Georgia, and
went North—presumably to put his

hands on that miscreant who had never

been suspected, and who in Burns' own
words, "is at large."

Everywhere that Burns went, the

noise was sure to go.

The papers resounded with Burns.

The Baltimore Sun, (Abell) the New
York Times. (Ochs) the New York
World. (Pulitzer) and other Hebrew-
ish organs, proclaimed the joyful news,

"Burns clears Frank!"
It was airily assumed that Burns was

the coroner's jurj^, the grand jury, the

petit jury, the judge, the witnesses,

and the lawyers.

"NAHiat did it matter to this asinine

mountebank that Frank's case had been

given, to the fullest measure, the liberal

metes of our statutory law?

Is every man to have two trials, be-

cause he wants them? Is any man en-

titled to exceptional rules, usages and
privileges ?

Did the gunmen who shot Rosenthal

get two trials?

They also were Jews, and they also

were vehemently '"innocent." Yet they

confessed before execution.

Is the richly connected Jew, Frank,
entitled to better treatment in Georgia.

than those indigent Jews got, in New
York?
The Abells, and the Ochses, and the

Pulitzers, did not raise much fuss for

the Hebrew gunmen.
If Marv Phagan had been a Jewess.

and Frank a Gentile, would all this

scurrilous crusade against Georgia have
been waged in the Jewish papers?

If Frank had killed a Jew, as the

New York gunmen did, would these

Jewish millionaires be so lavish with
their money and their abuse?

Do they imagine that we care noth-

ing for the Mary Phagans that are left

alive ?

Is no check ever to be put upon the

employers of girls, who insolently take

it for granted that the girls can be

used for lascivious purposes?

Shall the Law trace no dead-

line around the children of the poor,

and say to arrogant wealth, ''Touch

them^ at your peril f^"*

Upon what monstrous theory of

shoddy aristocracy, and commercial

snobbery, is based the idea that, in pur-

suing Mary Phagan, entrapping her,

ravishing her, and choking her to

death, this lascivious pervert did not

foully outrage every decent white man
who has a pure daughter, grand-

daughter, sister, or sweet-heart?

Burns rooted around in several

Northern cities, endeavoring to discover

the criminal who "is at large." Burns
failed to find this criminal. Then he

returned to Atlanta, and began his vir-

tuous efforts to suppress, and to invent

evidence.

For his dastardly campaign against

Monteen Stover, he richly deserves to

be tarred and feathered in every State

where he shows his brassy face.

For his abortive purchase of the affi-

davits of Rev. Ragsdale and the dea-

con. Barber, he richly deserves a penal

term.

In May 1912, President Taft^ upon
the recommendation of Attorney-Gen-

eral Wickersham, set aside some ver-

dicts in some Oregon cases, in the U. S.

Courts, upon the express groiinds that

^VILLIA3I .7. BURNS AND HIS
AGENTS HAD PACKED THE
JURY-BOXES!
No wonder Burns skipped out—the
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braggart, the faker, the crook, the cow-

ard !

His right hand man, Dan Lehon, was
expelled from the Chicago police force

for being a detected crook; and Lehon
is a better man, and a braver man, than

the contemptible Burns.

It was on this bought and perjured

evidence that Frank endeavored to se.

cure a new trial, by the extraordinary

motion.

An effort to suppress evidence is in-

dicative of guilt: Frank did that.

An effort to fabricate testimony is

indicative of guilt: Frank did that.

An effort to seduce the attorney of

an accessory, and to have that attorney

betra}^ his client, is indicative of guilt,

especially when the attorney in question

is willing, but not able, to shift suspi-

cion to his own client.

Encircling Frank, and nobody else^

are these convicting circumstances:

Motive ; opportunity ; unexplainable

movements, sayings and conduct; con-

tradictor}^ statements; presence at the

time and place of the crime; attempts

to inculpate innocent persons; efforts

to intimidate witnesses, suppress evi-

dence, and use perjured affidavits: and

lascivious character in dealings with

the girls in that factory.

Frank wanted Mary Phagan, not to

kill her, but to enjoy her. His murder
of the girl was incidental.

He did not resolve to choke her to

death, until after he realized that if

she left there alive, she would raise the

town, and he would be lynched by the

infuriated people.

Then he called for Conley's help, and
his plan was, to make way with the

corpse.

And because he had used Conley, and
was therefore afraid of what he might
say, Frank never once suggested to the

policemen, or the detectives, to question

Conley. Question Newt Lee^ BUT
DON'T QUESTION CONLEY, THE
DAY MAN, WHO WAS THERE
WHEN MARY WAS!

Why did Frank ignore THIS negro,

at that time, and try to fasten the guilt

on the other n£gro, Newt Lee ?

Newt could not implicate Frank:

Jim Conley could.

There you are; and all the lawyer-

sophistry in Christendom cannot get

aAvay from it.

"A drunken negro!" That shibbo-

leth, of late adoption, is now the burden

of Frank's statements. In his many
newspaper articles, in tine editorials

which the Jewish papers publish, in

Burns' various proclamations and war-

whoops, in the pleas of the lawyers, it

all simmers down to Jim Conley, "a

drunken brute of a negro."

When did Conley become the black

beast of the case?

Burns himself did not make him the

scape-goat when he uproariously bore

down upon Atlanta, and lifted the

floodgates of his jackass talk. At that

time, the guilty man "is a pervert of

the lowest type; he has never been ar-

rested : he is at large." Burns was go-

ing to spring a sensation by pouncing

upon somebody that had never even

been suspected. He was going to show

the Atlanta police and the Pinkerton

Detective Agency that they ougnt all

to have gone to school to William J.

Burns, The Great Detective. Conley

was not at large; Conley had been ar-

rested, investigated, and relegated to

his proper position as accessory.

Therefore, Conley was not the imagi-

nary man that Burns THEN had, in

his omniscient optics.

Not until all his turbulent efforts to

find a straw man had failed, did he and

I^ehon bribe the poor old preacher,

Ragsdale, and his poorer deacon. Bar-

ber. Lo swear that they had heard Con-

ley tell another negro that he had killed

a white woman at the pencil factory.

It was the clumsiest, Burnsiest piece of

frame-up that I had ever read; and I

immediately picked it to pieces, in the

weekly Jeffersonian.
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The papers had barely reached At-

lanta for sale on the streets, before

Ragsdale broke do^Yn and confessed

—

and now Burns is afraid to put himself

within the jurisdiction of the Georo:ia

courts.

When did Frank discover that Jim
Conley was a drunken brute of a ne-

gro? Not while emplo5nng him,

for two years! Not while allow-

ing him to remain inside the fac-

tory, that Saturday afternoon, when
Newt Lee was not permitted to

come in and go to sleep. IS'ot while

Frank's own detective was probing,

here and there, this one and that one,

in the effort to find a lead. Not while

the Coroner had the case in charge. Not
once did Frank aid the police, the Pin-

kerton Detective, or the City detectives,

hy so much as a suspicious look toward
the drunken brute of a negro.

TFAy not?

This young, lascivious Jew is a Cor-

nell graduate, is as bright as a new pin.

and keen as a needle; but in the tre-

mendous crisis in which he found him-
self, that Saturday afternoon, his brain

was in a turmoil^ "a whirling gulf of

phantasy and flame." Hence, having
made a terribly criminal mistake, he
followed it up, as most criminals do^

by making minor mistakes.

It was a mistake to move that bleed-

ing body. It was a mistake to lie to

Gantt about those old shoes. It was a

mistake to refuse to let Newt Lee enter.

It was a mistake to show so much anx-

iety to get rid of Mrs. A^Hiite. It was
a mistake to call up Newt Lee and in-

quire whether anything had happened
at the factor3^ It was a mistake to

ask the men, Rogers and Black, whether
a tragedy had taken place at the fac-

tor}'. But of course, the crowning mis-

take was, to take Jim Conley into his

confidence^ in the mAstaken effort to dis-

pose of the corpse.

The one mistake in calculation led to

the other, and these two led to the

third ; to-wit, the writing of those four

notes, in which he made the dead girl

sav she had gone to the toilet ''to make
water."

Are you to be told that a drunken
brute of a negro would seize a white

girl, inside a house, on a quiet legal

holiday, violate her person, choke her

to death with a cord, and then sit down
to write four notes about it? Are you
to l3e told that a drunken brute of a ne-

gro would attempt such a crime, within

a few steps of the white man''s office;

and would leave the stunned, uncon-

scious victim on the j^oor while he

searched around to find a cord with

which to choke her to death? The
hands of the drunken brute of a negro
would have been as much cord as he

wanted.

AVhen you put Jim Conley in the

place of the murderer of Mar}' Phagan,
3"ou cannot budge an inch. Nothing
going before the crime, points at him.

Nothing that is shown to have hap-

pened at the time and place of the

crime, points to him. Nothing that oc-

curred afterwards, points to him.

Affainst Conley, the only testimony is

that of Leo Frank!
Had the State endeavored to convict

Conley, it would have been met at the

very threshhold by the law which mer-

cifully says the accomplice cannot con-

vict the accomplice.

Frank's evidence against Conley

stands alone ! It has no corroboration

whatsoever. And he is actuated by

the irresistible motive to save his own
neck.

Therefore, the case against Conley,

is Frank, and nothing more.

When you put the negro in the place

of the rapist and murderer, you con-

front the following difficulties:

Frank's first intention to shield Con-

ley from suspicion.

Frank's attempts to cast suspicion on

Lee and Gantt.

Frank's fixed idea that a tragedy had
happened in his place of business.

Frank's haunting; the Morgue, vet
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shrinking from the sight of Maiy Pha-
gan's accusing face.

Frank's refusal to face Conley, and

to have a talk with him in the presence

of witnesses.

Frank's absence from his office, at the

time of the crime, and his false state-

ment that he was in the office, at that

very time.

Frank's efforts to '"approach" Con-
ley, intimidate him, or come to terms

with him, as William M. Smith sets out

in his statement to the court: and
Frank's attempts to make Monteen Sto-

ver perjure herself.

Frank's bribery of Ragsdale, and the

deal that was made with William M.
Smith, by which he was to help slip the

noose over the head of his own client,

"the drunken brute of a negro."

Was there ever a fouler attempt than

that?

Was there ever a completer failure?

You cannot imagine that the intel-

lectual Frank has not kept in the closest

communication with his lawyers, his

detectives, and his friends, in these al-

most superhuman efforts to save his

guilty life.

It is not Jim Conley that has strug-

gled to pull himself out of the meshes.

It is not Jim Conley that endeavored

to corrupt Frank's witnesses, and se-

duce Frank's lawyers. It was not Jim
Conley that went out to hire a preacher

and a deacon to swear away the life

of Leo Frank!
It was not Jim Conley who attempted

to use the purchased affidavits, to mis-

lead the Court, befuddle the public,

and escape Justice.

It was Frank, whose conduct before

the crime points in the direction of

guilt. It was Frank who could not be

seen, heard, or accounted for at the

time of the crime. It was Frank whose
actions were suspicious after the crime.

It was Frank whose conduct, since the

trial, has been that of a desperate crim-

inal, frantically and blunderingly en-

deavoring to escape the toils.

None of this will fit Jim Conley, or

anybody else. It fits Frank! It can-

not be made to fit anybody but Frank.
Then who is guilty?

Either the white man, or the negro,

or both, ravished and killed that little

girl.

The bloodmarks sa}'^ she was killed

on Frank's floor, not far from his pri-

vate office—.IyVZ> NEAR HIS
TOILET, WHERE HE SAYS HE
MAY HAVE GONE—not on Conley'

s

floor, Whhere Mrs. White saw the ne<jro,

at that time.

The note says she was killed on
Frank's floor, on her way to thft

toilet, where she had gone "to make
water," therefore, next to Frank'^s toilet

—not on Conley's floor at all.

Did Conley leave the lower floor,

come up to Frank's floor, and do the

deed? Why, Conley could not have

knoxon that Mary was not in Frank'^s

office, for that was where he had seen

her go.

Conley did not know where Mary
was at that time. Leo Frank was the

only Iiuman heing that knew where
Mary icas, at that identical moment!
He himself says that she had been

in his office and had gone out; and he

knew that she did not take the elevator

up or down, hut went towards the nnetal

room, to see whether the metal which

she was to work with had come.

He followed her. overtook her, soli-

cited her, put his hands on her

—

and she

screamed! Then he struck her, knock-

ing her down, fiendishly mistreated her,

and then, horror-struck at the sight,

and terrified by his consciousness of

consequences, he went and got the cord

which choked her life out.

Take Jim Conley's story, and every

proved incident dove-tails into it.

Take Frank's story, and every proved

fact collides with it.

Then who is guilty?

. Ah, who knows a man so well as his

wife does? This young married man,
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who had a young wife, must have been

outraging every feminine instinct of

her honest nature, for at first, she woiihl

not go about him.

In your bitter time of trouble if your
own wife, near by, holds aloof, there

is something hideously wron.f; with

you!
"Last at the Cross, and first at the

grave," Avomen are true

!

It makes terribly against Leo Fratik

that his young wife held back ! AVliat

pressure finally conquered her reluct-

ance?

Poor little Mary Phagan ! The
chiefest of poets has sung of the proud
Roman lady who would not survive her

honor; but, in the hearts of right

thinking men, Cornelia, ravished by a

King's son. is no better than this

daughter of the good old State of Geor-
gia, who lost her life in defense of her

chastity.

Wliile the City witnessed the parade

of the time-battered remnants of the

Confederate armies that had given so

many precious lives in defense of those

things that men hold dear, only the

angels and the Great God witnessed the

struggles of Mar}^ Phagan for the

priceless jewel that good women hold

dear. And there must have been blind-

ing tears of unutterable pity, as those

celestial witnesses looked down upon
that frightful deed. Among all the

horrible crimes that make humanity
pale and shudder, there ha^ been no
blacker crime than that.

Only "a factory girl!" That's what
the papers kept on saying.

Yes; she was only a factory girl:

there was no glamour of wealth and
fashion about her. She had no mil-

lionaire uncle : she had no Athens kins-

people ready to raise fifty thousand
dollars for her : she had no mighty con-

nections to wield influence, muzzle
newspapers, employ detectives, and
manufacture public sentiment.

Only a factory girl : therefore the

Solicitor-General has had no outside

help, has found his path of duty one
of arduous toil, has fought his way at

every step in the case against over-

whelming odds, and he won simply and
solely because he had the Law, and the

Evidence on his side.

Honor to Hugh Dorsey

!

Just as "Wliitman of New York
bravely met the hell-dogs of organized

crime, and lashed them into cowed de-

feat, Dorsey triumphed over Big law-

yers. Big detectives. Big money, and
Big newspapers in Georgia.

And because an enthusiastic people

caught up this young hero in their

arms, after he had fought the good

fight and won it, we are accused of

saturating the court-room with the

spirit of mob violence !

Ifs an outrageous libel, on the State

of Georgia/

No man ever had a fairer trial than

Leo Frank, and no man was ever more
justly convicted.

Never before did any criminal who
had exhausted in his own behalf, every

known right, privilege and prece-

dent of the law, resort to such a

systematic and unprecedented crusade

against civilized tribunals, orderly

methods, and legally established re-

sults.

If Frank's lawyers, detectives and
newspapers are to have their way. then

the Code, the Jurj' System—proud
achievements of the most illustrious

lawyers that ever lived—will have
suffered a degradation not known since

the packing of juries in the New Or-
leans cases, a decade ago, so infuriated

the people, that they rose in their wrath
and wreaked vengeance upon those Ital-

ian assassins.

During all the stormy times of the
.

Pitt-Eldon regime in England, our jury

system rode triumphantly through its

waves. One intrepid lawyer. Thomas
Erskine, was able to vindicate the no-
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ble truth, that the eflfort of our judicial

system is, to get twelve honest men in

the jury box.

So proud was Erskine of the fact

that our system^ had come out of the

terrible ordeal untarnished and with

added glory, he took for his motto, to

be emblazoned on the panels of his car-

riage

—

'"' Trial hy jury.'*''

That which the most consummate of

English advocates gloried in, we are

asked to be ashamed of; and we are

asked to condemn the verdict of Frank's

jury, when Frank himself is utterly

unable to show that the law did not

give him the twelve honest men in the

box.

What more could it have given?

What more did it Jiave to give?

Nobody compelled Frank to become
a citizen of Georgia. He came of his

own free will. Has he any more rights

than a native?

If Frank had been living in London
at the time he crushed the life out of

that human flower, little Mary Phagan,
he would have long since gone the swift

road that Dr. Crippin travelled to his

merited doom.

"AVhosoever sheds man's blood, by
man shall his blood be shed." So reads

the sternly just law of the great old

indomitable, unconquerable race from
which we take so much of our religion,

our law, and our democracy.

Is Frank to be an exception to Mosaic
law? Is alleged race-prejudice to save

him from the just penalties of the

Code?
God knows, my sympathy is pro-

found for those who sin through sud-
den passion, who are drawn astray by
some irresistible temptation, who are
lured to vice and crime by intense love

or burning hate. For the man who
kills another openly and who says to

Society—"Yes, I did it ! I had a right
to do it. Here I am, take me, and try
me!"—for such a man I have the
broadest charity.

But for the man who waylays the

road, or who basely stands outside a

dwelling at night and murders the in-

mate—I have no pity whatsoever.

So, in a case like Frank's, where a
married man, a college-bred man, a man
of the most creditable connections, de-

liberately lives a double life, debases
himself to unnatural and inordinate
lusts, and sets himself to the foul pur-
pose of entrapping the one pure girl

who was trying to save herself to be
some good man's wife—I admit, I

freely admit, that it is in me to be as

stern as the Law of the Twelve Tables.

Somebody must resist the dissolvent

power of Big Money and a muzzled
press, or Society will fall to pieces.

In all the imperial limits of Atlanta,
were there not enough purchasable
women, or lewd girls, to sate the lusts

of Frank? Why was he so hell-bent to

take this one little girl?

With his command of money and of
opportunity, was he not the man of
many flocks and herds?
Let us turn to The Book, and read

the old, old story, ringing yet with the
righteous wrath of the Prophet, and
moving men's hearts yet with its infi-

nite pathos:

"And the Lord sent Nathan unto David
and he came unto him and said unto him -----

There were two men in one city the one
rich and the other -^- - - POOR The
rich man had EXCEEDING MANY flocks and
herds but the poor man had NOTHING

save one little ewe lamb
which he had nourished up and it grew up
together with him and with HIS CHILDREN
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it did eat of HIS OWN meat and drink of

HIS OWN cup and lay in his BOSOM - - - -

and was unto^him as a DAUGHTER.
"And there came a traveller unto the rich man

and he spared to take of his OWN Hock

and his OWN herd-- to dress for the way-
faring man that was come unto him but

look- -"-"the POOR MAN'S LAMB and dressed

IT for the man that was come unto him.

"And David's anger was GREATLY kindled

against the MAN and he said to Nathan—
'AS THE LORD LIVETH—the man that hath

done THIS thing shall surely die and he
shall restore the lamb FOURFOLD because

he did this thing and because he had no pity'

-^And Nathan said to David -'THOU
art the man!* "

Not long ago, a rich Hebrew, most in-

fliientially connected, stole two million

dollars from the working people of

New York, many of whom were Jews.

Henry Siegel stole the money under
the familiar disguise of a commercial
failure. He was tried and convicted

—

and sentenced to pay a fine of one

thousand dollars, and to serve nine

months in prison.

AVhereupon, the Pulitzer paper. The
World, admits that there does seem to

be in this country one law for the rich

and another for the poor.

Now, in the State of Georgia, we are

doing our level best to prove that the

law treats all men alike, and the Pu-
litzer paper is doing its best to defeat

our aim.

The New York Wo7'ld has taken sides

with the negroes, against the white peo-

ple of the South, on all occasions.

It claims that the negroes are as

good as we, and that the negroes should

enjoy social and political equality.

So extreme has been the Pulitzer pa-

per on this line that it sharply reproved

President Wilson in the matter of the

William Monroe Trotter episode.

The New York World virtually says

that the President deserved the inso-

lence of the negro delegation, in that

he had not interfered to prevent the

heads of the Departments from requir-

ing that the negroes use separate water-

closets. &c.

Yet in the Frank case, the great point

em])hasized by the AVorld and the other

JeA\-ish papers is, that a witness against

Frank was a negro/

It seems that negroes are good

enough to kill our ballots, make our

laws, hold office, sleep in our beds, eat

at our tables, marry our daughters, and
mongrelize the Anglo-Saxon race, but

are not good enough to hear testimony

against a rich Jew!
It is all wrong for us to disfran-

chase the negroes, all wrong for

McAdoo. Burleson and Williams to re-

quire them to eat in separate restau-

rants, use separate wash-rooms, and go
to separate toilets; all wrong for the

President to allow any difference be-

tween whites and blacks, hut no negro

must he taken as a icitness against a
Jew who can command unlimited

money.
That sort of logic is a fair sample of

all the Leo Frank special pleading.

None of it would be tolerated a minute,

if there had not been such a systematic

propaganda in favor of this worst of

deliberate criminals.

From the very necessity of the case^

we have to take the evidence of ne-

groes in some cases—else Justice would
be defeated.



WATSON'S MAGAZINE. 159

Criminals do not summon the best

men in the commimity to witness their

crimes.

The murder in the brothel must of

necessity be proved by bad women. No
good AYoman is there to see it—nor anj'

good man, either.

Time and again, in Georgia, as in all

States, it has happened that the only

witnesses to the crime were negroes, or

bad white men. What is the law to do,

in such cases?

Must it let murder go unpunished,

for the lack of white men of the best

character?

Eveiy case must of necessity stand on

its own merits, and be judged by its

surroundings. A witness, otherwise

objectionable, may become invincible

hy reason of the nature of his associa-

tion with the criminal^ and with the

res gestae of the crime.

In his proclamations ro the public,

Leo Frank stresses the point that the

reviewing court has never passed upon
the question of his guilt, or innocence.

In other words, he asserts positively,

in a carefully prepared written state-

ment, that the Supreme Court of Geor-

gia has never reviewed the evidence in

the case.

AVhat an arrant falsehood

!

Every tyro in the legal profession

knows better.

In a first motion for a new trial there

are three grounds which are so invaria-

bly taken, that even the form-books la^

them down, as stereotyped.

The defendant alioays alleges that

the verdict was strongly and decidedly

against the evidence, against the weight

of the evidence, and without evidence

to support it.

Therefore, the Supreme Court had
to pass on the evidence. The Supreme
Court did pass on the evidence. And
the Court did say that the evidence was
sufficient to sustain the verdict.

There was no "mob" threatening the

Supreme Court There was no mili-

tary display menacing the Supreme
Court.

Those serene, exi^erienced lawyers
were not twelve terrified jurors, for

whom Leo Frank is now so sorry.

On their oaths and their consciences,

those superb lawyers, coolly deliberat-

ing in private and in the profoundest
security, had to say whether the evi-

dence set forth in the record was suffi-

cient to warram^t the verdict of those

twelve jurors.

And those Justices, upon their oaths

and their consciences^ said the evidence

was sufficient.

Yet Leo Frank has the brazen

effrontery to argue that his case has

never been tried, except by twelve men
who were scared into a verdict by the

Atlanta ''mob."

This attempt at misleading a sympa-
thetic public is on a par with the efforts

made to suppress testimony, to frighten

those girl witnesses, and to buy up
Ragsdale and his deacon.

It is on a par with that pulpit cru-

sade they started in Atlanta. It is on

a par with William J. Burns' "utterly

confident" explorations in Cincinnati

and New York. It is on a par with

Burns' interviews with Conan Doyle,

John Burroughs and a whole lot of

other people who have never seen the

record in this case, nor been cJmrged

with the fearful responsibility of tid-

ing this man for Ms life.

The State of Georgia and its Judic-

iary, and the honest jurors who were
sworn to try Frank, have been vilified,

held up to scorn and made objects of

derision and hatred, by irresponsible

persons who know nothing of the evi-

dence, except that Jim Conley is a ne-

gro.

The public has been gulled, again

and again, by the noisy protestations

of William J. Burns, and by the assur-

ance that something wonderfully sensa-

tional would explode very soon.

But nothing ever comes of it. Every
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time there is a show down, it is the

same old thing. The same old fatal

pursuit of the girl by Frank ; the same

old undisputed and damnable fact of

the little victim being lured back to his

private office, to get the pitiful balance

of her pitiful wage; the same old un-

explained disappearance of the girl,

and the same old utter inability of

Frank to give an account of himself.

Let me quote one sentence from a

masterful book which has recently been

published, and which has been widely

read. Its author is Edward A. Ross,

Professor of Sociology in the Univer-

sity of Wisconsin: the name of the

book is, "The Old World and the New.'*

This expert in Sociology makes a

stiidy of Immigration, the changes

brought about by it, the diseases, crimes

and vices incident to this foreign flood,

&c.

On page 150, he says

—

"The fact that the pleasure-loving

Jewish business men spare Jewesses.,

hut PURSUE GENTILE GIRLS ex-

cites bitter comment."
This bitter comment is made by the

city authorities., w'ho have had to deal

with these pleasure-loving Jewish busi-

ness men Avho spare the Jewish girls,

and run down the Gentile girls

!

If Professor Ross had had the Frank
case in his mind, he could not have hit

it harder.

Here we ha^^ the pleasure-loving

Jewish business man.
Here we have the Gentile girl.

Here we have the typical young liber-

tine Jew who is dreaded and detested

by the city authorities of the North, for

the very reason that Jews of this type

have an utter contempt for law, and a

ravenous appetite for the forbidden

fruit

—

a lustful eagerness enhaneed hy
the racial novelty of the girls of the

uncircumcised !

The Frank case is enough to depress

the most hopeful student of the times.

It has shown us how the capitalists of

Big Money regard the poor man's

daughter. It has shown us what our
daily papers will do in the interest of

wealthy criminals. It has shown us

how differently the law deals with the

rich man and the poor. It has shown
us that some of our lawyers, members
of tlie Bar Asosciation, are ready to

use crook detectives and crook witnesses

to defeat Justice.

It has shown us that these law3'ers

are eager to have the Federal Courts

step into the province of our State

Courts, and set a precedent which
would mean that whoever can hire the

attorneys, can run the gamut of our

State Courts, and then run the gamut
of the Federal judiciary.

And the end will not even then be

reached. If no court Avill disturb a

righteous verdict, political pulls must
be tried.

The most insidious, sinister and pow-
erful pressure will be brought to bear

upon the Pardon Board ,and upon the

Governor, to prevent the law from tak-

ing its course^ and to give another de-

pressing instance of "the difference,

'twixt the Rich and the Poor."

It is fair and proper to assume that

our State officials will do their duty,

"without fear, favor, affection, reward,

or the hope thereof."

CoUier''s, however, has taken it upon
itself to announce that Leo Frank will

not be executed.

Therefore, Collier's has been guilty

of forestalling the action of the Geor-

gia Pardon Board, and the Georgia

governor.

CoUier''s is publishing a series of arti-

cles on the case. They are similar to

Connolly's rigmaroles in the Baltimore

Sim. They repeat the one-sided state-

ments of the Times and the ^Vorld.

Burns seems to have won the confidence

of Mr. Connolly, and Mr. Connolly's

articles sound loudly of William J.

Burns.

These newspaper articles of the pro-

paganda, of Big Money against the

Law., are all based on Leo Frank's ex-
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j)aTte statement, which he dared not

submit to the test of a cross-examina-

tion.

Not one of these newspaper articles

deals with the undisputed facts which

form the chain of circumstantial evi-

dence, solidifying the work of the di-

rect testimony.

These intensely partisan articles are

predicated upon the alleged fact, that

some men on the streets of Atlanta

said, "Hang the d—n Jew!'' and upon

the baseless assumption that the jury

heard these cries, and were controlled

by them.

Not once have these hirelings for the

defence argued the actual, proved, ma-

terial, controlling facts that com-pelled

the verdict.

AATiat do rich Jews care for Jews who
are poor?

Suppose Leo Frank had heen a mon-

eyless Hehreic immigrant^ recently ar-

rived from Poland, and peddling about

from house to house to get a few

dollars for the wife and child he left

behind in the war-zone, would the

wecdthy Jews., of Athens, Atlanta, Bal-

timore. Brooklyn, Philadelphia and

New York he spending half-a-milUon

dollars to save him from the legcd con-

sequences of premeditated and hornble

crime?
Or suppose Mary Phagan had been

Jacob Schiff's daughter, or Belmont's

daughter, or Pulitzer's daughter, or

Och's daughter, or Collier's daughter,

would Leo Frank l3e the subject of a

propaganda of libellous misrepresenta-

tions of the people of Georgia ?

It hasn't been so long ago, since Col-

liers published the slander on South-

ern white women, in which the editor

alleged that the white uoomen accused

neqro men of rape^ TO HIDE THE
SHAME OF CONSENT!
Having championed . he negro rapist

against the Southern white woman.
Collier's now champions an abnormal

Sodomite, who comes as near carrging

it on his fcLce.) as any lascivious degen-

erate ever did.

AViliam J. Burns knows that he has

discredited himself, and he is now us-

ing C. P. Connolly as his megaphone.^

C. P. Connolly is flooding the country

with literature, finely gotten up on
glossy paper, and illustrated by an

idealized cut of the horribly sensual

face of Leo Frank.

The purpose is to divide public opin-

ion, create mawkish sentiment, and
manufacture a sympathy which will in-

fluence the authorities. The most out-

rageous misrepresentations about the

Atlanta ''mob," and the Atlanta mill-

tary. and the terrorizing of the jury^

are being recklessly circulated, to save

as guilty a man as was ever arraigned^

and to besmirch a State whose laws^

juries and judges are notoriously in^

dined to the utmost verge of leniency.

There was no Big Money to push the

case against Leo Frank. There were

honest Atlanta police-officers, an honest

Pinkerton detective, some white girls

and Avhite men wdio could neither be

bullied nor bought; twelve honest ju-

rors in the box and a just judge on the

bench ; an able, fearless and energetic

Solicitor-General as the State's repre-

sentative; and a chain of proved facts

and circumstances, which apart from

negro evidence, excluded every other

reasonable hypothesis, save that of the

defendant's guilt.

Above all, towered the Supreme
Court of Georgia, which ignored the

attempted intimidation of the Atlanta

Jo'rnal—a Georgia paper that prosti-

tuted itself to the propaganda of

Big iSIoney and declared that the execu-

tion of this Beattie, tJiis McCue. this

Durant, this Leftie Louie, would be

•judicial murder."

Leo Frank and Mary Phagan. the

pursuer and the pursued, the hawk and

the dove, the wolf and the lamb—there

they are ! The bones of the little Geor-

gia girl are mouldering in the ground,
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while Leo Frank poses for another

photograph and composes another

statement, and his rich, powerful

champions declare defiantly that he

will not be punished.

May the Almighty source of Justice

and of Power, give to the Governor of

Georgia the strength to withstand all

blandishments, all improper influences,

all mawkish appeals, and to stand fnn.

BY THE LAW, and do his duty, as

the jurors and the judges have done

theirs.

The systematic and hugely expensive

cami)aign of slander that has been

waged against the people of Georgia in

regard to this case has logically and

necessarily created this /kind of a situa-

tion : to-v.'it

—

If the Pardon Board, or the Gover-

nor, intervenes, that intervention will

be inevitably understood to be a con-

demnation of the jirnj, of Judge L. S.

Roan, of Judge Benjamin H. Hill, and

of the Stipreme Court.

The charges made by Frank's law-

yers, by Frank himself, by William J.

Burns, b}^ the big Jewish newspapers,

and by ColUer'^s, strike at the integrity

of our judicial system, and the racial

fairness of our i>eople.

The courts are accused of trjdng this

man by riot and hysteria, instead of by

evidence and law. The people are ac-

cused of condemning him because he is

a Jew, and on the unsupported testi-

mony of a negro

!

Are those charges true ? If they are,

the courts and the people of Georgia

are eternally disgraced.

The Big Money propagandists say

that the charges are true.

Alleging them to be true, the propa-

gandists demand that the Pardon
Board and the Governor change the

sentence of the Law.
Shall this charge he countenanced by

the Pardon Board, and the Governor?

Shall wealthy outsiders invade the

State of Georgia, and take this case into

their own hands? Shall foreign influ-

ences usurp the funrtionx of our courts,

and dominate the administration of our
lairs?

No other State tries its criminals in

the newspapers, in the pulpits, in the

banks, or in the back-rooms where poli-

ticians juggle.

The dail}' papers and Collier\<i did

not attempt to dictate to Virginia, in

the McCue and Beattie cases. Nor did

the papers attempt to annul the law,

to save the lives of the gunmen who
shot the Jew gambler.

Infinitely worse than the Rosenthal

case, infinitely worse than the McCue
and Beattie cases, is that of I^o Frank,

the libertine who kept after this little

o-irl. ami kept after her, AND KEPT
AFTER HER, with the lust of a

satyr, and the ruthless determination

that she should not escape him.

All over this great Republic lawless-

ness is raging like the wild waves of a

stormy sea. All over this Christian land

the crimes against women are taking

wider range, vaster proportions, and
types more fiendish. The white-slaver

stands almost openly in crowded
streets, in waiting rooms, and at fac-

tory doors, with his net in his hands,

ready to cast it over some innocent, un-

suspecting girl. The lascivious em-
])loyer—from the highest to the lowest,

from the lawyer and politician who
advertise for type-writers and stenog-

raphers, down to the department

stores, the small factories, the laundries

and the sweat-shops—are on the look-

out for poor girls and young women
who will exchange virtue for "a good
time."

Do not we all know it?

Where the girl is of the age of con-

sent, and consents, it is bad enough,

God knows

!

But where the girl is good, and
wants to stay so, and she is pursued,

and importuned, and entrapped, and is

not permitted to keep the one jewel

that her poverty allow's her, but is
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forcibly robbed of it, and then killed
to hush her mouth—O what shall Vve

say of that ?

And what are we to think of the
men. and the u-omen, who can forget
the poor, weak, lonely little heroine
irho died, for her honor—amid this
magnificent people who rear monu-
ments to regiments of strong men who
have died for principle?

The Creator that made me, best
knows how I revere brave and good
men that stand the storm, resist temp-
tation, keep to the right path, and go
to their gi-aves—martyrs to Faith, and
Duty, and Honor—rather than sur-
render the glorious crown of Manhood.
But the words have never been

coined which can express what a true
man feels for the woman who is so

great, in the divine simplicity of un-
conquerable innocence, that she, like
the snow-white ermine of the frozen
Arctic, tvill die, rather than soil the
restment that God gave her.

In this day of fading ideals and
disappearing landmarks, little Mary
Phagan's heroism is an heirloom, than
which there is nothing more precious
among the old red hills of Georgia.

Sleep, little girl! Sleep in your
humble grave! but if the angels are
good to you, in the realms beyond the
troubled sunset and the clouded stars,

they will let you know that many an
aching heart in Georgia beats for you,
and many a tear, from eyes unused to

weep, has paid you a tribute too sacred
fur words.

The Wolf At the Door

St. George Best

Xo common man am I, but one of liberal mind,
Doomed none the less to feel,

In this broad land, with millions of my alien kind.
The print of fortune's heel.

:\ry years of stalwart strength have run to four-score now
Of penury and distress;

These shrunken limbs, these palsied hands and wrinkled brow-
They are my witnesses.

For two-score years I've lived upon your nation's soil,

Earning my bread in sweat;
Accustomed early and accustomed late to toil.

In sunshine or in wet.

I've wrought the glowing metal at the forge, breast-bare,
I've tilled the unfilled land;

Where once your giant forests kissed the neighboring air.
The homes of culture stand.

I've dug the mine and laid the rail, the iron horse.
With his metallic roar,

I've driven like a whirlwind on his fiery course.
From east to western shore.
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A Full Review of the Leo Frank Case

Ox the 23rd page of Puch^ for the

week ending January 16, 1915,

there is, in the smallest possible

type, in the smallest possible space, at

the bottom of the page, the notice of
oionership, required hy laio.

Mankind are informed that Puck is

published by a corporation of the same
name, Nathan Strauss, Jr., being Presi-

dent, and H. Grant Strauss being Sec-

retary' and Treasurer. You are author-

ized, therefore, to give credit to the

Strauss family for the unparalleled

campaign of falsehood and defamation

which Puch has persistently waged
against the State of Georgia, her peo-

ple, and her courts. Inasmuch as the

Strauss family once lived in Georgia,

and are loudlv professing their ardent

devotion to the State of their birth,

you mav feel especiallv interested in

Puck.

Looking over the pages of this

Strauss publication. I find a character-

istic thing: on page 22, there is an
illustrated advertisement of "Sunny
Brook Whiskey" which is recom-

mended as "a delightful beverage, and
a wholesome tonic.'' To give force to

the words of testimonial, there is a

picture of an ideally good-looking man,
and this smiling Apollo is pointing his

index finger at a large bottle of the

delightful Sunny Brook fire-water.

On the next page, is a strikingly

boxed advertisement of "The Keely

Cure Treatment." with references to

such nationally known stew-it-out re-

sorts as Hot Springs, Arkansas: Jack-

sonville. Florida ; and Atlanta. Geor-

gia. The advertisement states that the

Keely Cure is "John Barleycorn's Mas-
ter," and that during the last thirty-

five years half-a-million victims of the

drink appetite have been cured.

Therefore, the Strauss magazine m
open to contributions from both sides.

Those who don't want the Keely Cure,

are told where to get the liquor; while

those who have had too much of the

liquor, are told where to get the Keely
Cure. In either event, the Strauss

family continue to do business, and to

add diligent shekels to the family pile.

Puck is one of those magazines which

indulges in fun, for the entertainment

of the human race. You can nearly

always tell what sort of a man it is,

by the jokes he carries around with

him. In parallel column to the ad. of

the Sunny Brook Wliiskey, Puck places

a delicate little bit of humor, like this

:

"We stand behind the goods we sell!"

The silver-throated salesman said.

"No! No!" cried pretty, blushing Nell,

"You see, I want to buy a bed!"

Another bit of refined fun, which is

so good that the Strauss family went

to the expense of a quarter-page car-

toon, represents a portly evangelical

bishop, seated in the elegant room of a

young mother, who is at the tea-table,

close by, pouring "the beverage which

cheers but not inebriates." Her little

boy sits on the bishop's knee, and the

kindly gentleman, with one hand on

the lad's plump limb, exclaims, "My

!

my! AVhat sturdy little legs!" and the

boy answers, "O, you ought to see
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mother's!" and the mother is in arm's
length of the bishop!

The tone of Puck, and its sense of
responsibility to its readers, when dis-

cussing matters of the gravest public

concern, is shown by its treatment of
the profoundly serious and important
subject of Prohibition. I quote what
Puck says, not to exhibit Kichiiiond

Pearson Hobson, or the pros and cons
of Congressional legislation on that

question, but to exhibit the levity and
dishonesty of Puck:

Congress was treated to an excellent
vaudeville a few days ago as part of the
prohibition propaganda engineered by that
earnest young white-ribboner, Richard
Pearson Hobson. From all press reports
of the session, it must have been an inspir-

ing sight.

Mr. Hobson had placed in the "well" of
the House—the big space in front of the
clerk's desk—twenty large lettered plac-
ards pointing out the alleged evils of the
"liquor curse." Some of those placards
were: "Alcoholic Dogs Had More Feeble
and Defective Puppies," "Destructive
Effect of Alcohol on Guinea Pigs," etc.

—

New York Tribune.

Puck has long pointed out the terrible

effects of alcoholic indulgence among our
canine friends. It feels, with Mr. Hobson,
a heartfelt pity at the picture of a tipsy
terrier going home to a boneless doghouse
and a hungry litter. But Mr. Hobson's
flapdoodle did not stop here. He rants:

"The national liquor trust in America
opened four different headquarters in Ala-
bama and conducted the major part of the
great c'ampaign against me, with their one
hundred stenographers and eight hundred
men on the salaried payroll. I found out
also that Wall Street—and I am not guess-
ing—raised a fund which was sent there to

defeat me."—New York Tribune.

Poor old Wall Street! No sooner is it

out of the doldrums of an enforced vaca-
tion than it is dragged into action to lead
that peerless force of "one hundred stenog-
raphers and eight hundred salaried men"
against Mr Hobson. It is a heart-rendii;g

picture, this spectacle of impoverished
financiers passing 'round the hat to coiloct

a fund to be used in behalf of the Demon
Rum. Wall Street reeks with whiskey—if

we believed the oratory of Prohibition's

Alabama advocate.

But, to continue:

That whiskey is killing daily more men
in the United States than the war is taking
away in Europe, was one of the staleiiients

emphasized by Mr. Hobson.—New York
Tribune.

Is it to be wondered that the cause of

Prohibition, championed with such rubbish
as this, met with a decisive and well-de-

served defeat?

The prominent feature of this num-
ber of Puck, is another full-page car-

toon, by Hy Mayer, representing Leo
Frank, this time, as an innocent

prisoner barred from his freedom by
the symbolic columns of "Wisdom,
Justice, and Moderation," as they ap-

pear on Georgia's coat of arms. The
Strauss accusation is, that the State has

falsified her ow^n motto, and converted

her temple into a Bastille, through
wliose bars the innocent Frank is gaz-

ing outward for the liberty of which
lie has been so unlawfully deprived.

A paragraph on another i)age runs

thus:

IN SAFE HANDS AT LAST.

Perhaps the Georgia mob that hooted
its way to fame outside the court-room
where Frank was being tried for his life

will now pack up its carpet-bags and
journey to Washington.

The Supreme Court of the United States
would doubtless be tremendously overawed
by a demonstration of mob violence on the
part of an Atlanta delegation.

What are people to do, when merce-

nary detectives, and newspapers, and
Hessians of the pen, hire themselves to

push a propaganda of libel and race

prejudice, in the determined effort to

hide the evidence of Frank's guilt,

nullify' the calm decisions of our high-

est court, and substitute the clamor of

Big Money for the stern, impartial

mandate of the Law?
In this same issue of the Strauss

magazine, is another cartoon, bv M.
De Zayas, labelled. "ALONE IN HER
SHAilEr The subject of odium is

the State of Georgia, and she is pic-
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tured as being pointed at by the scorn-

ful fingers of all the other States,

If this kind of thing could work a

mercurial public into hj^steria, or hyp-
notize a governor into blue funk, what
rich criminal would ever go to the

Georgia as a masked ruffian, with a coil

of rope in his hand, trying to seize Leo
Frank, and lynch him, without a legal

trial. The witnesses to the scene are

Uncle Sam, and a touring-car full of
the other States in the Union! A

"SHAMING" THE STATE OF GEORGIA IN THE STRAUSS Pt/CA" MAGAZINE.

scaffold ? If Big Money can hire Hes-
sians enough to fight Frank's way out
of the consequences of his awful crime,

what is it that Big Money cannot do?
In the same Strauss magazine for

January 30th, there is a still more in-

sulting and defamatory cartoon. We
reproduce it, for the information of
our readers. It pictures the State of

guide, with a megaphone, is proclaim-

ing the infamy of Georgia.

In all of the months during which
William J. Burns has been working
these agencies to create sentiment in

favor of Frank, not a page of the

essential sworn testimony has been
given to the public. On the con-

trary, the wildest rumors, and the
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most craftily devised falsehoods, have
been put into circulation, in the effort

to get a favorable verdict from un-
thinking editors and readers who are

slow to suspect that there is a system-
atic campaign of wilful lies.

Excuse me for speaking plainly, the

time has come for it.

Let us begin with Collier's. Tliis is

the weekly paper wdiich has sold books
in so many peculiar ways, and made
a nation-wdde campaign against patent

medicines—and then stopped quite sud-

denly.

It is the paper which editorially ac-

cused the white women of the United
States of squealing on tlieir negro para^

mours^ and thereby causing them to be

lynched

—

to avoid scandal!

The exact language of Collier's was

—

It is well known that many identifica-

tions are mere hysteria, often for crimes
that w^ere never committed, and many-
charges and identifications are founded on
something worse than hysterical invention;
they are the easiest escape from scandal.

Now these are not the things to say, no
doubt. They altogether lack chivalry and
the aristocratic virtues. But perhaps it is

time to put justice and truth above
"honor," whatever that may be.

Thus spoke Collier's editorially in

October 1908.

Is Collier's the kind of publication

which you would select for the cham-
pionship of Truth?

Is Collier's the weekly that would

go to great expense in the Frank case,

for the holy sake of Justice?

C. P. Connolly had been with Wil-

liam J. Burns in the McNamara cases,

and Burns took up Connolly in the

Frank case, to blow some bugles

through the Baltimore Sim., the daily

paper of the w^orthy Abells. After the

Abells got through with Connolly. Col-

lier's picked him up. and translated

him to Atlanta. What did he do there ?

With whom did he talk? How did he

try to get at the facts of the Frank
case ?

lie did not go over the record, with

the Solicitor who was familiar with it,

oiul irho proffered his services to Con-
nolUj for that vciij purpose!

If Connolly came for the truth, why
did he not listen to both sides? AVliy

did he not read the record? Or if he
read it, why did he so grossly mis-

represent it?

Let us examine a few of Connolly's

statement.s—statements which being ac-

cepted as true, have poisoned the

minds of honest people throughout the

Union, just as they were meant to do!
Connolly say.s

—"Leo M. Frank is a

young man of whose intellectual attain-

ments any community might well be

proud. Atlanta has been combed to

find something against his moral

character. . . . but without suc-

cess."

There you have a flat, positive asser-

tion that the city of Atlanta was dili-

gently searched for witnesses who
would testify against Frank's moral

character, and that none could he

found.

What will be your amazement and
indignation, when I tell you thai

numerous white girls and white women
went upon the witness stand, and swore
against Frank's moral character?

One after another, those white ac-

cusers, braved the public ordeal and
testified that Frank was lewd, lascivi-

ous, immoral

!

Frank''s lawyers sat there in silence.,

not daring to ask those tcitnesses for
the details upon which they based their

te7'7^ible testimony.

VThy did Frank's lawyers allow that

fearful evidence to have its full effect

upon the jury, without asking those

white women what it icas they knew
on Frank?
Suppose yon had been accused in this

case, and tho.se same witnesses had
testified against your character, would
yo}t have been afraid to cross-examine

them ?

Only a man vho shrank from what



WATSON'S MAGAZINE. 239

LEO FRANK. STUDY THE MOUTH, NOSE. AND AVERTED EYES
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those women could tell on him, would
have let them go, without a single

word ! The State could not ask them
for specific facts. The defendant alone

had the legal right to ask for those

—

and the defense was afraid to do it.

Among those white witnesses were,

Miss Marie Karst, Miss Nellie Pettis,

Miss Maggie Griffin, Miss Carrie

Smith, Mrs. C. D. Donegan, Miss Myr-
tie Cato. ISfrs. Estelle Winkle, Mrs. M.
E. Wallace, Mrs. H. R. Johnson, Miss
Mary Davis.

Another white girl who did not know
enough of Frank's general character

for lasciviousness, to swear against

it, was offered by the State to prove

that she went to work in Frank's fac-

tory, and that Frank m,ade an indecent

proposal to her, on the second day!
Frank's lawyers objected to the evi-

dence, and Judge L. S. Roan ruled it

out. But if Connolly was eagerly bent

on finding the truth as to Frank's

character, he would certainly have

heard of Miss Nellie Wood, who doubt-

less can tell Connolly at any time the

exact language that Frank used in his

eifort to corrupt her.

Wlien you pause to consider that

here were many white witnesses, non^

of whom could he impeached, who took

a solemn oath in open court, and swore

to Frank's immoral character—standing

ready to bear the brunt of the cross-

examination of the crack lawyer of the

Atlanta bar—what do you think of

Connolly, when he states that no such

witnesses could be found ? And what do
you think of Bums, who pulled off the

jackass stunt of afterwards offering "a

reward" for any such witnesses?

With reference to his said offer of

the $5,000 reward, this impostor.

Bums, said on Feb. 3, in the Kansas
City Star, which is ( distinterestedly,

no doubt) giving so much space to the

campaign of slander against the people

and courts of Georgia:

"Let me tell you this—no man has a
more remarkable past than Frank. I in-

vestigated every act of his life prior to the

accusation against him. There was not a

scratch on it. Then I offered a reward of

$5,000 to anyone who could prove the

slightest immorality against him. No one,

not even the Atlanta police, have attempted

to claim it."

In.stead of his flamboyant and empty
offer of $5,000, why didn't Bums
quietly take Rev. John E. White, or

some other respectable witness, with

him, and visit tJic white ladies who had
already publicly testified to Frank^s

lewd character?

Those white ladies were right there

in Atlanta, while that noisy ass. Burns,

was braying to the universe. The
record showed him their names. // he

wanted to know WHAT THEY
COULD TELL ON FRANK, why
didn'*t he go and ask them?
He knew very well that nobody

would claim his reward, for he knew
that there w'asn't anybodv who was fool

enough to believe they could ever see

the color of his money.

If he wants to learn the truth about

Frank's double life, he can go to those

ladies now!
WHY DOESN'T HE DO IT? He

can save his imaginary $5,000, and
ascertain the truth, at the same time.

The mendacious scoundrel was quick

enough to hunt up Miss Monteen Sto-

ver, and use his utmost efforts to scare

her into changing her evidence. He
went so far as to entrap her, in Samuel
Boomstein's office, where the attempt

was made to hold her by force.

Other girl witnesses, in the case were

subjected to persecution and threats, by
these infamous Bums detectives, who
wanted to change their evidence, as

they did change the fearful evidence of

Frank's negro cook.

Why was Bums afraid to ask Mrs.

Johnson, or Mrs. Winkle, or Mrs.

Donegan what it was, that caused them
to swear that Leo Frank is a libertine ?

Miserable faker! He didn't want the

tmth.

Do William J. Burns and Luther
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Rosser mean to say that all these re-

spectable white girls and ladies who
swore to Frank's immoral character,

perjured tlxeTiiselves? If so, what mo-
tive did they have ? And if Rosser was
satisfied those ladies wei-e swearing

falsely, iDliy didivt he cross-examine

them? Why was he afraid to ask them
a single question?

Your common sense tells you why.
Rosser feared what woidd COME
OUT!
Another statement made by Connolly

is, that the face of the dead girl "was
pitted and seamed with indentations

and scratches from the cinders, a bank
of which stretched along the cellar for

a hundred feet or more. There had
evidently been a struggle.''

Again, Connolly says

—

There were cinders and sawdust in tlie

girl's nose and moutli, drawn in, in the act

of breathing, and under her finger nails.

Her face had been rubbed before death

into these cinders, evidently in the attempt

to smother her cries.

Here the purpose of Connolly was,

to make it appear that Mary Phagan
had been killed in the basement, after

a strugg'le, during which her mouth
had been held down in the cinders^ to

stiflle her screams

!

In that event, of course, her tongue,

her mouth, her throat, and perhaps her

'lungs would have shown saw-dust, and
cinders.

There is absolutely no evidence in

the record, to svpport any such theory.

There was absolutely no evidence of

any long "bank of cinders," in the base-

ment. There was, in fact, no such bank

of cinders/

(See evidence of Defendant's witness,

I. U. Kauffman, pages 148, 149, 150.

Also, evidence of Dobbs, Starnes, Bar-

rett, &c.)

The evidence of all the witnesses is.

that the girl's tongue prolruded from
her mouth, and that the heavy twine

cord had cut into the tender flesh of

her neck, and that the blood-settlings

showed the stopped circulation—mani-

fest not only in her purple-black face,

but under the blue finger nails.

There was no evidence whatever of

cinders, ashes, or saw-dust in her

mouth, in her throat, or in her lungs.

Tliere was not a scintilla of evidence

that she had met her death in the base-

ment!
(See evidence of Dobbs, Starnes and

Barrett.)

The sworn testimony in the record

is, that, although the girl's face was
dirty from having been dragged by the

heels through the coal-dust and grime,

natural to the basement where the fur-

nace w^as, the negro who first saw her

that night, by the glimmer of a smoky
lantern, telephoned to the police that

it was a white girl. The officers, x\nder-

son and Starnes, so testfied

!

Sergeant Dobbs swore that the body
seemed to have been dragged by the

heels, over the dirt and coal-dust, and
that the trail led back from the corpse

to the elevator. His exact words are,

"It began immediately in front of the

elevator, at the bottom of the (eleva-

tor) shaft."

The word. "It," refers to the trail of

the dragged body; and the witness

swore that- he thought the condition of

the girl's face ''"had been made from the

dragging.''"'

There was the unmistakable sign of

the dragged body, as legible as the

track of a foot on the soft ground ; and
the weight of the head and the friction,

in dragging and bumping, would
naturally cause soilure and abrasions.

(The distance was 136 feet.)

W. E. Thomson whose booklet of 32

pages has been generously scattered

"from the Potomac to the Rio Grande"
—in the evident effort to reach all of

his blood-relations who. as he tells us,

are dissolutely distributed over the en-

tire region between these two water-

courses—W. E. Thomson says, on page

18 of his rambling, incoherent pamph-
let.—

"There is not a shadow of doubt that
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she was murdered in this basement, on

this dirty floor. The back door had
been forced open by drawinj^ the

staple. This door opened out on an

alley back of the building. There is

every reason for believing that the

murderer went out that door."

Thomson argues that Jim Conley did

the work.

But why did Jim Conley have to draw
the staple, and leave the building by
that door? Conley had the run of the

building, was in it that fatal Saturday,

was there when the white ladies and
girls left, and was gone, in the usual

way, when Xewt Lee came on duty for

the evening, as night watch.

The basement door was not then

open. But the ci^me had already heen

committed^ and the dead body lay there

in the gloom, ^^liose interest would it

serve to afterwards draw the staple,

and give the door an appearance of

having been forced?

When William J. Burns came to At-

lanta, last Spring, and began his cam.

paign of thunder and earthquake, he

deafoningly shouted to the public at

every step he took. His very first

whoop was, that a careful examination

of the facts in the case showed that th<^

crime had been committed by "a degen-

erate of the lowest type." Burns
roared the statement, that the guilty

man had never been suspected, and was
still "at large."

Burns yelled that this unsuspected

criminal of the lowest type was hiding

out, someAvhere nearer to the North pole

than Atlanta ; and, with an ear-split-

ting noise. Burns set out to find that

man. Burns said he was "utterly con-

fident" he would find this man—who
was expected to wait calmly, until

Burns could nab him.

As everybody who read the papers

last summer knows, that icas precisely

the theory upon which Bums started to

work. He went on a wild-goose chase,

into the Northern States, and was gone

for months, working the Frank case.

Working it how? Hunting for what?
lie didnH have to go North to find

evidence against Jim, Conley. Every
bit of evidence against Jim was right

there, in Atlanta.

Burns has never produced a single

witness from the North. Not a scrap of

testimony resulted from all his months
of labor in the Noi-th ! What was he

doing there?

From day to day, and week to week,

he put out interviews in which he de-

clared he was making "the most grati-

fying progress."
"

"Progress," at what? "Gratifying,"

how ?

My own idea was, that Burns spent

his time chasing around after opulent

Hebrews; and that his gratifying pro-

gress consisted of relieving the prosper-

ous Children of Israel of their super-

fluity of ducats. It takes money to

stimulate the activities of such a pecu-

liar concern as the Burns Detective

Agency.

In one of his many interviews, pub-

lished in the papers of Cain and Abel,

this great detective, Burns, said, "The
private detective is one oi the most
dangerous criminals that we have to

contend with."

I considered that the superbest piece

of cool effrontery that a Gentile ever

uttered, and a Jew" ever printed. You
couldn't In^at it. if you sat up of nights,

and drank inspiration from the nectar

Jupiter sips.

Week after week, Burns pursued

the pleasures of the chase, up North,

presumably bringing down many a fat

Hebrew. He not only got a magnifi-

cent "bag" of rich Jews, but, with the

unholy appetite of an Egyptian turning

the tables on the Chosen People, he

spoiled them to such an extent that it

was a "battue."

Having bled these opulent Hebrews
of the North until they were pale about

the gills, and mangled in their bank-

books, William J. came roaring back
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SouthAvard, oozing newspaper inter-

views at every stop of the cars. Burns
said he had his "Keporf about ready.

That Report was going to create a seis-

mitic upheaval. That Report would
astound all right-thinking bipeds, and
demonstrate what a set of imbeciles

were the Atlanta police, the Atlanta

detectives, the Pinkerton detectives, the

Solicitor-Cieneral, the Jury, the Su-

preme Court, and those prejudiced

mortals who had believed Leo Frank
to be the murderer of Mary Phagan.

Naturally, the public held its breath,

as it waited for the publication of this

much-advertised Report. At last, it

came, and what was it? To the utter

amazement of everybody, it consisted

of an argument by Burns on the facts

that were already of record. He did

not offer a shred of new evidence.

His only attempt at new testimony

was the bought affidavit of the Rev. C.

B. Ragsdale, who swore that he over-

heard Conley tell another negro that

he had killed a girl at the National

Pencil Factory.

So, after all his work in the North,

and after all his brag about what hft

would show in his Report, Burns' bluff

came to the pitiful show down of a

bribed witness who was paid to put the

crime on the negro.

As Burns said, "the private detective

is the most dangerous criminal we have

to contend with." "We" have so found.

Commenting upon the Connolly

articles, the Houston, Texas, Chronicle

says, editorially:

Collier's Weekly has espoused Frank's
cause in its usual intense way, and has

put the work of analyzing the facts into

the hands of a man who does not mince
words; and, while one may not be willing

to agree with all of its contentions, there

is one point on which it hits the bullseye^
that of the speech of the solicitor general,

or prosecuting attorney.

In what manner had Collier's hit the

bull's eye ?

According to Collier's, the speech was
"venomously partisan," and the wish is

editorially expressed that all lawyers in the
United States could read it and let that
paper know what they think of it. So
presumably it was stenographically re-

ported, and it may safely be assumed that
Collier's quotes correctly. It says the
Reuf case, the Rosenthal murder and other
crimes in which Jews played a part were
dragged into the argument.

Elevating himself to the pinnacle of
moral rectitude, the editor of the

Chronicle says

—

In England, where trials are conducted
more nearly along proper lines than they
are anywhere else in the world, a crown's
counsel who would make a denunciatory
or emotional appeal to a jury would be
adjudged in contempt.

With such a speech, and a crowd which
had already prejudged the case filling the
court house, a fair trial in the meaning of
the constitution and the law was impossi-
ble.

In England it would have been
different, says the Chronicle.

Yes, it would. In England, Leo
Frank would long since gone the way
of Dr. Crippin, and suffered for his

terrible crime.

But was Dorsey's speech such a veno-

mous tirade? Was he in contempt of

court in his allusions to Reuf and Hum-
mel and Rosenthal? Did Dorsey bring

the race issue into the case?

Solicitor General Hugh M. Dorsey's

speech v)a.s stenographically reported.

It makes a booklet of 146 pages. On
pages 2, 3, and 4, Mr. Dorsey deals with

the race issue and deplores the fact that

the ^''defense first mentioned ra(?e."

Mr. Dorsey says, "Not a word
emanated from this side, not a word
indicating any feeling against

any human being, black or white, Jew
or Gentile.

"But, ah ! the first time it was ever

brought into this case,—and it was
brought in for a purpose, and I have
never seen two men manifest more de-
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light or exultation than Messrs. Rosser

and Arnold, when they put the question

to George Kendley at the eleventh

hour.

'•A thing which they had expected us

to do, and which the State did not do,

because we didn't feel it and it wasn't

in this case.

"I will never forget how they seized

it, seized with avidity the suggestion,

and 3^ou know how they have harped
on it ever since.

"Now, mark you, they are the ones

that mentioned it, not us: the word
never escaped our mouth."
There sat Frank's lawyers, two of

the most aggressive fighters, men who
rose to their feet, again and again^

during the course of Dorsey's speech,

to deny his statements, and interject

their own, but they did not utter a word
of denial when he charged them to their

teeth, in open court, with bringing into

the case the evidence that Frank is a

Jew. Nor did they challenge his state-

ment that they had "laid for" him to

do it, and had done it themselves when
they saw that he did not mean to gfve

them that string to harp on.

Having made his explanation of how
the fact of Frank being a Jew got into

the case, Dorsey paid this glowing
tribute to the great race from which
this degenerate and pervert sprung:

"I say to you here and now, that the
race from which that man comes is as

good as our race. His ancestors were
civilized when ours were cutting eacli

other up and eating human flesh; his race
is just as good as ours,—just so good, but
no better. I honor the race that has pro-

duced D'Israeli,—the greatest Prime Min-
ister that England has ever produced. I

honor the race that produced Judah P.

Benjamin,—as great a lawyer as ever lived

in America or England, because he lived

in both places and won renown in both
places. I honor the Strauss brothers

—

Oscar, the diplomat, and the man who
went down with his wife by his side on
the Titanic. I roomed with one of his race

at college; one of his race is my partner.

I served with old man Joe Hirsch on the

Board of Trustees of the Grady Hospital.

I know Rabbi Marx but to honor him, and
I know Doctor Sonn, of the Hebrew
Orphan's Home, and I have listened to

him with pleasure and pride.

"But, on the other hand, when Becket
wished to put to death his bitter enemy,
it was men of Frank's race he selected.

Abe Hummel, the lawyer, who went to the

penitentiary in New York, and Abe Reuf,
who went to the penitentiary in San Fran-
cisco, Schwartz, the man accused of stab-

bing a girl in New York, who committed
suicide, and others that I could mention,
show that this great people are amenda-
ble to the same laws as you and I and the

black race. They rise to heights sublime,

but they sink to the depths of degrada-
tion."

After Eosser and Arnold had
dragged the Jewish name into the case,

could Dorsey have handled it more
creditably to himself, and to those Jews
who believe, with Moses, Abraham,
Isaac, and Jacob, that crime must he

punished?
Read again what Dorsey actually said

as stenographically reported, and re-

member that Connolly pretended to

have read it before he wrote his arti-

cles, and then sift your mind and see

how much respect you have for a writer

who tries to deceive the public in that

unscrupulous manner.

C. P. Connolly makes two statements

about the law of Georgia.

On Dec. 14, 1015, he stated in Col-

lier's that, "By a constitutional amend-
ment, adopted in 1006. the Supreme
Court of Georgia cannot reverse a case

on other than errors of law."

This remarkable statement he varies

somewhat, in his article published Dec.

10, 1915.

Under a constitutional amendment
adopted in 1906, the Supreme Court of

Georgia is not allowed to reverse any capi-

tal case where no error of law has been
committed in the trial, no matter how
weak the evidence may be, and cannot in-

vestigate or pass upon the question of

guilt or innocence.

Since the days of Magna Charta, it

may be doubted whether any State, set
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up under English principles, could le-

gally deprive reviewing courts of the

right to annul a verdict which has no
evidence to support it. In such a case,

the question of evidence would become
a question of law. Without due pro-

cess of law, no citizen can be robbed

of life, liberty, or property ; and, while

it is the province of the jury to say

what has been proved, on issues of

disputed facts, it is for the court to de-

cide whether the record discloses jims-

dictional facts.

It necessarily follows that, if a

record showed that no crime had been

committed, or, if committed, the evi-

dence failed to connect defendant with

it, the verdict would have to be sev

aside, as a matter of law.

The constitutional amendment of

190G, to which Connolly refers, had for

its main purpose the creation of a

Court of Appeals., as an auxiliary and
a relief to the Supreme Court. In do-

ing this, the legislature had to divide

appealed cases between the two courts.

The new law provided that the Su-

preme Court should review and decide

those civil cases which went up from
the Superior Courts, and from the

courts of ordinary, (our chancery

courts) and "all cases of conviction of

a capital felony.''''

To the Court of Appeals, was as-

signed those cases going up from city

courts, and all convictions in criminal

cases less than a capital felony.

The Supreme Court of Georgia in

every open case of motion-for-new-trial,

is noio constantly passing upon the

sufficiency of the evidence to support

the verdict ; and the Court passed upon
that very question., in Franlf?s first mo-
tion for new trial.

I cannot imagine anything that

would cause a more universal wave of

protest, than an effort to emascu-

late our Supreme Court, by robbing it

of the time-honored authority to re-

view all the evidence in contested cases

;

and to decide, in the calm atmosphere

of the consulting room.—-remote from

personalities, passions, and the dust of
forensic battle—whether the evidence
set out in the record is suflScient to sup-
port the verdict.

If Connolly's idea of the change
nuide in 190G were correct, it would lead

to the preposterous proposition, that

the Supreme Court might have before

it a case of a man condemned to death
for rape, when the evidence showed
that there had been no penetration. The
Court would have to let the man die,

because the judge below had committed
no error of law ! Would it not be the

greatest of errors of law, to allow a

citizen to be hanged, when there is

no proof of a crime? Would it be

"due process of law," to kill a man,
under legal forms, without evidence of

his guilt?

Those men who alleged that Con-
nolly is a lawyer, also allege that Burns
is a detective. Both statements cut a

large, and weird figure, in the realm of

cheap, ephemeral fiction. If being a

lawj^er were a capital offense, and Con-
nolly, were arraigned for the crime,

the jury would not only acquit him
without leaving the box, but would find

a unanimous verdict of "malicious

prosecution."

If being a detective were virulent,

confluent small-pox, the wildest advo-

cate of compulsory vaccination would
never pester Burns. It is as much as

Burns can do, to find an umbrella in a

hall hat-rack.

A prodigious noise has been made
over the alleged statement of Judge L.

S. Roan, who presided at Frank's trial,

that he did not know whether Frank
was guilt}^ or innocent. All of that

talk is mere bosh. What Judge Roan
said was exactly lohat the law con-

templates that he shall say! The law
of Georgia, constitutes the trial judge

an impartial ai^hiter, whose duty it is

to pass on to the jury, in a legal man-
ner, the evidence upon which the jury

are to act as judges.

They are not only the judges of the
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evidence, but the sole judges of it. The
slightest expression of an opinion from
the bench, as to what has or has not

been proven, works a forfeiture of the

entire proceeding.

In no other way, can a defendant be

tried constitutionally, hy his peers, than
by clothing the twelve jurors whom he,

in part, selects as his peers, with full

power to adjudge the facts.

(I am confident that it is the inten-

tion of the law to also make these peers

of the accused the full judges of the

lau\ to exactly the same extent that

they are absolute judges of the facts;

but that is a question not germane to

the Frank case.)

Now. if Connolly and Collier's had
taken the pains to examine our law,

they would have realized that the legal

intendment of Judge Roan's declara-

tion was no more than this

:

"It is not for me to say whether this

man is innocent or guilty. That is for

the jury. They have said that he is

guilty, and I find that the evidence sus-

tains the verdict. Therefore, I refuse

to grant the motion for new trial."

In ninety-nine cases out of a hun-

dred, our judges utter some such words
as those, in charging the jury, and in

passing upon motions for new trial.

I will say further, that a lack of defi-

nite opinion as to the guilt or innocence

of the defendant at the bar, is an ideal

state of mind for the presiding judge.

We are all so human, that if the

judge feels certain of the guilt, or in-

nocence of the accused, he will "leg"

for one side or the other.

So well is this understood, that the

trial judge almost invariably takes

pains to say to the jury

—

"Gentlemen, the court does not mean
to say. or to intimate what has. or has

not. been proven. That is peculiarly

your province. It is for you to say,

under the law as I have given it to

you. whether the evidence establishes

the defendant's guilt beyond a reasona-

ble doubt, &c."

There isn't a lawyer in Georgia who
hasn't heard that kind of thing, times

without number.
If Judge L. S. Roan did, indeed,

keep his mind so far above the jury-

function in this case, that he did not

form an opinion, either way,Ae main-
tained that ideal neutrality and im-
partiality irhich the Law expects of
the perfect judge.

The St. Louis Post-Dispatch is

another paper that has taken jurisdic-

tion of the Frank case. It employs
another famous detective for the de-

fense, a New York person, named
George Dougherty. Every detective

who favors Frank is a famous detec-

tive, a scholar, a gentleman, a deep

thinker and a model citizen—just as

Frank is.

Those detectives and police officers

who testify the other way, are bad
men, the scum of the earth, crooks, rap-

scnllians. liars, and pole-cats.

The famous detective, George
Dougherty, appears to have studied the

case hurriedly. He says

—

And the office in which Frank was
charged with having committed immoral
attacks was in direct line of possible ob-

servation from several people already in

the building, whose approach Conley would
have known nothing of.

George D. is mistaken. Frank and
the other man took the women to a

place where they were not "in direct

line of possible observation," &c.

The famous detective again says

—

Another point: Conley's statement is

that Frank knew in advance that Mary
Phagan was to visit the factory that day
for the purpose of getting her pay. There
is no reasonable cause for believing this to

have been true; no other employe went
there tliat day to be paid. If Frank did

not know that Mary Phagan was to be
there, Conley's entire story falls. And, as

a matter of fact, there seems to be more
reason to believe that he did not, than
there is to believe that he did.
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Kow. Avhat will you think of this fa-

mous detective, when I tell you that

page 26 of the official court record of

thi's case shows, that Monteen Stover

swore she went there to get the wages

due her, and was at the office of Frank

at the fatal half-hour during which he

cannot give an account of himself ?

George Dougherty does not even

know that Frank, in his statement

to the jury, stated that Miss Mat-

tie Smith came for her pay envelope,

that Saturday morning, and also for

the w^ages due her sister-in-law; and

that he gave to the fathers of two boys

the pay envelopes for their sons.

This makes five other employees—two

in person, and three by proxy—who

were there for the wages due them, on

the identical day when Mary Phagan

went for her pay, and disappeared—

the very day when Dougherty asserts,

"no other employee went there that day

to be paid !"
^

(See Frank's statement, page 1^9.)

Is it any marvel that the public has

been bamboozled, and the State of

Georgia made the object of condemna-

tion, when famous detectives write such

absurdities, and respectable papers pub-

lish them?

The State of Georgia has no press

agent, no publicity bureau, no regiment

of famous detectives, no brigade of

journalistic Hessians. The State can

only maintain an attitude of dignified

endurance, while this mercenary, made-

to-order hurricane of fable, misrepre-

sentation and abuse passes over her

head. .

All she asks of an intelligent, tair-

minded public is, to judge her by the

official record, as agreed on by the at-

tornevs for both sides. All that she ex-

pects' from outsiders is, the reasonable

presumption that she is not worse than

other States, not worse than Missouri

which tried the Boodlers of St. Louis,

not worse than California which tried

the grafters and the dynamiters; not

worse than Virginia, which tried and

executed McCue, Beattie and Cluve-

rius, on less evidence tluin there is

againH Frank.

The New York World, owned by the

Pulitzers, said in its report of the case

:

May 2 4—On evidence of Conley, Frank

was indicted for murder.

July 2 8—Trial of Frank began.

Aug. 24—Conley testified Frank en-

trapped the girl in his office, beat her un-

conscious, then strangled her.

Aug 25—Jury found Frank guilty of

murder, first degree.

"On evidence of Conley," Frank was

indicted and convicted, according to

the Pulitzers. Of course, the general

public does not know that Frank could

not have been convicted upon the evi-

dence of Conley, a confessed accom-

plice. The general public—which in-

cludes such lawyers as Connolly—can-

not be supposed to know that the law

does not allow any defendant to be

convicted upon the evidence of his ac-

complice.

In the St. Louis Post-Dispatch

(which I believe is also a Pulitzer pa-

per) there are two recent letters by

Wm. Preston Hill, M. D. Ph. D., in

which the State of Georgia is violently

arraigned.

Wm. Preston Hill, M. D. Ph. D.,

starts out by stating that "anybody who

has carefully read the proceedings in

the murder trial of Leo Frank must be

convinced . . • the whole trial was

a disgraceful display of prejudice and

fanatical unfairness. . . . This whole

proceeding is a disgrace to the State

of Georgia, and will bring on her the

just contempt of the whole civilized

world. .

Everywhere thoughtful men will

judge Georgia to be filled with semi-

barbarous fanatical people of low men-

tality, and strong, ill-controlled pas-

sions, a race to be avoided by anybody

who cares for liberty, order or justice.''

Then to show what a thoughtful man

is Wm. Preston Hill. M. D. Ph. D., and
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how carefully he has read the record

in the case, he proceeds to state that
''Frank was convicted on the unsup-

ported evidence of a dissolute negro of
had character^'' who was contradicted

in 22 different instances

!

Then Wm. Preston Hill, M. D. Ph.

D., gives himself away by advising peo-

ple to studj^ the case—how?
By an examination of the record that

went up to the Supreme Court?

Oh no ! Study it by the paid columns

of C. P. Connolly, who got his ideas of

the case from the rascally and menda-
cious poseur, William J. BuiTis.

In the Chicago Sunday Tribune of

December 27, 1914, appears a full page

article beginning, "AVill the State of

Georgia send an innocent man to the

gallows?"

The writer of the article is Burton
Rascoe. The entire article proceeds

upon the idea that poor little Mary
Phagan Avas a lewd girl; that she had

been immorally intimate with two em-

ployees of the factory; that Jim Con-

ley, drunk and hard-up, Avanted her

pay envelope ; that he seized her, to rob

her, and that he heard some one calling

him, and he killed her.

Mr. Rascoe says that, ordinarily,

juries are instructed that they are to

assume the defendant is innocent, until

he is proven guilty, but that in Frank's

case, it was just the opposite.

Mr. Rascoe says that, during the

trial, men stood up in the audience and

shouted to the jury : "'You'd better hang

the Jew. If you don't, we'll hang him,

and get you too."

The Chicago Tribune claims to be

"the world's greatest newspaper.'' Avith

a circulation of 500,000 for the Sunday

edition.

It is therefore reasonable to suppose

that at least two million people Avill

get their ideas of the case from this

special article, in Avhich the public is

told that Judge Roan allowed the audi-

ence to intimidate the jury by shouting

their threats, to the jury, Avhile the

trial Avas in progress.

Of course, any one, Avho will stop
and think a moment, will realize what
an arrant falsehood that is.

Had any such thing occurred, the
able, watchful, indefatigable lawyers
Avho ha\'e Ijeen fighting nearly tAvo

years to save Frank's life, would have
immediatelv moved a mistrial, and got
it.

No such incident ever has occurred,
in a Georgia court-room.

And no white man in Georgia was
ever convicted on the evidence of a

negro

!

As a specimen of the misrepresenta-
tions which are misleading so many
good people, take this extract from the
article in the Chicago Tribune:

It has been declared by Burns, among
others, that the circumstantial evidence
warranting the retention of Conley as the
suspected slayer was dropped and Conley
was led to shoulder the blame upon Frank
in somewhat the following manner:
"What do you know about this mur-

der?"
"Nothing."
"Who do you think did it?"
"I don't know."
"How about Frank?"
"Yes. I confess. He's the pne who did

it."

"Sure he was. That's the fellow we
want."
And forthwith Frank was locked up as

a suspect.

In fact, the statements of Mr. Ras-
coe. like those of C. P. Connolly, are

re-hashes from Wm. J. Burns.

Does not the Chicago Tribune know
that Burns was expelled from the

National Association of Police Chiefs?

Does not the Tribune know that

Burns' confidential man in this Frank
case, I^hon, Avas ex[)elled from the

Chicago police force, for blackmailing

a Avoman of tlie town?
Does not the Tribune know that the

detectives bribed Ragsdale and Barber,

the preacher and the deacon, to swear

thi^ crime onto the negro. Jim Conley?

Does not the Tribune know that the

official records in the U. S. Department
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of Justice disclose the fact that Attor-

ney-General Wickersham, and Presi-

dent Taft set aside some convictions in

the Oregon land cases, upon the over-

whelming evidence that Burns is a

crook, and corruptly obtained those

convictions^

As already stated in this Magazine,

Conley's evidence is not at all neces-

sary to the conviction of Frank. Elim-

inate the negro entirely, and you

have a dead case against this lewd

young man, who had been pursuing the

girl for nearly two months, and who,

after setting a trap for her, on Memo-
rial Day, 1913, had to use such violence

to overcome her struggle for her vir-

tue, that he killed her; and then had
the diabolical cruelty to attack her

character, after she was dead.

Mr. L. Z. Rosser telegraphed to a

Northern newspaper a long statement

in which he says

—

Leo M. Frank is an educated, intelli-

gent, normal man of a retiring, home mak-
ing, home loving nature. He has lived a

clean, honest, busy, unostentatious life,

known by few outside of his own people.

In the absence of the testimony of the

negro, Jim Conley, a verdict of acquittal

would have been inevitable.

If ^Ir. Rosser believed that Leo
Frank was the pure young man and
model husband, wiiy did he sit silent

while so many white girls and ladies

swore to Frailk's lascivious character?

Do you suppose that any power on
earth could haA^e produced twenty

Avhite women of Atlanta who would
have sworn that Dr. John E. "Wliite's

character is lascivious ? Or that Judge
Beverly Evans' character is lascivious?

Or that Governor Slaton's character is

lascivious ?

The ex-laW3"er from Montana—C. P.

Connolly—says in Colliers

:

The State contended that Frank mur-
dered IMarj"^ Phagan on the second floor of

the pencil factory. There v.-as found four

corpuscles of "blood"—a mere iota—on

the second floor. The girl was brutally
handled and bled freely, not only from the
wound in her head, but from other parts

of her body.

"Four corpuscles of blood—a mere
iota—on the second floor."

That is Avhat Connolly says. But
what says the official record?

On page 2G, Mr. R. P. Barrett, the

machinist for Franlz's factory^ testifies,

that on Monday morning, early ^ he dis-

covered the blood spots, which were not

there the Friday before ! He says—
"The spot was about 4 or 5 inches in

diameter, and little spots behind these

in the rear—6 or 8 in number. It loas

hloocV

Here we have one of Frank's re-

sponsible employees swearing posi-

tively to a five-inch splotch of blood,

wdth 6 or 8 smaller spots leading up to

the main spot, as large as the lid of the

average dinner-pail; and Connolly tells

the public that '•''four corpuscles^ a mere
iota," w'ere all that were found!

When a man makes public statements

of that kind, after having gone to At-

lanta ostensibly to study the record, is

he honestly trying to inform the public,

.

or is he dishonestly trving to deceive

it?

Mell Stanford swore, "These blood

spots, were right in front of the ladies'

dressing room," where -Conley said he

dropped the body of the girl, after

Frank called on him for help.

Mrs. George Jefferson, also a worker

in Frank's place, swore that they found
the blood splotch, "«5 hig as a fan.''''

Mrs. Jefferson had been working

there five years. She knew paint spots

when she saw them, and told of the

maroon red, and red lime, and bright

red. but she added, in answer to

Frank's attorney, ^''That spot I saw ivas

not one of those three paints.''''

She swore that the spot was not thert

Friday, April 25th. They found it

]\Ionday morning at about 6 or 7

o'clock. "We saw blood on the second
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floor, in front of the pfirl's di-essingr

room. It vms about as hicf as a fan.''

The foreman of the metal room,

Lemmie Quinn, also testified to seeing

the blood spots, Monday morning.

Quinn icas Franlv^s own witness.

J. X. Starnes, police officer, testified

(page 10 of the official record) that he

saw the "splotches of blood." "I should

judge the area of these spots to Idc a

foot and a half.''

Capt. Starnes saw the splotches of

blood on Monday morning, April 28th.

opposite the girls' dressing room : and

they looked as if some white substance

had been swept over them, in the effort

to hide them:

Herbert Schiff, Leo Frank's assistant

superintendent, also swore to the blood

spots. He saw them Monday morning.

These witnesses were unimpeachable.

Five of them worked under Frank,

and were his trusted and experienced

employees. They were corroborated by

the doctors who examined the chips cut

out of the floor. Those blood-stained

chips are exhibits "E.," in the official

record!

Yet. C. P. Connolly, sent down to

Georgia to make an examination into

actual facts, ignores the uncontradicted

evidence, and tells the great American

public, that on the second floor, where

the State contends the crime was com-

mitted, there were found "four cor-

pi/srJes of blood," only "a mere iota."

Upon consulting an approved En-

cyclopedia and Dictionary, which was

constructed for the use of just such

semi-barbarians as we Georgians, I find

that the word "corpuscle" is synony-

mous with the word "atom." Further

research in the same Encyclopedia,

leads me to the knowledge, that an

atom is such a very small thing that it

cannot be made any smaller. It is,

you may say, the Ultima Thule of

smallness. The point of a cambric

needle is a large sphere of action, com-

pared to a corpuscle. The live animals

that live in the water, and sweet milk.

which you and I daily drink, are whales,

l)uH"aloos. and Montana lawyers, com-

l)ared to a corpuscle. The germs,

microbes, and malignant bacteria, that

swim around invisibly in so many
hainiloss-looking liquids, are behe-

moths, dragons and Burns detectives,

compared to a corpuscle.

The smallest conceivable thing—in-

visible to the naked eye—is what Con-
nolly says they found, on that second

floor: and they not only found one of

these infinitely invisible things, hut

four!

I want to deal nicely with Connolly,

and therefore I will say that, as a law-

yer and a journalist, I consider him a

fairly good specimen of a corpuscle.

AVhat he is, as a teller and seller of

"The Truth about the Frank case," I

fear to say freely, lest the best Govern-

ment the world ever saw arrest me
again.) for publishing disagreeable

veracities.

Pardon me for taking your time with

one more exposure of the impudent

falsehoods that are being published

about the evidence on which Frank
was convicted. In his elaborate article

in the Kansas City Star., A. B. Mac-
donald says

—

The ashes and cinders were breathed
before she died in the cellar, while she
was fighting off Conley. In his drunken
desperation lest she be heard and he be
discovered he ripped a piece from her

underskirt and tried to gag her with it. It

was not strong enough. Then he grabbed
the cord.

The testimony proved that cords like

that were in the cellar. He tied it tightly

around her neck. It was proved at the

trial that a piece of the strip of under-

skirt was beneath the cord, and beneath

the strip of skirt were cinders. That
proves beyond doubt that both were put

on in the cellar.

Having . strangled her to death and
eternal silence the negro had leisure to

carry her back and hide her body at

(fig. 12) where it was dark as midnight.

Then he sat down to write the notes.

Against the wall opposite the boiler was
a small, rude table with paper and pencil..
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Scattered around in the trash that came
•down from the floors above to be burned
were sheets and pads of paper exactly
like those upon which the notes were
written. The pad from which one of the
notes was torn was found by the body by
Police Sergeant L. S. Dobbs, who so testi-

fied.

Here we have a graphic, gruesome
picture of a fight between the girl and

In the next line, Macdonald tells you
that the strip of clothing was so strong

that it remained underneath the cord,

and that, beneath this strip, were cin-

ders. "That proves beyond a doubt
that they were both put on in the cel-

lar."

It is sufficient to say that the evi-

dence of Newt Lee, of Sergeant L. S.

tfgffl^mmfmmmmiitf^

LEO FRANKS VICTIM, MARY PHAGAN

ihe negro, down in the cellar. He over-

comes her, and in her death struggles,

she breathes her nose, mouth and lungi

full of ashes and cinders. The negro

tears off a strip from her clothing, and
binds it round her neck. "It was not

strong enough. Then he grabbed the

. cord."

Dobbs. officer J. N. Starnes, and both
the examining physicians, (Doctors
Hurt and Harris) totally negatives
the statement of Macdonald about the
cinders under the girl's nails, the
cinders packed into her face, and the

cinders breathed into her nose, mouth
and lungs. There was nothing of the
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kind. Macdonald made all that up,

himself, aided by Connolly's imagina-

tion and Burns' imbecility.

(See official record, pages 3, 4, 5, 6,

7, 8, 9, 10, 11, and evidence of the doc-

tors as per Index.)

But let me ask you to fix your atten-

tion on the specific statement of Mac-
donald, that the cord pressed down
upon the strip of clothing, one being

under the other, and that the cinders

•were lender this inner choke-strip.

Now, turn to page 48 of the official

record, and see what Dr. Harris testi-

fied, lie swore that she came to her

death from "this cord" which had been

tied tight around her neck. He did

not say a word about any strip of

clothing around her neck, under the

cord, nor a word about any cinders,

ashes or dust, under the cord

—

not one

word !

Turn to page 46, and read the testi-

mony of Dr. J. W. Hurt. He said,

"There was a cord round her neck, and

this cord was imbedded into the skin."

Not a word about any strip of cloth

under the cord ! Not a word about

cinders, ashes, or dust under the cord,

or on her neck.

Sergeant Dobbs after saying that

"the cord was around her neck, sunk

into her flesh^'' added that "she also

had a piece of her underclothing

around her neck.'' "The cord was

pulled tight and had cut into the flesh

and tied just as tight as could be.

The vnderclothing around her neck

was not tightP''

Sergeant Dobbs. swearing that the

cord had cut into the flesh, shows that*

there was no cushion of cloth to keep

it from doing that very thing. Not a

word did he say about cinders under

her nails, under the cord, under the

strip of underclothing, or in her nose,

mouth and lungs.

In other words, the official record

shoAvs Macdonald's version of the evi-

dence to be a reckless fabrication

!

Can you picture to yourself, in the

sane recess of your own mind, a South-

ern negro, raping and killing a white

girl, and then dragging her body back

to a place "where it was dark as mid-

night ;" and then, after all his terrific

struggle with his victim, huntings

around in the trash to find a pencil and
some pads—two diff'erent colors—and
seating himself, leisurely, at "a small

rude table near the boiler," to scribble

a few lines of information to mankind
as to how he came to commit the

crime ?

Can you picture to yourself a com-
mon Georgia nigger, killing a white

woman in that way, and then seating

himself near her corpse, deep down in

a dark cellar, to indulge in literary

composition?

Jim Conley, you see, had not only

murdered the girl down there below

the surface, but was writing notes close

to where the dead body lay, with the

intention of carrying the notes out

there to where "it was as dark as mid-

night," to lay them by the dead girl's

head.

Then, he meant to get so scared that

he would violently break out of the

basement door, into the alloy, rather

than walk out, as usual, up stairs.

Macdonald doesn't know much about

Southern niggers, but he understands

us white folks. Just tell us any old

ludicrous yarn, and keep on telling it

in the papers: and, if nobody denies it,

we will all believe it.

There was not a scratch on the nose

of the dead girl, and yet all these reck-

less writers tell the public she was held

face downward by her murderer, and
that her face was ground into the

cinders, to smother her screams. How
could the nose escape bruises in such

a frightful process, and how could she

fail to have cinders and coal-dust in

her mouth and nose ? There were none!

In the Philadelphia Public Ledger.^

there is a copyrighted article by "Waldo

G. Morse, whose legend runs. "Coun-

cillor, American Academy of Juris-
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prudence." Councillor Morse begins

on the Frank case, by asking a ques-

tion, and quoting himself in reply

—

May a mob and a Court scare away your
lawyers, a sheriff lock you away from the

jury which convicts you, and may the

sheriff then hold and hang you? Yes, say
the Georgia Courts and so also says the

United States District Judge in Georgia.

Says the Supreme Court of the United
States: "We will hear arguments as to

that, and in the meantime we will defer

the hanging."

The fancy picture of a Georgia mob,

putting Eube Arnold, Luther Rosser,

the Haas brothers, and the governor's

own law firm to ignominious flight,

and of the sheriff ruthlessly locking

Frank away from the jury—and all

this being done with the hearty ap-

proval of Judges Roan and Hill, the

State Supreme Court, and Federal-

judge William Newman—is certainly

a novel picture to adorn the classic

walls of the American Academy of

Jurisprudence.

Councillor Morse proceeds as fol-

lows—

This is no mere question of a single

life, but one for every man. Shall you be

put on trial for your life or your liberty

and shall timid or careless lawyers lose or

dishonest lawyers barter away your rights?

We wish for the honor of the bar and
the dignity of the Court that the lawyers
had stood their ground and had braved
the mob and that their client had joined

in the defiance, inquiring from every juror,

face to face, whether the verdict of guilty

was the verdict of that individual juror.

Such is due process of law.

Was Rosser "timid." in Frank's case?

I would like to see Rosser, when one of

his timid spells gets hold of him.

Were Rosser and Arnold and the

Haas brothers not only timid, but

"careless?"' Councillor Morse, spokes-

man for the American Academy of

Jurisprudence (whatever that is) ac-

cuses these Georgia lawvers of cow-

ardice, or culpable negligence, in their

defense of Leo Frank

!

Wliat? Is nobody to be spared?

Shall no guilty Georgian escape? Must
the propagandists of this Frank litera-

ture slaughter his own lawyers? Is it

a misdemeanor, 'per se^ to be a Geor-
gian?

"For the honor of the bar." Waldo
Morse wishes that Rosser and Arnold,

and Haas, and the governor's law firm,

"had stood their ground." Then, they

did not stand their ground, and they

dishonored the bar.

That's terrible. Surely it is a cruel

thing to stand Luther Rosser up before

the universe, in this tremendous man-
ner, and arraign him for professional

cowardice. "N^Tiat say you, Luther?
Are you guilty, or not guilty ?

But Waldo Morse relentlessly con-

tinues

—

Might not the result have been differ-,

ent? Jurors have been known to change
their verdict when facing the accused. We
hope that the Court may declare that no
man and no State can leave the issue of
life as a bagatelle to be played for, ar-

ranged about and jeopardized by Court
and counsel in the absence of the man who-
may suffer.

So, you see, Frank's lawyers are ac-

cused, in a copyrighted indictment, of

playing with their client's life, "as a

bagatelle;" and of jeopardizing that

life, with a levity which showed an
utter lack of a due sense of professional

responsibility.

That's might}' rough on Rosser, and
Arnold, and Haas, and Governor Sla-

ton's law firm.

AMiat will be your opinion of Coun-
cillor ]Morse, when I tell you that

Frank's lawyers did demand a poll of

the jury, and each member was asked

whether the verdict was his verdict^

and each juror answered that it was.

And each juror, months afterwards^

made Avritten affidavit to the same effect.
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utterly repudiating the charges of mob
intimidation.

Councillor Morse proceeds

—

Shall a man charged with an infamous

crime be faced by a jury of 12 men, each

one ready to announce their verdict of his

guilt? May he ask each man of the 12

whether the verdict be his? Yes, has

answered the common law for centuries.

The accused may not even waive or

abandon this right.

That's absurd. The accused may
•waive or abandon "this right," and

nearly every other. There are Courts

in which the accused is constantly

waiving and abandoning his Constitii-

tiotwl right to he indicted hy a grand

piry, and tned hy a petit jury. In

almost every case, the accused waives

his legal right to actual arraignment,

oral pleading, and a copy of the in-

dictment. Almost invariably, lie waives

the useless and perfunctory Hght of

polling the jury. If he likes, he

can go to trial with eleven jurors,

or less, and he may waive a legal

disqualification of a juror. In fact,

the accused, iL^ho can waive and

abandon his right to the jury itself,

can of course, waive any lesser right.

This may not be good law in the

American Academy of Jurisprudence,

but it is good law among good lawyers.

Councillor Morse says that "for cen-

turies" it has been the common-law

right of the accused to ask each juror

"whether the verdict be his." This

cock-sure statement of what the Eng-

lish common-law has been "for cen-

turies," would have had considerable

weight, had the Councillor cited some

authorities.

It was in 1765, that Sir William

Blackstone published the first volume

of his Commentaries; and at that time,

the accused, in a capital case, did not

even have the right to be defended by

a lawyer. At that time, there were

upwards of 116 violations of law,

punishable by death, some of these

capital offenses being petty larcenies,

and others, trivial trespasses. In all

those terrible cases, the accused was
denied a lawyer, at common law; and
these fearful conditions were not ma-
terially clinngcd. until Sir Samuel
Roniilly began, liis noble work of law

reform, in 1808. At that time, it was
death to pick a pocket, death to cut

a tree in a park, death to filch from a

bleachfield, death to steal a letter, death

to kill a rabbit, death to pilfer five

shilling's worth of stutf out of a store,

death to forge a writing, death to steal

a pig or a lamb, death to return home
from transportation, death to write

one's name on London bridge. Sir

Samuel was not able to accomplish a

great deal, before his suicide in 1818;

but another great lawyei, Sir James
Mackintosh, took up the work, Ix)rd

Brougham assisting. It was not until

near the middle of the last century, that

the Draconian code was stripped of

most of its horrors, and the prisoner's

counsel was allowed to address the

jury. (See McCarthy's Epochs of Re-

form, pages 144 and 145. Mackenzie's

The 10th Century, pages 124 and 125.)

Therefore, when any Councillor for an

American Academy of Jurisprudence

glibly writes about what have been

the common-law rights of the accused

"for centuries." he makes himself

ridiculous.

As a general rule, a prisoner may
Avaive any legal privilege; and what-

ever he may waive, his attorney may
waive; and this waiver can be made
after the trial and will relate back to

the time when he was entitled to the

privilege. This waiver may l^e ex-

pressed, or it may be implied : it may
be in words, and it may be in conduct.

In Blackstone's Comnnentaries, noth-

ing is said on the point of the prisoner's

presence, when the verdict comes in.

Unquestionably, it is the better prac-

tise for him to be in court. But if his

lattorneys are present, and they de-

mand a poll of the jury, expressly
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waiving the presence of their client,

they have done for the accused all that

he could do for himself, were he in

court—for the prisoner is not allowed

to ask the jurors any questions. The
judge does that. Hence, Frank lost

nothing whatever by his absence; and
when he failed to make that point, as

he stood in court to be sentenced and
was asked by the judge, ^^What have
you to say why sentence should not he

pronounced on youf he ratified the

waiver his lawyers had made. He con-

tinued that ixiti-fication., for a whole
year.

Not until after two motions for new

trial had been filed, did Frank raise

the point about his absence at the time

the verdict came in ; and, if he is set free

on that point, the world will suspect

that Rosser and Arnold, laid a trap

for the judge.

Does it seem good law to Councillor

Morse, that a man whose guilt is made
manifest by the official record, should

be turned loose, to go scot free, on a

technical point, which involves the re-

pudiation of his own lawyers, and the

retraction of his own ratification which

had lasted a year? Is there no such

thing as a waiver by one's attorneys

and a ratification by one's prolonged

acquiescence ?

Now before going into close reason-

ing on the established facts in the case,

allow me to call your attention to this

point

:

Whoever wrote those notes that were

found beside the body seems to say that

she had been sexually used. "Play with

me." "Said he would love me." "Laid

down." "Play like night witch did it,"

but that long tall black negro "did (it)

by hisself."

Those words are inconsistent with a

crime whose main purpose was murder.

Uppermost in the mind of the man
who dictated those notes, was quit*,

another idea. Consistent with that idea,

and not with murder alone, are the

words "Play with me. said tie would

love me, laid down," (with me) "and
play like the night witch did it."

All have claimed that the words
"night witch" meant "night watch."
It may not he so. For the present,

I only ask you to consider that

the State's theory all along, has been
that Leo Frank was after this girl, to

enjoy her sexually, and that the mur-
der was a crime incident to her resist-

ance.

The girl w^orked for Frank, and he
knew her well. He had sought to push
his attentions on her. She had re-

pulsed him. She had told her friend

George Eppes that she was afraid of

him, on account of the way he had
acted toward her.

He had refused, on Friday after-

noon, to let Helen Ferguson have

Mary's pay-envelope, containing the

pitiful sum of one dollar and twenty

cents. He thus made it necessary for

Mary to come in person for it, whicn
she was sure to do, next day, since the

universal Saturday custom is, to pay

'

for things bought during the preced-

ing week and buy things, for the next.

Why did not Frank give Mary's pay
envelope to Helen, when Helen asked

for it, on Friday? It had been the

habit of Helen to get Mary's envelope,

and Frank could hardly have been

ignorant of the fact.

Did he refuse to let Helen have

Mary's pay, because it was not good

business?

That hypothesis falls, when we ex-

amine Frank's own statement to the

jury. On page 179 of the record, he

tells the jury that Mattie Smith came
for her pay-envelope on Saturday

morning, the 26th of April, and

she asked for that of her sister-in-law,

also, "and I went to the safe ....
and got out the package . . . and

gave her the required two envelopes.'^

Therefore, Frank himself was in the

habit of letting one employee have

another's pay envelope. On that

same morning, he gave the pay-envel-
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opes of two of the boys to their

fathers, Graham and Burdette. (Page

181.)

T^Tiy did Frank make an exception

of Mary Phagan, this one time? ^Vhy
did he discriminate against her, and
only her, that week-end?

Be the answer what it may. the girl,

all diked out in her cheap little finery

for Memorial Day, comes with her

smart fresh lavender dress, the flowers

on her hat, the ribbons on her

dress, her gay parasol, and her

best stockings and silk garters

—

comes into the heart of the great

city, about noon, goes immediately to

Frank's oflfice for her one dollar and
twenty cents, is traced by eA^dence.

which Frank dared not deny^ into his

office

—

and^ is never more seen alive.

Is there any reasonable person, on

the face of God's earth, who wouldn't

say Frank must account for that girl?

When a mountain of evidence piled

up, on the fact of the girl's going to

him, he then admitted that she did go

to him, somewhere around 12 o'clock

that day.

He says that a little girl whom he

afterwards learned to be ]Mary Pha-

gan, came to him for her pay-envelope.

He pretended not to know that a

girl of her name worked for him, until

he consulted the pay-roll ! He went

through the motion of looking at the

pay-roll for the purpose of ascertain-

ing whether such a human being

worked in his place ! After having

found her name on the list, he then

admitted that a girl named Mary Pha-

gan had been working there.

What sort of impression does thi?3

make on you, in view of the fact that

four white witneses swore thej^ had

seen Frank talk to her. and that, in

doing so. he called her "^lary?"'

Why did Frank, when her dead body

was found in the basement, feign not to

know her. and say that he would have

to consult the pay-roll?

The girl, dressed up for a Holiday,

was in Frank's office, at about the noon

hour of that fatal day

—

and those two
were alone/

Frank is driven to that dreadful ad-

mission. Inexorable proofs left him no
o])tion.

By his own confession, he is alone

with the f/irl, the last time any mortal
eye sees her alive!

She is in the flush of youthful bloom.

She is nearly fourteen years old, buxom,
and rather large for her age. She has

rosy cheeks, bright blue eyes, and
golden hair. She is well-made, in per-

fect health, as temj)ting a morsel as

ever heated depraved appetite. Did
Leo Frank desire to possess the girl?

Was he the kind of married man who
runs after fresh little girls? Had he

given evidence, in that very factory, of

his lascivious character?

The white ladies and girls whose
names have already been given, swore

that Frank was just that kind of a

man; and neither Frank nor his bat-

talion of lawyers have ever dared to

ask those white women to go into de-

tails, and tell why they swore he was
depraved!

Does it make no impression on your
mind, when you consider that tre-

mendous fact?

We start out, then, with a depraved
young married man whose conduct, in

that very place,^ is proved to have been

lascivious. Did he desire Mary Pha-
yan? Had he ''tried"' her? Did he

want to "try" her, again?

One white girl swore that she had
seen Frank with his hand on Mary's
shoulder and his face almost in hers,

talking to her. One white boy swore
that he had seen Mary shrinking away
from Frank's suspicious advances.

Another white boy swore that Mary
said she was suspicious and afraid of

Frank. Another Avhite girl swore she

heard him calling her "Mar}'," in close

conversation.

Hov mriny witnesses are necessary

to prove that the licentious young
Jew lusted after this Gentile girl?

Tlie r< r:ord gives you four.
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(See the evidence of Ruth Robinson, who had dressed up for the Holiday

J. M. Gantt, Dewey Howell and W. E. and gone out, radiant with youth

Turner.)
^

and health and beauty, to enjoy it, as

Why, then, did she continue to work other young girls all over the South

there? were doing. She goes into Frank's own

She needed the money, and felt private office, and that's the last of her.

NOTE THE HORRIBLE LIPS, THE NOSE AND THE AVERTED EYES OF LEO FRANK
—A TYPICAL PERVERT

strong in her virtue : she never dreamed

of violence.

She kept on working, as many poor

girls do, who cannot help themselves.

Freedom to choose, is not the luxury of

the poor.

But let us pass on. The fatal day

comes, and Mary comes, and then her

light goes out—the pretty little girl

What became of her? Tell us, Lu-

ther Rosser! Tell us, Herbert Haas!

Tell us, Nathan Strauss! Tell us,

Adolph Ochs! Tell us, Rabbi Marx!

Tell us, William Randolph Hearst!

What became of our girl?

YOUR 31AN, FRANK, HAD HER
LAST: WHAT DID HE DO WITH
HER?
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So far as I can discover, the only

theory advanced by the defenders of

Leo Frank, is hung upon Jim Conley.
They claim that Jim darted out upon
Mary as she stepped aside on the first

floor, cut her scalp with a blow,

rendered her unconscious, pushed hei

through the scuttle-hole, and then w^ent

down after her, tied the cord around
her neck, choked her to death, hid the

body, wrote the notes, and broke out by
the basement door.

If the defense has any other theory

than this, I have been unable to find

it. And they must have a theory, for

the girl icas killed, in the factory, im-

mediately after she left Frank's pri-

vate office. There is the undeniable

fact of the murdered girl, and no mat-

ter what may be the "jungle fury" of

the Atlanta "mob," and of the "semi-

barbarians" of Georgia, these mobs
and barbarians did not kill the girl.

Either, the Cornell graduate did it,

or Jim Conley did it.

Did Jim Conley do it? If so, how,

and lohyf "\ATiat was his motive, and
what was his method?
The defense claims that he struck

her the blow, splitting the scalp, on the

first floor, where he worked, immedi-

ately after she left Franlc's office on the

second floor.

They claim that the negro then

dragged the unconscious body to the

scuttle-hole, and flung her down that

ladder.

What sort of hole is it? All the evi-

dence concurs in its being a small

opening in the floor, with a trap- door

over it, and only large enough to admit

one person at a time. (It is two-feet

square.

)

Reaching from the opening of this

hole, dow^n to the floor of the basement,

is a ladder, with open rungs.

Now, when Jim Conley hit the girl

in the head, and split her scalp, they

claim he pushed her through the trap-

door, . so that she would fall into the

basement below.

But how could the limp and bleed-

ing body fall down that ladder, strik-

ing rung after rung, on its way down,
without leaving bloodmarks on the

ladder, and without the face and head
of poor dying Mary being all bunged
up, broken and cut open, by the re-

peated beatings against the "rounds"

of the ladder?

IIow could that bleeding head have
lain at the foot of the ladder, without

leaving an accusing puddle of blood?

How could that bleeding body, still

alive, have been choked to death in

the cellar, leaving no blood on the base-

ment floor, none on the ladder, none at

the trap-door, none on the table where
they claim the notes were written, and
none on the pads and the notes?

Not a particle of the testimony points

suspicion toward the negro, before the

cnme. He lived with a kept negro

woman, as so many of his race do ; but

he had never been accused of any
offense more grave than the police com-
mon-place, "Disorderly." (His fines

range from $1.75 to i+'lo.OO.)

He was at the factory on the day of

the crime, and Mrs. Arthur White saw
him sitting quietly on the first floor,

where it was his business to be. After

the crime, there was never any evidence

discovered against him. He lied as to

his doings at the time of the crime, but

all of these were consistent with the

plan of Frank and Conley to shield

each other. Frank was just as careful

to keep svsjncion from, settling on the

negro, as the negro ivas to keep it from
settling cm Frank.

You would naturally suppose that

the white man. reasoning swiftly,

would have realized that the crime lay

between himself and the negro; and

that, as he kneic himself to he innocent,

he knew the negro must be guilty.

Any white man, under those circum-

stances, would at once have seen, that

only himself or the negro could have

done the deed, since no others had the

opportunity.
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Hence, the white man, being con-

scious of innocence, and bold in it,

would have said to the police, to the

detectives, to the world

—

"No other man could have done this

thing, except Jim Conley or myself;

and, sinc^ I did not do it, Jim Conley

did. I demand that you armrest Mm^ at

once., and let me face him!''''

Did Frank do that? Did the Cor-

nell graduate break out into a fury of

injured innocence, point to Conley as

the criminal, and go to him and ques-

tion him. as to his actions, that fatal

day?
No, indeed. Frank never once hinted

Conley 's guilt. Frank never once asked

to be allowed to face Conley. Frank
hung his head when he talked to Newt
Lee; trembled and shook and swal-

lowed and drew deep breaths, and kept

shuffling his legs and couldn't sit

still; walked nervously to the win-

dows and wrung his hands a dozen

times within a few minutes ; insinuated

that J. M. Gantt might have committed

the crime; and suggested' that Newt
Lee's house ought to be searched; hut

never a single time threxo suspicion on

Jim Conley, or suggested that Jim}s

house ought to he searched.

Did the negro want to roh somebody
in the factory? Could he have chosen

a worse place? Could he have chosen

a poorer victim, and one more likely

to make a stout fight ?

Mar}^ had not worked that week, ex-

cept a small fraction of the time, and
Jim knew it. Therefore he knew that

her pay-envelope held Jess than that of
any of the girls!

Did Jim Conley want to assault some
woman in the factor}^? Could he have
chosen a worse time and place, if he
did it on the first floor at the front,

where white people were coming and
going; and cohere his hoss, Mr. Frank.,

might come down stairs any minute., on
his icay to his noon m^al?
No negro that ever lived would at-

tempt to outrage a white woman, al-

most in the presence of a white man.

Between the hour of 12 :05 and 12 :10

Monteen Stover walked up the stairs

from the first floor to Frank's office on

the second, and she walked right

through his outer office into his inner

office

—

and Frank was not there!

She waited 5 minutes, and left. She

saw nobody. She did not see Conley,

and she did not see Frank.

AVhere were they? And where was

Mary Phagan?
It is useless to talk about street-car

schedules, about the variations in

clocks, about the condition of cab-

bage in the stomach, and about the

menstrual blood, and all that sort of

secondary matter.

The vital point is this

—

Where was Mary, and where was

Frank, and where was Conley, during

the 25 minutes, hefore Mrs. "White saw

both Frank, and Conley?

Above all, where was Frank when

INIonteen Stover went through both his

offices, the inner as well as the outer,

and couldn't find him?
She wanted to find him, for she

needed her money. She wanted to find

him, for she lingered 5 minutes.

^V^here was Frank, while Monteen

was in Ms office, and was waiting for

himf
THAT'S THE POINT IN THE

CASE : all else is subordinate.

Eosser and Arnold are splendid law-

yers: no one doubts that. They were

employed on account of their pre-emi-

nent rank at the bar. I have been with

them in great cases, and I know that

whatever it is possible to do in a

forensic battle, they are able to do.

Do you suppose for one moment that

Rosser and Arnold did not see the ter-

rihle significance of Monteen's evi-

derwef

They saw it clearly. And they made
fi^antic efforts to get away from it.

Hoio?
First, they put up Lemmie Quinn,

another employee of Frank, to testify
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that he had gone to Frank's office, at

12 :20, that Saturday, and found Frank
there.

But Lemmie Quinn's evidence re-

coiled on Frank, hurting the case

badly. "Why? Because two white
ladies, lohom the Defendant p>it up, as

his witnesses^ swore positively that they
were in the factory just before noon,
and that after they left Frank, they
went to a cafe, xohere they found Lem-
mie Quinn; and he told theni he had
just been up to the office to see Frank.

Mrs. Freeman, one of the ladies,

swore that as she was leaving the fac-

tory, she looked at Frank^s own clock.,

and it was a quarter to twelve.

Mrs. Freeman testified that as she

passed on up the stairs in the factory

building, she saw Frank talking to two
men in his office. One of these men
was no doubt Lemmie Qumn. At any
rate, after she had talked to the lady

on the fourth floor (Mrs. White) and
had come down to Frank's office to use

his telephone, the men were gone; and
when she met Quinn at the cafe, he told

her that he had just been up to Frank's

office. Hence the testimony of Mrs.
Emma Clarke Freeman, and Miss Co-
rinthia Hall, smashed the attempted
alibi. And of course the abortive at-

tempt at the alibi, hurt the case terri-

Uy.

Let me do Mr. Quinn the justice to

say, that he merely estimated the time

of day, by the time it would have taken

him to walk from his home; and that

he admitted he had stopped on the way,
at Wolfsheimers, for 10 or 15 minutes
—all of which is obvious guess-work.

He frankly admitted that when he met
Mrs. Freeman and Miss Hall at the

Busy Bee Cafe, he told them he had
just been up to Frank's office.

Secondly, the able lawyers for the

defense endeavored to meet Monteen
Stover's evidence by the statement of

Frank himself. This statement is so

extraordinary, that I will quote the

words from the record:

"Now, gentlemen, to the best of my
recollection, from the time the whistle

blew for twelve o'clock until after a

quarter to one when I went up stairs

and spoke to Arthur White and Harry
Donham. to the best of my recollection,

I (lid not stir out of the inner office,

but it is possible that to answer a call

of nature or to urinate I may have gone
to the toilet. Those are things that a

man does unconsciously and cannot tell

how many times nor when he does it."

Here then was the second of the two
desperate, but futile, attempts to ac-

count for the whereabouts of Frank, at

the fatal period of time when he and
Mary are both missing.

Pray notice this : Frank's first state-

ment made a few hours after Mary's
corpse was found, made no mention of
Lemmie Quimvs coming to the office

after liattic Hall left. The effort to

sandwich Quinn l>etween Hattie Hall

and Mrs. White, was a bungle, and an
afterthought. It showed he felt he
nnust try to fill in that interval and the

failure showed his inability to do it.

Hence he is left totally unaccounted for,

during the half-hour when the crime

was committed.

Frank's final statement^—the one he

made to the jury—hurt him anothei

way: he said he was continuously in

his inner office, after Hattie Hall left,

whereas Mrs. Arthur "\^^lite on her un-

expected return to the factory surprised

him in his outer office where he was
standing before the safe with his back

to the door. He jumped when she spoke

to him, and he turned round as he

answered.

He did not explain what he was do-

ing at the safe at that time 12:35, and
the State's theory is, that he had been

putting Mary's mesh bag and pay-

envelope in the safe.

The only material thing about it is,

that he was out of his inner office at

12 :35, and not continuously in it up to

nearly 1 o'clock, as he declared he was.

And he had never even attempted to ex-
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plain whj^ he was at the safe at that

time.

The fact that Conley may have been

missing too, is secondary, and more
doubtfuL Monteen did not come there

to look for him. Her mind was not on

Jim Conley.

Monteen's mind was on her money
and the man who had it. She went
there to find Frank. She says—"I

went through the first office into the

second office. I went to get my money.

I went in Mr. Frank's office. He was
not there.

I stayed there 5 minutes, and left at

10 minutes after 12."

Mrs. Freeman and Miss Hall had
already been there : Lemmie Quinn had
already been there : and these visitors,

having gone up to Frank, came down
again. Next comes pretty Mary Pha-

gan, and she goes up to Frank, and
Frank receives her in his private office

:

and when Monteen comes up into that

same office, in her noiseless tennis shoes,

at 5 minutes after twelve, neither Mary
nor Frank were to be heard or seen.

O! where were they, THEN?
To the end of time, and the crack of

doom, that question will ring in the

ears and the souls of right-feeling peo-

ple.

Frank says he may have uncon-

sciously gone to the toilet. Then he

as vnconsciously PUT HIS FEET IN
THE MURDERER'S TRACKS!
The notes make Mary Phagan go to

the same place, at the same time; and
the blood spots and the hair on the

lathe show that she died there

!

On page 185 of the official record,

Frank says

—

"To the best of my knowledge, it

must have been 10 or 15 minutes after

Miss Hall left my office, when this lit-

tle girl, whom I afterwards found to

be Mary Phagan, entered my office and
asked for her pay envelope. I asked

for her number and she told me; I

went to the cash box and took her en-

velope out and handed it to her. identi-

fying the envelope by the number.

She left my office and apparently

had gotten as far as the door from my
office leading to the outer office, when
she evidently stopped, and asked me
if the metal had arrived, and I told

her no. She continued her way out,

&c."

Note his studied effort to make it

appear that he did not even lift his

eyes and look at this rosy, plump and
most attractive maid. He does not

even know that she stopped at his inner

office door, when she spoke to him. She

evidently stopped, apparently at the

door : he does not know for certain : he

was not looking at her to see. She

spoke to him, and he to her, but he

does not know positively that she

stopped, nor positively where she was,

at the time. He did not recognize her

at all. She gave him her number, and

he found an envelope to match the num-
ber, and he gave it to the little girl,

whom he afterwards found to be Mary
Phagan! "Found," Aowj.^ By looking

at the pay-roll, and seeing that Mary's

name corresponded with the number

that was on the pay envelope

!

Let me pause here long enough to

remind you that J. M. Gantt, Dewey
Howell, W. F. Turner and Miss Ruth

Robinson, all swore positively that

Frank did know Mary Phagan, per-

sonally, hy sight and hy name.

But what follows after Mary leaves

Frank's office?

He says—"She had hardly left the

plant 5 minutes when Lemmie Quinn
came in."

But Miss Corinthia Hall, and Mrs.

Emma Clarke Freeman, and Quin'K

himself, made it plain that Quinn had
already been there and gone, before

they arrived.

When did they arrive? And when
did they leave?

They came at 11 :35 and left at 11 :45 !

They were Frank'^s own witnesses, and
they demolished the Lemmie Quinn
alibi and Frank's own statement

/

"What can be said in answer to that?

Nothing. It is one of those provi-
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dential mishaps in a case of circum-

stantial evidence, that makes the cold

chills run up the back of the lawyer

for the defense.

I know^ for I have had them run up
my back: I know them, of old.

See if you g^t the full force of the

point. Kemember that Frank's lawyers

put up Mrs. Freeman and Miss Hall,

to account for Frank at the fatal period

when he seemed to l)e missing. Evi-

dently, they were expected to account

fo Frank up to T^emmie Quinn's ar-

rival, and after that, IxMumie was to

do the rest. But Mrs. Freeman and
Miss Hall not only arrived too soon,

but got there after Lemmie ! When
they left at 11 :45, hy the clock in

Frank''s office^ they went to the cafe,

and who should be there but Lemmie,
and Lemmie, in the innocence of his

heart, said he had just been up to

Frank's office.

Mary Phagan^ as all the evidence

shows, ijoa^ at that time on her way to

the fatal trap!

The evidence of Frank's three wit-

nesses, Miss Hall, Mrs. Freeman and
Lemmie Quinn, proves that he told the

jury a deliberate falsenood when he

said that Quinn was with him, after

Mary Phagan left.

That's the crisis of the case

!

Desperately he tries to show where
he was, after the girl came; and, des-

perately, he says that Quinn came after

Mary left, and that Quinn knows he

was there in his office, after Mai^j had
departed.

Ah no ! The great God would not

let that lie to prosper

!

Mrs. Freeman, Miss Hall, and Quinn
put themselves in and out—there and
aAvay. come and gone, before Mary
came

—

and iishere does that leave

Frank?
The plank he grabbed at. he missed.

The straw he caught at. sunk with him.

When Lemmie Quinn fails him. hfc

sinks into that fearful unknown of the

half hour when the unexpected Mon-

teen Stover softly comes into the outer
office, goes right on into Frank's inner

office, seeking iier money, and cannot
find Frank

!

The place is silent; the place is de-

serted ; she waits five minutes, hears

nothing .and sees nobody. Then she

leaves.

Where were you, Leo Frank?
And where was our little girl?

Desperately, he says he may have-

gone to the closet.

Fatefully, the notes say Mary went
to the closet.

Fatally, her golden hair leaves some
of its golden strands on the metal lever,

where her head struck, as Frank hit

her; and her blood splotched the floor

at the dressing room, where Conley
dropped her.

What broke the hymen? "What tore

the inner tissues? What caused the

dilated blood vessels? Wiat lacera-

tion stained the drawers with her vir-

ginal blood? How came the outer

vagina bloody?

Who split her drawers all the way
up ? Who did the violence to the parts

that Dr. Harris swore to?

The blow that bruised and blackened,

but did not break the skin, was in

front, over the eye, which was much
swollen when the corpse was found.

The blow that cut the scalp to the bone
and caused unconsciousness, was on the

back of the head.

Who struck her with his fist in the

face, and knocked her down, so that, in

falling, the crank handle of the machine
cut the scalp and tore out some of her

hair?

How did anybody get a chance to

hit her in the back of the head, and not

throw her on her face ? Would a negro
go for a cord with which to choke a

white woman he had assaulted ? Would
a negro have remained with the body,

or cared what became of it, and taken

the awful risks of getting it down two
floors to the basement? Would a ne-

gro have lingered by the corpse to
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write a note on j^ellow paper, and
another note on white paper? Would
a negro have loafed there to compose
notes at all ? What negi'o ever did such

a thing, after such a crime?

Place in front of you a square piece

of blank paper, longer than it is broad

:

an old envelope will do. This square

piece of paper, longer than it is broad,

will represent the floor of the building

—the second floor, upon which Mary
Phagan was done to death.

Draw a line through the middle of

the square, from top to bottom, cutting

the long square into two lesser squares.

These will sufficiently represent the two
large rooms into which the second floor

was divided by a partition. Mark a

place in the center of the partition, for

the door which opens oiic room into the

other.

Whei^e teas Frank office f

It was at the upper right-hand cor-

ner of the room, to your right, as the

square lies lengthwise before you.

Mark off a small square at that cor-

ner, for Frank's office.

Mark off a small square, in the left

hand lower corner of the second room,

and run a line through it, to divide this

small closet, info two divisions. One
of these small divisions was the water-

closet of the men : the other, of the

women ! Yoic cannot crumple a piece

of paper in the one^ without heing

heard in the other!

We naturally turn to Frank, and we
naturally ask him

—

What did Mary do^ after you gave
her the pay-envelope? Where did she

go?
He cannot answer.

But thereupon we take it up, another
way, and we ask him this question

—

Where %cere YOU after Mary left?

Did you stay in your office? Did you
go anywhere, and do anything?
Xow, follow the facts closely:

Frank's own detective, Harry Scott,

in his energetic efforts to find the

criminal, pinned Frank down, as to

u'here he was^ after 12 o'^clock.

Frank told Harry Scott, in the hear-

ing of John Black, that he was eon-

tinvously in his office^ during the 45

mi7ivtes AFTER MARY HAD GOME
AND GONE.
The white lady, Mrs. Arthur White,

returned at 12 :35, and found Frank in

his office, standing before the iron safe.

He jumped nervously, when he heard

her.

Now, then: Monteen Stover went to

Frank's office, after Mary had gone
away from it, AND BEFORE MRS.
WHITE CAME BAGK, AT 12:35.

Where was Frank, then?

Right there, in that fateful half-

hour, lies the crime.

Who is the criminal?

If Frank had been in his office, Mon-
teen would, of course, have seen him
when she went to it—and he would
have seen her.

He did not see her, and therefore did

not know that she had been there, until

after he had told Harry Scott, posi-

tively and repeatedly, that he was in

his office, THEN.
It was afterwards, when the unim-

peachable Monteen told what she knew,

that Frank saw how he had boxed him-

self up.

Then it was, that such a persistent

and desperate effort was made to get

Monteen's evidence out of the way.

Then it was, that Buims in person

tried first to persuade, and then to hull-

doze her.

{Why donH some of Frank''s paid

champions dtcell on that ugly pfiase

of his case?)

The enormous weight which Frank's

lawyers and detectives (Bums and
Lehon) attached to Monteen's evi-

dence, is the hest proof that Monteen's

evidence clinches the guilt of Fi'ank.

When Frank told Scott and Black that

he was in his office, continuously, after

Mary left, he knew the vital necessity

of accounting for his whereabouts, at

that particular time.

lie kneiv it, even then!

His definite, positive placing of him
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self, during that particular half-hour,
shows that he knew it.

BUT HOW CAME TIE TO KNOW
IT?

If some one else made away with
the ^rl, he did not THEN know lohen
the deed was done.

If he is as innocent as a'ou and I,

he did not then know, any better than
you and I then did, the vast materi-

ality of his whereabouts, at any one
half-hour of that fatal day.

How came he, at that time, to be so

extremely careful to account for him-
self, for that special half-hour, and
why did he lie about it?

He does not deny what he told Scott

and Black : he does not accuse Monteen
of a perjury for w^hich she had no mo-
tive : he stated to the jury that he might
have gone to the water-closet, on a call

of nature, which he curiously said is

an act that a person does "without be-

ing conscious of it."

If Frank told Scott and Black a

deliberate falsehood as to his where-

abouts, that is a powerful circumstance

against him.

If he was actually out of his office,

just after Mary left, that, also, is a
powerful circumstance against him,
provided he cannot tell where he was.

If, in giving the only possible ac-

count of himself, he puts himself at

the water-closet, then the crime gets

right up to him, provided Mary was
ravished and killed, in that same room.
Now, where was Mary ravished and

killed?

The blood-marks and the hair say,

in that same room!
And the notes say, in that same room!
The blood-marks tell where she was;

and if Frank went out ot his office, to

go to the closet, he went right there!

The notes make Mary say that she

went to the closet", "to make water,"

and, if she did, she went right there.

If a negro seized her, raped her and
killed her, he had to he right where
Frank says he was, when absent from
his office.

But if Frank was in his office, and
Monteen is a liar without motive, how
could a negro come up from the lower

floor (where Mrs. AVliite saw him.) and
commit the crime, without Frank hear-

ing, or seeing a single thing to excite

his suspicion?

Where is the negro who would go
that close to a white man's office, when
he knew the white Tnan was there, to

commit such a fiendisu crime upon a

white girl? And how did the negro,

by himself, get the body from the

second floor, down to the basement?

Mary's body was found on the night

of Saturday the 2Gth. It appeared to

have been dead a long time. ''The

body was cold and stiff." The notes

were lying close by.

Newt Lee went on dutfy for the night,

as usual, that Saturday night, and it

was he who found the body on that

night, at about 3 o'clock.

Therefore, you have a clear case of

murder, on Saturday, sometime after

the noon hour, and before Newt Lee
came on duty as night-watchman, at 6

o^clock.

Conley was not back in the building

that day, after 1 o'clock. Frank was.

The record shows this.

The circumstances conclusively prove

that somebody did the deed, during the

half-hour following Mary's coming to

Frank's office.

Frank admits that he is the last white

person with whom she was ever seen.

The blood and the notes say she was as-

saulted on Frank's floor, near the

closets, which she and Frank both used.

The notes make her go to the closet,

to answer a call of nature, immediately

after she left Frank!
She did not go up stairs; she had no

work to do in the factory, that day;

and if she went to the toilet at all, she

went there from Frank''s office.

She never again appeared down
stairs ; or out of doors.

If she had gone up stairs, Mrs.

AMiite and others would know it. If
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she had gone down stairs, hoth Frank
and Conley icould know it.

Yet at 12 :35, Mi-s. AVhite saw Frank,

hut did not see the girl.

She had disappeared, during the

very time that Frank disappears ; and
when Frank gets back into his office,

at 12:35, that little girl is out there

near the toilet, in the next room^ chok-

ing to death.

It was Frank who was close to her:

it was the negro who was down stairs.

Xo wonder Frank "jumped," when
Mrs. "\Miite came up, behind, and spoke.

No wonder he hurried Mrs. AVhite

out of the building, hesitated to allow

J. M. Gantt to go in for his shoes, and
refused to let Newt Lee enter.

By all the evidence^ Frank and Jim
were the only living mortals in that

part of the house, at that time. Mary
undoubtedly was there, at the time, by
Frank's own line of defence.

There was one short sentence in Capt.

J. N. Starnes' re-direct examination,

that did not rivet my special attention

at first. That sentence was

—

''''Hands folded across the hreastP

That simple statement came back,

again and again, knocking at the door,

as if it were saying, ''Explain me!''''

How did it happen that a girl who
had been raped or murdered—or both

—was found nnth her hands folded

over her hreastf

How could a girl who had been

knocked in the head, on the first floor,

and tumbled down into the basement,

through a scuttle-hole, and over a lad-

der, as Defendant claims, have her

hands resting quietly on her bosom?

Frank's theory represents Jim as

attacking Mary on the first floor, finish-

ing her in the basement below, then

writing the notes, breaking the door,

and speeding away.
Tliat theory does not account for

those folded hands.

A girl knocked on the head, into un-

consciousness, and then choked to death

with a cord, does not fold lier own
hands across her hosom. O no

!

In the agony of death, her arms will

be spread out. And if, hours later,

those arms are found across her bosom,

the little hands meeting over the pulse-

less heart, be sure that somebody who
remembers intuitively how the dead

should be treated, has put those ago-

nized hafids together/

There were the indisputable and un-

disputed facts : a bloody corpse, with a

wound in the head, torn underclothing,

privates bloody, a tight cord sunk into

the soft flesh of the neck, the face

blackened and scratched by dragging

across a bare floor of cinders and grit,

and yet when turned over and found

"cold and stiff," the testimony curtly

adds—
'''Hands folded across the breast.''''

How did that happen? Who folded

those Ittle hands across the heart which

beat no more?
In vain, I searched the evidence.

Nowhere was there an explanation. In

fact, nobody had seemed to be struck

by that brief, clear statement of Capt.

Starnes, which everybody conceded t^

be strictly true

:

''''Hands folded across the breast.''''

Mind you, when she was found in

the basement, she was lying on her face.,

not directly on her stomach, but so

much so that they had to '''turn her

over,'''' to see her face, and wipe the

dust and dirt off, for the purpose of

recognition. (See official record, pages

7, 8 and 9.)

Lying on her face ! Had to turn her

over, and "the body was cold and stiff."

But the frozen hands—where -were

they? "Folded across the breast."

Then, they had become rigid in that

position ! They had not come off the

bosom, even when the body was turned

over! They had remamed across the

breast, while the body was being

dragged.

Dr. Westmoreland and Dr. Harris

would probably agree, for at least one
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time, and hoth would say, as competent

experts, that those hands, (to remain

fixed under those circumstances,) had
been placed across the girl's bosom, he-

fore the stiffness set in.

Death froze them there

!

You may read every line of the evi-

dence on both sides, as I did, and you

will not find any explanation of those

folded hands—hands folded as no

murdered woman's were ever found be-

fore, except where somebody, not the

murderer., instinctively followed uni-

versal custom, and folded them!
Can you escape that conclusion? No,

you can't. At least, I couldn't, and I

have been reading and trying murder
cases, nearly all my life.

Then, as a last resort., in my efforts

to satisfy myself about that unpar-

alleled circumstance of the folded

hands, I decided to turn to Jim Con-
ley's evidence, saying to myself, as 1

did so, "If that ignorant nigger ex-

plains that fact, whose importance he

cannot possibly have known., it will be

a marvellous thing." So I turned to

Conley's evidence, searching for that

one thing. On page 55, I found it.

Here it is:

"She was dead when I got back there,

and I came back and told Mr. Frank,

and he said 'Sh-sh!' .... The
girl was lying flat on her hack and her

hands were ont, this way. I put both

of her hands down, easy, and rolled

her up in the cloth. ... I looked

back a little way and saw her hat and
piece of ribbon and her slij)pers, and I

taken them and put them all in the

cloth."

The girl was lying flat on her back,

hands out this way—and he illustrated.

"I put both of her hands down.^^ Then,
they were not only out, but i/p—as if

the pitiful little victim had been push-

ing something, or somehody, off

!

Those dead hands are fearful accusers

of the white men who now say that

Mary Phagan did not value her virtue.

Only the other day, there was issued

by the Neale Publishing Company, a

new book of war experiences, written

by a Philadelphia surgeon. Dr. John
H. Brinton; and he relates some vivid

incidents showing the rapid action of

the rigor mortis—the "instantaneous

rigor," following mortal wounds re-

ceived in battle. He made a special

study of the dead, on the field which
the North calls Antietam. (Our name
for it is, Sharpsburg.)

On page 207, Dr. Brinton speaks of

the cornfield and sunken road, so fa-

mous to the literature of the War; and
he says, "Dead bodies were everywhere.

. . . . Many of these were in extra-

ordinary attitudes, some with their

arms raised Hgidly in the air. . . .

I also noticed the body of a Southern

soldier. . . . The body was in a

semi-erect posture. . . . One arm,

extended, was stretched forward. . .

. . His musket with ramrod halfway
down, had dropped from his hand."

This Southern soldier had been lying

in the road, had half risen to load and
shoot, had been shot while driving the

ramrod home, and the gun had
dropped : but the soldier himself re-

mained, face to the foe, half-erect, with

"one arm extended, and stretched for-

ward?''

Brave Southern soldier ! Death it-

self could not rob him of the proofs

of his unfailing heroism.

Brave Southern girl ! Death itself

would not rob Mary Phagan of the

proofs, that she fought for her inno-

cence to the very last.

Shame upon those white men who
desecrate the murdered child's grave,

and who add to the torture of the

mother that lost her, by saying Mary
was an unclean little wanton.

Jim Conley had no motive to de-

scribe her hands as being uplifted ; and
he, an ignorant negro, oould not have

realized the stupendous psychological

significance of it.

Providence was against Frank in this

case. The stars in their courses fought
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against him, as they fought against

Sisera. His laicycrs Tuust have felt it.

Providence was against him, in the

time of ISIonteen Stover's unexpected

visit to his office.

Providence was against him, in the

unexpected return of Mrs. White.

Providence was against him, in the

fatal break-down of his alibi.

Providence was against him, in the

apparently trivial fact that Newt Lee's

call of nature, Saturday night, did not

occur on any of the floors cibove the

hasement—all of which had closets—but

occurred in the basement, where the

closet was close to the dead girl.

Providence was against him. in the

fact that Barrett worked that crank

handle, the last thing on Friday
evening., and was thus able to credibly

swear that it had no woman's hair on it,

then.

Providence was against him, in that

Stanford swept the whole floor Friday.,

and was thus able to credibly swear

that there was no blood on it, then.

Providence was against him, when
he was forced into explaining his

absence from his office by unwittingly

jmtting hirnself at the flace of that

tvoman^s hair and those fresh Mood
spots.

Providence was against him, when
that cold and stiff girl was found in

the basement, with "hands folded

across the breast," for that fact

—

apparently little

—

imperiously demands
explanation.'

And when you start out to hunt for

the explanation which you know must
exist, you search every nook and
cranny in the case without finding it,

until you read a line or two which the

negro did not understand the mean-
ing of—and which, so far as I can

learn

—

has never been the subject of

comment, on either side.

It happened to flash across me, that

I had recently read something similar,

in the book which Walter Neale had
sent me for review ; and then I saw the

meaning of Mary's hands being in such

a position upward, that Jim had to

put them "c/o'MJW."

No negro could have invented that.

No negro could have knoion the im-

portance of that. Apparently, the

lawyers did not pay any attention to

it. Am / mistaken in doing so? Am
I wrong in saying that this little fact

absolutely establishes the truth of the

State'^s theory?

How, else, do you account for the

hands folded across her breast, so

rigidly that when her body had been

dragged, and then turned over, the

rigid posture of the hands was main-

tained, by the frozen muscles?

To save your life, you cannot explain

it, except by saying that somebody,

almost immediately after the girl's

death, put her hands in that position.

She didn't do it.

Who was that someboay?
Not the man who hilled her, you may

be dead sure.

But the nigger says, he did it.

Then you may stake your life on the

proposition, that the nigger didnH kill

her.

Negroes who assault and murder
white women, don't loiter to fold hands,

write notes, and pick up hats, ribbons

and slippers.

Negroes who assault and murder
white women, have never failed to hit

the outer rim of the sky-line, just as

quick as their heels can do it.

But as it was the nigger who put

down the girl's hands, and folded

them across her breast, soon after hei

life went out, who did kill her?

TFIE ONLY OTHER POSSIBLE
MAN, LS FEANI{.
Was it Frank, and not the nigger,

who was "lascivious,'' at that factory?

Twelve white women swore, "Yes."

Was it Frank, and not the nigger,

who had been after this little girl.

Three white witnesses swear, "Yes."

Hoiv many more witnesses do you

want, than fifteen white ones?
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And yet the Biirnses, and Connolly's,

and Pulitzers, and Abells, and Ochses,

and Thomsons and Rossers are still

telling the outside world that the virtu-

ous Frank was convicted on race

prejudice, and the evidence of one be-

sotted negro

!

Was any State ever so maligned, as

Georgia has been?

I^et me call your attention to another

little thing in the negro's evidence

which there was no need to "make up."

It is his statement that he wrote, at

Frank's dictation, four notes before

Frank was satisfied. Why say four^

when only two were found ? The negro
in testifying at the trial, knew that only

two notes were found, yet he swore to

writing four.

At least, I so understand his words,

which were

—

•"He taken his pencil to fix up some
notes .... and he sat down and
I sat down at the table and Mr. Frank
dictated the notes to me. Whatever it

was, it didn't seem to suit him, and he

told me to turn over, and write again,

and I turned the paper and wrote
again, and when I had done that, he
told me to tui-n over and write again,

and I turned over and I wrote on the

next page, and he looked at that, and
kinder liked it, and he said that was
all right. Then he reached over and
got another piece of paper, a green
piece, and told me what to write. He
took it and laid it in his desk."

If that doesn't make four notes. I

don't understand the language in the

record : and if it means four, when
only two AA-ere found and introduced
into the case, it shows, at least, that

the negro was not making up a tale to

fit the known facts.

The negro said another thing that he
could not have "made up," because he
does not even yet realize the meaning
of it. The lawyers made no allusions

to it. Jim said—"When I heard him
whistle (the signal Frank had often

used when he had lewd women with

him) I went ... on up the steps.

Mr. Frank was standing up there at the

top of the steps, and shivering and
trembling, and rubbing his hands like

this—.

He had a little rope in his hands

—

a long wide piece of cord. His eyes

were large and they looked right

funny

He asked me, '•''Did you see that lit-

tle girl who passed up here a while

ago'?''

Jim told him he had seen two go up,

and only one come down.

Mind you, Frank had not heard

Monteen Stover, whose tennis shoes

made no noise; and Frank knew
nothing of her visit at all. AVhen he

asked Jim if he had seen that little

girl, Frank meant, "Did vou see the

Phagangirl?"

Frank's purpose was, to learn

whether Jim had seen the little girl,

who w^as then lying out there in the

metal room, with a piece of that

cord around her neck. If the negro

had answered, "No, I didn't see any

girl," Frank would never have said

another word to him about her. It was
only after he found out that Jim had
seen her go up, but not come down,
that he had to take Jim into his con-

fidence one more time.

Much has been said about the im-

probability of Frank making a con-

fidante out of a negro of low character.

Does an immoral white man make a

confidante out of a negro of high

character? Will a respectable negro

act as go-between, procurer, or watch-

out man, for a white hypocrite who is

one thing to his Rabbi and his Bnai
Brith, and quite a different thing to

the Cyprians of the town?

Suppose I can shoAv you from the

official record that Frank's lawyers

kiieic that the murder was committed
on Frank's floor, back there where the

blood and hair were found, won't vou
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be practically certain that they also

knew Frank to he guilty?

Come along with me, and see if I

don't prove it to you:

Leo Frank employed Harry Scott,

a detective, to ferret out the criminal,

and Scott went into the case with great

vigor. In fact, he soon showed alto-

gether too much vigor to suit Frank,

and Herbert Haas. Herbert became
alarmed—why? And Herbert told

Scott to first report to Am, Herbert,

whatever he might discover, before

letting any one else know. Herbert

Haas was chairman of the Frank
Finance Committee, and he was one

of the lawyers for the defense.

Scott did not like to be shut off from
the police, and confined to a Herbert

Haas investigation, and so he remon-
strated with the Chairman of the Fi-

nance Committee.

But before Scott was fired, he had
drawn from Frank two material state-

ments. One was, his alleged continuous

presence in his office after Hattie Hall

left; and the other was, his answer to

Mary Phagan, lohen she asked him if

the metal had come.

Frank told Scctt that when Mary
asked him whether the metal had come,

he replied, "/ don't knoxoy At that

time, Frank was not aware of the fact

that Monteen Stover could prove that

he was absent from his office when
Mary icas heing murdered.

What did Mary's question about the

metal prove? That her mind was on
her work. She had lost nearly the

whole week, because the supply of

metal had run out. They were expect-

ing more. // it had come., she could

go hack to work in that metal room,
next Monday. Therefore, when she

asked Frank, "/Za,s the m^etal comef
her thoughts were on her work and she

was eager to know whether she could

return on Monday to resume it. "Has
the metal come?*' Equivalent to, '^Will

there he any work far me next week?
Must I lose another iceek, or can I come
hack Monday?''^

This was the meaning of the ques-

tion. AVhat was the meaning of

Frank's answer?
If he said, "/ doyiH knou\'^^ the girl

would naturally suggest, or he woidd,

that they go back there, to that metal

room, and see.

Can you escape this conclusion? If

he didn't know whether the metal was
there or not, the only way to tell for

certain, was to go and look. If he was
doubtful, the girl would want to go
and look to see if it was there, for the

girl wanted, to resume her work.

Now, if that answer, "I don't know,"
were allowed to stand, Rosser realized,

quick as lightning, that it led to the

inevitahle conclusion that the girl went
hack to the metal room, to see ahout it,

and u-as assaulted there!

Consequently, Frank not only
changed his answer of, "I don't know,"
into a positive, "iVc>/" but Rosser went
at Scott, hammer and tongs, to badger
him into saying that he may have been

mistaken, and that Frank may have
said, "No," instead of, "I don't know."
But the point is this: If Rosser had

not felt certain that the blood and the

hair proves that Mary was killed on

Frank's floor, near Frank's closet, and
at about the time Frank puts himself

at the closet, ivhat would Rosser have

cared whether Mary went to the metal

room, or not?

If Jim Conley killed Mary on the

first floor, or in the basement, it did

not at all matter whether she went to

the metal room, either with Frank, or

by herself.

The strenuous effort of Rosser to es-

cape from that answer of "I don't

know," proves what he knows. He
knows very well that the girl was killed

on the second floor. Otherwise, you
cannot understand why Frank was
made to change his statement, and why
such herculean strength was used to

get a change out of Harry Scott.

The difference between "No," and "I

don't know," is a difference between

tweedledum and tweedledee, unless



270 WATSON'S MAGAZINE.

Mary icas murdered on Frank''s floor.

Rosser knew, just as you must now
see^ that if Frank told the girl, '"I don't

know," he mir/ht just as well have

admitted that he and Mary went hack

there together^ where the hlood and
hair were found.

That answer of, "I don't know,"

—

suggesting as it did, an inspection of

the room, to see about the metal—is

the only plausible way to account for

the girl's being back there, unless in-

deed the notes speak the truth about

her going to the closet.

(See Harry Scott's evidence in

record.)

Rosser's desperate struggle to get

away from the "I don't know." is

wonderfully illuminating rt.s to what
was in I^o-sser's mind. If he had placed

the slightest reliance on the theory that

the negro killed the girl, he would not

have cared a button whether Frank
went with ^lary to see about the metal.

If Rosser had not been absolutely cer-

tain that the girl was attacked and
killed, hack there, he would not have

struggled so hard to keep her and
Frank away from there. If Rosser

had believed for a moment that Mary
went on clown stairs, after she left

Frank, and was killed by the negro

down stairs, he wouldn't have wasted

a breath over that question of whether
Frank said, "No," or said, "I don't

know."

If the girl was killed down stairs,

it would not have hurt Frank's case

in the least, if he had boldly admitted

that, after telling Mary, "I don't

know," he had gone back there with

her to see. It is to be presumed that

he, as well as she. wanted the work to

go on: and therefore he, also, would
be interested in the matter, with a view

to her return on Monday.
Suppose he had said, "Yes, Mary

came to my office, got her money, and
we went back to the metal room to see

if the expected metal had come; and,

after that, she went on down stairs.

and I went back into my office, and saw
no more of her."'

^V]lere would have been the danger
of his saying that? She was with him
in the office: he admits that, after the

evidence forces him to it : but why not

go a little farther, and admit that he

and she went to the metal room, before

she left his floor?

Ask Rosser to tell you the answer to

that question. Ask your own intelli-

gence ! What danger, was to be

dreaded, in allowing Frank to say that

he and Mary went to the metal room,

even for one single minute?
If she was killed on the first floor—

•

no matter who did it—there was no

danger in letting Frank admit that he

went to the metal room with her.

If she was killed in the basement

—

no matter Avho did it—there was no
danger in the admission that she and

Frank went to the metal room.

But Rosser's desperate drive, to re-

move the very idea of her going to the

metal room with Frank, proves the im-

mense importance he attached to it.

He could not allow it, he dared not

allow it! Mary and Frank must not

for an instant he allowed in the metal

room-, during that fatal half-hour!

WHY NOT?
Is there any possible answer, but the

one? And that is

—

Mary's tress of
golden-hrown hair is hanging out there

in that room, on the crank of BarretVs

machine; and Mary'^s life-hlood is out

there, on that recently swept floor!

Rosser said in his heart, "I dare not

let Frank go there!''''

"\Mien you test the theory that Conley
^lone did the deed, you have no evi-

dence to rest it on. Jim never bothered

those white girls, did not act like a

negro who had committed the unpar-

donable crime on a white woman, did

not try to lay suspicion on anybody,

and went about his work as usual, on
Monday and Tuesday.
There is absolutely no evidence
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against the negro, upon which the
State could have made the shadow of a
case.

"^Mien you test in your mind the
hypothesis that Frank and Jim loth
committed the crime, you make some
slight headway, for Jim and Frank
shielded each other, until Frank was
jailed. But this is not enough to im-
plicate both, in the actual cHme. It is

enough to prove a common guilty
knowledge of the crime, but it does not
shut out the idea of Conley's being ac-
cessory to the fact, after the deed was
done.

It is only when you test in your mind
the theory that Frank alorie committed
the crime, that all proved circumstances
harmonize, and interlink to make the
chain.

Twelve white girls swore that Frank
had a lascivious .character; and they
learned what he was, inside this very
factory.

One of his own witnesses, a white
girl, swore to his immoral conduct,
inside this vei^ factory.

Conley mentioned the names of the
white women and the white man who
came into this very factory, to engage*
in vice with Frank, and one of these
persons corroborated Conley on the
witness stand.

White witnesses swore that Frank
had been after little Mary, ever since
March, inside this very factory.
Frank laid a trap for Mary, by forc-

ing her to come back inside this very
factory, when he might have sent her
money by Helen Ferguson.
Mary walks into the trap inside that

factory, and it closes on her.

God in Heaven! was guilt ever
plainer, and more deliberately diaboli-
cal?

And are we to be dictated to by mass-
meetings in Chicago, and by circular
letters from New York and New Eng-
land, when this awful crime stares us
in the face?

Nothing corroborates Frank when he

says that Conley alone committed the
crime; and every undisputed fact is

against that hypothesis.

Everything corroborates Conley,
when he says that Frank did it, and
that he himself became mixed up in it,

afterwards.

And if there is one feature of the
case more convincing than another it is,

that Frank was at least as careful to
shield Conley from suspicion, AT
FIRST, as Conley was, to shield Frank.

Until Frank himself was arrested,

he tried to set the dogs on Lee and
Gantt, BUT NEVER ONCE ON JIM
CONLEY!
At first, Frank and Conley hoth acted

like a pair who held a guilty secret

between themselves.

Ah, it is a heartrending case. Big
Money may muzzle most of the papers,
hire the best legal talent, and bring re-

mote popular pressure to bear upon our
governor, but all the money in the
world cannot destroy the facts, nor
answer the arguments based on those
facts.

Let me refer to the negro's explana-
tion of how it happened—my reference
being confined strictly to facts where
there is abundant corroboration.

Jim says he heard steps of two per-

sons going back to the metal room ; and
Frank himself, states that Mary in-

quired about whether the metal had
come, which would give her more work
next week. What more natural than
that Frank, when the girl asked, "Has
the metal come?" should say, '^Lefs go
hack there and seef''

Wliat more natural than that she
should go? And what more in keep-
ing with Frank's proved character, and
his proved desire for this girl, than that
he should make indecent advances to
her, back there, where no one is in sight
or hearing?

Jim says Frank called him by their

agreed signal of stamping on the floor,

and whistling, and that when he
went up, Frank, looking wild and
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excited, told him, in substance,

that he had tried the girl, that

she had refused, that he had struck her,

and he guessed he had hit her too hard;

she had fallen, and in falling had hit

something; she was unconscious.

Jim says he "went l)ack there where

the girl lay, at the lathe, where her hair

was found in the liandle; and she was
lying motionless with the cord around
her neck. "The cloth was also tied

.

around her neck, and part of it was
under her head like to catch blood."

All the witnesses swore to the strip

of cloth; and the hair on the metal

handle of the lathe was as fully identi-

fied as Mary's, as hair could be under
those circumstances. Frank's own wit-

ness. Magnolia Kennedy testified that

the hair looked like Mary's; and Miss
Magnolia was herself the only other

girl there whose hair was at all like

the golden brown of Mary Phagan's.

Frank's own machinist found the

hair on the metal handle, and swore

positively it was not there when he

quit using that very machine—handle
and all

—

Friday nighty before the

Saturday of the crime.

Mr. Barrett, the machinist, found the

hair on the handle when he went back

to the machine Monday morning. He
was not at the factory Saturday. No
one is shown to have been in that room
Saturday. How did that long., golden-

hrown., woman?s hair get on that metal

crank, where Barrett found it?

No girl or woman could be produced

who pretended she was in the metal

room on Saturday. No girl or woman
could be found who could explain about

the hair. Why not? Half-a-dozen of

Frank's own employees, several of

them his own witnesses, swore to find-

ing the hair, soon Monday morning;

and they swore that it was not there

Friday.

Wiy couldn't it be accounted for?

The only answer is, Mary in falling,

after Frank struck her and gave her

that bruise on the eye, hit the metal

handle, and it ripped her scalp and tore

out some of her hair.

In no other way under the sun can

that hair on the machine be explained.

Then the blood on the floor at the

dressing room, some 23 feet from where
the girl fell : ivhose hlood?

All the witnesses say it was not there

Friday when they quit work. Mell

Stanford had swept the whole 2nd
floor, and tidied up, generally; and he

swore positively the blood spots were

not there Friday. Barrett swore they

were not there Friday. But the blood

spots were there early Monday morn-
ing, seen by numbers of the employees,

and denied by none. Schiff, the assist-

ant superintendent, admitted it, Quinn
admitted it, the men saw it, the women
saw it, chips were cut out of the floor,

and the doctors saw it.

Whose loas it?

Not there Friday evening, right

there Monday morning, whose was it?

If not Mary's blood, produce your ex-

planation ! If not Mary, somehody else

hied there. Wio blea there, between

Friday and Monday, if not Mary Pha-
gan?
The question can not be answered,

save in one waj'. You know quite well

that if money or skill, or hard work,

could have accounted for those guilty

stains on that floor, the man or the

woman who bled there would have heen

produced.

Conley says he dropped the girl on

the floor, and that the blood spattered

where those spots were found. Take
that explanation, or go without one,

for I assure you the court record offers

no other. Frank in his own statement

could only offer the explanation that

Duffy or Gilbert when injured in the

metal room, months hefore.^ might have

bled there. Gilbert went on the stand

and swore to his cut finger, but said

none of the blood had dropped any-

where near those spots.

The futile effort to account for the

blood, only deepens the significance of
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the fact that it was there, and adds
fearful weight to the evidence of R. P.

Barrett and Mell Stanford, that it was
not there on Friday.

Jim says he and Frank carried the

body down, in the elevator, to the base-

ment. He says they had wrapped her

up in a cloth which was taken off in the

basement. He said that Frank made
him promise to return to the plant, that

afternoon, to help him dispose of the

body, but he did not go back.

I have on purpose left out everything

but the barest outline. Conley did go
home and did not return, whereas
Frank was back—we don't know ex-

actly when—and sent Newt Lee away
at 4, when Newt wanted to go in and
sleep.

A white man, whose character is not

ussailed, swears that he wanted per-

mission to go into the factory at 6

o'clock, and that Frank not only first

tried to dodge back out of sight into

the gloom of the building, but lied to

him about the sweeping out of the

shoes, and then sent a negro to watch
him.

Then the negro who was a trusted

night-watchman—and whom Frank
•detailed to watoh Gantt—swears that

when he went down into the basement
at 7 o'clock in the course of his regular
rounds of the big building, less than an
hour after Frank had gone, the light

that had always been kept burning
brightly there, hy Frank'^s own orders.,

had been turned down. "It was burn-
ing just as low as you could turn it,

like a lightning bug. / left it Saturday
onoming burning 'bright.''''

W^o turned that light down?
Who went into that basement, after

Newt went off dnty early Saturday
morning? Who was there during
Saturday? Whut was the motive., in
turning the light down and leaving it

•so? The motive was, to prevent Newt
from seeing that corpse.

Not a single employee of the plant
:SMd that he or she had been in the

basement that day. The light could not
turn itself down. It was not a case of
gas burning dim and low, for it burned
brightly again when turned up.

Somebody turned down the light

—

who?
Over the telephone came the inquiry

to Newt—"How is everything?" That
was an hour or so after Frank had left.

He had never done that before. He
does not even claim that he had. But
he explains it by saying he wanted to

know whether Gantt had gone ! Wiat
danger did he apprehend from Gantt?
Why was Gantt on Frank's nerves?

Newt swears that Frank did not
mention Gantt, but simply asked.
"How is everything?"

Was it not the jangling nerves and
haunting suspicions, whose question
really meant, "Have you found any-
thing? Have you seen the dead girl?

Is the murder out?''''

Minola McKnight's repudiated affi-

davit is in this terrible record, and in

those statements which she verified and
swore to in the presence of Mr. George
Gordon, her attorney, she tells of that
night of horror at Frank's home.
You will probably suspect that if

Newt Lee had not had occasion to go
to the closet in the basement that night,

Mary Phagan's body never would have
been found, for the going to the closet

took him close to the corpse, and he
saw it!

Frank did not intend for the corpse
to be found; and he meant to creep
back into the basement next day, and
bury that girl in the dirt floor!
That door worked on a slide. It did

not open, as door shutters usually do.
It was locked and it was barred,

usually. On Saturday night, Newt
looked that way, and it was closed. He
did not notice the bar, or the staple.

On Sunday morning, the door was sub-

jected to close examination. The wit-

nesses say the staple had been drawn,
and the bar taken down. But the door
was completely closed!
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Would a frightened, fleeing negro

rapist and murderer, have pried out

the staple, lifted off the bar, and then

carefully, frOTti the outside^ pushed the

door to, on the slide?

AVhy should Jim Conley break the

basement door, when he could walk out,

in front, on the first floor where he was
sitting when Mrs. White saw him?
And why should any frightened and

fleeing negro, too scared to walk out of

the unlocked doors, break that door,

and then carefully close it?

To me, it looks like a careful plan

for somebody, to go in, without being

seen. To me, it looks as if somebody,

who had the run of the plant, came
down there, pried out the staple, and
lifted the bar, without opening the door

at all. The opening was to be from
the outside, next day.

Jim Conley could have unlocked that

door easier than he could draw the

staple. He could have lifted the bai

and gone out, without violence, easier

than he could go out by a burglarious

breaking.

It wasn't a question of going out: it

was a question of coming in!

Do you say that Frank could have

left the door unlocked, with the bar

merely lifted off? The answer to that

is, had he done so, he would have had
to involve persons who had the keys!

To unlock from the inside, there must
be an unlocker, on the insde.

XoAv, if Frank had unlocked the

-door, as Avell as removed the bar, the

crime would have come home, right

then, to one of the men who toted the

keys. And a narrowing circle would
have brought that search right up to

him and Conley—for all the others

could easily account for themselves at

the exact half-hour of the cnme.
Frank's defenders claim that Conley

broke open the basement door to get

out.

What will you think of their sincerity

and honesty, when I tell you page 21

of the agreed record shows that the ne-

gro was sitting near the front door, up
stairs on the 1st floor, at about 1

o''clock, when Mrs. J. A. T\Tiite passed
him and went out at the front door?
What hindered the negro from walk-

ing out of the front door? The crime
had been committed : the corpse was in

the basement ; and there was Jim sitting

between the upper stairway and the

regular entrance door.

What need for him to squeeze

through that scuttle hole, return to the

basement, and break out the back way,
in the alley? All he or Frank had to

do, to get out, was to do what Mrs.
White did—walk out. But if some-

body wanted to come back around the

back Avay, and glide into the basement
unseen, then sj sliding door, left in such

a manner that it could be pushed back,

froTn the outside, was necessary.

Another queer thing is, that Jim
said that they left the corpse on the

floor in front of the elevator, but that

he flung the ribbon, hat and slippers

into the trash-heap near the furnace,

where Frank wanted body and all

burnt that afternoon.

Now, when the body was found, it

had been dragged from the elevator

back to near the basement door, the

ribbon, slippers and hat were at the

same place, and only two notes—a white

one and a yellow one—Avere lying near

the girl's head. Did Frank, who is a

small man, drag that body away from
the elevator? Did he gather up all her

things and lay them by her? Did he

select two of the notes, and destroy the

other two ? Did the other two notes go
with her mesh bag and pay-envelope?

It is certainly a peculiar detail that

Newt Lee, when an accident took him
to the toilet near the corpse, saw the

leg, first. In being dragged by the feet,

and on the side face, at least one of the

legs would be exposed.

Nobody but Frank and Conley are

entrapped by that providential clock-

work of the fatal half-hour.
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Conley admits himself caught, and

is being punished for it.

But it catches Frank, also ; and where

two criminals are involved in a crime

against a white girl, the white man is

the more apt to be the leader, the

jynncipal, especially in a case like this

where ten white women swore to

Frank's lewd character, and three white

witnesses swore that he had been after

this very girl.

What is a demonstration of any

man's guilt, on circumstantial evidence ?

It is that degree of moral certainty

which arises from the evident fact that,

under those circumstances, no one else

could have committed the crime.

Given a murder, and a state of facts

which excludes everybody except the

accused, and the accused is the guilty

man, necessarily.

When it is admitted that somebody

committed a crime, and the testimony

shows that nobody hut the Defendant

could have done it, human Reason is

satisfied, and so is ;.he Law.

Let your mind rest upon one other

very significant fact.

The ignorant negro who is accused

of the crime, stood, a terrific cross-

examination, lasting eight hours. The

strongest criminal lawyer of the At-

lanta bar wore himself out on Jim

Conley, without damaging Jim's evi-

dence in the least.

On the contrary, the educated white

man who is accused of the crime made

a statement covering 45 large pages of

closely printed matter, and refused to

offer to answer one single question!

His defenders paint him as a man

of intellectual gifts of which any com-

munity should be proud, as a man of

spotless morals, as a man who is un-

justly accused, foully convicted, and

eager for vindication.

Why, then, did he shrink from a

cross-examination? Why did he fear

an ordeal through which the illiterate

negro triumphantly passed?

In its tenderness to the accused, our

law will not permit an examination of

the defendant, unless he voluntarily

consents. So just was the horror of

our ancestors against that system of

torture to compel confessions' which

popery had introduced into Europe,

that they swung the pendulum back to

the other extreme, and screened the

prisoner from any question, whatever.

It is an unwise thing to give to the

guilty an immunity from answering

fair questions, for no innocent man
could ever be hurt by it. But leaving

all that out, a defendant can say—and

often does say—"Ask me any fair ques-

tion, and I will answer it." Such an

offer always makes a most favorable

impression. The jury and the public

at once begin to feel confident of the

innocence of an accused, when he shows

confidence in it himself.

Here was a college graduate, an in-

tellectually superior man, environed by

a terrible array of suspicious circum-

stances, with the whole republic look-

ing on at his trial, with a mother and

father intensely agitated, and the He-

brews of the Union, profoundly con-

cerned.

What a magnificent opportunity for

an innocent man to rise before the

court and country, panoplied in the

armor of conscious rectitude, and say

to the State of Georgia

—

"I have nothing to conceal. There

are no guilty secrets in my soul. The

more carefully you open my book of

life, the more clearly will my innocence

be seen. If I have not spoken to your

satisfaction, and given a full account

of myself, ask me about it! Put your

questions. I am not afraid. No answer

of mine can uncover a guilt that does

not exist. Therefore I do not fear your

questions: ask them!"

Wouldn't that have been the attitude

and the feeling of Nathan Strauss, for

instance, had he been iu i^'rank's place ?

What, then, is the net result of all

this evidence, direct and circumstantial ?

It is this:

Leo Frank was a lecherous hypocrite,
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a moral pervert; a model, to Rabbi

Marx, but a rake—and something more
•—to women who would allow it:

He wanted this little girl, and the

opportunity came on Saturday, April

2Gth, 1913:

She goes into his possession^ and is

found in his possession—but when she

goes in, she is alive and well, and when
found, she is cold and stiff, with the

dried blood matted in her golden hair,

and a tightly tied cord cutting into her

soft neck.

Alive and dead, she is that day in

Fmalc's possession, and he cannot trace

her out of it ! To say that the negro

shared that possession with him, may
be true, but it does not help Frank.

At most, that gives him an accom-

plice, and the negro is even now being

punished for that!

Mary goes into Frank's house alive:

she is soon afterwards found there,

dead, cold and stiff: no mortals had the

opportunity to assault and kill her,

save Frank and Conley.

Say that the negro did the deed with-

out the white man, and you cannot

travel at all : no evidence whatever sup-

ports the theory.

Say that the white man did it, and

then called for the negro's help in

getting rid of the body—and all the

evidence harmonizes, facts link into

facts, to make the iron chain of convic-

tion.

On the great Knapp case, the fame

of Daniel Webster, as a criminal law-

yer, mainly rests; and in that case of

circumstantial evidence the verdict of

"Guilty" had no stronger support than

was given to the verdict against Frank.

In the Knapp case, the prosecution

aided the State of Massachusetts by

employing the greatest lawyer and

forensic orator the American bar could

boast. In the Frank case, the youn^
Solicitor stood alone, and fought the

strongest team of attorneys that money

could enlist. Against Frank's dozens
of lawyers, detectives, press-agents, &c.,

the State of Georgia has arrayed no-

body, save her regular officers of the

Law.
In the Knapp case, Mr. Webster in-

dignantly answered the friends of the

defendant, who claimed that a popular
clamor had been excited against the

accused. He turned upon these too-

zealous champions of the prisoner and
exclaimed

—

"Much has been said, on tliis occa-

sion, of the excitement which has ex-

isted, and still exists, and of the extra-

ordinary methods taken to discover and
punish the guilty. No doubt there has
been, and is, much excitiment, and
strange indeed were it, had it been

otherwise. Should not all the peacea-

ble and well-disposed naturally feel

concerned, and naturally exert them-

selves to bring to punishment the au-

thors of this secret assassination ? Was
it a thing to be slept upon or forgotten ?

Did you, gentlemen, sleep quite as

quietly in your beds after this murder
as before? Was it not a case for re-

wards, for meetings, for committees,

for the united efforts of all the good,

to find out a band of murderous con-

spirators, of midnight ruffians, and to

bring them to the bar of justice and
law? If this be excitement, is it an
unnatural or an improper excitement?"

"It is said that even a vigilance com-

mittee was appointed. . . . They
are said to have been laboring for

months against the prisoner.

Gentlemen, what must we do in such

a case? Are people to be dumb and
still, through fear of overdoing? Is it

come to this, that an effort cannot be

made, a hand cannot be lifted, to dis-

cover the guilty, without its being said,

there is a combination to overwhelm

innocence ?

Has the community lost all moral

sense? Certainly a community that

would not be roused to action, upon an

occasion such as this was, a community
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svliich should not deny sleep to their

eyes, and slumber to their eye-lids, till

they had exhausted all the means of

discovery and detection, must, indeed,

be lost to all moral sense, and would
scarcely deserve protection from the

laws."

Thus thundered Daniel Webster, re-

buking those men of New England who
blamed the people of Massachusetts for

being aroused over the murder of an
old man.
Great God ! What would Webster

have said to those New York preachers,

and only true main object. It forfeits

the life of the murderer, that other

murders may not be committed. When
the guilty, therefore, are not punished,

the law has, so far, failed of its pur-

pose: the safety of the innocent is, so

far. endangered. Every unpunished
murder takes away something from the

security of every man's life."

In pressing the case on Leo Frank,
the State of Georgia has been free from
any hostility toward a Jew: the Stat«

has sternly prosecuted him because he

is a murderer.

ANOTHER VIEW OF THE LITTLE VICTIM

and those Northern papers, who are so

fiercely misrepresenting and denounc-

ing the people of Georgia, for being

aroused over the murder of a little

girl?

Nobly expounding the purpose of

the penal law, Mr. Webster said

—

"The criminal law is not founded on
a principle of vengeance. The hu-

manity of the law regrets every pain

it causes, every hour of restraint it

imjooses, and more deeply still, every

life it forfeits. But il uses evil as to

means of preventing greater evil. It

seeks to deter from crime, by the ex-

ample of punishment. This is its true.

In pressing the case against Leo
Frank, we have felt none of the fury
of prejudice and race hatred: we
have demanded his punishment as a
protection to other innocent Mary Pha-
gans, as well as a vindication of the

law, to strike terror into other Leo
Franks.

We respectfully ask the other States

of the Union to usurp no further juris-

diction over us than a high court of re-

view would have—and that would be

to examine the official record, as agreed
upon by the attorneys on both sides,

a.nd judge us hy that record.

If the sworn testimony supports the
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verdict of the 'jury, quit abusing us.

If that sworn testimony not only sus-

tains the evidence, but rendered any
other verdict humanly impossible, quit

talking about tlie semi-barbarians of

Georgia, accusing them of Jew baiting,

mob methods and jungle fury.

Unless Frank is entitled to immu-
nity because he is a Jew, let the light-

nings of Sinai strike him

!

A married man, he was false to his

young and buxom wife. A member of

the Synagogue, he was false to the

•creed of his church. An educated He-
brew of splendid connections, he was
Ifalse to the higher standards of his

race. A citizen of Georgia, he was
false to lier Society, a canker and a

pest. Subject to her laws, he broke
them repeatedly, witli shamieless ef-

frontery, in his place of business; and
when one Gentile girl whom he lusted

after persisted in repulsing him, he
laid in wait for her, assaulted her,

killed her, leaving her blood and her
corpse m his place of business.

O my lords and gentlemen, what
must we do to be saved from such men
as these? Every race has them. Every
State has them. Every nation has

them.

Please God, I have written an argu-

ment that will vindicate our State,

justify her courts, defy refutation,

and stand unshaken to the end of time.

That my work has been done volun-

tarily and without reward, or the re-

motest hope thereof, w'ill not lessen its

merit.

For Good of the Service

Ralph M. Thomson

Discharged for the good of the service,

Condemned as a clog to the cause;
Cashiered for incompetent labor,

Chastised, and to public applause;
As if we were gullible Children,

As if we were fools gone awry,
To munch on the fatuous figment,

To gulp down the insolent lie!

Impaled at the sniff of a puppet,
Subdued by an arrogant screech;

Hamstrung at the beck of a beadle,
Dampooned by the lips of a leech;

Regarding the ballot as holy,

Resenting the club of the clan.

The curse was in scorning to grovel.

The crime was in being a man!

Oh, what of the vaunted traditions.

And what of the squeamish who prate;

And what of the fables of Justice,

And what of the hope of the State,

When men who have proven their fitness.

When men who have braved every brink.

May fall at the hawk of a heeler.

For daring to vote as they think!



The Celebrated Case oflTKe State of Georgia

vs. Leo Frank.

(Copyrighted: All rights reserved.)

THE laws of Georgia are extra-

ordinarUy favorable to a person

accused of crime He is not only

protected in all of his rights under

the Constitution of the United States,

but he enjoys privileges far beyond

those limits. No indictment against

him will stand, if it can be shown

that a single grand juror was dis-

qualified, or failed to take an oath

on that particular case.

Therefore, our grand juries are bound

in each case by a special oath, in

addition to the usual general oath;

and they examine the witnesses in

each case, separately, behind closed

doors, having the right to call in

other witnesses besides those named
by the State's Attorney.

The law authorizes the Judge to

remove the case to another jurisdic-

tion, himself., whenever the circum-

stances satisfy him that the ends of

justice require it.

If the Judge does not act upon his

own initiative, the defendant's coun-

sel can move for a change of venue;

and support it by affidavits tending

to prove that the feeling in the com-

munity is so excited against the

accused, that it is impossible for him
to therein have a fair trial.

Our Code is also exceedingly len-

ient in the matter of continuances.

The absence of a material witness;

the illness of leading counsel, or of

the defendant; the want of sufficient

time to procure important testimony,

are among the grounds upon which

accused persons gain time; and these

motions are continually being made

for no other purpose than to allow

for the passing away of whatever local

prejudice may have been aroused

by the first rumors and exaggerations

incident to most crimes of violence.

If the defense is ready for trial,

and makes no motion to change the

venue, each juror of a legally quali-

fied panel is subjected to a rigid

examination, as to his freedom from
bias and prejudice in that particular

case; and the defendant can put each

juror, separately, on trial—the Judge
being the trior—and offer against the

juror such evidence as will prove that

he is not, in the eyes of the law, a

fair juror to try that case.

During the trial, the defendant may
act, wholly or in part, as his own
lawyer: he may interrogate the wit-

nesses, and he may address the Court.

If he does not choose to make a state-

ment in his own defense, to the jury,

he may remain silent; and the law

does not permit the State''s Attorney

to comment upon that silence.

He may write out a statement in his

own defense and read it to the jury,

or he may tell his story in the usual

way of verbal narrative: he can cover

almost any ground he pleases, and he

can talk as long as he likes; and if

he omits any fact, or explanation

which his lawyers consider material,

they are privileged to direct his atten-

tion to his failure to cover that par-

ticular point.

After the defendant has finished

bis statement—of ten minutes, or ten

hours—and has been aided by the
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vigilance of his lawyers, he can say to

the State's Attorney:

"I am willing for you to ask me
about the case."

But if the defendant does not volun-

tarily make this offer, the State is not

allowed to interrogate him at all.

jury, that it is their privilege to attach

to defendant's statement just such

weight as tiiey see fit. They may
believe it in part, and disbelieve it in

part: they may reject it entirely, or

they may accept it entirely: they may
disregard all the sworn testimony in

SOLICITOR HUGH M. DORSETt

Nor is the State's Attorney per-

mitted, in his address to the jury, to

comment upon the fact that the de-

fendant was unwilling to be cross-

examined.

In no event, can the accused be put

under oath: but our law makes it the

duty of the Judge to instruct the

the case, and rest their verdict on the

UNSWORN AND UNCORROBOR-
ATED STATEMENT OF TEE
ACCUSED!
In all the legislation mercifully

designed to protect innocence, and to

give to a man of good character the

golden opportunity to stake his word
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against the oath of unreliable wit-

nesses, there is nothing which sur-

passes the Coae of Georgia.

Time and again, I have seen a

defendant at the bar rise, like a lion

from his lair; and make a manly,

ringing, indignant statement to the

jury, and shake off from himself the

evidence of circumstances, or of per-

jury, as easily as the leonine monarch

shakes the dew drops from his mane.

Again and again, during my quar-

ter-of-a-century in the court-house, 1

have seen my clients, and other law-

yers' clients, confound the prosecu-

tion, by facing the Court and coun-

try, and saying, with the boldness of

conscious innocence

—

"Cross-examme me to your heart's

content: I have nothing to hide, and

nothing to fear!"

Such a waiver of legal screenage^

half wins the battle, the very instant

the defendant makes it.

Let me say at this point—in order

that you may enter the case properly

informed—that the attorneys of Leo

Frank were the most experienced and

most competent members of the At-

lanta bar: thoroughly familiar with

local affairs, local prejudices, local

politics, local dns and out, of all kinds:

and yet tftiey did not move to con-

tinue the case, nor did they ask for a

change of venue: consequently^ those

Atlanki lawyers were not aware of

any ^^moh spirit^'' at that time.

Afterwards, it became necessary to

manufacture things which had not ex-

isted; and the "mob spirit," which

Frank's able attorneys had been ignor-

ant of, was found somewhere in a

small phial; was released, expanded,

blown upon the four winds, until it

became greater than the Djin of the

"Thousand Nights and a Night"

Those who continue the cry of "mob
spirit," and "jungle fury," and "psy-

chic intoxication," convict Frank's

lawyers of not knowing their own
business; for if a tithe of what is

asserted, was ever capable of proof,

Kosser and Arnold grossly misman-

aged Frank's case.

Let me say further, by way of pre-

liminar}', that the defendant lis-

tened during the eight hours' cross-

examination of his alleged accom-

plice; that he listened, day after day,

and week after week, while his own
trusted employees, and former friends

gave evidence which linked around

him the chain of circumstances; that

he saw and heard the eleven white

girls who swore that his character for

lewdness was bad; that he listened to

the white girls who swore to his

lascivious conduct, in their dressing-

room, and to his taking Kebecca Car-

son into the ladies' private room, dur-

ing work hours, and remaining inside,

alone, with her for fifteen or twenty

minutes; and that he sat silent while

his negro trusty, of two years' stand-

ing, told the jury how he would peep

through the key-hole, and watch Leo

Frank commit sodomy with Daisy

Hopkins: yoi when this educated

young man, this graduate of Cornell,

at last took the stand to make a state-

ment in his own defense, he drew
around himself the screenage of our

most lenient Code, and did not dare

to say to Court and country

—

"/ am willing to answer questions!"

In all that month of tedious, des-

perate conflict, Leo Frank was the

only person involved who escaped the

ordeal of cross'-exarriination, except-

ing the eleven white girls, whom his

lawyers dared not interrogate.

The State cannot go further than

to inquire whether the defendant's

character is good or bad; but the de-

fendant can go into particulars, and

can inquire of the witness, ''•What is

it, that you know against mef
But in this case, Leo Frank did not

put the white girls to the trouble of

pulling the cover off his double life.

He and his lawyers were only too

glad to let tLe ladies go, without a
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word, after they had sworn that he

was had.

It should deeply impress you to

learn, that eleven unimpeachable and

disinterested white witnesses testified

to Frank's double life; and that what

they Imew of him was learned by them

in his place of business, where Mary

i/''^?W

LEO FRANK

Phagan came to her death; and Frank
was so certain the eleven white wit-

nesses would only make it wo^'se for

him on cross-examination, that his

lawyers were afraid to ask those

women what it was they knev)/

Is that the conduct of innocence?

On Memorial Day, 1913, (April

26th) Mary Phagan left her mother's

home, shortly before noon, after hav-

ing eaten dinner; and she was dressed

in such cheap finery as a girl of her

humble station in life could afford.

She took the street car on her way
into the city, and left it at a point

some 300 yards from the National

Pencil Factory, where she worked.

On account of their running out of

the metal tips, she had been laid off

that week, after Monday; and she was
now on her way to the office to get

her Monday wages, because Frank,

the Superintendent, had refused to

send it to ner by her friend, Helen
Ferguson, the day before, when Helen
asked for it, as she had oft«n done

previously.

When last seen, Mary was in two
blocks of the factory (to which two
or three more minutes' walk would
have carried her), but no one saw
her when she entered it.

That night, her people gave out the

alarm, for they at once suspected foul

play. Mary was not quite fourteen

years old; and had never been irregu-

lar in her habits, nor ever out of

nights; and her failure to return

home created the most distressing

anxieties and forebodings.

The police were notified, and a

search for the missing girl com-

menced. At first, it was believed that

she had overstayed herself with some
party of triends, enjoying the holi-

day; and there were vague reports of

her having been seen, first with one

companion, and then with another.

But none of these rumors proved well-

founded; and the dread apprehension

of something tragic grew stronger

and stronger in the household of the

mother, and also among the police.

During all of that evening of the

efforts to locate the missing girl, no-

body appears to have thought of call-

ing 'up the Leo Frank house, and

asking him had he seen her. True, he

would not nave been found at home:

he was spending that particular after-

noon alone in the factory, but neither
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Mary's folks, nor the police sus-

pected it.

MARY PHAGAN.

Let US now turn our attention to

Frank, and follow his movements that

Memorial Day morning. In parting

from the night watchman, Newt Lee,

who of course went otf duty early,

Frank asked him to return that after-

noon at 4 o'clock. Frank explained

that he wanted to get olf earlier than

usual.

During the morning (Saturday,

26th), several employees, and rela-

tives of employees, came to get wages
due, and got them from Frank. Two
men, Denham and White, were at

work on the fourth floor, tearing

down an old partition and putting up
a new one. Necessarily, they made a

deal of noise at this kind of work;
and they were doing it some 200 feet

back from the elevator shaft and
stair-landing. Consequently, they

were the less apt to hear a scream

two floors below, or to hear the sound

of a fall, or to hear the elevator, if

it ran.

The wife of one of these workmen
(Mrs. Arthur White) came to the fac-

tory to see him at 11 :30, and unex-

pectedly returned at 12:30. She was

not an employee, and did not know
Jim Conley.

But Mrs. White, and two white
men (Graham and Tillander) swore
that they saw the negro, sitting not
far from the foot of the stairs, on
the first floor, where Conley worked,
and where he generally sat when idle.

Frank's office and place of work
was on the floor above; and his desk
was in the inner room, while the safe

was in the outer. The time-clock was
near by, ana it was Frank who put
in, and took out, the slips of paper on
which the punches were registered^

Frank stated ,again and again, that

he left his office at about 11 o'clock

that morning, and went to his Uncle
Montag's place of business; and that,

after his return to his office, he never

left it at all, until he went home to

dinner, at about 1 o'clock p. m.
He did go to Montag's, and a white

lady, of the most unquestionable char-

acter, made affidavit to the fact that

she saw him and Jim, Conley in close

MARY PHAGAN'S MOTHER.

conversation at about 11 o''clock^ Tiear

Montag''s place.

This bit of testimony is of superla-

tive importance; and the defendant

was never able to shake it in the least.
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It proves that the Jew was talldng

in a secretive, confidential manner
with the negro, on the sidewalk, where
he thought he was unobserved—and
this negro had been his trusty for two
years! This is the same negro upon
whom such a torrent of vituperation

was afterwards poured, when it be-

came necessary to find a scapegoat

for Leo Frank.

The story, invented long after-

wards, that Conley was drunk, and
was "hiding behind some boxes in the

gloom," is exploded by two white

ladies—Mmes. White and Waits—and
by two white men—Messrs. Graham
and Tillander.

Taking those four witnesses—who
have no interest whatever in the case,

and whose characters are entirely

above attack—is it not clear to your
mind that both Frank and Conley
were on the scene of the crime that

Saturday morning, and that each man
knew the other was there?

Besides, if the stenographer did

not misunderstand Harry Scott,

Frank told him^ on the Monday fol-

lowing the crime, that Conley was in

the factory that Saturday morning.

As the whole argument pivots upon
this vital fact, let me quote Harry
Scott's exact language, from page 80

of the record:

"I knew on Monday that Mrs,

White claimed she saw a darkey at

the factory. I gave that information

to the police department. Mr. Frank
gave me the information the jirst time

I talked with him.'''' (Monday after-

noon.)

Bear in mmd, that Scott was a

Pinkerton detective, whom the Pencil

Factory had employed to ferret out

the crime; and that Scott was on the

job, as a friend to Frank.
According to medical testimony,

Mary Phagan's death occurred in less

than 45 minutes after she ate her
dinner. The experts claim that the

condition of the stomach proved this.

But, waiving all questionable evidence,
we come directly to what Leo Frank
said—said with careful consideration,

THE DETECTIVE, HARRY SCOTT. EMPLOYED
FOR LEO FRANK, AND DISMISSED WHEN HE

REFUSED TO REPORT TO HAAS FIRST.

knowing that his words were being
written down.

After the girl's body had been
found inside his place of business, and
the rigidity of the remains showed
that she must have been killed many
hours before she was discovered,

necessity compelled Frank to admit
that she had come into the building

that Saturday afternoon. There was
no way out of it : the corpse was there

:

consequently, the living girl had come.

But, when?

The State followed her from her

mother's, and onward in the street-

cars, to the corner of Marietta and
Forsyth Streets; and then traced her

within two blocks of the factory, go-

ing in that direction, and in less than
four minutes' peart walk of its door.

Watches and clocks varied, as they

always do, but the time was right

around the noon-hour.
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With the stiff, cold body in his

place of business that nighty and the

girl walking toward the door some-

where near midday, Frank was neces-

sarily compelled to fix a time, at least

approximately, for her arrival.

And he did so. He told Chief Lan-

ford that the girl came to him for

her money ''at from 12:05 to 12:10,

maybe 12:07."

His stenographer swore she punched

the time-clock, and went away at

12:02; and Frank said that the girl

who Avas killed came next.

lie did not know that another girl

had come^ at that identical time,

12:05, and had remained until 12:10;

and had searched both ojfices for Leo

Frank, without seeing him, or hear-

ing him; and without seeing or hear-

ing anything of Mary Phagan.

JtlRS. MANOR. FORMERLY, MISS MONTEEN
STOVER.

This girl, whose visit to his vacant

office was unknoion to Frank, proved

the most invincible link in the chain
of circumstantial evidence against
him.

When he afterwards learned the

time of her visit, he changed the
time of Mary's; but he only sunk
deeper into the mire, as will be shown
you later.

The sum of one dollar and twenty
cents was due Mary, and she not only

wanted that pitiful sum, but wished
to know whether there would be work
for her, the following week. There-
fore, she came and got her pay en-

velope, and asked her employer

—

"Has the new metal come?" This
was the same as asking, ''''Will there

he work for me next weekf''

Frank told his detective tlm*

answered the girl by saying, "/ don't

knowy
The room in which Mary worked,

putting the metal tips on the pencils,

was on the same floor as Frank's

office. It was some 200 feet away,
and a door cut it off from the inter-

vening space.

The toilet for men and women was
back there, beyond where Mary
worked; and the men's part of the

closet was separated from that of the

women by a thin partition.

In going to his toilet, Leo Frank
had to pass close by Mary Phagan;
where she sat at her machine; and he

had been doing this, daily, for many
months. Besides, he had made up her

time, and paid her wages to her, again

and again, weekly and for months.

There were only four girls who
worked in the metal room, and Mary
was one of the four.

Eemember this, for after the dead

body was found, Frank claimed that

he did not know whether a girl named
Mary Phagan worked for him or not.

He said he would have to consult his

books!

Now, let us return to Frank's office,

which he claims not to have left at

all, after his return from Montag's.
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He told Harry Scott, in the hearing

of John Black, that he was in his

office continuously^ from the time

Hattie Hall, the stenographer, left at

12 :02, on until Mrs. White saw him in

the outer office at 12:30.

Mark you, Frank and Conley are

both visible at 12 :30, one upstairs, and

the other down. Only about thirty

feet of space separates them.

For the present, we will not concern

ourselves with the question as to

where they were after 12:30, but will

ask. Where were they hetween 12:02

and 12:30?

Within that brief period of less

than half an hour, lies one of the

blackest crimes on record. Within
that' brief and guilty period, Mary
Phagan enters into the possession of

Leo Frank^ in his private office, ac-

cording to his oivn statement.

He does not claim that the girl had
ever spoken to the negro, or had any-

thing to do with him, or was in his

power that fatal day. He admits that

the girl safely passed the negro, as

Hattie Hall had done, as Mattie Smith
had done, and as Mrs. White had
done, that same day, and near the

same time.

He admits that the doomed girl

arrived unmolested, in his private

office, where the tAvo were alone, with

no persons nearer to them than the

negro servant down stairs, and the

two hammering and banging carpen-

ters, two floors above, and 200 feet

hack.

He admitted to Chief Lanford, and
sicore to the Coroner's jury, that Mary
Phagan went into his office, power,

and possession, at a time that he vari-

ously fixed at from 12:05 to 12:15.

Then, where was Mary, that Mon-
teen Stover could not see her, when
Monteen was in the office, from 12:05

to 12:10?

And where was Frank?
The State contends that when Mary

inquired, "Has the metal come?"

Frank answered, "I don't know," and
that he took her back to the metal

room, on the pretense of looking to

see whether the metal had come. As
they passed into the room, Frank
closed the door behind them, thus

giving them freedom from interrup-

tion, for no one was at work on that

floor on this legal holiday.

In his statement to the jury, Frank
said that, if he was not in his office

at the time Monteen Stover swore he
wasn't, he might have unconsciously

gone to the toilet.

The adoption of the theory not only

gives him an unconscious spell of -five

minutes.) but places him in the metal

room, where Mary Phagan's blood

and hair were fdtind. It not only

places him at the place where Mary
was assaulted, and then killed; but

places him there at about the time

it was done!

JOHN N. STARNES, WHO RENDERED MOST
VALUABLE AID TO SOLICITOR DORSEY

IN THE CASE

In his desperate effort to escape

the logical consequences of Monteen's
evidence, he runs into a position

equally desperate.
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To place himself where Mary was

attacked, at the time she was attacked,

is about equivalent to a confession that

he was either the principal or the

accessory in that attack.

To arrive at a correct idea of the

manner in which Mary was assaulted,

we must have recourse to the testi-

mony of Doctors Harris and Hurt.

Taken together, they show that the

girl was struck a violent blow, in

front, which did not cut the skin, but

which gave her a blue-black eye—just

such a i3low as a clenched fist usually

gives. In the back of her head was

a cut to the bone, 21/2 inches long,

"ranging from down upward."

These two blows had been inflicted

before death, and at practically the

same time. The blow on the back 0!

the head had rendered the girl uncon-

scious.

There was blood caked in her thick,

long hair; there was blood on her

drawers, and there was blood on her

private parts. There was evidence of

violence and some sort of penetration,

in the vagina, and this penetration

appeared to have been made just be-

fore her death. The uterus was that

of a virgin, and there was no evidence

of pregnancy.

Her drawers were not only bloody,

but torn, all the way up; and a strip

of her under-garment had been torn

off.

This strip had a soft Iniot tied in

it, as if it had been made a sort of

pad to catch the blood; and this pad

had soaked up the blood, and was full

of it: therefore it had been under the

cut in the head!

In the removal of the body, the

strip had slipped; and it was found

lying loosely around the girl's neck,

where it served no purpose of the

murderer, for the cord did all that

was necessary.

For the present, we will confine

ourselves to' these physical details, and

endeavor to ascertain what they

mean. •»

Unless we are ready to believe that

this pretty little white girl, dressed

for the Memorial Day, was more
filthy in her personal habits than the

commonest wench, you will reject

with disgust the contention of Gov-
ernor Slaton, that the blood, stains

came from her monthly sickness. No
bandage was on her person, and her

under-clothing was violently torn

—

and she was bloody, and there were
signs of violence inside the vagina,

do you doubt that some sort of sexual

attack was made upon her?

Be that as it may, the wound which
ripped her scalp to the bone bled

somewhere; and the question is,^

AVEERE?
To cut the inquir}' as short as pos-

sible, I will say that the evidence in

the record fails to show any blood,

anywhere, except on the first floor, at

the ladies' dressing room, not far from

the metal room door.

The immense importance of the

blood-marks begins to be obvious^

when liie record discloses the fact that

the metal room and first floor had
been swept up on Friday evening,

preparatory to the legal holiday

which would close it until next week.

The men who cleaned up the place

swore positively that there were no

unusual marks on the floor Friday.

Mell Stanford swept the floor, every

foot of it, and was emphatic in his

testimony. Equally emphatic was K.

P. Barrett.

Both these men were satisfied em-

ployees of Leo Frank; and when-

these two white men, early Monday
morning, made the outcry about the

blood on the floor, neither one of them

had the slightest idea that their

discovery would hurt Leo Frank!
They found the blood, and they

immediately made the outcry, but they

did not know whom it would impli-
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<;ate in the crime. Please remember

this.

At that time, Leo Frank had not

been suspected, much less accused; and

at that time, he was endeavoring to

fasten suspicion and evidence of guilt

upon Newt Lee, the night watch.

Following the rules of law, we are

forced to accept the positive evidence,

that the spots were not on the floor

Friday, but were there Monday morn-
ing.

Then we come face to face with the

question

—

How came the spots on the floor?

Say that they were made by paint:

who spilled the painty on that floor,

after Friday^ and before Monday?
Produce the man, the woman, the

boy, or the girl

!

The defense could never do it, and

cannot now do it.

Say that the spots on the floor were

made by blood: loho spilled the bloody

on that floor, after Friday, and before

Monday?
Produce the person who did it!

The defense was unable, and is now
unable, to produce such a person.

DETECTIVE JOHN BLACK AND NEWT LEE.

These tell-tale marks on the floor

•caused excitement among the officers

and employees of the factory, and
every one could see that an elt'ort had
been made to hide the blood by smear-

ing a white substance over it—hasko-

line.

Of course, the attempt to conceal

the spots had made "them the more
conspicuous; and there was absolutely

no conflict in the testimony as to some
sort of spots on the floor, and some
sort of Avb?te stufl' pmeared over them.

To say that the accusing spots were
on the floor Friday, is to impute will-

ful perjury to two of Frank's friendly

and intelligent workmen—a perjury

without motive, and against their own
interest.

To say that the accusing spots were
not on the floor, Friday, imputes per-

jury to no one, for no one swore that

the spots were there, Friday.

FRANK'S MACHINIST, R. P. BARRETT.

What, then, is the conclusion of

inexorable logic? Nobody aid it,

excepting the one man who does not

dare to acknowledge that HE did it!

That he may have had an accom-
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plice in it, does not alter the state of

the case.

Reasoning by the process of exclu-

sion, we will say, quite naturally, that

if any person, innocent of crime^ had

spilled that blood (or paint), and had

hurriedly tried to cover it with white

powder, the innocent person would

have come forward, when the hue

and cry went forth, and would have

said

—

"I'm the person who made those

marks on the floor, after Friday and

before Monday: and I will tell you

how I came to do it."

More especially would an innocent

person have done that^ had he seen

another innocent person endangered

by the failure to account for those

damning spots.

But when no person comes forward

to innocently explain what is the

inference?

It is, that those spots show some-

body's guilt : and the somebody wJio

is responsible for the spots, is afraid

to say, "I made them!"
Where does that process of reason-

ing take us? It takes us to Leo
Frank, as the only person in the

building who dares not come forward

and tell how he came to make them,

and ichy he tried to hide them.

IT WAS MARY PHAGAN'S HAIR.

Let us go a step farther, and see

what was found in the metal room,

early Mondav mornmg.
Frank's machinist, R. P. Barrett,

had been at work in the metal room
until quitting time Friday evening,

and he left a piece of work in his

machine. Immediately upon his re-

turn, Monday morning, he noticed on

the handle of his bench lathe, some
strands of hair, swinging down. He
at once called attention to it; and the

strands of hair were seen and ex-

amined by numerous employees of the

factorv.

The hair was almost immediately
recognized as Mary Phagan's, for the

only other girl there who had hair

like Mary's was Magnolia Kennedy;
and Miss Magnolia liad not been in

the factory, at all, after Barrett (juit

work Friday.

One of the girls went running ta

the others, exclaiming, 'TAey have\

found Mary Phagan's hair on Bar-

retts machine P''

All this was on Monday morning,,

when the general agitation had taken

no definite direction; and when the

men and girls in the factory were
expressing themselves spontaneously,

and truthfulh', without a thought of

saying a word that would implicate

the Superintendent, Leo Frank.

Please hear this in mind!
There was no "frame up'' against

anybody^ in the outcrj' about the

blood and the hair, for at that time

nobody had any idea of who was
guilty.

As the hair was not on the handle

of Barrett's machine, when he took

his hands olt it, Friday evening: and
as the hair icas on tne machine, Mon-
day; and as the hair showed for itself

that it was a woman's; and as the

girls who knew Mary said it was
her's, we must believe it was her's,

unless some girl, or woman, came for-

ward and said, '"''The hair is mine,

and I will tell you how it came to

be on the handle of Barrett's machine

after Friday."

There were 100 girls and women at

work in the place, and only one of

them had hair like Mary's: and this

one girl (Magnolia Kennedy "> si id on

oath that the hair was not Iiers, but

seemed to be Mary's. What follows?

Unless some outside woman's hair

got on Barrett's machine, after Fri-

day, we Tnust conclude that the hair

was Mary's.

It is impossible to suppose an out-

side woman, for if one had come to

meet Frank, or any one else, after
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Friday, either l^rank, or the woman,

or hoth, would have given that ex-

planation, and ended this part of the

case.

MISS GRACE HICKS. WHO IDENTIFIED MARY'S
BODY. "I KNEW HER BY HER HAIR."

Isn't that perfectly clear to your

mind? Let me state it, again:

If Frank had an assignation with

some outside woman, and took her to

the metal room, where her hair might
have dropped on the handle of the

machine, is it conceivable that he

would fail to thus account for the

hair?

If any other man had such an ap-

pointment with some outside woman
whose hair might have got on the

machine, would not that man have

come forward to save Frank?
Why did no such man, and no such

outside woman pretend to have been

the cause of the hair on the ma-
chine?

Because no such man, and no such

woman existed.

Then we reason ourselves right

back into the factory, and we say,

that the long: strands of woman's

hair, of that peculiar golden-brown
color, came from the head of one of

the 100 girls who worked there; and
that, as not one of these girls can be

induced to even pretend that the hair

was hers, we are under the logical

compulsion of saying it was Mary's.
Those who would have claimed it,

had it been theirs, will not: therefore,

the hair didn't belong to any of them.
But it had belonged to somehody,
and as that somebody cannot be found
by the defendant, or by the defend-
ant's lawyers, or by the defendant's

detectives, or by the defendant's par-

tisans, we are driven to the conclusion

that this undiscoverable somebody
was Mary Phagan.
Did the defense attach importance

to this finding of the woman's hair

on the handle of the machine? Did
the able lawyers of Frank endeavor
to account for the accusing strands?

They did. They struggled to get

away from the hair, as hard as they
struggled to escape from the blood.

What explanation did they offer?

They proved that the girls some-
times combed and did up their hair,

not far from Barrett's machine; and
they argued that some woman, doing
this, might have flung her combed-
out hair, in such a manner that it fell

on the crank handle!

Very well, froduce the looman with
that kind of hair! The defense is

unable to do so.

But the State goes farther, and says

to the defendant. Produce ANY
GIRL, OR WOMAN, who was in

that room after Barrett left his ma-
chine Friday!
Again, the defense is unable to

do it.

What follows? Of logical neces-

sity, it follows, that as some woman,
or girl, was in that room, after Bar-
rett stopped his machine on Friday,

and as no living girl or woman can
he produced, the girl who was there

is not alive!
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Even the sapient Burns realized to "I am prepared to prove that the lock

the full the enormous weight of those °^ ^^^^ ^^« P^^^^'^ °^ the handle of a lathe

.,,, , -° ,1- by a newspaper reporter for the sake of a
SIX or eight strands of woman's hair, sensational 'scoop.'"

In March, 1915, Burns and Lehon
were '•''prepared to prove that the lock

of hair was placed on the handle of

a lathe by a newspaper reporter."

Prepared to prove it, you see!

The Burns Detective Agency had
abandoned in despair the efforts to

find a girl who would say that she

went to that metal room after Fri-

day evening, and that the hair might

be hers.

To find such a girl, is doubly diffi-

cult, for the reason that Mary's hair

and the hair on the machine matched;

and that no other girl in the factory

had that kind of hair; and it was
not only necessary to discover an out-

side girl with hair like Mary's, but

a girl who could swear to an arrant

falsehood without being caught in it.

Consequently, the noble Detective

Agency abandoned that line, discour-

aged by the exposure of the bungling

briberies of Epps, Duffy, Ragsdale,

and Barber.

They leave the girls, and discover

"a newspaper reporter!"

Well, where is he? Who is he?

Why hasn't he been produced? The
Prison Commission would have been

glad to hear the gentleman.

The Governor would have been

overjoyed to welcome such an ally.

The crime was not known to any
reporter until Sunday morning: the

hair was found Monday morning at

6:30 o'clock: how did the reporter get

into the room Sunday, without being

seen? How did the reporter get

the hair? Where did he get it? Did
he pull it out of Mary's head in the

basement, or did he go to the morgue
after it?

Tell us who is the reporter that

remained silent during all that pro-

longed trial of Leo Frank, during all

the months of effort to find new testi-

THE NOBLE BURNS.

swaying upon the handle of Barrett's

machine, for Burns' man, Lehon,
gave out a statement, which was thus

reported

:

Burns' Detective Declares Hair Was Placed
by Reporter to Get "Scoop" in

Frank Case.

Special to The Washington Herald.
San Francisco, March 20.—Evidence

which it is claimed will clear Leo M. Frank
of the charge of murdering little Mary
Phagan, in Atlanta, on April 26, 1913, is

in possession of Dan Lehon, a New Orleans
detective, now in San Francisco.

"One of the most startling bits in the
chain of evidence which the State wove
about Frank was a strand of hair found
on the second floor of the factory," said
Lehon today.
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mony, during the year and more that

the case has travelled from Judge to

Judge, from court to court, from
courts to Prison Commission, and
from Prison Commission to the Gov-
ernor !

^'Vvxvx-.*^'''*'

THE VIRTUOUS DAN LEHON.

Hard-hearted newspaper reporter

!

who must necessarily have been an

Atlanta man, working for one of the

Atlanta papers, which have heen

so partial to Leo Frank!
Apparently, Burns and Lehon give

the public no credit for common sense.

These brazen rascals have given out

statement after statement, audacious

falsehoods, told with confidence and re-

peated with brazen insistence, hecause

the State of Georgia had no press

agency to defend her

—

and her Gov-
ernor was a partner of the law firm

defending Leo Frank!
The Governor himself was mightily

worried about the hair; and when he

signed the 15,000-word mass of in-

coherences which sought to justify his

commutation of the sentence, he gave

the public to understand that Dr. H.

F. Harris had virtually destroyed the

value of that part of the State's case.

What is the truth of the matter, as

shown by the official record?

The grave of Mary Phagan was
opened, and some of the hair taken
from the head, ten days after her
death. At the morgue, the under-
taker, Gheesling, had cleansed the

girl's head and hair, by washing it

out thoroughly with tar soap.

Now, the Doctor was asked to make
a microscopic examination of the two
tresses of hair; the one found on the
handle of the machine; the other,

taken from the exhumed body.
This is what Dr. Harris said

—

"Affiant further says that the two
specimens (of hair) were so much
alike that it was impossible for him
to form any definite and absolute
opinion as to whether they were from
the head of the same person or not."

Were there ever two drops of water,
grains of sand, leaves of trees, scales

of fish, or strands of hair, exactly
alike?

Are any two hairs of your head
precise duplicates? Is there not a
slight variation of texture and size

in every two hairs out of every per-

son's head?

When Dr. Harris' microscope failed

to reveal any decided difference in

color, size, and texture, between the
tress that came from the grave and
the one which came from Barrett's

machine, you may feel as certain as

you need feel about anything, that
the two tresses were once a portion
of the same head of hair.

That which we do not see, and do
not learn from others who do see, we
must learn from proved facts which
convince us to a moral certainty; and
when the microscope failed to show
any difference that a conscientious

examiner could swear to, the jury was
bound to believe the hair was the
same, unless the defendant could offer

some evidence going to show that



196 WATSON'S MAGAZINE.

some other person dropped the hair

on the machine.

Until the defendant made some

effort to identify some other person

whose hair got on the machine in

some way, after Friday, it would not

have helped the defense, even if Dr.

Harris had sworn that the hair on

the machine was not the same as that

taken from Mary Phagan's grave; for

the simple reason that the State, and

the jury, would immediately have

said

—

"As you claim that it is difercn

hah, there must be another girl wliom

jou had in j'our employ, and lohom

you can 'produce. PROD TJ G E
uEur

So, it must be apparent to you that,

ij Dr. Harris had testified as Gov-

ernor Slaton insinuated, the defendant

would not have been relieved, unless

he could produce the other girl. And
if he could have produced the other

girl, he did not need the evidence of

Dr. Harris.

AYhich ever way you take it, you

find yourself going round to the same

conclusion: the hair was Mary's, be-

cause they could not prove it to be

anybody else's: and it had to be some-

hody'^s.

Produce the girl who went back

there and combed her hair. It canH

he done. Produce the woman who
went back there, and did up her hair.

It can't he done. Produce the girl, or

the woman, who will swear that the

hair might have been hers. IT
CAN'T BE DONE!
They could monkey with the cook,

and squelch her: they could monkey
with the keeper of the lewd house,

and run her out of Atlanta: they

could buy poor old Ragsdale, and E.

L. Barber; but they were utterly

unable to prevail upon any woman to

testify that the hair on Barrett's

machine might have been hers.

For Heaven's sake, use j^our com-

mon sense! ^Yhat is the ONLY Governor Slaton admits tliat if it

solution as to the hair., WHEN NO-
BODY will claim itf

The only possible solution is, that

the girl who could have claimed it,

IS DEAD! Dead in her tender

youth, in the flower of her maiden-

hood, in her glory of virginal purity

—dead, as your little girl may be,

some day, if other Leo Franks escape

just punishment, through the machi-

nations of Big Mo)i( )/.

Tell us this—O tell us this!—li

that hair on Barrett's machine came
from the tresses of some girl who was
still alive at the trial, why in God's

name^ shouldn't she have come for-

ward, and claimed it?

There was nothing to disgrace her.

She could have said she went to the

toilet. She could have said she stood

there, by the machine, doing up her

hair. She could have said that she

idly let a few strands fall, and that

they might have caught on the handle

of the machine.

There was no disgrace to fear

—

why
didn't the girl come forward?
There is but one answer:

The girl was dead!
If, in Mary's uplifted, horrified,

frantically opposing little hands, there

had been found some hair, from the

head of the simian Jew who was
assaulting and killing her, the evi-

dence wouldn't be a bit stronger.

Governor John M. Slaton had be-

fore him the undisputed testimony of

the only possible girl, excepting Mary,
whose hair it could have been; and

this girl swore it was not hers, but

seemed to be Mary's.

When the only other possible girl

swears herself out of it, what does

inexorable logic say? Exclude every

other person, and you have Mary
Phagan.

It was Marj'^ who was there, Satur-

day; and she asked Frank a question

which suggested a visit to the metal

room!

.
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was her hair, it furnished (he highest

and best evidence of Frank's guilt.

Does it? Then Frank's guilt is

demonstrated.

LEO FRANK.

Again I repeat, we lose Frank and
Mary at 12:05; and we locate Frank
again at 12:30, standiilg in his outer

office, at the open safe, and starting

nervously when spoken to by Mrs.

White; but we do not find Mary any
more, until 3 o'clock that night, when
the night-watch. Newt Lee, in mak-
ing his rounds, has a call of nature,

while down in the basement, goes to

the toilet there, and the' light of his

lantern happens to fall upon the

white legs of the dead girl—her dress

havmg been partially thrown back as

she was dragged by the heels, over

the dirt floor.

Newt Lee rushed up the ladder,

and through the trap door, got the

police headquarters over the telephone,

and called for the officers to come at

once: he told them he had found a

dead white woman in the basement.

They rushed to the place, went to

the basement, and examined the body.

It was lying on the side face, almost

on the face; and the face itself was

dark with congested blood, and with

the dirt over which she had been

dragged. Her tongue was out of her

mouth, and around her neck was a*

thick twine cord, tied so tight, that it

had sunk into the flesh.

Her arms were in a fixed position,

folded across the breast. She was
rigid all over. Near the body, lay

her hat, shoes, and handkerchief.

Near, also, were two notes, which pur-

ported to have been written by the

girl to her mother, describing how
the tall, slim night watch had seized

her as she went to the closet, and had

thrown her down the scuttle-hole into

the basement.

Thus, the notes directed suspicion

to Newt Lee.

We may dismiss at once the idea

that Newt Lee could have been guilty,

but we must not forget that the notes

accused him, positively and circum-

stantially. If we afterwards learn

from the record that Frank caused

Lee's arrest for the crime, and fabri-

cated a time slip for Saturday night,

which gave Lee a period of the night

unaccounted for on the clock—a suf-

ficient perior for him to have gone

home and changed his shirt; and if

we further find that Frank hinted,,

and insinuated against Lee, until they

searched his premises and found a

bloody shirt in Lee's clothes barrel

—

if we shall hereafter learn all this

from the record, we will he getting
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close to the man whose active hra'm
dictated those notes.

LEO FRANK, IDEALIZED IN THE HEARST-
SELIG MOVING PICTURES.

When the officers had completed
their hasty examination of the body,
they went to the telephone, and rang
up Leo Frank's house.

Newt Lee had already tried for sev-

eral minutes to get a response from
somebody at Frank's house, but had
failed. The officers tried, long and
earnestly, and they also failed. No
one would answer.

WHAT WAS PRANK'S TRUE CHAR-
ACTER?

Before we go further, let us see

what the official record proves, as to

the moral character of Leo Frank, of

whom the veracious Burns recently
said

—

"And it made them angry when I offered
$5,000 reward for the slightest evidence
showing immorality in all of Frank's life.

That offer still stands, and has never been
sought—and still the stories continu,e in
Georgia that he is a pervert.

"I have never known a cleaner, more
honest, more God-fearing man than Leo
Frank. Only his abiding faith in his God
has, according to my belief, kept him up
through the ordeal he has experienced.

And that faith will be rewarded, for he
will be proven innocent."

Burns' money, the "offered $5,000,"

is somewhat more unattainable than
the bag of gold that you can get, if

you will hasten to the end of the

rainbow If anj'one was ever silly

enough to become "angry," when
Burns "offered $5,000 reward," 1

never heard of it. To try to get blood
out of a turnip, would be a sensible

experiment, compared to an effort to

get that money out of Burns.

What says the record—leaving Jim
Conley out of it—concerning Frank,
than whom the garrulous Burns has

never known "a cleaner, more honest,

more God-fearing man?"
The author of the Governor Slaton

document says that 100 witnesses

swore to Frank's good character, and
less than a dozen testified he was
lewd. The world is therefore ex-

pected to believe, that the overwhelm-
ing weight of the evidence was in

favor of the chastity of the accused.

Out of the hundreds of people who
are acquainted with young men about

town, how many really know their

secret sins? How many could swear

to anything disgraceful?

When 100 Jews go upon the stand,

and give Frank a good character,

they no doubt are perfectly honest

about it; but when ten white Gentile

girls swear they had worked at the

pencil factory for years, and that Leo
Frank's character for lasciviousness

was bad, the jury must not disregard

this positive testimony, and rely upon
the 100 negative witnesses.

And when the cowering defendant

dares not put a single question to

those positive witnesses, their evidence

against his character, hased on per-

sonal knowledge^ must be accepted.

Miss Myrtice Cato and Miss Mag-
gie Griffin testified to Franlc's hahit

of taking Rebecca Carson into the

ladies'' dressing room., on the fourth

floor, during work hours, and the

attorneys of Leo Frank did not dare
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to ask those white girls a single ques-

tion.

C. B. Dalton admitted, under oath,

that he and Frank had frequently

had a woman of the town in the fac-

tory, and that ho had even gone to the

basement with her.

The woman from the outside, with

whom Frank was alleged to have in-

dulged in unnatural vice, was Daisy

ANOTHER VIEW OF FRANK.
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Hopkins, and the defense had to put
her up.

Daisy denied it, of course; and on
cross-examination she gave the fol-

lowing remarkable testimony:

"I have never been in jail. Mr. W.
M. Smith got me out of jail.

"I don't know what they charged
me with. They accused me of forni-

cation."

However, when Jim Conley peeped
through the key hole, and saw the

sight which he swore he saw, you
might read page 55 of the record, not

for evidence of the guilt of Frank,
but to obtain an idea of a pervert.

If you will read the Old Testament
account of the destruction of Sodom
and Gomorrah, you will have a clear

vision of the darker slime of this case.

I do not care to quote the evidence,

but merely cite you to the page. (You
can find it also on page 285, 141st

Georgia Eeports)

So much has been said about

Frank's chaste character—a pet of the

Eabbi, a favorite of Cornell, a model
husband, &c.—that I will give you a

little glimp)se into Nellie Wood's evi-

dence:

"Question: Do you know M:
Frank?
Ansuer: I worked for him two

days.

Q. Did 3^ou observe his conduct
toward the girls?

A. His conduct didn't suit me very
much.

Q. You say he put his hands on
jou; is that all he ever did?

A. Well, he asked me, one evening
—I went into his oflfice, and he go;^

too familiar and too close.

Q. Did he put his hands on you?
A. Well, I did not let him com-

plete what he started. I resisted him.

Q. Did he put his hands on your
breast ?

A. No, but he tried to..

Q. Well, did he make any at-

tempts on your lower limbs?

A. Yes, sir..

Q. And on your dress?

A. Yes, sir."

Miss Nellie Wood quit, immediately,

and never went back, except to get

her pay for the two days.

Miss Nellie Pettis gave testimony

equally damaging. She told how
Frank had leered at her, winked at

her, showed her money, and finally

asked, "What about it?"

Miss Nellie's language was unusu-

ally vigorous: she told Frank to go

to hell!

In a Good Shepherd house, in Cin-

cinnati, there is a poor girl who
worked for Frank, and he ruined her.

In a Florence Crittenden Home, in

Georgia, are two poor girls who
worked for Frank, and he ruined

them.

How many other girls he ruined, he

knows; but all that we know, is that

the State produced eleven more that

he wanted to ruin.

Mary Phagan was another.

(In the absence of the jury from the

court-room, Judge Roan allowed the

girl from Cincinnati to tell how
Frank had debauched her; and how
unnatural his manner of satisfying

his passion was; and she spoke of a

scar on her inner thigh made by his

teeth.

To understand what sort of creature

the evidence in the case proved Frank
to be, you would have to read some
treatise on moral degeneracy—such a

book, for example, as Psychopathia
Sexualis.)

HAD HE LUSTED AFTER MARY?

Had this sensual beast lusted after

Mary Phagan? Did he make indecent

overtures ?

The record shows that he claimed

not to know her at all.

The point is immensely important.

If he had known her, and shown an
inclination for her, it is a damning
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circumstance, if he positively said-

after she Tvas found dead in his place

—that he did not know such a girl,

^nd would have to consult his hooks.

, DID HE know' her?

Miss Kuth Robinson testified:^

"I have seen Leo Frank talldng to

Mar}^ Phagan.

"I heard him speak to her. He
called her Mary."

Miss Dewey Howell testified:

"I have seen Mr. Frank talk to

Mary Phagan two or three times a

day, in the metal department. / have

seen him hold his hand on her shoul-

der. Be called her Mary?''

W. E. Turner testified:

"I saw Leo Frank talking to Mary
Phagan, on the second floor, about

the middle of March. It was just

before dinner. There was nobody else

in the room. He stopped to talk to

her. She said she had to go to work.

He told her he ivas the Superinten-

dent of that factory, and that he

wanted to talk to her.

''She hacked off, and he went on

towards her, talking to her."

Gantt also testified that Frank

knew jSIary, by name.

Had YOU been a juror in this case,

could you have disregarded all that

evidence as to Frank's personal

knowledge of the girl?

Believing the witnesses, and believ-

ing that he wanted to make her a

fresher Rebecca Carson

—

whom would

you have suspected of the murder,

when Frank brazened it out, all the

way through, that he did not know
that such a girl worked for him?

Now, at this point, there comes an

incident so natural in its occurrence,

and so peculiar in its suppression,

that I give it as a part of what hap-

pened.

Frank had a cook named Minola

McKnight, and her husband worked

for the Beck-Gregg Hardware Com-

pany. This man, Albert McKnight,

told three white men, who were em-

ployed at the same place, of some

queer things which his wife, the cook,

had told him, concerning what she

had overheard in the Frank home. In

consequence of what the cook's hus-

band reported to the three white men,

Minola was taken into custody, in the

hope of getting valuable testimony

out of her. She was detained at the

station house two days, during which

somebody employed a lawyer to rep-

resent her. The upshot of the matter

was, that Minola, in the presence of

her attorney, made a statement which

was reduced to writing, and sworn

to by her, before a Magistrate of Ful-

ton County.

LEO FRANK'S WIFE.

In his commutation of the sentence

of Frank, the then Governor, Slaton,

laid much stress upon Minola Mc-

Knight's affidavit, alleging, in effect,

that it was entirely false.

You have a right to view that state-

ment of the cook, in the light of all

the surrounding circumstances, and to

say how much moral weight you will

give to it—for you are not bound by

technical rules, and you are entitled

now, to know all that occurred.
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In order that you may have a clear

idea of this episode, it is necessary
to remind you that Frank had hur-
ried Mrs. 'White out of the factory,

at about 1 o'clock; that Conley had
gone on to his home; that Frank went
out to his, and that Albert McKnight
swears Frank remained only a few
minutes, ate nothing, and hurried back
toward the city. Albert told this to

the white men he worked with, at the

Beck, Gregg Hardware Company,
before his wife was arrested. It

seems that this information, given by
the cook's husband, was one of the

first independent pointers to Frank
as tJie guilty man—independent of the

circumstances immediately surround-
ing the crime.

At the station house, the cook re-

fused to talk to the detectives; but
after these black sheep had been igno-

miniously sent away, the colored lady
dried her eyes, composed her rumpled
feelings, and spoke as follows:

"Mr. Frank came for dinner, about
half-past one, but Mr, Frank did not

eat any dinner, and left in about ten

minutes after he got there.

"Mr. Frank came back to the house
at seven o'clock that night.

"Sunday morning I got there about
eight o'clock, and there was an auto-

mobile standing in front of the house,

but I didn't pay any attention to it.

(It was the automobile of the two
police officers.)

"I called them down to breakfast

about half-past eight, and I found
out that Mr. Frank was gone. (The
policemen had carried him with them
m their car.)

"I did not hear them say anything
at the breakfast table. After dinner,

1 understood them to say that Mr.
Frank and a girl were caught at the

office Saturday. I don't know who
said it. Mrs. Frank, Mr. Selig, Mrs.
Selig, and Mr. Frank were standing
there talking, after dinner, when they

said it. / understood them to say it

was a Jew girl.''''

This very remarkable statement of
the cook would seem to prove two
things; first, that she was not making
up a tale, nor repeating one that her
husband had made; and, second, that

the family of Frank were bandying,
to and fro, the words "Jew" and
"Gentile," and the cook caught the

word Jew, and got it wrong.
They were no doubt conversing in

low tones, and the colored lady was
probably listening at the key hole.

The mysterious automobile, the un-

usual absence of Frank from Sunday
breakfast, and the general stir in the

family, could not have failed to

arouse the colored lady's curiositj':

hence her key-hole endeavors to

acquire knowledge.

The cook proceeds: "On Tuesday,
Mr. Frank says to me, 'It's mighty
bad, Minola ; I might have to go to

jail about this girl, and I don't Imow
a thing about it.'

"

If the cook's husband invented this,

he is a most extraordinary inventor.

The cook proceeds: "Sunday, Miss

Lucile (Mrs. Frank) said to Mrs.

Selig (her mother), that Mr. Frank
didn't rest so good Saturday night;

she said he was drunk, and wouldn't

let her sleep with him She slept

on a rug on the floor."

"Miss Lucile said Sunday that Mr.
Frank told her Saturday night that

he was in trouble, and that he didn't

know the reason why he would mur-
der, and told his wife to get his pis-

tol, and let him kill hmiself."

Drinking so heavily that his young
wife had to lie on the floor; tormented

by the recollection of what he had
done; unable, now, to comprehend
how he could have done that cruel,

cruel murder: calling for his pistol,

that he might end it all

!

Such is the scene which rises before

you, as you reflect upon the cook's

story.
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Invented? If so, whoever invented

it should go to writing novels. A
cook with that talent is hiding a

big light under a small bushel.

The cook proceeds: "I haven't

heard Miss Lucile say whether she

believed it or not.

"/ donH know why Mrs. Frank
didn't come to see her hushand (when
he was in jail), hut it was a pretty

long time hefore she would come to

see him, MAYBE TWO WEEKS:'
(It was nearer three weeks, before

Mrs. Frank would go to see her hus-

Answer: "Yes, sir."

The cook signed her name, and took

the oath, before G. C. February,

Notary Public. The date was June

3rd, 1913.

I venture to say that every white

man who has an intimate knowledge

of the characteristics of negroes, will

agree, that a negro cook, who had no

grudge against her white folks, could

never have been induced to fabricate

such a tale as Minola told. It is too

circumstantial. It gives away inside

facts which no human brain could

FRANK'S HOME LIFE IDEALIZED IN THE HEARST-SELIG "MOVIES."

band— a circumstance to which
Frank's partisans never refer.)

In her affidavit, the cook swears

that the Seligs paid her money, and
told her to be careful how she talked.

Before the notary took her oath to

her statements, she was asked:

"Has Mr. Pickett, or Mr. Craven,

or Mr. Campbell, or mj'^self, influ-

enced j^ou in any way, or threatened

you in any way, to make this state-

ment?"
Answer: "No, sir."

Question: "You make it of your
own free will, and in the presence of

your attorney, Mr. Gordon?"

have invented. It hears the ear-marks

of truth.

What negro would ever have drawn
that gruesome night picture of the

young wife, lying on a rug, on the

floor; and the young husband, drink-

ing himself into stupefaction, wildly

wondering how he came to murder;
and calling for his pistol, that he

might kill himself?

The appearance which this dis-

traught young man presented to the

police officers.) next morning., was in

exact accordance with his intoxicated

condition the night hefore!

The evidence of the two white men,



204 WATSON'S MAGAZINE.

Jolin Black and Woods Rogers, tallies

precisely with that of the cook; and
they had given their description of

Frank's appearance and movements,

Sunday morning, hefore they knew
what the cook would swear^ about his

heavy drinking Saturday night.

WOODS ROGERS, ONE OF THE STATE'S:PRIN-
CIPAL WITNESSES.

It is one of the most striking cor-

roborations in the case. The cook
told the truth in the affidavit; and if

she lives until Frank dies, she will

tell more.

When the two officers went out to

Frank's house, they had no suspicion

of his guilt. They wanted him to see

the girl, and if possible give them
some clue to work on. They found
him in the nervous, jerky, rickety

state, natural to a man who had been

drinking the night before. He asked
whether anything had happened at

the factor}', and was told that Mary
Phagan had been found dead in the

basement.

He makes no outcry of amazement
and horror! He expresses no surprise

at the crime. He utters no word of

pity for the victim. He offers no in-

formation to the policemen. He sug-

gests no possible theory as to the

criminal. He closes like a clam,

shakes like an aspen, begs for a cup

of coffee, refuses to look on the pallid

face of the murdered girl, and denies

that he knew Mary Phagan!
To this climax of the case, we come

by a strong, continuous chain of evi-

dence, furnished by white witnesses,

.not one of whom was impeached, or

contradicted, and not one of whom
was unfriendly to Fr<yik, if we ex-

clude the girls he had tried to ruin.

MARY PHAGAN'S CHUM, MISS HELEN FERGUR-
SON, WHO ASKED FRANK ON FRIDAY, FOR
MARY'S $1.20. AND WAS REFUSED BY HIM.

Consequently, it is impossible that

you do not recognize in Leo Frank
the man who had the lewd character

needed in the criminal; the man who
had shown a desire to possess this

little girl; the man whose refusal to

send her money, made it necessary for

her to come for it; the man who had
her in his possession and power at

the time she disappears; the man

—

and the only, man—whom she asked

about the metal room, and therefore
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the man

—

and the only man—who
could have led her back there and
shut the door, without arousing her
suspicion.

It is impossible for you not to rec-

ognize in Frank the only man who
had the opportunity which the metal

room afforded, when she asked the

fatal question—^"Has the new metal
come?"
After he had accompanied the offi-

cers to the morgue, and to the fac-

tory, he returned home, and was there

the remainder of the day, so far as

the State knows. On Monday, he was
at the factory, where of course excite-

ment prevailed.

All that day, while Barrett and
others were talking of the blood-

spots, and the hair, and were casting

about for clues, nobody mentioned
Frank as the possible criminal. No-
body seems to have realized that he

and Conley were the only two men
who could have killed the girl. It is

highlj^ probable that none of them
knew that the doctors, and the under-

taker would testify that the body had
been lifeless for so long a time^ as to

carry the murder hack to near the

noon hour Saturday.

These definite conclusions often

ripen slowly—so slowly that we some-

times wonder at our own blindness in

not seeing them, at first glance.

When the scientific evidence fixed

the time of the crime somewhere near

the noon hour, and the girl's stomach
corroborated the doctors, the area of

the investigation narrowed at once, to

the exact time that Monteen Stover

was in Frank^s vacant office.

Taking the time when Mary was
seen going toward the building, and

only two blocks distant, we are driven

to the conclusion that she had entered

and disappeared hefore Monteen ar-

rived : and that ^he was in the metal

room, unconscious, while Monteen was
waiting in the vacant office.

Frank's partisans have to contend

that Mary left him at that time.,

and went down stairs, on her way
out.

// so, xohy was she not seen hy Mon-
teen Stover?

But they contend that Conley seized

her as she reached the foot of the

stairs.

Then, how came the hlood., and the

hair., up stairs, and not down stairs

f

And would not Monteen, entering,

MISS MONTEEN STOVER.

have caught Conley in the act?

She would have caught Frank in

the act, had it not heen for the closed

door of the metal room!

THE BLOOD ON THE FLOOR.

Pardon me for dwelling more at

length on the blood, up stairs, on
Frank's floor. What is the official

record as to this blood?

J. N. Starnes testified

:

"I saw splotches that looked like

blood ... some of which I chipped

up. I should judge the area around

those splotches was a foot and a half.

It looked like a white substance had
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been swept over it. There is a lot of

that white substance in the metal de-

partments
R. P. Barrett swore positively, "/^

was hloodr The spots were not there

Friday: the largest was "four or five

inches in diameter, with little spots

behind these from the rear, six or

eight in number."

Mrs. George W. Jefferson was an-

other worker in the metal depart-

ment. She swore:

"We saw the blood, Monday. It

was about as hig as a fan^ and some-

thing white was over it.

"I didn't see the blood Friday. It

was not painty
N. V. Darley, manager ot a oranch

of Frank's factory, testified:

"Mr. Quinn called my attention to

the hlood spots. Barrett called

Quinn's attention to it. Barrett showed
me some hair on a lever of the lathe.

"/^ looked like an attempt had been

m^ade to hide the (blood) spots. The
white stuff practically hid the spots."

What made the spots, and who
tried to hide them?
We narrow the investigation to

Saturday, because three white wit-

nesses swear the spots were not there

Friday.

Harry Denham and Arthur White
did not go to the metal room: and
none of Frank's visitors did, on Sat-

urday, if ice leave out Mary Phagan.
If we except Leo Frank and Mary

Phagan, we are absolutely unable to

trace anybody to the metal room, on
Saturday.

Then, if the blood, and the hair,

prove that at least two persons were
in the metal room, Saturday; and if

the evidence excludes the possibility

of those two persons being other than
Frank and Marj^; we are forced to

the conclusion that these two went
there; and, if one of the two died by
violence, we can't escape the convic-

tion <^hat the other did the killing.

Of course, the State's theory is,

that when Frank struck the girl, her
fall, hackward and downward., was
broken by the metal crank-handle of

Barrett's machine;- and that this pro-

jecting shaft tore out some of her

hair, and ripped her scalp to the bone,

inflicting the wound which ranged
''''from down upward,^"* producing un-

consciousness.

No other explanation can be given

of two wounds simultaneously given,

one in the face and the other on the

back of the head.

Governor Slaton declared that the

body could not have reached the base-

ment by the elevator.

^Vhat difference does it make?
The corpse was there; and no signs

of a struggle, no signs of blood, no
signs of torn-out hair, could be seen.

On the contrary. Sergeant Dobbs
testified that he saw the trace of the

dragging of the body; and this trace

led from the elevator., to where he
found the girl. Her face was scratched

and soiled, in exactly the way it would
have been, had she been dragged by
the heels.

These surface abrasions of the skin

were made after death, the doctors

said : and there is no other way to

account for them.

So far afield have gone some of

the Hessian theorists that they have
argued the crime itself into the base-

ment, where Cofiley, they say, held
the girl's nose in a bank of cinders

until she was smothered ! Yet here

IS the official record which shows that

there, was no accumulation of ashes

or cinders in the basement, no ashes
or cinders in the girl's nostrils or

mouth; no ashes and cinders in her
hands. The entire floor was just an
ordinary dirt floor, gritty, of course,

and with ashes and cinders sifted

thinly on the surface, and trodden
into the earth.

What more did the criminal need,

than the cruel cord, tied around
her neck in a running noose

—

a cord
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large enough, and strong enough to

strangle a horse? I have had that

horrible thing in my possession, and
I know what powerful twine it is.

You could tie and hold a steer with it.

As it was strangling the poor chihl.

her tongue protruded from her mouth,
half an inch—and there was no bruise,

and no cinders on the tongue.

No rapist, or murderer, could hold

a strong girl's face buried in ashes

and cinders, and kill her that way,
without leaving indelible marks in

the ashes and cinders, and without

leaving indelible marks on the girl's

front face

—

and on her neck, where
his ruthless fingers gripped and held

her!

Is it not so?

Upon this girl's neck, was no sign

of ^dolence, save where the hemp cord

buried itself in her flesh.

No crueller mortal was ever insti-

gated of the Devil, than the monster
who roped that child's tender throat,

and gloated over her as she died

!

How did her body get to the base-

ment?
It does not matter: for if she went

there while alive, neither Frank nor
Conley could have carried her, with-

out the other knowing it; and if she

went there dead, both were necessary

for the work.

There are only two ways of getting

into the basement from the floor

above: one is the elevator, and the

other is the ladder. The foot of the

ladder rests on the dirt floor, and it

runs up to the hole covered by a trap

door.

How large is this hole? It is two
feet square. The witnesses said that

one person, at a time, could pass

through this hole in the floor, and
descend the ladder, but that it was a

difficult matter.

In other words, it was a tight

squeeze for a grown man of average

size to go down through this two-foot

hole in the floor.

That being the size of the opening,

and that being its location, you can

readily see that it is an awkward,
troublesome job for a full-grown per-

son to go to the cellar in that way.

With the elevator, it is altogether

different. To use it with ease, noth-

ing more was needed than to unlock

the power-box

—

and it was found un-

locked Sunday morning!
Consequently, whoever wanted to

use it, Saturday, could do so; and the

fact that it was found in usable con-

dition Sunday, naturally inclines you
to believe that it had been in use Sat-

urday.

Is it not so?

At all events, there was the elevator

in condition to be used, with no other

labor and difficulty than to open the

door, step in, and pull the cable: the

car would do the rest. But, with the

other way of reaching the basement,

there was a trap door to be lifted,

and a ladder {not stairs) to descend;

and when you give to any man the

task of carrying a corpse weighing

127 pounds down that ladder, you
have assigned to him a labor not only

most difficult, but decidedly danger-

ous. The slightest loss of balance

would have tumbled him off the lad-

der, and imperiled his neck.

Between the easy-going elevator

and this hard-going ladder, which
does your intelligence choose? Why
not take the elevator?

If my argument about the blood,

and the hair, is sound, the elevator

must be chosen, for you cannot sup-

pose that the criminal toted the dying

girl down stairs from the first floor.

To have gone with her toward the

front door, where a visitor was likely

to enter any time, would have been

sheer madness.

But the elevator afforded secrecy,

celerity, and noiselessness : no one

could see what was in it, and no one

could hear it, for the two carpenters

on the fourth floor were not only en-
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gaged in the noisiest work, but were
200 feet back from the elevator shaft.

Even if there was a risk in the easy,

swift use of the elevator, it was in-

finitely less of a peril than to lift the

corpse, and carry it down the stair-

way, and then get it through the

trap-door, and down the ladder.

Why should we not do what a crim-

inal in such a case would naturally

do—follow the line of the least re-

sistance, and adopt the safest, easiest,

quickest method?
Governor Slaton did not cross-ex-

amine Leo Frank, or the accomplice,

Jim Conley; but the Governor went
to the factory, and travelled up and
down in the elevator; and after hav-
ing done so, declared that Mary Pha-
gan's body could not have been taken
to the basement by the elevator. Why
not?

Because (as he says) on Saturday
morning, a soft substance (excrement)
hed been deposited on the ground, in

the shaft, and this excrement was
found unmashed, Sunday. Wonderful
Governor

!

In the first place, the bottom of the
shaft is uneven, and the elevator can
rest upon the earth at one part, and
not touch at others. In the second
place, elevators do not always stop
exactly at the bottom. In the third
place, the elevator did not mash the

excrement when the men -first went
down in it, Sunday morning!

THE JEWS FIRST ACCUSED FRANK.

Let us go back to the Monday, fol-

lowing the Saturday of the crime.

The city of Atlanta was seething

with excitement: the factory was in a

hubbub; the detectives and the police

were scouring the earth to j&nd clues.

Almost everybody suspected the night-

watch to be the criminal. He was
put under arrest, and he was man-
acled.

Thafs what the Gentiles did, at the

instance of Leo Frank, who intimated

his belief in Newt Lee's guilt.

What did the Jews do?
They pussy-footed to the strongest

team of lawyers in Atlanta, and
secretly employed them to defend Leo
Frank

!

Be it remembered, always, that the

rich Jews of Frank's immediate fam-
ily and business connection, were the

first to accuse him of this hideous

crime.

Before the Gentiles had said one

word against him, or taken any action

against him, his own people had done

what was never done, anywhere, at

any time:

They hired the most expensive law-

yers, before there was a breath of

Gentile accusation against this alleged

martyr of '"''race hatred.''"'

Wlien you reflect upon this fact,

your mind will connect it with the

story which the cook told her hus-

band. The Seligs (the parents-in-

law of Frank), of course, knew how
Frank had raved that Saturday
night: their daughter would have
been unnatural if she had not spoken

of the horror which possessed her,

when that drunken husband was
wildly talking of the murder, and
calling for his pistol.

As sure as God made the world, the

Seligs communicated with the Mon-
tags, and the Haas brothers, that

very day; (the police had got them on

the telephone just after finding the

corpse), and they pussy-footed to the

law firm of Rosser & Brandon—a firm

soon to be augmented by the Gover-

nor-elect, John M, Slaton.

(Keep this detail in mind.)

Consider the phenomenal situation

!

There lies Mary Phagan at the

morgue: there sits Newt Lee in jail,

. with handcuffs on: there go Barrett,

Standford, Mrs. Fleming, and others,

showing the blood, and the hair:

there goes Jim Conley, about his

work as usual, in the same clothes he
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wore last Saturday; there goes Leo
Frank, wlio has changed HIS clothes,

and who tells the police that he

doesn't believe that the night-watch

has told all he knows; and there goes

somebody to plant a hloody shirt

* in the night-watchman's clothes bar-

rel; and somebody fixes a time-slip

which gives Lee time to have gone to

his home during the night of the

crime—and this is done after Frank
had told the officers the time-slip was
regularly punched; and it is Frank
himself who, after the bloody shirt

has been planted on Newt Lee''s prem-

ises, urges the police to search those

premises

!

And during all that time, the best

lawyers have been secretly engaged to

defend Leo Frank—lawyers who will

soon take into their firm the man
whom the people had recently elected

to be their Chief Magistrate!

When the detectives lose faith in

the bloody shirt—there was no Afri-

can odor on it, and the blood was too

evidently a recent smear inside and
out—Frank has another shot in the

locker. He tells the officers that J. M.
Gantt had been intimate with Mary
Phagan, and hints that he had been

too intimate. He also informs them
of Gantt's visit to the factory, Satur-

day afternoon, to get two pairs of old

shoes he had left there. Consequently,

the excited police go and nab J. M.
Gantt.

Thus the martyr of race hatred

flings the meshes of suspicion around
two innocent men, before he himself

has been suspected by anybody, ex-

cepting the rich Jews who had swiftly,

stealthily employed for the martyr the

supposedly ablest lawyers in Georgia;

And so thoroughly uneasy are these

rich Jews, that the Governor-elect is

soon added to the Rosser firm—to the

amazement of the political friends of

John M. Slaton.

To be exact, Rosser took the Gov-
ernor-elect into his -firm in May, 1913.

Mary Phagan was killed in April.

To fully comprehend the infamous

betrayal of the State of Georgia, by
Governor Slaton, you must keep in

your mind the astounding fact that

he joined Rosser 's firm, after that firm

had been employed to defend Frank,

and had publicly taken part in his

case.

If an angel from Heaven should

swear, on a stack of Bibles, that Sla-

ton's partnership with Frank's lead-

ing lawyers had nothing to do with

his commutation of the sentence, you

might possibly believe it.

A Governor cannot practise law

openly; and in June, 1913, John M.
Slaton was to be inaugurated for a

term of two years.

Why, then, did he, in May, join a

firm with which he could not openly

act, until after June, 1915?

And why did Rosser, in May, 1913,

take in a partner whom he could not

openly use, during the next two years ?

Mark this: On Monday, Jim Con-

ley and Frank came and went: Lee

and Gantt were in limbo: others were

suspected, and temporarily detained;

and still, not a word was said against

the Jew. His battery of lawyers was
masked: nobody knew such a battery

had been positioned: his Montags laid

low : his Seligs were equally discreet.

Suddenly, like a scene-shift on the

stage, the officers turn to Leo Frank,

and say, in substance, "We will have

to interrogate you, Mr. Frank!"

Then, the legal battery unmasks.

Frank refuses to answer any ques-

tions, until his Rosser comes!

Innocent? When did conscious in-

nocence ever play the game with

trump cards up its sleeve?

The crafty Frank knew from the

first that the dogs would find his trail,

socner or later; and he had not only

prepared for the struggle by retaining

crack lawyers, but he had kept sus-

picion off Jim Conley, not even in-
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forming his own detective, Harry
Scott, that Conley could write.

Scott would not loiow the rudi-

ments of his business, if he had not

realized, early in his investigations,

that if Frank was innocent, Conley
was; and if Conley was guilty, Frank
was.

The thing is plain enough : put Conley
at the foot of the stairs, and Frank at

the top, and the girl going up or

doicn the stairs., it is impossible for

one of the men to seize the girl and
do what was done to her, without the

other man knowing it.

The doors were open between Frank
and Conley: the space separating them
was inconsiderable: Conlej^ could not

strike the girl in the face, and
knock her down, without Frank hear-

ing it ; whereas Frank could go with

her back to the metal room, and close

the door.

Because of the certainty that, if

Conley committed the crime, Frank
knew it, Harry Scott and the police

officers made every effort to find the

criminal, in somebody else. Only as a

last resort, did they turn to Conley.

Keluctant to betray his boss, and to

get himself into the trouble, Conley
denied all knowledge of the crime;

and went to pouring out lies, in true

negro style. But the conviction grew
that only he and Frank could be im-

plicated, because only they had had
the opportunity.

Finally, the negro broke down, con-

fessed, and ashed to he taken to

Frank., so that the two could be heard
to talk the matter over.

.And the innocent martyr, a gradu-
ate of Cornell, shrinks from meeting
the ignorant negro, in the presence

of witnesses.

Yes ! The white man is afraid to

face the hlack., who accuses him of

the most heinous crime ever perpe-

trated in the South.

What was Frank's excuse for not

facing the negro, and talking with

him about how the little girl came to

her death, in his place of business?

His excuse was, that Rosser,was out

of town. But Haas was not out of

town, and Rosser's partners were

accessible.

However, the innocent martyr dared •

not confront a guilty negro—a low-

down, drunken brute, they call him

—

because Rosser was not present, to pre-

vent the black brute from getting the

better of the educated white gentle-

man who was President of the At-

lanta B'nai B'rith.

And this is the same shrinking,

cowering culprit who could not look

at the dead girl's face, pretended not

to know her, feared to ask eleven

white ladies why they swore he had a

lascivious cliaracter, and hid himself

behind his legal immunity from cross-

examination !

This is the victim of mob spirit, and
race ^ hati'ed—this Jew whose rich

Irinsmen stealthily hastened to hire

lawyers before Q.ny Gentile had ac-

cused him, and whose Jewish wife

utterly refused to go to him for three

iceeks after his arrest!

There are some actions that speak

like thunder claps: and the secret em-

ployment of those lawyers, together

with the abhorring avoidance of

Frank by his own wife, are just such

actions.

How, in the name of God, can any

sane man believe him innocent, after

weighing those two stupendous facts?

THE JEWS closest to him, CON-
DEMNED HIM, before the Gentiles

even suspected him!
It was not until the 29th of April

that Frank was detained at police

headquarters, to await the action of

the Coroner's Jury. After a careful

investigation of the case, Frank and
Newt Lee were both held. Frank
had testified at length under oath,

and not one word of suspicion had he

dropped on Jim Conley. He did not tell

the Coroner that Conley was in the
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factory on Saturday, nor did he dis-

close the fact tliat Conley could
write.

He did not utter a word that would
clear Newt Lee, and give to that inno-
cent darkey his freedom.
He was perfectly content to screen

Jim Conley, and to see the halter close

upon the neck of Lee

!

On May 24th, Frank was indicted
by twenty-three grand-jurors, four of
whom were Jews. (Not one of those
official accusers has ever asked that

attorneys moved for a new trial,

which Judge Roan refused; and the

case was appealed to the Supreme
Court, which affirmed the Court be-

low.

The Supreme Court reviewed all of

the evidence, at great length, and
decided that it was sufficient to sus-

tain the verdict. This decision appears

in the 141st volume of Georgia Re-
ports, and speaks for itself.

Four of the six Justices held that

the trial of Frank had been perfectly

fair, and that he had been properly

FRANK'S WIFE'S DEVOTION AT THE TIME OF HIS ARREST,
AS SEEN IN THE HEARST-SELIG "MOVIES."

Frank's sentence of death be com-
muted.

)

On July 28th, 1913, Frank's trial

commenced, before Judge L. S. Eoan,
and a jury, selected jointly by the

State and the accused.

Until August 20th, the Court was
hearing the evidence, and on that day
tlie attorneys began their speeches.

Five days later, the case Went to the

jury, and on the same day, a verdict

of "Guilty" was returned, without
recommendation to mercy. On the

next day, Judge Roan sentenced Frank
to be hanged on October 10, 1913. His

convicted. Two of the Justices dif-

fered; and held that Judge Roan
should not have permitted Conley, and
several w^iite witnesses, to testify to

the independent acts of immorality^ on
the part of Frank.
The decision, as published, shows

that this was the on!}' question upon
which our Supreme Court divided;
and you can see that it was a point of
minor importance. The real issue in

the case was, whether Leo Frank mur-
dered Mary Phagan, for the indict-

ment did not charge him with rape.

Consequently, Justices Fish and
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Beck went off on a spur track, and did

not jump the rails on the main line.

No matter how immoral the jurj'^

believed Frank to be, they were too

intelligent to convict him of murdei^

on evidence of sexual vices.

It is well for you to know ichat the

Supreme Court divided on; because

the public has had the fact of the

divided court dinned into its ears, for

more than a year, without having been

told the comparative insignificance of

the division.

Neither has the public been told that

when Frank's lawyers took the divi-

sion of the Justices too seriously, and
demanded a re-hearing of the case, the

Supreme Court unanimously refused

it. This of itself proves that the dis-

senting opinions of Justices Fish and
Beck left no deep impression even on

their own minds.

THE SUPREME COURT REVIEWED
THE EVIDENCE.

With an effrontery hard to compre-

hend and sufficiently condemn, it has

been stated, again and again, that the

State of Georgia has no court that can

review the evidence in a criminal case

!

Every volume of our Supreme Court
decisions (Georgia Reports) proves

the audacity and shamelessness of the

falsehood, first published by C. P.

Connolly, and finally by the Governor
who commuted the sentence. So far

is the statement from being true, that

in practically every motion for a new
trial, there are three stereotyped

grounds which are argued before the

Supreme Court; towit, that the ver-

dict is against the evidence, that the

verdict is against the weight of the

evidence, and that the verdict is un-

supported by the evidence. While, of

course, these three stereotyped grounds
are realh'^ but one^ the fact that they

are almost always made, and passed

on hy the Supreme Court, shows that

this highest of State tribunals is con-

stantly revieAving the evidence—weigh-
ing it, measuring it—and deciding
whether it shows the defendant's guilt

beyond a reasonable doubt.

If, in 'the opinion of the Court, thfe

evidence fails to do this, the judge
below is reversed, and a new trial

ordered.

When C. P. Connolly stated in Gol-

lier'^s, that the Supreme Court of

Georgia had no such power as this, it

was possible to explain his mendacity
upon the assumption of his ignorance;
but when Governor John M. Slaton
used almost the same words, in sav-

ing the neck of his guilty client^ no
such excuse can be made for him. Ee
lied, icith deliberation and Tnoral

turpitude.

On page 247, of the 141st Volume
Georgia Reports, you may read the

20th head-note of the Supreme Court's

decision in the Frank case:

"20. The evidence supports the ver-

dict, and there was no abuse of dis-

cretion in refusing a new trial."

In the body of the decision, page
284, you may find these words:

"20. The record is voluminous. . . .

We have given careful consideration

to the evidence, and we believe the

same to be sufficient to uphold the ver-

dict, and as no substantial error was
committed in the trial of the case, the

discretion of the Court in refusing a

new trial will not be disturbed."

In two other cases, reported in this

same volume, the Supreme Court was
asked to review the evidence against

the defendant, and to decide whether
it showed guilt beyond a reasonable

doubt. The cases are those of Brown,
and Hart, both murder cases; and the

Court held that the evidence must
demonstrate the guilt of defendants
beyond a reasonable doubt. That is a

maxim, a standing rule, an invariable

principle with our Supreme Court;
and every Georgia lawyer knows it.
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ENTER, BURNS!

Tiie decision of our highest court

vvas supposed to settle the Frank c?se.

Such a decision has alwaj^s been

taken as final, except in extraordinary

cases, where new evidence developed

after the trial—evidence which might

have caused a different verdict, and

which could not have been discovered

before the trial, by the use of diligent

methods.

Here it was that Burns came roar-

ing into the case, airily assuming'

that it had never been tried. Burns

blotted out the trial judge, the jury,

and the Supreme Court. Burns made
a calliope of himself, and every re-

sounding note he struck echoed deaf-

eningly through the Atlanta dailies,

and through the Northern papers

owned by the Jews, and by William

Randolph Hearst. Burns ostentati-

ously visited the pencil factory, jiist as

though he had recent!}^ discovered its

whereabouts; and he sleuthed over the

premises with unearthly skill and sub-

tlety, just as though the crime had

been committed the day before. After

running up and down the stairs; and

poking his nose first in one room, and

then in another; and travelling back

and forth in the elevator; and cannily

boring holes into everybody with his

all-knowing ej'es. Burns came forth to

the reporters and yelled into their

eager ears the startling discovery he

had made!
He had discovered—the blatant ass

had actually discovered, that the crime

was the work of a pervert of the low-

est type, and this pervert was a man
that^'no one had even suspected ! He,

Burns, meant to locate that unsus-

pected man, demonstrate his guilt, and

overwhelm the Pinkerton Detective

Agency, and the Atlanta police. He,

Burns, was "utterly confident," he

would lay his hands on this unsus-

pected pervert, and, by proving his

guilt—Burns felt sure he would con-

fess—he would show what boobies the

Pinkertons, and Atlanta police, had
been, when they arrested Newt Lee, J.

M. Gantt, Jim Conley, and Leo Frank.
Never in my life, have I known any

man to make as much noise as Burns
made; and never have I known the

daily papers turn themselves into

sounding boards, fog-horns, and mega-
phones for anybody^ as willingly as

they did for this empty, vociferous,

and pestilent scoundrel, William J.

Burns.

There is just this much to be said

to the credit of his intelligence: he

then saw the same thing that Harry
Scott had seen; towit, he couldn't im-

plicate Jim Conley (at the foot of the

stairs) without implicating the white

man^ at the head of the stairs. Burns
saw what any sane man ought to have
seen, that the crime could not steer

clear of both the white man and the

negi'o, lohen they were so close to-

gether, and each knew of the other's

presence, and each loiew of the pres-

ence of the girl.

If she left Frank, she went to Jim,

almost in Frank's presence: if she did

not go to Jim^ she never left Frank!
Even an asinine pseudo-detective,

like Burns, could see that.

The only people who do not see it,

belong to the class who, having eyes,

see not.

Burns knew that Frank—if innocent

—would have said, at the very begin-

ning:

"The girl must have been assaulted

and killed, almost immediately after

she left my office; and as nobody but

Jim was at the foot of the stairs, Jim
did it. Go and nab Jim ! Don't bother

with Newt Lee! Don't arrest J. M.
Gantt ! Don't search Lee's premises

for a blood-stained garment.

"Seize Jim ! Search his premises.

Jail the woman he lives with. Ques-

tion them, separately. Compel Jim to

tell what became of Marj^, after Mary
left my office, for she never reached the
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door; she was stunned, assaulted, and
strangled inside my place; Jim and I

were the only men in the house who
could havejcnoicn the girl was there^

and who could have made the attack

on her; and, as I did not do it, JIM
Dwr
Oh, gentlemen, gentlemen! use

your common sense ! Isn't that what
you would have said, had you been

where Frank was, and none of that

little maiden's blood reddened ijour

hands?
What's the use of publishing false-

hoods about Georgia laws, Georgia

courts, and Georgia people, when one

of our children lies in her untimely

grave, and the record-evidence so

plainly proves the infernal guilt of

the man whom Rosser's partner, John
iM. Slat on, rescued from Biblical pun-
ishment ?

Burns knew that had Frank been

innocent, he would have put Harry
Scott, and the other officers, on the

trail of Jim Conley, instead of Newt
Lee; and Frank would have told the

detectives that he recognized Conley''s

writing in those notes; and that it was
Conley who must have grabbed the

girl as she reached the bottom of the

stairs

!

Burns isn't altogether a nin-com-

poop : and he therefore knew that the

screening of Jim Conley by Leo
Frank, meant exactly the same as the

screening of Leo Frank by Jim Con-

ley, towit

—

that they tver^e both guilty.

Consequently, Burns went roaring

into the North to find his pervert

''who is still at large."

There is evidence in the record

which shows that Burns tried to make
a dummy out of a Chicago darkey

named Allen. It appears that Burns
pretended to be mysteriously turning

the earth over, in Cincinnati. From
time to time. Burns vigorously smiled,

upon mankind, and fog-horned the

information that he was making "most

gratifying progress" in his sleuthing

after that elusive pervert who had
never been suspected.

We were told that Burns was com-
piling a mightj' document, as he went
along, and this dj^namic document

—

as he vociferously shouted—would
clear Leo Frank.

Naturally, Burns got on our nerves.

He stayed there. We became obsessed

with Burns. He agitated our reflec-

tions, disturbed our digestions, and
monopolized our dreams. I never saw
anything like it. The expense account

of the Haas Finance Committee would,

in my judgment, be more interesting

than any human document that could

be found this side of Jerusalem.

But all things must have an end;

and even the Burns peregrinations

and vociferations had to reach their

final show-down; and when Burns'
famous report came into view, it was
nothing in the world but another

argument—and a sorry one—on the

evidence in the record

!

Whichever way he turned. Burns
ran against an impassible wall. It

was the resource of desperation, when
they fixed upon Conley as the only

criminal : they did not do it, until there

was nothing else to do! And they

could never have "got away with it,"

if Rosser had not had a partner in

the executive ofice.

WHAT ABOUT THE MOB?

In his very long, and very inco-

herent defense of himself. Governor
Slaton urged the importance of what
he called soihe newh^-discovered evi-

dence. That trumped up stuff was
made the basis of an extraordinary

motion for a new trial; and when
Judge Benj. H. Hill overruled it, the

case again went to our Supreme
Court, which unanimously decided

against the defendant.

Not until he had twice gone to the

highest State court, with nearly 200

diiferent assignments of error, did
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Frank raise the point that he was
not present, in person, when his law-

years waived his appearance, and re-

ceived the verdict.

Judge Roan knew of the intense,

but repressed feeling in Atlanta; and

he feared that this feeling might

escape control, if the defendant was
acquitted. Suffering from the can-

cer which took his life not long

afterwards, and worn down by the

terrific strain of the trial. Judge
Roan was naturally nervous, and ap-

prehensive. But, as a matter of rec-

ord, it was proved that he had noth-

ing tangible to base his anxiety upon,

for the Sheriff—who has, for some

cause, been Frank's champion—testi-

fied that there had never been any

disturbance, no mob, no mob threats,

&c.—and a score of deputies and other

citizens swore to the same thing.

No evidence to the contrary could

he ohtained.

Remember, in this connection, that

ex-Governor Brown, in his statement

to Governor Slaton, said that certain

gentlemen had brought him vague ru-

mors of an intended moh; and that on

the strength of these vague rumors, he

had requested that some of the offi-

cers and soldiers of the National

Guard sleej) at the armory that night.

Ex-Governor Brown further stated

that he caused the Mayor to have

the city scouted, in automobiles, and

that there was absolutely no sign of

any mob, anywhere. Not as many as

three men could be found bunched
together.

Therefore, all the wild- talk about

mobs, and the holding of the military

in readiness, frittered away into

'•vague rumors," which led the Gov-
ernor to request that a few soldiers

sleep where they could act quickly, if

needed.

The lawyers of Frank made out a

narrative of mob demonstrations, and

mob pressure, drawing upon their

imagination with prolific liberality.

They carried this before Judge Wil-
liam Newman, of the Federal Court,

on a writ of habeas corpus^ which
took the defendant out of the custody

of the State. Losing before the At-
lanta Judge, the lawyers persisted,

until they got the case before the Su-

preme Court of the United States.

On April 19th, 1915, a decision was
rendered against Frank, seven of the

Justices holding that all the alleged

facts as to mob violence had been car-

ried before the Supreme Court of

Georgia, and had been considered by
that court "at times and places, and
under circumstances wholly apart

from the atmosphere of the trial, and
free from any suggestion of mob
domination, or the like; and the facts

were examined, not only upon the

affidavits and exhibits submitted in
,

behalf of the prisoner . . . but

also upon the rebutting affidavits sub-

mitted in behalf of the State, and
which., for reasons not explained., he

has not included in his petition.''''

The seven Justices, therefore, held

that, as Frank's lawyers had failed

to include in their pleadings the evi-

dence upon which Judge Hill, and

our Supreme Court had based their

decisions, the United States Supreme
Court must assume that the Georgia

courts had reached a righteous de-

cision on the question of mob vio-

lence.

The seven Justices of the United

States Supreme Court evidently sus-

pected that the counter-showing
.,

as

to the existence of the alleged mob
violence at the trial, must be con-

clusive, else Frank's attorneys would

not have been afraid to let the Court,

and the country., see how crushingly

the State replied to those belated and

manufactured charges.

The seven Justices cited numerous

cases, in which our Supreme Court

had granted new trials because of

moh violence; and one of these was

that Will Myers, THE JEW, who
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brutally murdered Crowley^ near At-
lanta, and who made a suspicious

escape from the jail. If alive, he is

yet roaming the earth, a free man

—

in consequence of the extreme jeal-

ousy of Georgia's highest court in

seeing to it, that even the guiltiest

wretch shall be given a fair trial.

But it is said that two Justices of

the United States Supreme Court dis-

sented. So they did—but upon what?
Justice Holmes, speaking for him-

self and Justice Hughes, took the

entire statement of Frank's lawyers

as true

—

prima facie—and taking it

to be the truth, those members of the

Court held—
"Upon allegations of this gravity,

it (Frank's petition) ought to he

heard^'' by the Federal . Courts, al-

though it had already been heard
and decided by the State Courts.

Justices Holmes and Hughes held

that it was proper to decide against

the State, without seeing the Stateh

side of the case,' and fo treat as null

and void a State-Court decision, he-

cause of an ex-parte attack upon it!

I don't think many good lawyers

will accept that as good law; and
such a principle certainly antagonizes

all previous decisions. The seven Jus-

tices merely followed precedent: to

have ordered the re-trial, in the Fed-
eral Courts, of an issue of fact^ which
the State Courts had already tried,

and decided adversely to the defend-

ant, would have been revolutionary.

But it is sufficient to remind the

unprofessional reader, that Justices

Hughes and Holmes went no further

than to decide that, taking the alle-

gations of mob violence to be true,

Frank had a right to be heard on
that point. And the professional, as

well as the unprofessional reader will

be surprised to learn, that Frank had
been fully heard on that very point

—

and that the record shows that there

wasn't a particle of merit in the point.

Why? Because there was no evidence
to support it.

THE FACTS ABOUT COXL.EY.

You will have noticed that I have
discussed the case, upon the testimony
of the unimpeached white witnesses,

without using Jim Conley at all.

Let us now consider the negro,
who has been so widely and violently

assailed by the Frank partisans.

What are the facts, as shown in

this official record? They are, that
Conley has been continually at work
for white men, in Atlanta, and that

he never had any trouble with any
white person; nor was he ever a con-

vict, except for thirty days, when he
was sentenced in the police court for

fighting another negro. In 1904, Jim
had a row with a darkey, and was
fined $1.75, which he paid. In 1905,

he paid the same fine, for the same
luxury. In 1906, they raised the

price on him, and fined him $3.75,

which he paid. In 1907, he had two
fusses, and paid $26 for the brace.

Finally, in 1912, he was given a sen-

tence of thirty days.

At that time, he was in the employ
of Leo Frank.

There is no evidence that he had
ever been accused of violating a

State law, much less convicted of

any crime. The record shows that

Conley had been a steady, regular

worker at the pencil factory, for two
years; and, in that length of time,

Frank and his associates had found
no serious fault with the negro. He
was accused of borrowing nickels

and dimes, which he was slow to

repay; and one gentleman who had
had occasion to send Jim for a pot of

beer, swore he wouldn't believe Jim on

oath: "I have had no confidence in

him since he put water in my beer."

So, you see, there is really nothing of
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importance that they could prove

against the negro, and you may be

sure they left no stone unturned.

Then, what is the gist of his evi-

dence ?

It is, that he saw two girls go

up stairs, and only one come down:

Mary went first, and Monteen fol-

lowed; and Monteen remained up

head of the stairs, looking wild and
excited; and that P>ank asked him if

he had seen a girl come up stairs, and
Jim answered, "I seed two go up,

but I ain't seen but one come down."
Tiien Frank told him that he had

tried Mary in the metal room, and
that she had resisted, and he had
struck her, and "I guess I hit her

JIM CONLEY.

stairs quite a little bit, and then came
back down and went away; and that

he had already heard steps like two
persons walking back to the metal

room, just before Monteen came in;

and that, after Monteen left, some one

came running to the front up stairs

on tip-toes; and then he heard the

"stomp" that Frank always made
when he was signalling Jim about a

woman ; and that he answered the

signal, and found Frank near the

too hard;" and that she had struck

something as she fell.

Frank told the negro he must help

get the body to the basement; and
the negro went to where the girl was
lying on her back, with hands and
arms up.

Frank had torn a strip from her

underclothing, had folded it, and had
placed it under her head—and that

blood-clotted ]:)ioce of undergarment
had its tremendous weight with the
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jury, for it accounted for there being

no blood on the floor beneath the

hair on the lever she had struck in

falling.

Jim picked up the body, carried it

a few steps, and dropped it, near the

dressing room, and the hlood spat-

tered., as her head again hit the floor.

Frank had to help Jim with the

body, and they carried it to the ele-

vator, the key of which Frank, hur-

ried to his office and got. They took

her to the basement, and left her

right there by the elevator, from
which Sergeant Dobbs afterwards saw
the signs of dragging commence.
Frank was so excited, that he ran

up the ladder, telling Jim he would
catch the elevator as it passed him on

the floor above. This he did.

Then they were in Frank's office,

and Frank talked excitedly, ram-
blingly, and, all at once, exclaimed

—

"TV^y should I hang? I have rich

people in Brooklyn!"
(At that time, and at the time Jim

told the police of this, the negro did

not know, that Frank had any wealthy
kinspeople anywhere.)

Then Frank asked Jim to write the

notes, and the negro wrote four, two
of which seemed to suit Frank; and
he put them all in his desk. He gave
Jim money, but took it back, saying

he would attend to that later. He
outlined a scheme by which the negro

was to take the crime upon himself,

promising to get him out on bond,

and spirit him away. He made Jim
promise to return that afternoon, and
help him to dispose of Mary's body.

Then they left the building, Jim go-

ing for a drink of beer in a near-by

saloon, and then walking homeward
with Ivie Jones. At home, Jim got to

thinking about what had happened,

and he was afraid to go back to the

factory. Nor was he there Sunday,
but he turned up as usual Monday
morning.

In the two notes found lying beside

the dead girl, she was made to tell

her mother who it was that attacked

her, and to explain how her tody got

to the hasement. She said that as she

went to the toilet (Franlc's floor

toilet!) the night watchman seized

her, and flung her down the scuttle-

hole. Notice the wild confusion which
raged in the mind of the real author

of the notes! He puts the place of

the deadly assault right where it oc-

curred; but postpones the time of the

crime until night, when Newt Lee will

be on duty. He doesn't realize the

difficulty of explaining how Mary was
kept in the building, from about noon
until dark; but he does realize that he

must try to account for the corpse

being in a place the girl had never

entered.

So, in one breath, he put the girl at

the toilet, near the hlood and the hair;

and in the next, he has her flung

down the ladder, into the basement,

where no hlood and no hair could he

found!
Now, if you can believe the blood

and the hair made their way per-

versely from the basement to near the

toilet, to which., as Frank told the

jury, he might have gone unconsci-

ously, you may also believe that a

negro, having committed the crime,

seated himself by the corpse, in a dark
cellar, to write notes of explanation to

the girl's mother.

Eobust animals, like Conley, do not

commit the crime of Sodom: that is

the vice of the degenerate, and Leo
Frank''s face looks the part to perfec-

tion !

Consequently, such a robust and
natural negi'o as Conley, would be
almost the last man you could imagine

as the author of the notes in which
unnatural intercourse with, that little

white girl is suggested.

Now, let us put our mother-wit to

work on this negro witness.

AVhen the record discloses that he

had worked two years for Leo Frank,
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we must assume that a .certain inti-

macy and confidence had been estab-

lished between the two.

When we learn from disinterested

white witnesses, that Frank had had
women of the town to visit the fac-

tor}', during business hours, and on
Saturday afternoons, we are bound
to believe that the negro knew of it,

because his place was near the front

entrance.

Wouldn't Frank, who was afraid of

his Uncle Montag, want someone to

keep a watch-out for him, when these

lewd women darted in and out? Nat-

urally. Then, who would serve his

purpose better than this submissive

negro ?

But, let us come directly to the

question which goes to the bowels of

the matter:

What evidence did the State have

on Jim Conley, when he at length

broke down^ and confessed?

The State had none—absolutely

none—except that three outsiders had
seen a negro, whom they did not

know, occupying a seat where Jim
usually sat.

In other words, the State had no

more evidence against Jim than it

had against Frank, towit—that he

was in the factory on Saturday.

Therefore, when the negro con-

fessed, he gave evidence which the

State had been unable to get; and, if

he had kept his mouth shut, Newt Lee
might have suffered. After all, the

dead body was found where Lee alone

had been, for nine-and-a-half houi^s;

and the forged time-slip did show a

gap of an hour, and his clothes-barrel

did hold a blood-stained sliirt which
might be his. Therefore, excited

minds might suspect his guilt—especi-

ally if the person who planted that

shirt would also swear he saw Mary
Phagan on the streets, Saturday after-

noon.

That Frank, and his partisans were

dead-set against the innocent Newt

Lee, is shown by their desperate effort

to prove, by a prostitute, that she

passed the pencil factory Saturday
afternoon, and heard a woman's
scream

!

Remcmher^ that all of this horrible

work against an innocent negro, was
in full progress, at the time Coaley
made his confession.

In other words. Newt Lee {accused

in the notes) was being "framed up,"

by Frank and his lawyers, when Con-
ley blocked the hideous scheme by his

confession.

Eemember, also, that Haas, the law-

yer, and Montag, the principal owner
of the factory, had both been told over

the telephone, by the police, of the

finding of the corpse—told at the same
time that the policemen were persist-

ently trying to get Frank, on the tele-

phone. They could hear the 'phone

buzz and ring at the other end, but no
response came from Frank's house.

Now, another thing: Suppose the

undenied facts are inconsistent with

the theory that any negro committed
fho crime!

Did any black assailant of a white

woman ever go looking for a cord

with which to strangle her, when his

fingers were already on her throat?

Never!
Did any black assailant of a white

woman ever choke her to death, and
then reverently fold her hands across

her breast? Never!
Did a black rapist, and murderer

of a white girl ever seat himself near

her, to write four notes to her mother?
Never!
Did such a negro criminal ever re-

turn to the scene of his crime, and go
about his work as usual? Never!
Then, the conclusion which fixes

itself in your mind is, that whoever
used the cord was not a negro; and
whoever folded those pulseless hands
across the child's bosom, and wrote

the notes to her mother, was not the

principal perpetrator of the crime;
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and if the negro afterwards came and

Avent about the i)reniises, as if nothing

had occurred, he did not assault the

girl.

Let us view it from another stand-

point :

If there are undisputed facts in the

case which cannot be explained out-

side of Jim Conley's testimony, are

we not safe in taking his evidence to

that extent?

The undisputed facts which cannot

be cleared up, without the aid of the

negro's story, are these:

(1.) There was no blood on the

floor under the bench-lathe, where the

hair was found;

(2.) There was blood, a few steps

distant, in the next room;

(3.) There was a cloth, stained

with blood, hanging loosely around

the girl's neck;

(4.) Her hands were decently

crossed upon her bosom, and so rig-

idly fastened there, that they did not

fall apart, when the corpse was
dragged by the heels, 125 feet over a

dirt floor which scarified her face.

The negro told the jury how he

found Mary's body, with a piece of

cloth under her head, "like to catch

the blood." The jury saw the cloth,

and the jury knew that no black man
ever killed anybody, and then folded

a strip of cloth, torn from the dress,

to catch the blood. // not used to

soak up the hlood, why was the cloth

loosely tied around the head?
The negro explained now he dropped

the hea^^ corpse, in passing the dress-

ing room, and thus spattered the floor

with blood.

The negro told the jury, quite sim-

ply, and without knowing the vast

psychological value of his statement^

that he "put her hands down^'' and
folded them across her bosom. Did
uny man ever do that^ for anj^ victim

of his lust? Never in God''s world!
Now, when you consult the evi-

-dence of other witnesses, and find

that the girls arms remained in that

position,, as she was being dragged on
her face, your intelligence drives you
to the conclusion, that her arms be-

came rigid, in that position, long
hefore she was dragged.
Then, you are pushed back to the

story the negro told—the story of

Frank's calling to him for help; the

cloth imder the bleeding head; the

carrying of the corpse to the elevator;

the leaving of it, on its back, in front

of the elevator shaft, with the arms
crossed as Jim had put them, up
stairs.

Take Jim's story, and every khik
untangles, every crease smoothes out:

reject it, and there are undisputed
facts in the record which no human
ingenuity can explain.

Isn't this itself a most powerful
corroboration of Jim's evidence?

Given essential facts which impera-
tively call for explanation, and which
nobody can explain without the

negro's help—what follows?

As sane people, we must accept the

negro, to that extent.

If we accept him as to those unex-
plained, and otherwise unexplainable

facts, we need not bother our heads
about other details of his evidence:

we have enough to understand the

crime., and to identify the criminal.

And when you remember that one

of these two men, Frank and Conley,

successfully withstood a cross-exam-

ination of eight hours, while the other

refused to he cross-examined at all,

your mind gravitates to the story of

the man who was vainly assailed by
the prolonged cross-examination.

No suspicious tactics had to be used

in behalf of Jim Conley. No cook

swore against him, in the presence of

her attorney, and then took it back.

No prostitute had to be spirited away
from Atlanta oil his account. No
poor old preacher was paid $200 to

make a false affidavit for him; and
nobody acting in his behalf endeav-
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ored to bribe, and to intimidate the

State's witnesses.

During the entire two years that

have passed since Conley confessed,

not a single bit of evidence has been

discovered against him, other than

that which he voluntarily gave against

himself.

And during that whole period, the

hirelings of Big Money have never

been able to unearth a scintilla of tes-

timony in favor of Leo Frank.

Circumstantial evidence is sufficient

to convict, when a crime is proved^,

and all other possible persons are ex-

cluded, save the prisoner at the bar.

In this case, the guilt of Frank can

be shown on two lines, independent

of each other. The negro's corrob-

orated testimony does it; and the cir-

cumstantial evidence, without the

negro, does it.

The twenty-three grand jurors

thought so, and never changed their

opinion. The twelve trial jurors

thought so, and never changed their

opinion. Judge Roan at least thought

the jury was justified in its opinion,

for he refused to disturb the verdict;

and he never told anybody, or wrote

anybody to the contrary. And the

Supreme Court thought the same way,

for it sustained both the judge and the

jury.

HOW CAME OTHER STATES TO
INTERFERE?

Xever before did we have outside

influences brought to bear upon us, in

our enforcement of law. We have

tried Jews and Gentiles; rich men and
poor men; white men and negroes;

and we have put many a man to death,

after j^recisely the same sort of pro-

cedure that was had in Frank's case.

Why was Frank made an excep-

tion? AVhy was he singled out for a

national crusade against the State

of Georgia. Why did New York
preachers, and laymen get excited in

behalf of this particular convict?
Why did Chicago people turn their

backs upon all the condemned mur-
derers of the West, and come Pullman-
earring down to Atlanta for Leo
Frank? When, before, did gover-

nors, and legislatures of other States

assume that they knew more about
our business than we ourselves knew?
When, before, did the Jew papers, the

L. & N. Railroad papers, and the
Hearst papers arrogate to themselves

the right to treat a carefully adjudi-

cated case, as if it had never been

legally decided?

(The Louisville & Nashville Rail-

road belongs to the Rothschilds, of

whom the New York Jew, August
Belmont, is the American agent. It

was the baleful influence of this L.

& N. system that debauched Kentucl^y

and Tennessee politics, caused the

assassination of Goebel and Carmack,.

and is now the power behind the

throne in Georgia.)

What is to become of Law and
Order, in any State, when outsiders

claim the right to dictate to it?

After this case had gone the way
of all others, the rich Jews formed a

Finance Committee, headed by Haas
of Atlanta, Contributions were poured
into its treasury; and even the Jewish
clerks were assessed on their wages.

The Burns Detective Agency spent

money like water—its own money, of

course; and, in every direction, law-

yers, politicians, and hack-writers were
enlisted. Frank belonged to the Jew-

ish aristocracy, and it was determined

by the rich Jews that no aristocrat of

their race should die for the death of

a working-class Gentile—"nothing but

a factory girl."

The most outrageous misrepresenta-

tions were published broadcast

throughout the country; and as none

of the Atlanta dailies would allow

am^body to defend the State, the re-

peated and undenied accusations were

believed by millions of people whose
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vconimon sense should have suggested

to them that, no Southern jury has

ever convicted a tchite man on the sole

evidence of a negro.

THEY DARED NOT PUBLISH THE
RECORD.

The reason why sentiment in Geor-

gia crystalized against Frank was,

that I laid before the people the plain

facts as they are preserved in the

official record; and the reason why so

many honest people in other States

have misunderstood the case, and mis-

judged our Courts is, that the par-

tisan pamphlets were believed to con-

tain the truth.

If the record had agreed with the

pamphlets, what was the need of so

many pamphlets?

If the record failed to disclose any
-convincing evidence of Frank's guilt,

why was it never published?

There is but one reply:

The record does show the man's

:guilt, and hence they could not

print it.

You may be asked. Why did not the

State publish the Brief of Evidence?

In the first place, the Governor was a

member of the law-firm which was
-getting the biggest fee for saving

Frank's life. But, in any event, it is

not to be expected that a sovereign

State will appear as defendant at the

'bar of public opinion when arraigned

by a Haas Finance Committee, a rot-

ten Detective Agency, a regiment of

fee'd lawyers, and a pack of nonde-

script publicists.

A sovereign State may well main-

tain a dignified silence, conscious of

the rectitude of her judicial proceed-

ings, and trusting to the imperishable

official record to vindicate her from
unofficial and irresponsible assailants.

From the Pittsburg Leader^ I ex-

tract the following, as a fair sample

of the editorials in behalf of Frank:

Few individual cases have attracted the

•attention and dravs^n the sympatliy of the

country as that of Leo Frank, under sen-

tence of death in Georgia. No case has
become so c'elebrated for the same
reason—that a man was convicted in

advance of Ills trial, and that the trial

itself was a travesty.

The country has been convinced that

Franlc is a victim of extraordinary preju-

dice. It takes unusual prejudice to make
a man's life the price of its payment.
This is a point wliicli has remained hid-

den in all the reviews of the case since

his conviction.

In all the proceedings that have been
taken by Frank's attorneys, and in all

the reviews of the case, the evidence

upon which he has been sentenced to

death has not once been touched.
Technical points have been passed

upon, but not once before any court was
the question of evidence discussed. *

The various courts took up and passed
upon every other point but the one most
vital to Frank—that the evidence to con-
vict was lacking.

If you have paid any attention to

what I have already written, you
know how shamefully false was the

statement made in the Leader.

The editorial continues:

Except in one little spot in Georgia, Leo
Frank is looked upon as a victim of preju-

dice, mob law, and perversion of the legal

machinery.
Governor Slaton has taken up the ap-

plication for executive clemenc'y, and
promises to virtually re-try the case. He
has become impressed by the nation-wide,

human protest against Frank's martyr-
dom, no less than the seriousness of the
charges against the name of his State.

The Governor is receiving an endless

string of letters from men and women
all over the country asking him to either

pardon or commute the sentence; so he
may have a chance to establish his inno-

cence later..

The individual letters to Governor Sla-

ton have been strengthened by chain let-

ters which are rolling across the country.
Letter chains have been formed every-

wliere, and are moving like an avalanche
toward the Governor's office in Georgia.

No better c'ause than this, the life of a
man condemned to die, branded as a

criminal because a mob demanded blood,
ever enlisted the energies and sympathy
of the American people.
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The only hope for Frank is that the
public's attitude make enough impression
upon Governor Slaton to convince him
that the case should be re-tried or its

victim set free.

Governor Slaton is intensely interested

from the first, and never defended, even
frm the first, and never defended, even
by the Georgia mob, tJiat there was no
evidence to convict any man except one
piclced oat for an application of legal

lynch law.
Let every humane man and woman in

America write a letter to Governor Sla-

ton. Make up chain letters to convinc^e

him that the guilt of Leo Frank is ac-

cepted only by a handful of men in one
town in Georgia who want liis life in a
spirit of blood-lust prejudice.

Write today, and tomorrow, and every
day until Frank is pardoned, his sentence
commuted or he goes to death, lynched
by a Georgia mob.

Write today.

In addition to these chain-letters,

men were hired to stand at car-sta-

tions, in Chicago, and other cities, to

enroll the name of every passer-by

who would sign a petition; similar

petitions were carried from house to

house, store to store, office to office,

until even the school children of other

States were telling us how to manage
our affairs.

ENTER HEARST AND HIS SHEARN.

Perhaps the most astounding piece

of impudence was "that of William
Randolph Hearst—partner of Frank's
people in the moving picture busi-

ness.

He sent to Georgia his personal

attorney, Clarence Shearn (of Jerusa-

lem), who happens to be—^by the

grace of Hearst—a member of the

Supreme Court of the State of l^ew

York.

When William Randolph Hearst
whistled for his little Supreme
Court Judge, Shearn should have
begged permission to remind his

master, that although he had re-

sponded to his master's voice, it would
not look well for one member of the

Supreme Court of New York to

invade a friendly State, review a

decision of her Supreme Court, and
overrule it—without notice to that

august tribunal, and without allow-

ing it to be heard in its own defense.

However, this is what Shearn
actually did, as related proudly, by
himself:

New York, June 10, 1915.

Dear Mr. Hearst:
I went to Atlanta, as requested by yon,

for the purpose of making a careful exam-
ination into the case of Leo Frank, from
the impartial standpoint of a lewyer who.
previously knew nothing about the facts

of the case. Supplementing my full oral

report to you, I state herewith, for the
purpose of future reference, the result

of my investigation.

In order to arrive at a conclusion based
solely upon the evidence, and before dis-

cussing the case with any person, I read
the printed record containing the evi-

dence introduc^ed upon Frank's tr'al, and
the argument to the jury made by State

Solicitor Dorsey; I also read the State's

brief on appeal, so as to be fully apprised
of everything that the State claimed to

have established against Frank.
My deliberate judgment, based solely

ui>on the record, and formed as a judge
would reach a conclusion in passing upon
it on api>eal, is that not only did the
prosecution fail to prove Frank to be
guilty beyond a reasonable doubt, but
that, outside of the incredible and inter-

ested testimony of the suspected negro,

Conley, an admitted accomplice, there is

no legal evidence what«ver in the case
upon which even a reasonable hypothesis
of Frank's guilt may be based. The irre-

sistible conclusion to be reached on the

evidenc'e in the record is not only that

Frank is innocent, but that the negro is

guilty.

After this examination of the record I

interviewed and cross-examined Frank in

the penitentiary for an hour or more. I

then visited the factory where the crime
was committed, and carefully examined
all parts of the premises involved in the
crime which were mentioned or referred

to in the testimony. This resulted in

confirming the conclusion that I had:

reached on reading the record.

Yours sincerely,

CLARENCE J. SHEARN.
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It is safe to say that no State in

the Union, and no independent king-

dom in the world, was ever before

subjected to such an indignity. It is

on a small scale, but it is a gross in-

dignity, nevertheless.

Austria demanded of Servia the

right to send her judges to try the

Servian assassin of the Archduke
Ferdinand, and Servia's refusal pre-

cipitated the European war. Arguing
from example, Hearst and Shearn

believe that Servia should have

granted Austria's demand!
Shearn's opinion bears the same

date as Hearst's private appeal to

Governor Slaton, which appeal was

not published in Georgia at all, and

was not given out in the North and

West until June 23rd, three days after

the sentence was commuted. In that

private appeal, Mr. Hearst says:

Frank was convicted on the testimony

of the negro Conley. There were only

two men that could have committed the

murder, both of these men being in the

building at the time of her death. Either

Frank must have committed the murder
or the negro must have committed the

murder, so that the testimony of the

negro, which inculpated Frank, excul-

pated himself.

Ought any man to be sent to his death

on the testimony of a criminal, an ex-

convict, a confessed accomplice, a proven
perjurer, and one who would himself
necessarily be convicted as the mui-derer,

unless he could succeed in fastening the
crinio upon another?

Now, then, is there any other evi-

dence in this case which would tend to

convict Frank, any sufficient evidence of

any kind or character to corroborate the
statements of this criminal, this proven
perjurer aJid this vitally interested negro?

I have made as careful study of the
case as I can as a layman, and I am
absolutely convinced that there is no
such evidence, but my opinion as a lay-

man on this point may not be of any
special value.

However, I have at hand to sustain my
opinion on this matter the opinion of one
of the ablest la^vj'ers and jurists in the
State of New York.

This ablest, not only of lawyers, but
of jurists, was the little man from
Jerusalem—Clarence J. Shearn.
Now, as I have already shown you,

the State, at the time of Conley's
confession, had no evidence on him,
but did seem to have some on Newt
Lee. And if Conley had not given
away the joint guilt of himself and
the Jew, the busy persons who
forged the time slip and bloodied the
old shirt, would have manufactured
additional evidence against a per-

fectly innocent man.

The overshadowing fact in the case

is coldly ignored by Shearn and
Hearst, towit—the fact that, if one of
these two men—Frank and Conley

—

is guilty^ the other is.

If Hearst and Slaton had not
both believed Frank to be guilty,

they would never have stultified them-
selves by coupling innocence with life-

imprisonment. Innocence deserves a

pardon. Either this man committed a
crime which forfeits his neck, or he
is entitled to go unpunished. There
is no middle ground.

Mr. Hearst is many times a million-

aire, and he publishes numerous papers
and magazines: if the official record
fails to demonstrate Frank's guilt,

Mr. Hearst would have published that
record. To have done so, would have
cost less money than to send Messrs.
Brisbane and Shearn to Atlanta—and
it would have looked better.

WHAT IS THE PARDONING POSTER?

As every lawyer knows, our statutes,

constitutional clauses, and rules of
practice are built upon the broad
foundation of the laws of England.
Without a study of the jurisprudence
of the Mother Country, we cannot
understand the true origin, scope and
purpose of our own legal system.
Let any member of the profession

turn to his Blackstone, Book IV.,
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Chapter XXXI., and refresh his

memory as to the pardoning power.
All crimes in England were sup-

posed to be committed against the

King—who was assumed to be pres-

ent, all the time, in his courts. The

The King never set aside verdicts
and overruled his judges. Such a
thing was inconceivable.

Blackstone expressly says that it

would be against all correct principles,

to allow the power of judging and of

GOVERNOR SLATON BEATING OFF THE VULTURES.—From Straus" Puck,

crime having been committed against 'pardoning to vest in the same person.
the King, it was his royal prerogative Blackstone quotes the great legist,

to forgive it. Montesquieu, who lays down the pro-
The King never re-tried a case

!

foundly wise proposition, that if a
Such a thing was preposterous. magistrate exercised both the power
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to judge and to pardon, such a com-
bination of separate powers "would
tend to confound all ideas of right

among the mass of the people; as they

would find it difficult to tell whether
a prisoner was discharged hy his inno-

cence, OR OBTAINED PARDON
THROUGH favor:'

Chancellor Kent, in his Commen-
taries (Vol. I., Part II., par. 283),

says, "Policy would sometimes require

a remission of punishment for a crime

certainly ascertained. The very notion

of mercy implies the accuracy of the

claims of justice."

In none of the authorities can you
find support for the idea that the

Executive has power to retry, and to

pardon, because, on this re-trial, he

reaches a different conclusion from
that reached by the jury, on the same
evidence. For an Executive to exer-

cise the functions of trial judge and
traverse jury, is to confound all prin-

ciples of separate powers, and to bring

administrative anarchy upon the State.

Now, when the pardoning power
was written into our Constitution,

along with the explicit separation of

the right to try (judicial) and the

right to extend mercy (executive),

such lawyers as Jenkins, Eeese, Mat-
thews, Pierce, and Toombs never

dreamed that any sane man would
contend that the pardoning power in

Georgia took a new, radical, and
chaotic departure from the Laws of

England.

When the Constitution of 1877 gave
the pardoning power to the Governor,
it also put him upon notice that he
must not exercise the power without
a reason, which he must communicate
to the Legislature.

The two constitutional clauses must
be construed together; and when so

construed, in the light of English law
and practise, they mean, that the Gov-
ernor's reasons for executive clem-

ency must be such as the Legislature

will approve; and such as will show

to the people that he did not act

capriciously, did not arrogate to him-
self the right to set aside the verdict,

and did not usurp the functions of a
Supreme Court of review.

The prohibition of judicial powers
to the Governor, meant, that the
executive must act upon something
which occurred after the courts got
through with the case; or upon some
mitigating circumstance which tem-
pered justice and softened the punish-
ment of the guilty.

The Constitution never meant that
a Governor could say, "/ have re-tried

this case, and return a verdict of Not
guilty.'''*

Nor did the Constitution ever mean,
that the Governor should say—

"/ have re-tried this case, and find
a reasonable doubt.''''

The Supreme Court can say that,

but the Governor cannot.

The Supreme Court has often said

that; but no Governor ever said it,

until Eosser's partner got hold of one
end of the Frank case.

HOW DID SLATON ACT IN OTHER
OASES?

Consider how differently Governor
Slton acted in the case of Nick Wil-
burn, of Jones County, last year.

Nick Wilburn had grown up^ in the

backwoods, was a mere common clod-

hopper, never went to Cornell Col-
lege, and never had girls under him
working for five dollars a week. The
Devil, in the shape of a woman,
tempted him to eat the forbidden
fruit, and he did eat. His sin was a

grievous one, and grievously he paid
for it.

Governor Slaton refused to com-
mute Wilburn's sentence, and in de-

clining to do so, said:

"Twenty-three grand jurors, twelve
petit jurors, a judge of the Supreme
Court, six judges of the Supreme Court,
three Prison Commissioners, all under
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oath, have declared the guilt of Nick Wil-

burn, and that the extreme penalty of

the law should be imposed.

"I am sworn to uphold the law, and
enforce it. I sympathize with the family

and friends of the defendant. It is a

great pity that punishment cannot be

limited to the offender.

*'If I commuted the sentence in this

case, it would be equivalent to repealing

the section of the Code which provides

for capital punishment. It is not in ray

province to make laws, but to enforce

them.
"The responsibility for the verdict is

not upon me, but the responsibility would
rest upon me, if I interferred with the

decrees of a judicial tiibunal without

good cause."

What caused the change to come
over the spirit of Slaton's dream, be-

tween June, 1914, when poor Nick

Wilburn swung, and June, 1915, when
Leo Frank was slipped away from

Atlanta in a Pullman Palace Car?

SLATON HANGED A GEORGIA BOY,
AND BOASTS OF IT.

In the Chicago Daily Tribune, the

fugitive ex-Governor of Georgia said,

on July 10, 1915

:

"They said / am afraid to allow a

man to hang. This is untrue.

"I allowed a boy of only eighteen

years to go to the gallows."

The Georgia boy whose death on

the sca'ffold is cited by Slaton as a

proof of his courage, had never been

in the habit of debauching $o-a-week

work girls, nor had he ever been seen

to commit the crime of Sodom, nor

did he rape and murder a little girl

who ought to have been at school.

Therefore, Mr. Hearst did not send

Clarence Shearn to Atlanta, to reverse

the Supreme Court of Georgia in that

case. Doctors C. B. Wilmer and Jake

White did not ascend the Throne of

Grace in behalf of just a plain, com-
mon, unromantic Georgia lad. who
had killed a man.

It required all the peculiar horror,

loathsomeness, and atrocity of the Leo

Frank case, to arouse that morbid in-

terest—that weird fascination exerted
by the crimes and criminals that are
abnormally hideous—to influence the

sensational Hearst, to enthuse Mary
Delaney Fisher, to capture the Doc-
tors of Divinity, and to set idiots to

signing petitions.

In that case, also, the older of the

criminals, Jim Cantrell, had been
lured by a wicked woman, and he fell

into her toils. Bartow Cantrell was
a 17-year-old boy. He was wholly
under the influence of his elder

brother, and he had probably always
done as Jim bade him.

At any rate, he took part in the

murder, not on his own initiative, and
not for his own purposes, but at the

instigation of Jim Cantrell and Mrs.
Hawkins, the woman in the case.

The Cantrells were brought up in

sordid surroundings, and discreditable

conditions. In the midst of civiliza-

tion, they were left untouched by the

ennobling influences of Church and
State. In the midst of Christianity,

a Bible was never put in their hands,

until both the Church and the State

said to them, '"''Prepare to meet your
Godr

THE LAW IN THE CANTRELL CASE.

In refusing to commute, in the Can-
trell case, Slaton wrote:

Under my oath I must uphold the law.

It is not my province to make laws, but

to execute them. If the people do not

believe in capital punishment, it is the

duty of their representatives to repeal the

law which provides for it.

The appeals that have been made for.

clemency by good men and women are

the promptings of kind hearts and sympa-
thetic natures. Oftentimes apparent
severity is really philanthropy, and the

enforcement of the law in this case may
be the protection of many an honest fire-

side in Georgia, and may afford secfurity

to many an honest hu^and.
The majesty of the law must be vindi-

cated, and those whose kindly impulses
urge them now to request clemency will
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in their more thoughtful moments recog-

nize the necessity for law enforcement as

a protection to the civilization of our
State.

For the reasons stated, 1' cannot inter-

fere, unless at the same time I am bill-

ing to make the declaration that, while
Governor, the law of capital punishment
shall be i*epealed. This I am forbidden
to do by my oath of office.

This July 30, 1914.
JOHN M. SLATON,

Governor.

whom a motherless daughter of thir-

teen years was dependent for a sup-

port.

But Slaton felt no pity; he devoted

no anxious days and nights to the

study of that case: he made no mys-

terious visits to New York while that

case was pending: and he had nothing

to say against circumstantial evidence,

then.

JEW CARTOON-SLATON SUPPRESSING "'MOB LAW.V

SLATON, AND ANOTHER CASE OF
"CIRCUMSTANTIAIi EVIDENCE."

In September, 1914, there was an
effort to save the neck of an old

Georgian, made by some people who
had little money, and no organization^

and no subsidized daily papers, no
Doctors of Divinity, and no Hearst-

Ochs-Pulitzer-Straus combine, and no
champions among the snobs who are

Slaton's ''best people."

The old man was named Umphrey,
and he was nothing but a tenant

farmer. He was convicted, on purely

circumstantial evidence,^ of having
killed his landlord. He was sentenced

to death ; and there were a few gener

ous Georgians, in and around Dalton,

who took pity on the old man—upon

His snobbish soul could see nothing

to appeal to him in the case of a con-

demned man who would not look

nicely in the parlor "of a Peachtree

palace, or in the elegant quarters of

an Atlanta Locker Club.

In the Umphrey case, there were

no unscrupulous lawyers so highly

paid that they forged a letter of a

dead Judge, to use it before a Gover-

nor who must have known it was
forged.

Who cared for the old tenant?

He had no monej^: he had few

friends, and these few had no more

money than himself.

Hang him! Hang him on circum-

stantial evidence! Hang him, and

leave his little ffirl to the cold mercies
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of the world—a Avorlfl in which she
can do what Mary Phagan did, work
where Mary Phagan worked, and fall

a victim to some rich employer's lusts^

as Mary did

!

And they hanged him, nine months
before Slaton repealed the law of cap-

ital punishment, abolished the jury

system, obliterated two Supreme
Courts, and rode into Fame on a pre-

tended mistake of law, and a forged
letter of Judge Koan.

When Slaton told the New Yorkers
that he meant to retry Leo Frank,
and when he kept his word to those

millionaire New Yorkers by going
through all the evidence, visiting the

factory, experimenting with the ele-

vator, and listening to the most elab-

orate arguments on the details of the

record, he cut lose from the laws of

England, cut loose from the estab-

lished practice of centuries, cut loose

from the Constitution he swore to

support, cut loose from the anchorage
of honor—and flung himself upon the

shoreless Sea of Shame.
The maddening thing to the people

of Georgia, is, not that one man's life

has been spared, but that Jew Money
has dene for a foul Sodomite and
murderer, a thing that shatters all

precedents, nullifies the highest law,

sinks juries and courts into contempt,

brings upon us a sickening conscious-

ness that our public men and our
newspapers are for sale, weakens the

defenses of every poor man's home,
and adds to the perils that beset every

poor man's child.

Ah, it is a sad day for Georgia

!

At last we know that a poor man's
home, and a poor man's child, counts
for nothing when Big Money starts

out to muzzle the papers, libel the

State, invent a case which does not
exist, hide the case that does exist,

and defeat the Law as laid down by
the greatest tribunal in the world.

Woe to the State, in which the poor
man has just cause to ask—"Where

is my protection? Where is the

strong arm that should be my sword

.

and shield?

"Where can I put my child to work,
and feel that she is safe?

What has become of my rights, my
safeguards, my dependence Upon Jus-

tice?"

Woe to the State! when the poor

man has just cause to say

—

"/ am nothing! They only show
me consideration when they want my
vote, and when they put a gun in my
hand to fight out the rich man's quar-

rel.

"/ am nothing! The laws they

make are against me. The burden of

life is all mine, and none of the ease

and enjoyment.
"/ am nothing! If my boy—my

boy whom the State neglected—com-

mits a crime, he swings for it; hut if

some rich man's son lusts after my
daughter^ lays in wait for her, leads

her into a trap, assaults her^ and hills

her—I am asked to respect the Law,
while the Law is hiring autoiflobiles

and parlor cars to take her vile de-

stroyer into a fake imprisonment I"

GOVERNOR SLATON HAS A CLANDES-
TINE RUDNIG^T CONFERENCE

WITH HIS PARTNER,
ROSSER!

It was generally believed that the

Frankites had won over two members
of the Prison Commission. When it

became known that E. E. Davison

had disappointed them, and that Pat-

terson alone had voted for commuta-
tion, the Frankites were uneasy. They
had failed in every court, had failed

before the Commission, and were left

with a Governor who was known to

be a most uncertain quantity. It be-

came an tirgent necessity for some
strong Frankite to see Slaton at once,

and brace him up.

Rosser to the rescue!

The case was on its last legs, and
between New York and Atlanta rich
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Jews wailed lamentably, during the

few hours before Eosser got hold of

his tricky partner. These two noble

men loved the darkness at that time,

for reasons that have always been

considered sufficient. So, the noble

Rosser went up a back street in his

automobile, late at nighty stopped it a

block or two away from the Gover-

nor's; and footed it through the alley,

like an impecunious person who de-

ton's hypocrisy and perfidy, but as a

side-light on events in Atlanta:

Atlanta, June 22.

Mr. Tom Watson:
What I tell you I know to be true as

God is light, and it is this: The Jews
all gathered at the home or the Seligs, on
Washington Street, where Frank's wife

and father-in-law live, and from 8 till 12

o'clock, tliey had a regular old-time

Belshazzar teast. They drank wine, high
balls, whiskey and beer, and smoked and

J^

FRANK PRETENDS TO SWEEP WHEN OFFICIAL VITITORS COME.

sired to purloin the portable property
of an unsuspecting fellow creature.

Rosser went into the home of Sla-

ton, and remained for hours, and until

after midnight.

What Rosser said to Slaton in

this clandestine meeting, will never

be known; but it was noticed that

next day the lamentations of the

Jews were replaced by sly grins,

and offers to bet ten to one that Sla-

ton would commute!
Read the following, not as evidence

of Frank's guilt, or as proof of Sla-

sang, and had music; and there were not
less than a hundred and twenty automo-
biles full of Jews that came there from
the time I say to the late hour.

Now, they all knew Slaton had com-
muted Frank, and were celebrating it.

And I know a policeman who was on
the streets yesterday, to make out like

(Controlling the mob, aid he told me he
passed the jail every night at J 2 o'clock

for a year, and going oa duty, and never
saw a light in the office of the Sheriff till

Saturday night, and he was surprised to

see the Sheriff sitting there like he was
waiting for somebody, and suddenly a
Jew came running up and tapped on the
window, and the Sheriff raised the win-
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dow and the Jew whispered to him, and
the Sheriff smiled, and then the Jew ran
off and the Sheriff closed the window.
Now, that showed conspiracy, and tliat

Slaton wa« working with the Jews all the
time.

In other words, the Jews knew

—

some on Friday, and some on Satur-
day—^that Slaton had commuted the

sentence.

Defending his action, Slaton pub-
lished an article said to contain 15,000

words, nearly half of them devoted to

an attack on Conley, and the other

half to misrepresenting the official testi-

mony of the white witnesses. He pre-

tended not to have reached a decision

in the case until 3 o'clock Sunday
morning. It was said that he signed
the commutation a minute after the

midnight of Sunday.

When it became known that the

Governor had actually re-tried the

case, on the same old evidence that

had been so often, and so thoroughly
threshed out in the courts, the State

seethed with indignation.

It was felt that Slaton had usurped
an authority not vested in him by
the Constitution, and that he had
established the principle of. One law

for the Rich, and another for the

Poor.

In the Wilburn case, he laid down
the law correctly: in the Cantrell case,

while he was hard as adamant, he was
right as to the rigorous letter of the

law ; in the Frank case he reversed him-

self at the same time that he reversed

all the Courts. Why the difference?

There is but one answer: in the cases

of Wilburn, Cantrell, and Umphrey,
he was not of counsel for the accused,

AND, IN THE FRANK CASE, HE
WAS.

h

MARY PHAGAN'S GRAVE, SHOWING MONUMENT RAISED BY LOCAL CAMP CONFEDERATE VETERANS
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Leo Frank is now at the State

Farm, an honored giiest of the mana-
gers, awaiting his triumphant release

from even the politely formal fetters

of the Law.
His little victim, whose upraised

hands—fixed by the rigor mortis—
proved that she had died fighting for

her virtue, lies in Georgia's soil, amid
a grief-stricken, and mortified people

—a people bowed down by the unut-

terable humiliation of having been

sold out to Jew money.

On the heights from which the

immortals look into the lives of

human beings, how vast must seem the

moral distance between the little girl,

who died, rather than soil the pur-

ity that God gave her, and the Gov-
ernor, who brought this eternal dis-

grace upon himself and our State!

A child died a heroine's death, and
sleeps in a heroine's grave: the tnan

is pilloried in eternal infamy.

^Ve gave him, a clean commission;
and he returned it to us, covered toith

filth.

The Constitution which he swore to

respect, he trampled into the mud.
The great Seal of State went,

LIKE A THIEF IN THE NIGHT,
to do for an unscrupulous law firm, a

deed of darkness which dared not face
the sun.

We have been betrayed! The breath

of some leprous monster has passed

over us, and we feel like crying out,

in horror and despair,

'Tnclean! UNCLEANr
"When John M. Slaton tosses on a

sleepless bed, in the years to come, he
will see a A'ivid picture of that little

Georgia girl, decoyed to the metal
room by this satyr-faced Jew: he will

see her little hands put out, to keep
off the lustful beast: he will hear her
cry of sudden terror: he will see her
face purpling as the cruel cord chokes
her to death—and John M Slaton will

walk the floor, a icretched., conscience-

smiten man, AND HE WILL
SWEAT BLOOD!

Many, many years ago, there was a
sermon preached at Thomson, by a

man whose life was as pure as crystal,

and who, now and then, was lifted

into a simple eloquence that moved all

who listened. John M. White was his

name—peace to his soul, for he is

dead, and I loved him well.

He was speaking of Duty, of the

higher path, and the old land-marks;
of the honor that a man should guard,,

as a woman guards her virtue.

He told of the little ermine of the

far North, the tiny creature of. the
snows, the unsullied Diana of the

silent woods, so true to its instinct for

purity, so loyal to the white drapery
that God had put upon it—that the

hunters, seeking its life for its price-

less fur, smeared filth around the

burrow \vhere the dainty thing lived;

and how this little dumb brute^

shrinking from a vile contact which
would soil its spotless covering, fell

into the hands of its enemies—pre-

ferring death to contamination.

Are the old lessons lifeless? Are
the old glories gone'^ Are there no

feet that tread the old paths?

Once, there were men in Georgia

—

men who were afraid' of nothing, save-

to do wrong; men who sprang to

arms, and went to death, on a bare

question of principle; men who would
no more lie than they would steal ;

.

men who flamed into passionate indig-

nation when a legislature was believed

to have disgraced the State; men who
caught the fire from the heavens ta

burn a law which outraged Georgia's

sense of honor and justice.

The sons of these men carried the

Grey lines, and the tattered Stars and
Bars farthest up the heights of Get-

tysburg; met the first shock of battle

at Manassas; led the last charge at

Appomattox.
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And the sons of these Georgians are

today bowed down with unspeakable

grief—for thev feel that our grand
old Empire '

State HAS BEEN
RAPED!
Like the Roman w'ife of old, we feel

that something foul, something un-

utterably' loathsome has crept to bed

with us, and polluted us during the

night : and that, while the morning
has come, it can never restore our

self-respect.

We have been violated, AND WE
ARE ASHAMED!

Note: Win. J. Burns has stated

that he ivas employed hy the State of

Georgia, worked on the case a week,

and reported that there was no evi-

dence against Leo Frank.

Bums was never connected with the

case at all, until after our Supreme
Court had carefully reviewed the evi-

dence against Frank, and declared it

amply sufficient to show his guilt.

Burns was never employed in any

capacity hy the State of Georgia.

Second: Governor Slaton has told

it all over the North and West, that

Judge Roan requested a commutation

of FranWs sentence.

This statement is false. Judge Roan
continued to say, notahly to his pastor

and his daughter, that the evidence

unquestionably demonstrated Franks

'guilt; and not until Judge Roan had

been dead more than two months, was

a forged letter presented, which stul-

tified Judge Roan's record, and con-

tradicted his judicial declarations, of

record in this case.

THE END.

FOR THE PROSPECTOR.
Your choice of i locating
instruments (free). Sim-
ply pay after first find.

Circulars 10c. Address, Ideal Novelty Co., Dept. E.
P. O. Box 738, Chicago, ni.

Everything

F
Two Recent Additions to the Roman Cath-

olic Hi^orical Series of

XHOS. E. WAXSOISF

''The Ifalian Pope's Campaign Against f/?e Con-

stitutional Riglits of American Citizens/*

Pamphlet, 14 pages, well printed, clear type
;
postpaid, 10c.

''What Goes On in f/?e Nunneries ?"

Pamphlet, well printed, illustrated, 1 1 pages
;
postpaid, 10c.

Where it is desired to circulate these pamphlets, special prices w II be made.

«Jeffersonian F^ublisliing Company
Xtiomson, Ga.

L



TKe Official Record in the Case of Leo
Frank, a Jew Pervert.

Copyriflhted. All Rights Reserved.

IN New York, there lived a fashion-

able architect, whose work com-

manded high prices. He was

robust, full of manly vigor, and so

erotic that he neglected a liandsome

and refined young wife to run after

little girls.

As reported in the papers of Wil-

liam R. Hearst, Joseph Pulitzer, and

Adolph Ochs, the libertine architect

had three luxurious suites of rooms

fitted up for the use of himself, a con-

genial company of young rakes, and

the young women whom they lured

into these elegant dens of vice.

Stanford White's principal place,

however, was in the tower-apartments

of Madison Square Garden. Tn this

building, his preparations for sensual

and sexual enjoyment were as care-

fully elaborated and as expensi'.'cly

perfected, as though wine, women and

song were the chief end of man's

existence. The excavations at Pompeii

have revealed no Rose-door voluptous-

ness more Oriental than that of Stan-

ford White. Like the Roman sensual-

ist who stimulated his amorous pas-

sions by surroundings that promoted

desire and prolonged the pleasure,

White was artistic in his vices; and

it was the nude girl, of perfect

symmetry and beautiful face, that he

bore into his seraglio, where rich and

splendid appointments, soft lights,

hidden musical instruments, fragrant

flowers, and choice wines intoxicated

every sense to the highest pitch of

epicurian ecstasy.

Into this golden harem, he took the

young, lovely and unmoral Evelyn

Nesbit: and, according to her state-

ment, she was brutally used. A
shocking fact in the case is, that

White seems to have given money to

the girl's mother, and that the mother
had, in effect, surrendered the maid
to the man—knowing why he wanted
hei'.

Whatever the girl felt as to the

manner in which White had ac-

complished his purpose, she soon

afterwards returned to him, and their

relations continued for some months.

Then Harry Thaw happened to see

her, fell in love with her, and desired

so ardently to possess her, that he

married her.

They went to Europe, and during

the tour, the wife told the young hus-

band her terrible story. On their

return to New York, the architect had
the insane folly to again enter into

correspondence with Evelyn— this

time knowing that he had an excitable

young man to encounter—a husband

who might be supposed to have

learned his wife's secret. All the

world knows how Thaw was inflamed

beyond bounds, by seeing White sit-

ting in the eating-room, at the Gar-

den; and how the young husband

immediately shot the satyr who had

doped and rumed his wife.

The great legal battle that Thaw's

devoted mother has waged in her boy's

behalf, is a part of the history of the

times. For nine long years, that fine

old woman has borne her cross, and

made her fight, her son behind the

bars, all those bitter years.

At last, after nine years of impris-

onment, Harry Thaw is a free man

—

for the court which tried him for

murder, pronounced him insane; and

the jury which recently tried him for

insanity, said that he is sane.

At least one of these verdicts was

correct, and hoth may have been; but

the jurors in the last trial have since
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declared that Thaw ought to have

killed White, anyway; and about

three-fourths of the red-blooded men
and women of the country are of the

samo opinion.

But the Jew-owned papers, and the

Jev,'-kired papers, and the Hearst

papers take a dilFerent view. They
are outraged. Their feelings are

deeply hurt. They lament the fail-

ure of the Law to hang this hot-tem-

pered boy who shot the man that had

virtually bought Evelyn from her

monstrous mother, and had then

drugged and forced her. In their

wrathful eyes, nine years' imprison-

ment is no punishment at all. They
rail at the influence of Money, and

deplore the disgrace which has fallen

upon New York—the righteous town

where Jacob Schiff, the banker, could

give a forty-3'ear sentence to an hum-
ble Jew, for entering clandestinely the

dwelling of a Jewish millionaire; the

righteous town wherein the Roman
priests could have the Mayor assassi-

nated without provoking hostile com-

ment from the Hearst papers, the

Jew-owned papers, or the Jew-hired

papers; the righteous town where the

priest, Hans Schmidt, can cut his con-

cubine's throat, dismember her body,

fling the pieces in the river, and still

escape punishment I

Let us regale our minds by reading

what the Hearst papers say about the

case of Harry Thaw

:

It is quite true that but for the lavish

outpouring of the family fortune, Thaw
might have been electrocuted, or would
still be confined in a madhouse. It is

equally true that but for the contributions

of other rich young men, whose mone'
cursed them, bis fight for liberty would
not have been so prolonged or so costly.

Many will moralize over the powej- of

money as manifested in the escape of

Thaw from paying tlie extreme penalty

for the mur(^er of Stanford White.

Fewer will stop to think of the malign
power of money that pressed this rich

young man along the primrose path that

snded in the murder on the roof garden,

his prolonged imprisonment, and the
ineradicable disgrace which rests upon his
name.
As it is, about the most the public can

say of him Is to express the hope that the
public mind shall no longr be assailed by
the fulminations of spectacular lawyers,
the imaginings of alienists, and the bathos
of hired pamphleteers. The world is weary
of Thaw.

The world is not weary of Hearst,

fortunately: and if he can explain his

prolonged hostility to Thaw, and
reconcile it with his determined cham-
pionship of Frank, the world will

peruse his statement with interest.

Let us now read what another New
York paper—Jew-owned or Jew-hired

—published about the two cases,

Frank's and Thaw's. Concerning
Thaw, the yew Repuhlic says:

In the case of Harry K. Thaw, it looks
as if the State of New York had thoroughly
well got its leg pulled. The State deserved
it richly, for it asked a .iudge and a jury to

decide a question which they are simply
incapable of deciding. Those laj-men could
no more pass on Thaw's sanity than upon
the condition of his liver. Thus a man
may be highly educated, courteous, genial

in every relation of life, and still bear

within him a murderous disposition,

which breaks out only on special occa-

sions. The voluble juryman who has

been so much interviewed came pretty

close to the truth when he said that

Thaw would never kUl except when a

woman was involved.

What freed Thaw was in reality a com-
bination of prejudices. He behaved well

in court. The State's alienists behaved
badly in court. Thaw fought a long fight,

and men admire persistence. He had mur-
dered Stanford White, a man who hap-

pened to be a genius, but whose genius was
forgotten in the deep moral prejudice

against him. The brutal fact is that an
American jury is very ready to flirt with

the idea that there are un^^Titten laws to

justify the killing of men who seduce young
girls.

Concerning the Frank case, the

same New York paper says:

It is often foolish to indict a whole peo-

Dle. But in this instance the guilt of the
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people is clear. They wrecked the only

trial Frank has had, they believed every

lie about him, they terrorized their pub-
lic officials. Tliey Iiave made democracy
liideous—they, tlie men and women of the

State. There was a minority that knew
better, a minority that did not wish to

make the courts of the State a vile spec-

tacle to the whole nation. But of that

minority many were too cowardly to speak
out. They allowed the mob to stamp its

own imprint upon the public character of

the State. The Governor who acted, and
the opinion which supported him, were
not enouf>l» to save Georgia from its degra-

dation.

A people which cannot preserve its legal

fabric from violence is unfit for self-gov-

ernment. It belongs in the category of

communities like Haiti, co'^^munities

which have to be supervised and protected

by more civilized powers. Georgia is in

that humiliating position today. If the

Frank case is evic'^^nce of Georgia's polit-

ical development, then Georgia deservs to

be known as the black sheep of the Amer-
ican Union.

It is a disagreeable discoverv of the

New Republic, that American juries

harbor a perverse sympathy for

fathers and brothers who kill the

seducers of young girls, and thus rid

the earth of the most dangerous vipers

that crawl. The New Republic says

that it is not only a fact that juries do

sympathise with the men who give

shot-gun protection to womanhood,
but that this fact is hrutal.

When the human race ceases to be

capable of brutality of that sort, civil-

ization will be the soup-kettle of

molly-coddles; and literature will

degenerate into a milk-sop effeminac}^

that won't be worth hell's room.

Coming to the Frank case, The New
Republic condemns, not only the jury

and the judges, but the whole State

in which the horrible crime was com-
mitted. 'Tt is often foolish to indict

a whole people," says this magazine.
Edmund Burke said it was always
foolish to do so.

The State of Georgia, as a whole,

is pronounced guilty. It has .'-^.ad no
evidence aarainst Frank: it has been

possessed of a Devil of blind hatred:
it has relentlessly persecuted: it has
tried to lynch an innocent man, uader
legal forms. Its mobs terrified the
witnesses; terrified the jurors; terri-

fied the trial judge; terrified the
Supreme Court of Georgia in both ot
its decisions, the last of which was
unanimous. Finally, the (Georgia mobs
terrified the Supreme Court of the
Ignited States. Avhich, under duress,
decided that Frank's lawyers—after
having had all the time, money, and
opportunity needed—had utterly failed
to show that Georgia had not given
to Leo Frank every right to which he
was entitled.

What do such editors care for the
calm decision of the highest court on
earth? Nothing.

"The guilt of the people is clear."

"They have made democracy hide-
ous." AVhere? When? And how?
AMien justice was mocked in San

Francisco, some years ago, and Wil-
liam T. Sherman (afterwards the great
General) led the "mob," did the riotous
tumults of an indignant democracy
make it hideous? When justice was
derided and defied in NeAv Orleans,
and the outraged democracy flamed
into a vengeful conflagration, did it

become hideous?

\Mien our Revolutionary Fathers
lynched Tories, and drove traitors into
hasty flight, did they make democracy
hideous?

"\Mien the Commons of old England
rose in bloody riots against the Lords
of Church and State, during the
Epoch of Reform, did these insurrec-
tionary Englishmen, battling for
human rights, make democracy hid-
eous ?

"Wlien the Athenians of old furi-
ously fell upon and killed the Greek
who advised that Grecian freedom be
surrendered to the Persian King, did
those rioters make democracy hideous?
Away with milk-sops and molly-

coddles! Whenever the human race
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degenerates to the point where intense

indignation is not aroused by enormi-

ties of crime, then mankind will be

ready for the last Fire: and the

sooner this scroll is given to the

Flames, as the trump of doom sounds

the requiem of a dying world, the less

will be the sum total of human de-

pravity.

In Georgia, there was never a mob

collected while the Frank case was

on trial; never a scene of tumult,

never a disorder in the court room.

It was not until after the State

had patiently waited for two years,

whilo tho unlimited Money back

of Frank w^as interposing every

obstacle to the Law, travelling from

court to court, on first one pretext

and then another; ottering new affida-

vits which soon appeared, confessedly,

to have been falsehoods, paid for with

money; resorting to every criminal

method to corrupt some of the State's

witnesses, and to frighten others into

changing their testimony: it was not

until the people of Georgia had

waited so long, and seen Frank's law-

yers defeated at every point, by the

sheer strength of the State's case

against a most abominable criminal : it

was not until, after all this, when one

of Leo Frank^s own launjers basely

betrayed the State, upset all the courts,

and violated our highest law; it was

not until John M. Slaton, the partner

of Leo Frank's leading lawyers, cor-

ruptly used the pardoning power to

save his own guilty client—it was not

until then that the people broke into

a tumult of righteous wrath against

the infamous Governor who had put

upon our State this indelible stain.

And because our indignation took

the same direction as that of our

Fathers, in the days of '76: the same

direction as that of the Frenchmen

who stormed the Bastille; the same as

that of the Englishmen who sacked

the Bishop's palace, and the nobleman's

castle; the same as that of the Vien-

nese who rose in fury against the Em-
peror and his Metternich, forcing that

crafty and coldly ferocious old democ-

racy-hater to flee for his life—because

of the fact that we Georgians are just

human, we must be relegated to a Sai>

Domingo basis, and treated by other

States as though we were woolly-

headed worshippers of Vaudoux I

HOW ABOUT BECKER AND NEW YORK?-

The Becker case created a pro-

found and painful impression every-

where, because of its contrast to the

case of Leo Frank. The Hearst pa-

pers, the Jew-owned, and Jew-hired

papers, have found this contrast em-
barrassing to them, and they are

endeavoring to "distinguish the cases."

For example, the New Orleans-

Daily States says:

A patient perusal of all the mass of evi-

dence, considered in the light of the clash-

ing interests of those involved, directly

and indirectly, in the Rosenthal tragedy,

has left us unconvinced that the law's

reasonable doubt of Becker's guilt was
remoTed. That Becker was a police tyrant

and grafter, was amply proved. The fact

that he was more or less endangered by
Rosenthal's promised revelations of police

corruption furnished a motive which made
it easy for others who confessed they were

in the murder plot to fasten the crime on

him. But there will always be ^ound for

the suspicion that the Rose-Webber crowd
"frame<r' Becker to insure their o>vn im-

munity.
But whereas Frank was denied the safe-

guards and privileges which the State

pledges any person accused of a capital

crime, and was convicted in a community

rank with prejudice and mob spirit, on

the testimony of a vicious negro criminal,

Becker was robbed of no technical right

the law guaranteed him.

Few more deliberate and cold-bloded

murders have been committed in New York..

than the assassination of Rosenthal, and

public sentiment was powe fully exercised

against Becker in the face of clear evi-

dence that he was a grafter with a motive

for sealing Rosenthal's lips. But it would

be absurd to liken the atmosphere in New

York during the Becker trial to that in

Atlanta during the Frank trial, or to find
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:any points of resemblance between the

-orderly conviction of Becker and the

utterly disorderly trial of Prank.

So! Another case of my bull and

•your ox. Do we not all remember that

when Bourke Cockran moved for a

continuance in the Becker case, and

Judge Samuel Seabury refused it, the

great lawyer threw up his briefj and

passionately exclaimed, '"''This is not a

ti'tal; it is an assassination?''''

Xo lawyer said that to Judge Roan,

''trying Frank; and there never was

the slightest evidence that Frank's

trial was "disorderly."

The Daily States asserts that

"Becker was robbecl of no technical

right the law guaranteed him."

Dees the States know that the U.

S. Supreme Court used those very

words in the case of Frank—used

'them in a well-considered decision.

•which is the amplest vindication of the

Georgia courts?

When the highest court in the world

judiciaJly affirms that the State which
'tried and convicted Frank accorded

him every right guaranteed to him
under the highest law, ought not the

•decision to be respected?

Before the United States Supreme
Court vindicated Georgia, the agencies

working for Frank expressed the most
exultant confidence in the outcome of

the appeal; and declared that, at last,

the case had reached a tribunal which
would not be influenced by "mob
•frenzy, psychic intoxication, jungle

fury," and the rest of it.

After the United States Supreme
Court patiently heard Frank's law-

yers, and solemnly assured "mankind"
that the State of Georgia had not been

-shown to have denied Frank any legal

right, was "mankind" satisfied? By no
means. "Mankind" gasped in silence

•a few days, and then broke out into a

•more furious roar than ever, just as

though the highest of courts had not
• decided the case in our favor.

It must have cost '"''mankind'''' mil-

lions of dollars to lynch the Georgia

courts.) with outside mobs.

Frank "was convicted on the evi-

dence of a vicious negro criminal."

So says the Daily States, saying it, not

because it is true, but because all the

other Frankites say it. Without the

negro, James Marshall, Becker could

not have been convicted, and the high-

est New York court so held. Whether
James Marshall is a criminal, I do not

know; but the official record in the

Frank case shows that Jim Conley was
never a criminal until he became the

accomplice of his master, Leo Frank.
May I ask the Daily States to take

my word for it, that the laiv of Geor-

gia does not allow any man to he con-

victed on the testimony of an accom-

plice?

The so-called vicious negro criminal

was confessedly the accomplice of Leo
Frank; and therefore the laio made
it necessary for Solicitor Dorsey to

practically make out the whole case

against Frank., without relying at all

upon the negro''s evidence.

When that miserable little Jew jack-

ass, Clarence Shearn, of the New York
Supreme Court, was sent by his owner,

Mr. Hearst, to review the record in

the Frank case ; and when he wrote an
opinion in which he stated that there

was no evidence against Frank, save

that of the accomplice, he virtually

charged our Supreme Court—as well

as Judge Roan—with having violated

their oaths of office.

Little Shearn does not know enough
of Georgia law to be aware of the fact

that nobody can be convicted on the

evidence of an accomplice; and that,

under our Supreme Court decisions,

such evidence is almost valueless. The
case must he made out independently

of the accomplice^ to well-nigh the

same extent as though he had not tes-

tified.

This being the law in Georgia, how
can editors who wish to tell the truth.
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continue to say that Frank was con-

victed by his accomplice?

Assuming that the great majority of

tlie American people want to know the

truth, and want the law enforced

wherever crime is proved, I invite

everj' fair-minded reader to come with

me as I go into the olficial record—

a

summary of the sworn testimony,

agreed on by the lawyers for both

sides, and sanctioned by the trial

judge.

But before turning to the dry leaves

of the Brief of Evidence, let me ask

you to look upon the girl herself, as

she appeared in life to one who seems

to have known her well. Writing to

The Christian Standard, in protest

against an editorial in the Chri^tmn-

Evangelist^ A. M. Beatty says

:

Mary Phagan was a member of the

Adrial class of the First Christian Bible

School, and the last act she did on earth

was to iron with her own hands her white

dress that she might be present the next

day and help in winning a contest. The
Sunday she expected to be at Bible School

she was lying on a slab in an undertaker's

in the same block as the First Church is

located, having met death in a horrible

manner.

It is very complete—that little pic-

ture, drawn in two sentences. Mary
Phagan, not quite 14 years old, iron-

ing the white dress she meant to wear

to the Bible school, next day. The
First Christian Church stands near

the morgue, and as she day-dreamed

of the morrow, and the contest in her

class, she saw the temple, and the

wliite-dressed girls who would be her

companions: she did not see the

morgue.
The pity of it ! The garment which

she washed and ironed became her

shroud, after she had been to the

morgue, instead of to the church

!

Surely, fate has seldom been more
cruel to a perfectly innocent child.

Mrs. J. W. Coleman was the first

witness for the State. She testified:

"I am Mary Phagan's mother. I

last saw her alive, on April 26th, 1913.

She was getting ready to go to the

pencil factory to get her pay envelope.

About 11:30 she ate some cabbage and
bread. She left home at a quarter to

twelve. She would have been fourteen

years old on the first day of June.

Was fair complected, heavy set, very

pretty, and was extra large for her

age. She had dimples on her cheeks."

(Witness described how her daugh-
ter was dressed, and identified as

Mary's, the articles of clothing shown
her—clothing taken from the corpse.)

George Epps, a white boy, was the

next witness. He A-as fourteen years

old, and was neighbor to Mary's fam-

ily. He rode on the street car with

MaiT as she came into the city. She
told him she was going to the pencil

factory to get her money, and would
then go to the Elkin-Watson place to

see the Veterans' parade at 2 o'clock.

•"She never showed up. I stayed

around there until 4 o'clock, and then

went to the ball game.

"AVlien I left her at the corner of

Forsyth and Marietta Streets . . .

slie went over the bridge to the pencil

factory, about two blocks down For-

syth Street."

The boy put the time of his separa-

tion from the girl at 12:07, but on

cross- examination, he said, first, that

he knew it by Bryant Keheley's clock,

and then, by the sun.

(The immateriality of the variations

in time, except on Leo Frankh own
clock, will be shown directly.)

The next witness for the State was

Newt Lee, the negro night-watch at

the factory. He had been working

there only about three weeks. Leo

Frank had taken him over the build-

ing, and instructed him in his duties.

On every day, except Saturdays, he

was to go on duty at 6 o'clocck p. m.

On Saturdays, at 5 o'clock.

On Friday, the 2oth of April, Frank
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said to Newt, "Tomorrow is holiday,

and I want you to come back at 4

o'clock, I want to get off a little earlier

than usual."

Newt then went on to say that he

got to the factory on Saturday about

three or four minutes before four.

The front door was not locked; he had
never found it locked on Saturday
evenings. But there are double doors

half way up the steps, which he had
always found unlocked before, but

which, this Saturday evening, he

found locked.

He took his keys and unlocked this

stair-way door, and went on up-stairs

to the second floor, where Frank's

office was.

Newt announced his arrival, as he

had always done, by calling out, "All

right. Mr. Frank!"
"And he come bustling out of his

office, . . . and says, 'Newt, I am
sorry I had you come so soon: you
could have been at home sleeping. I

tell you what you do: you go out in

town and have a good time.'

"

Newt stated that always before

when Frank had anything to say to

him, he would say, "Step here a min-

ute. Newt."
This time, Frank came bustling

toward the negro, rubbing his

hands; and when Newt asked to be

allowed to go into the shipping room
to get some sleep, Frank answered,

"You need to have a good time. You
go downtown, stay an hour and a

half, and come back your usual time

at 6 o'clock. Be sure to come back at

G o'clock."

Newt did as he was told, returned

to the factory at two minutes before

six, and found the stair doors un-

locked. Frank took the slip out of

the time-clock and put in a new one.

"It took him twice as long this time

as it did the other times I saw him
fix it. He fumbled, putting it in."

After the slip had been put in, Newt

punched his time, and went on down
stairs.

Mr. J. M. Gantt came to the front
door and asked Newt for permission
to go up stairs after an old pair of
shoes he had left there, some time
before, when be was employed at the
factory. Newt answered that he was
not allowed to let anyone inside after

six o'clock.

"About that time Mr. Frank came
bustling out of the door, and ran into

Gantt unexpected, and he jumped
back frightened."

Gantt asked Frank if he had any
objection to his going up stairs after

his old shoes.

Frank answered, "I don't think they
are up there. I think I saw a boy
sweep some up in the trash the other
day."

Gantt asked what sort of shoes he
saw the boy sweep out, and Frank
said they were "tans."

Gantt replied, "Well, I had a pair

of black ones, too."

"Frank says, 'Well, I don't know,'
and dropped his head down, just so"

—illustrating.

"Then, he raised his head, and says,

'Newt, go with him and stay with
him, and help him find them," And
I went up there with Mr. Gantt, and
found them in the shipping room,
two pair, the tans and the black ones,

too."

That night, after seven o'clock,

Frank telephoned to Newt, and asked,

"How's everything?"

That was the first time he had ever

phoned tlie night watch on a Satur-

day night. He did not ask about

Gantt.

There is a gas jet in the basement
at the foot of the ladder, and Frank
had told Newt to keep it burning all

the time.

"I left it Saturday morning burn-

ing bright. When I got there, on
making my rounds at 7 o'clock p. m.
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on the 26th of April, it was burning

just as low as you could turn it, like

a lightning Inig. AVhen 3 o'clock

came" (after midniffht. of course,) "I

went down to the basement. ... I

went down to the toilet, and when I

got through I looked at the dust bin

back to the door" (the back door

opening on the alley) "to see how the

door was. and it being dark, I picked

up my lantern and went there, and I

saw something laying there, which I

thought some of the boys had put

there to scare me: then I walked a

little piece towards it, and I saw

what it was, and I got out of there.

"I got up the ladder, and called the

police station: it was after 3 o'clock.

"/ tried to get Mr. Frank, and was

still trying when the (police) officers

came. I guess I was trying (to get

Frank to answer the telephone) about

eight minutes.

"I saw Mr. Frank Sunday morn-

ing (the same morning), at about 7

or 8 o'clock. He was coming in the

office. He looked down on the floor,

and never spoke to me. He dropped

his head down, right this way"

—

illustrating.

"Boots Rogers, Chief Lanford,

Darley, Frank and I were there when

they opened the clock. Mr. Frank

opened the clock, and saw the punches

were all right. I punched every half

hour from 6 o'clock p. m. to 3 o'clock

a. m.

"On Tuesday night, April 29th, at

about 10 o'clock, I had a conversation

at the station house with Mr. Frank.

They handcuffed me to a chair.

"They went and got Mr. Frank and

brought him in, and he sat down next

to the door. He dropped his head

and looked doAvn. We were all alone.

I said, 'Mr. Frank, it's mighty hard
on me to be handculi'ed here for

something that I don't know anything

about.'

"He said, 'What's the difference ?

They have got me locked up, and a

man guarding me.'

"I said, 'Mr. Frank, do you believe

I committed this crime?'

"He said, 'No, Newt, I know you
didn't; hut I believe you know some-

thing ahout it.''

'T said, 'Mr. Frank, I don't know
a thing about it, more tlian finding

the body.'

"He said, 'We are not talking about

that now: we will let that go. // you
keep that up, we will both go to hell.''

"Then the officers came in. When
Mr. Frank came out of his office that

Saturday (evening) he was looking

down, and rubbing his hands. I had
never seen him rub his hands that

way before."

Newt stated, on cross-examination,

that he would not have gone so far

back in the basement, and would not

have seen the body, if a call of nature

down there had not caused him to

use the toilet which was near the

corpse.

"When I got through, I picked up
my lantern; I walked a few steps

that way ; I seed something over there,

about that much of the lady's leg

and dress"—illustrating.

"I think I reported to the police

that it was a white woman. When I

first got there, I didn't think it was

a white woman, because her face was
so dirty, and her hair crinkled.

"When I was in the basement (the

morning the body was found), one

of the policemen read the note that

they found. They read these words.

'The tall, black, slim negro did this,

he will try to lay it on the nigh* ' and

when they got to the word 'night,' I

said, ''They must he trying to put it

off on me.''
"

(Note that the negro is corrobor-

ated on this point by Sergeant Dobbs.

the next witness; and bear it in mind
because of its extreme importance—as

you will soon see.)

Sergeant L. S. Dobbs testified that
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a call came to the police headquarters

at about 3 :25, on the morning of

April 27th, and he went to the pen-

cil factory, descended to the basement
by means of the trap-door and ladder.

The negro led the officers back to the

body, about 150 feet.

"The girl was lying on her face^ not

directly lying on her stomach, with

the left side up just a little. We
couldn't tell hy looking at her whether
she was while or black, only by her

golden hair. They turned her over.

and her face was full of dirt and
dust. They took a piece of paper
and rubbed the dirt off her face, and
we could tell then that it was a white

girl. I pulled up her clothes, and
could tell by the skin of the laiee that

it was a white girl. Her face was
punctured, full of holes, and swollen

and hlack. She had a cut on the left

side of her head, as if she had been

struck, and there was a little blood

there. The cord was around her neck,

sunk into the flesh. She also had a

piece of her underclothing around
her neck. The cord was still tight

around her neck. The tongue was
protruding just the least bit. The
cord was pulled tight, and had cut

into the flesh, and tied just as tight

as it could be. The underclothing

around the neck was not tight.

"There wasn't much blood on her

head. It was dry on the outside. I

stuck my finger under the hair, and
it was a little moist.

"This scratch pad was lying on the

ground, close to the body. I found
the notes under the sawdust, lying

near the head. The pad was lying

near the notes. They were all right

close together.

'''Newt Lee told us it was a white

woman.

"There was a trash pile near the

boiler, where this hat was found, and
paper and pencils down there, too.

The hat and shoe were on the trash

pile. Everything was gone off it,

ribbons and all.

"/^ looked like she had been

dragged on her face hy her feet. I
thought the places on her face had
been made by dragging. That was a

dirt floor, with cinders on it, scattered

over the dirt.

"The place where I thought I saw
some one dragged was right in front

of the elevator., directly back. The
little trail where I thought showed
the body was dragged, went straight

071 down (from in front of the ele-

vator) where the girl was found. It

was a continuous trail.

"The body was cold and stiflF.

Hands folded across the breast.

"/ didn't find any blood on the

ground., or on the saw dust., around
where we found the body.

"The sign of dragging . . . started

east of the ladder. A man going
down the ladder to the rear of the

basement, would not go in front of
the elevator where the dragging was.

"A man couldnH get down that lad-

der loith another person. It is diffi-

cult for one person to get through

that scuttle hole. The back door was
shut: staple had been pulled."

''''The lock was locked still. It was
a sliding door, with a bar across the

door, but the bar had been taken

down. It looked like the staple had
been recently drawn.

"I was reading one of the notes to

Lee, with the following words, ''A tall.,

black negro did this; he will try to

lay it on the nighty'' and when I got

to the word 'night,' Lee says, ''That

means the night watchman!'
"I found the handkerchief on a

sawdust pile, about ten feet from the

body. It was bloody, just as it is now.

"The trap-door leading up from the

basement was closed when we got

there."

City Officer John N. Starnes was
the State's next witness. Ho testified

to reaching the factory between 5 and
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6 o'clock that Sunday morning. He
called up Leo Frank, and asked him
to come, right away.

"He said he hadn't had any break-

fast. He asked where the night

watchman was. I told him it was

very necessary for him to come, and

if he would come, T would send an

automobile for him.

"/ didn't tell him what had hap-

pened^ and he didn't ask me.

"When Frank arrived at the fac-

tory, a few minutes later, he appeared

to be nervous; he teas in a trembling

co7idition. Leo was composed.

"It takes not over three minutes to

walk from Marietta Street, at the

corner of Forsyth, across the viaduct,

and through Forsyth Street, down to

tho factory.

"I chipped two places off the back

door, tchich looked, like they had

blood]/ finger prints.''''

(Let me here remind the reader,

that Jim Conle3\ a State's witness,

could have been required by Leo

Frank's lawyers to make the imprint

of his fingers while he was on the

stand, and if these finger marks had

resembled those made on the back door,

Frank woidd have gone free, and the

negro would, have swung. The State,

however, could not ask Leo Frank to

make his finger-prints, for to have

done so, would have been requiring

him to furnish evidence against him-

self.

My information is that Conley's

lawyer, W. M. Smith, after he had

agreed with the Burns Agency to help

them fix the crime on his client, went

to the convict camp, where Conley

was working out his sentence, a7id got

his firiger-prints, twice.

Be this as it may, Franl-^s attorneys

dared, not ask the negro to make the

prints, when they had him on the

stand.

You can draw your own conclu-

sions.

Burns and Lehon do not amount to

anything much as detectives; but even

these amateurs know something of

the Bertillon system; and if those

finger-prints on the back door had not

been Leo Frank^s, Burns and Lehon
would most certainly have proven
that much, by actual demonstration^

and thus put the crime on Jim Con-
ley, or upon some other person than

their client, Frank.)

The next witness was W. W. Rog-
ers. He and John Black went after

Frank, following Starnes' telephone

communication. Mrs Frank opened
the door, and was asked if Frank was
in. He came forward, partly dressed,

and asked if anything had happened
at the factory. No answer being

returned, he inquired, "Did the night-

watchman call up and report any-

thing to you?"
Mr. Black asked him to finish dress-

ing, and accompany them to the fac-

tory, and see what had happened.

"Frank said that he thought he

dreamt in the morning, about 3

o'clock, about hearing the telephone

ring."

Witness said Frank appeared ex-

tremely nervous, and called for a cup

(;f coffee. He was rubbing his hands.

When they had taken seats in the

automobile, one of the officers asked

him if he knew a little girl named
Mary Phagan.
Frank answered, "Does she work at

the factory?"

Rogers said, "I think she does":

and Frank added, "I cannot tell

whether she works there or not, until

I look at my pay-roll book. I know
very few of the girls that work there.

I pay them ofl', but I very seldom go

back in the factory."

The witness spoke of Frank's con-

duct at the morgue, and although the

purpose of taking him there was to

have him view the corpse, the witness

never saw Frank look at it, but did

see him step away into a side room.
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From tlie luoigue, the party went

to the pencil factory, where Frank

opened the safe, took out his time-

book, consulted it, and said: "Yes,

Mary Phagan worked here. She was

here yesterday to get her pay."

He said :
"/ iciJl tell you about the

exact time she left here. My stenog-

rapher left about 12 o'clock, and a

few minutes after she left, the office

boy left, and Mary came in and got

her pay and lefty

(Note, later on. that other girls

were at Frank's office, the same Sat-

urday morning, and that he never-

theless fixed the exact time of the

arrival of the girl he did not know.

And he fixed it right.)

"He then wanted to see where the

girl was found. Mr. Frank went

around to the elevator, where there

was a switch box on the wall, and put

the switch in. The box was not

locked. As to what Mr. Frank ^aid

about the murder, I don't know that I

heard him express himself, except

down in the basement.

The officers showed him where the

body was found, and he made the

remark* that it was too bad, or some-

thing like that."

(Frank was not under arrest at this

time, and Newt Lee was. Nothing, as

yet, had been said about Conley.)

On cross-examination, the witness

stated that "we didn't know it was a

white girl or not until we rubbed
the dirt from the child's face, and
pulled down her stocking a little

piece. The tongue was not sticking

out : it was wedged between her teeth.

She had dirt in her eye and mouth.
The cord around her neck was drawn
so tight it was sunk m her flesh, and
the piece of underskirt was loose over
her hair.

"'She was lying on her face, icifh

her hands folded up. One of her eyes

was blackened. There were several

littel scratches on her face. A bruise

on the left side of her head, some dry

blood in her hair.

"There was some excrement in the

elevator shaft. When we went down
on the elevator, the elevator mashed

it. You could smell it all around.

"No one could have seen the body

at the morgue unless he was some-

where near me. I was inside, and Mr.

Frank never came into that little

room, where the corpse lay. When the

face was turned toward me, Mr. Frank

stepped out of my vision in the direc-

tion of Mr. Gheesling's (the under-

taker's) sleeping room."

Miss Grace Hicks testified that she

worked on the second floor at the fac-

tory, Mary Phagan's machine was

riffht next to the dreesing room, and

in going to the closet, the men who
worked on that floor passed within

two or three feet of Mary. Between

the closet of the men and of the

women, there was "just a partition."

The witness had identified the body

at the morgue early Sunday morn-

ing, April 2Tth. "I Iniew her by her

hair. She was fair-skinned, had light

hair, blue eyes, and was heavy built,

well developed for her age. She

weighed about 115 pounds. Magnolia

Kennedy''s hair is nearly the color of

Mary Phagan''s\"

John R. Black, the next witness for

the State, testified that he went with

Rogers to Frank's house. "Mrs. Frank

came to the door: she had on a bath-

robe. I stated that I would like to

see Mr. Frank, and about that time

Mr. Frank stepped out from behind

a curtain. His voice was hoarse and

trembling and nervous and excited.

He looked to me like he was pale.

He seemed nervous in handling his

collar: he could not get his tie tied,

and talked very rapid in asking

what had happened. He kept on in-

sisting for a cup of coffee.

"When we got into the automobile.

Mr. Frank wanted to know what had
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happened at the factory, and / asked
him if he knew Mary Phagan, and
told him she had been found dead in

the hasement. Mr. Frank said he did.

not know any girl hy the name of
Mary Phagan, that he knew very few
of the emploj'ees.

"In the iinaertaking establishment,

Mr. Frank looked at her: he gave a

casual glance at her, and stepped
aside: I couldn't say whether he saw
the face of the girl or not. There
was a curtain hanging near the room,
and Mr. Frank stepped behind the

curtain.

"Mr. Frank stated, as we left the

undertaker's, that he didn't know the

girl, but he believed he had paid her
off on Saturday. Fie thought he rec-

ognized her being at the factory Sat-

urday by the dress that she wore.

At the factory, Mr. Frank took the

slip out (of the time clock), looked
over it, and said it had been punched
correctly. (That is, the slip showed
that Newt Lee had punched every
half-hour during the night before.)

"On Monday and Tuesday follow-

ing, jSfr. Frank stated that the clock

had been mispunched three times.

"I saw Frank take it out of the

clock, and went with it back toicard

his office.

"When Mr. Frank was down at the

police station, on Monday morning
(the next after the corpse was found).

Mr. Rosser and Mr. Haas were there.

Mr. Haas stated, in Frank's presence,

that he was Franks attorney. This
was about 8, or 8:30 Monday morn-
ing. Thafs the first time he had
counsel with him^.''''

(Observe that the Jews employed
the best legal talent, before the Gen-
tiles had even suspected Frank''s guilt.

Why did his rich Jewish connec-

tions feel so sure of his need of emi-

nent lawyers, that they employed
Eosser, evidently on Sunday, since

city lawyers do not open their offices

before 8 o^clock.)

"Mr. Frank was nervous Monday:
after his release, he seemed very

jovial.

"On Tuesday night, Frank said, at

the station house, that there was no-

body at the factory at 6 o'clock but

Newt Lee, and that Newt Lee ought
to know more about it, as it was his

duty to look over the factory every

thirty minutes."

(Note Frank's deliberate direction

of suspicion to the "tall, slim night-

watch," upon whom the notes place

the crime. Frank was virtually tell-

ing the police the same thing that the

notes told, viz., that Newt Lee com-
mitted the crime.)

"On Tuesday night, Mr. Scott and
myself suggested to Mr. Frank to talk

to Newt Lee. They went in a room,

and stayed about five or ten minutes,

alone. I couldn't hear enough to

swear that I understood what was
said. ' Mr. Frank said that Newt stuck

to the story that he knew notlilng

about it.

"Mr. Frank stated that Mr. Gantt
Avas there on Saturday evening, and
that he told Lee to let him get the

shoes, but to watch him, as he knew
the surroundings of the office.

''''After this conversation Gantt was
arrested.''''

(Observe that Frank's allusion to

Gantt could have had no other pur-

pose than to direct suspicion toward
him; and that, while Frank was seek-

ing to involve two innocent men, he

did not breathe a suspicion of Jim
Conley, whom he knew to have been

in the factory when Mary Phagan
came for her pay.)

After the visit to the morgue, the

party went to the factory, where
Frank got the book, ran his finger

down until he came to the name of

Mary Phagan, and said: "Yes, this

little girl worked here, and I paid her

$1.20 yesterday."

"We went all over the factory. No-
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body saw that blood spot that morn-

ing,"

Mr. Haas, as Frank's attorney, had

told witness to go out to Frank's

house, and search for the clothes he

had worn the week before, and the

laundry, too.

Frank went with them, and showed

them the dirty linen.

"I examined Newt Lee's house. I

found a bloody shirt at the bottom of

a clothes barrel there, on Tuesday

morning, about 9 o'clock."

On re-direct examination, the wit-

ness stated that Frank said, after

looking over the time sheet, and see-

ing that it had not been punched cor-

rectly, that it would have given Lee

an hour to have gone out to his

house and hacky
(Evidently, Frank knew where this

negro lived, and how long it required

for him to go home that Saturday

night, and return to the factory where

the girl's body lay. This new time-

slip gave Newt an hour unaccounted

for; and, in connection with the

l3loody shirt, the new time-slip began

to make the case look ugly for Newt,

"the tall, slim night-watch," whom
the writer of the notes accused.)

J. M. Gantt was next put up by

the State, and his evidence, in sub-

stance, was:

That he had been shipping clerk

and time-keeper at the pencil fac-

tory, and that Frank had discharged

him on April 7th, for an alleged

shortage of $2 in the pay-roll.

He had known Mary Phagan since

she was a little girl, and that Frank

knew her., too.

One Saturday afternoon, she came

in the office to have her time cor-

rected, by Gantt, and after Gantt had

gotten through with her, Mr. Frank

came in and said: ^''You seem to

know Mary pretty well.''''

After Gantt was discharged, he

went back to the factory on two occa-

sions, "il/r. Frank saiv me both times.

He made no objections to my going

there.""

One girl used to get the pay en-

velope for another, with Frank's

knowledge. Gantt swore' he knew

nothing of how the $2 shortage in the

pay roll occurred. Frank discharged

him because Gantt refused to make it

good.

Gantt described how Frank had

behaved at 6 o'clock Saturday eve-

ning when he, Gantt, went for his

shoes. Standing at the front door,

Gantt saw Frank coming down the

stairs, and when Frank saw Gantt,

"he kind of stepped back, like he was

going to go back, but when he looked

up and saw I was looking at him, he

came on out, and I said, 'Howdy, Mr.

Frank,' and he sorter jumped again."

Then Gantt asked permission to go

up for his shoes, and Frank hesitated,

studied a little, inquired the kind of

shoes, was told they were tans, and

stated that he thought he had seen a

negro sweep them out. But when

Gantt said he had left a black pair,

also, Frank "studied" a little bit, and

told Newt to go with Gantt, and stay

with him till he got his shoes. Gantt

went up, and found both pair, right

where he had left them.

"Mr.. Frank looked pale, hung his

head, and kind of hesitated and stut-

tered, like he didn't like me in there,

somehow or other."

(On the strength of what Frank

insinuated against Gantt, he was ar-

rested before Frank was, and not

released until Thursday night.)

:Mrs. J. A. ^^^lite, sworn for the

State, said that she went to the fac-

tory to see her husband, who was at

work there, on April 26th. She went

at 11:30, and stayed till 11:50, when

she left. She returned about 12:30,

and saw Frank standing before the

safe, in his outer office. "I asked him

if Mr. White had gone back to work;

he jumped, like I surprised him, and

turned and said, 'Yes.'

"
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She went up stairs to see her hus-

band, and while she was np there,

about 1 o'clock. Frank came up and
told Mr. White that if she wanted to

get out before 3 o'clock, she had bet-

ter come doAvn. as lie ws going to

leave, and lock the door, and that she

had better he ready hy the time he
covld get his coat and hat.

Mrs. White testified to this tre-

mendously important fact

:

"As I was going on down the steps,

/ saw a negro sitting on a box., close

to the stairway on the first floor.

"Mr. Frank did not have his coat or
hat on when I passed out."

On cross-examination, this lady
swore: "I saw a negro sitting be-

tween the stairway and the door^

about five or six feet fom the foot of
the stairway."

While Mrs. White was talking to

her husband, between 11 :30 and 11 :50.

she saw Miss Corinthia Rail and Mrs.
Emma Freeman there, and they left

before she did.

(Mrs. White did not work at the
factory, and did not know Jim Con-
ley. The place where she saw a

negro sitting, was where Jim sat when
he had nothing else to do. Picture to

yourself the interior of the factory, as

Mrs. White departs at about 1 o'clock

that fatal Saturday.
Two carpenters are at work on the

fourth floor, tearing out a partition

and putting up a new one. and they
are 40 feet bach from the elevator.

Frank is sitting on the second floor.

near the head of the stairs; and Jim
Conley is seated at the foot of the

same stairs, on the floor below, not
more than thirty feet from his white
boss.

The lady passes on out. leaving

these two men practically together.

According to his own statemen to the

police officers, Frank has already had
Mary Phagan, in his office., in his

possession, between the first departure

of Mrs. White at 11 :50 and her second

coming at 12:30!

Frank's own admission put the girl

alone with him in his private office,

shortly after the noon hour; and when
Mrs. White returns at 30 minutes

after the noon hour, the girl is no-

where to be seen.

AAHio can account for Mary between

these times? And who can account

for Frank?
Here is the tragedy, hemmed within

the first departure and the second

arrival of Mrs. White—a space which

could not be filled by any two human
beings, excepting Jim Conley and Leo
Frank.

We will see, later, how each of the

two filled it.)

Harry Scott, the State's next wit-

ness, was Superintendent of the local

branch of the Pinkerton Detective

Agency. He was employed by Frank
for the pencil factory.

In Frank's private office, Monday
afternoon, April 28th. the detective

heard Frank's detailed account of hia

movements the Saturday before. Frank
told of his going to Montag's. and of

the coming of Mrs. White.

"He then stated that Mary Phagan
came into the factory at 12:10 p. m.,

to draw her pay; that she had been

laid otf the Monday previous, and she

was paid $1.20, and that he paid her

off in his inside office., where he was
at his desk, and when she left his

office and went into the outer office

she had reached the outer office door,

leading into the hall, and turned

around to Mr. Frank, and asked if the

metal had come yet. Mr. Frank re-

plied that he didn't know, and that

Mary Phagan, he thought, reached the

stairway, and he heard voices, but he

couldn't distinguish whether they

were men or girls talldng."

Later, witness stated that it was

before !Mary came that Frank said he

heard the voices—before 12 o'clock.
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(Let me explain that Mary worked

on P^rank's floor, some distance back

of his office, and that she placed metal

tips on the pencils. The supply of

this metal gave out, and more was

ordered, but in the meantime Mary
was unemployed. Her question, "Has

the metal come?" was therefore equiv-

alent to, "AVill there be work tor me
next Monday?"

Note particularly that in his private

conference with his own detective, he

did not pretend that he had not

knoicn Mary Phagan. On the con-

trary, see what Scott says further on.)

"He (Frank) also stated, during

our conversation, that Gantt knew
Mary Phagan very well, and that he

was familiar, and intimate with her.

He seemed to lay special stress on it.

at the time. He said that Gantt paid

a good deal of attention to her."

(The morning before, he did not

know her, and had to consult his book

!

Although he had passed within three

feet of her, every day when he went to

the toilet, and had paid her off every

week, for about a year, he did not

know any girl of that name!)
Mr. Herbert J. Haas (later the

Chairman of the Frank Finance Com-
mittee) told the detective to report to

him. first, before letting the public

know "what evidence we had gathered.

We told him we would withdraw

from the case before ice would adopt

any practice of that sort.''''

Scott asked Frank to use his influ-

ence as employer with Newt Lee, and

to try to get him to tell what he Imew,

Frank consented, and the two were

put in a private room, in order that

Frank might get something out of

the "tall, slim night-watch."

"When about ten minutes was up,

Mr. Black and I entered the room,

and Lee hadn't finished his conversa-

tion with Frank, and was saying:

*Mr. Frank, it is awful hard for me
to remain handcuffed to this chair.

and Frank hung his head the entire

time the negro was talking to him,

and finally, in about thirty seconds,

he said, 'Well, they have got me, too.'

After that, we asked Mr. Frank if he

had gotten anything out of the negro,

and he said, ''No, Lee still sticks to his

original story.''

"Mr. Frank was extremely nervous

at that time. He was very squirmy in

his chair, crossing one leg after the

other, and didnH know where to put

his hands; he was moving them up

and down his face, and he hung his

head a great deal of the time while

the negro was talking to him. He
hreathed very heavily, and took deep

sivalloirs, and hesitated somewhat. His

eyes were about the same as they are

now.

"That interview between Lee and

Frank took place shortly after mid-

night, Wednesday, April 30. On Mon-

day afternoon, Frank said to me that

the first punch on Newt Lee's slip

was 6:33 p. m., and his last punch

was 3 a. m. Sunday. He didn't say

anything at that time about there

being any error in Lee''s punches. Mr.

Black and I took Mr. Frank into cus-

tody about 11:30 a. m.. Tuesday.

April 29th.

^''His hands were quivering very

much, he was very pale. On Sunday,

May 3, I went to Frank's cell at the

jail with Black, and / asked Mr.

Frank if, from the time he arrived at

the factory from Montag Bros.\ up

until 12:50 p. m., the time he went

upstairs to the fourth floor, was he

inside of his office the entire time, and

he stated, 'Yes:

•'Then I asked him if he was inside

his office every minute from 1% o''clock

until 12:30, and he said, 'Yes.''

"I made a very thorough search of

the area around the elevator and

radiator, and back in there. I made

a surface search; I found nothing at

all. I found no ribbon or purse, or

pay envelope, or bludgeon or stick. I

spent a great deal of time around the
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trap dooi\ and I remember running
the light around the doorway^ right

close to the elevator^ looking for
splotches of hlood^ hut I found noth-

ing.''''

(No effort was made to impeach
Harry Scott, and the whole brunt of

Rosser's cross-examination was to com-
pel the witness to admit that Frank
answered the girl's question about the

metal, by saying, "iVc," instead of, "/

donH hnowP
If Frank answered, "TVc*," her in-

quiry ended right there, and there was
nothing for the girl to linger for: she

would go on down stairs. But if her

question, "Has the metal come?" was
answered by, "I don't know," the girl

herself would want to learn^ for cer-

tain^ ichether there loould he any need

for her to return Monday morning.
As the next day was Sunday, there

would be no work for her on Monday,
unless the metal were already on hand.

because, if it reached Atlanta Sunday,
it would not be delivered at the fac-

tory until some time after the work
hours began on Monday.

Therefore, when Frank told his own
detective, in their first confidential

talk, that he gave the girl's question

a reply which necessarily left her in

doubt, he stated a fact that leads to

the reasonable, if not inevitable con-

clusion, that either he or she proposed
that one or the other—or both—go to

the metal room, and see!

To make certain whether the new
metal had come, she would go to the

room where she worked, and look. If

the metal had come, and was ready
for use next week, it was there!

Now, when you examine page 25 of

the official Brief of Evidence, and
find that Eosser's assault on the wit-

ness was directed chiefly to this point,

you naturally ask, Why did it make
such a difference? Why did Frank's
lawyer so strenuously endeavor to

make it appear that the girl's inquirj^

was answered, "No," instead of, "I'

don't know?"
If she was murdered below, on the

first floor, or in the basement, what
did it matter^ whether or not she

went to the metal room^ on the second

floor?

If Jim Conley, sitting at the foot of

the stairway, assaulted the girl as she

was passing out, and either killed her

there, or threw her down into the

basement, where he afterwards killed

her, what difference did it make, if

the white man, at the head of the

stairway., told the girl he didn't know
whether the metal had come?

If the evidence places the crime on«

any other floor than Frank's own, why
battle with the witness as to what
was said and done on Frank's floor?

There is but one answer: the physi-

cal indications were on Frank's floor,

partly in the metal room, and partly

in the next, on the way to the ele-

vator. Rosser umnted to keep Frank
and Mary arcay from, that metal roomy
where a tress of her hair hung on the

projecting crank of a bench-lathe, and
where some of her blood had stained

the floor.

Rosser dared not leave unassailed

the answer of Frank to Mary, which
opened the way naturally for a visit

to the metal room, at the back end of

the building, where he could close the

door, and have her securely entrapped.

Let us now take the next witness,

Monteen Stover—a girl of about the

same age as Mary—and who also

worked at the facto^5^ She. too. came
for her wages on Memorial Day, April

2Gth. She testified

:

"I was at the factory at 5 minutes
after 12 o'clock that day. I stayed

there 5 minutes and left at 10 minutes

after 12. I went there to get my
money.

"I went in Mr. Frank's office: he-

was not there. I didn't see or hear
anj'bod}'' in the building.
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^'The door to the metal room ivas

olosed.

''I looked at the clock on my way
up.

"/ icent through the first office into

the second office.''^

Pray note that the crucial minutes

in this terrible case are fixed by

Frank''s own clock. The witnesses are

in full view of it, as they go up and

down the stairs. Newt Lee, Mrs. J.

A. White, Miss Monteen Stover, and

all the others who testify as to what
happens in the factory, that Satur-

day, go by this clock. Presumably.

Frank himself does so, in telling his

detective about his movements that

morning.

The gubernatorial Benedict Arnold
who betrayed his people and became
the national hero of rich Jews, de-

clared to the world that Leo Frank
must haA'e been in his inner office

when ]Monteen Stover called. I men-
tion the fact, because it proves that

John M. Slaton must be morally cer-

tain where his client and his clienfs

victim were^ while Monteen tvas wait-

ing in the vacant offices. Nothing
but the closed door of that metal room
kept Monteen from catching Slaton's

guilty client in the very act!

While the one girl was waiting in

the empty and silent offices, the other

was in the metal room, unconscious,

and soon to be dead.

Slaton ravished the official record,

by telling an easily duped public that

Leo Frank was in his second office at

from 12:05 to 12:10. This corrupt

traitor knows that unless Frank can

be stationed in his office, at that iden-

tical time, he assaulted and murdered
the girl. Consequentl3^ Slaton rapes

the record, and puts his client where
he was not, in order that the Avorld

may not know where he teas; namely,

behind the closed door of the metal
room. Avhere the crime was being com-
mitted, as Monteen Stover waited for

(the missinj; Frank.

On page 243 of the official record

appears a statement made by Frank

to N. A. Lanford, Chief of Detectives,

on Monday morning, April 28th,

1913:

"The office boy and stenographer

were with me in the office mitil noon.

They left about 12, or a little after."

(This was true.) After they left, "this

little girl, Mary Phagan, came in, but

at the time I did not know that was

her name.

"She came in between 12:05 and

12:10, maybe 12:07, to get her pay-

envelope, her salar3^ I paid her, and

she went out of the office. ... It was

my impression that she just walked

away."

This statement, which Frank knew
was being reduced to writing, accords

with what he told the officers who
went to his house Sunday morning.

He was accurate in fixing the time

when his stenographer left (as you

will see later), and he was also accu-

rate in fixing the time of Mary Pha-

gan's arrival.

He did not then know that Monteen

Stover had followed so closely upon
the heels of Mary, and was in his

office at the very time when an inno-

cent Leo Frank would have been there.

Slaton knew that Frank had to be

in his office from 12:05 to 12:10, else

he lolled the girl; and of course

Frank knew it, too.

Therefore, the murderer tells his

detective, and the city officers, that he

was in his office, at the crucial time;

and when an unexpected, and unim-

peachable, witness turns up, and

swears that he was not in his office, at

the crucial time, one of his attorneys

issues a gubernatorial proclamation

which obliterates Monteen Stover^s

testimony, and restores his guilty

client to the place of innocence which

the murderer took for himself, before

he knew of Monteen''s being in his

office while he was committing the

crime in the metal room.
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After an intelligent white girl—of

flawless character, and Mith no con-

ceivable motive for perjiHT—swears
positively that she went to Frank';*

office to get her money, and that she
looked fgr him in both rooms—the

outer and the inner offices

—

Governor
John M. Slaton argued to the public
that his client was in the second

office, during the whole -five minutes
that the girl was looking and tcaiting

for h im !

Could there be moral turpitude
blacker than that of a Governor who
prostitutes his office to protect blood-
guilt, and who endeavors to hide his

own baseness by falsifying the oflScial

records of his State?

Slaton did, Avith a spurt of his pen.

that which Burns, Rabbi Marx,
Frank's wife, and Samuel Boornstein
were unable to do by persuasion or

by threat—he got rid of the evidence
which convicts Leo Frank of the mur-
der of Mary Phagan. The most per-

sistent, unprecedented, and illegal

methods were used by the Burns De-
tective Agency, and by Rabbi Marx
to induce this honest young woman,
Monteen Stover, to perjure herself;

but these outrageous efforts were
foiled by the old-fashioned honesty of
this poor daughter of the ivorking

class.

It was the snob Governor, of high
society, gilded club-life, and palatial

environment, that proved to be the

rotten pippin in our barrel. Rich
Jews could not buy the work-people
whose daily bread is earned by the

toil of their hands. Rich Jews were
never able to move a single member
of the juiy which listened for weeks
to this damning testimony. Neither
could Judge Roan, or our Supreme
Court be moved. With splendid in-

tegrity, our whole system withstood
the attacks of Big Money, until, at

length, nothing was left but the per-

fidy of a Governor who, in the inter-

est of his client, betrayed a high
office, and a great people.

R. P. Bariett was the next witness

for the State.

He testified that he was the machin-
ist at the pencil factor}-, and that on
Monday morning, April 2Sth, he
"found an unusual spot that I had
never seen before, at the west end of

the dressing room, on the second floor.

That spot was not there Friday. It

was blood. The spot was four or five

inches in diameter, and little spots

behind these from the rear—six or

eight in number. I discovered these

between 6:30 and 7 o'clock. White
stuff (potash or haskoline) was
smeared over the spots.

"I found some hair on the handle

of a bench lathe. The handle was
in the shape of an L. The hair was
hanging on the handle, swinging
down. The hair was not there Fri-

day. It was my machine. I know
the hair was not there Friday, because

I had used that machine up to quit-

ting time, Friday, 5:30.

"I could tell it was blood by look-

ing at it. I found the hair some few
minutes afterward—about six or eight

strands, pretty long. When I left my
machine Friday, I left a piece of

work in it. AVhen I got back, the

piece of work was still there. It had
not been disturbed."

(Bear in mind, that all of this was
early Monday morning, when no Gen-

tile had accused Leo Frank, for whom
rich Jews had already, in secret, em-
ployed the best lawyers. When the

rascally Burns got into the case, an

effort was made to bribe this machin-

ist, but he refused to sell out,)

The State's next witness, Mell Stan-

ford, had been working for Frank
two years. He testified that he swept

up the whole floor in the metal room
Friday, April 25th. "I moved every-

thing, and swept everything. I swept

under Mary's and Barrett's machines.

On Monday thereafter, I found a spot

that had some white haskoline over it,

on second floor, near dressing room,

that wasn't there Friday when 1
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swept. The spot looked to me like it

was blood, w'ith dark spots scattered

around."

The extreme importance of the evi-

dence of Barrett and Stanford is,

that the hair and the spots were not

there on Friday. As Barrett's hands

had been turning his machine handle,

at 5:30 Friday evening, the tress of

woman's hair could not have been on

ii then. How came it there after the

men and girls quit work Fridaj?^? And
whose was it. if not Mary Phagan's?

As Stanford swept the floor Friday,

the blood spots could not have been

there then, for his small hroom icould

certainly have swept the white pow-
der. Whether paint or blood, how
came the spots, and the white powder
on the floor, after Stanford swept up,

Friday ?

Mrs. George W. Jefferson testified

that she worked at the pencil factory,

and that on Monday, "u'e saw hlood

on the second floor, in front of the

girls' dressing room. It was about

05 hig as a fan^ and something white

was over it. I didn't see it there Fri-

day. I have been working there f.ve

years. The spot I saw was not one of

the paints. The white stuff did not

hide the red. You could see it

plainly.''

R. B. Haslett testified that on Mon-
day morning he and ]\Ir. Black went

out to Frank's house, to request him
to appear at the station-house.

"I saw Mr. Rosser and Mr. Haas
at the station-house about 8 :30 or 9

o'clock. Mr. Frank was at the sta-

tion-house two or three hours."

E. F. Holloway, sworn for the

State: Was day watchman at fac-

tory. Forgot to lock the elevator on

Saturday, when he left the factory at

11 :45, Witness admitted that he had
previously sworn twice that he left

the elevator locked; once, in the affi-

davit he gave to Solicitor Dorsey
and, again, at the coroner's inquest.

(In other words, Holloway en-

trapped the State, which had his

sworn testimony, twice given, that he

had left the elevator locked at 11 :45

Saturday morning. He had not noti-

fied them of his change., otherwise the

State would not have put him up.)

On cross-examination, Holloway
stated that Frank got back from Mon-
tag's at about 11 o'clock. That Frank
was working on his books in the office.

That Corinthia Ilall^ and Emma
Clark were coming toward the factory

(at 11:1^5)., when he., Holloway., was
leaving.

(Remember this: its importance

was not apparent to the witness when
he swore it., and he was doing what
he could to help his employer.)

He had often seen blood spots on

the floor, but didn't remember having

seen those Barrett found.

Witness had never seen Frank
speak to Mary Phagan, Cords like

that found on Mary's neck are all

over the place. They come on the

bundles of slats that are tied around

the pencils. Barrett found the blood,

hair, and pay-envelope.

Witness' explanation of the differ-

ence between his former testimony

about the elevator, and that which he

was giving at the trial, is quite sim-

ple and satisfactory: he says that he

sawed a plank for the two carpenters

on the fourth floor, and forgot about

it; and, as soon as he remembered
that he had sawed the plank, he recol-

lected that he had forgotten to lock

the elevator. Thus doth the little

busy bee improve each shining hour;

and, by association of ideas, remember
that forget fulness as to sawing one

plank, revives the memory to the

extent that one can recall what it was
he forgot.

N. X. Darley was Manager of a

branch of the pencil factory. He tes-

tified

:
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"Mr. Sig Montag is my superior,

Mr. Frank and I are of equal dignity

in the factory.

^'I was there Sunday morning
(April 27), about 8:20. *I saw Mr.
Frank that morning. When I first

saw him, I observed nothing unusual.

When we started to the basement, 1

noticed that his hands were trembling

.

I observed that he seemed still nerv-

ous when he went to nail up the back
door. Frank explained why he was
nervous by saying he hadn't had
breakfast, and that the sight at the

morgue had unnerved him.

"T'Ae elevator was unlocked.

''''Mr. Frank told me in the hase-

ment that he helieved the murder had
been committed in the basement.

"When we started down the ele-

vator, he was shaking all over. He
looked pale. When riding down to

the police station, Mr. Frank was on
my knee: he was trembling. "\Vhen

my attention was called to it, I no-

ticed something that looked like blood,

with something white over it, at the

ladies' dressing room, Monday morn-
ing.

^''Barrett showed me some hair on
the lever of a lathe: six or eight

strands, at the outside.

"Pay-envelopes are found scattered

all around.

"The factory is supposed to be

locked and unoccupied by any person
on Sundays.

"Frank usually started on his bal-

ance sheet in the afternoon.

"Frank is a small, thin man, about

125, or 130 pounds. Is easily upset,

and nervous. Eubs his hands. Sig
Montag had a fuss with Frank on
fourth floor, and Montag hollered at

him considerably, and he was very
nervous the balance of the evening;

he shook and trembled. He says, 'Mr.

Darley, I just can't work,' and some
of the boys told me he took spirits of

ammonia for his nerves.

"Scratch pads are scattered all over

the building.

"Mr. Frank told me that the slip

he took out of the clock Sunday
morning had been punched regularly.

/ made the some mistake.'''^

(Darley, like Frank, wanted to give

an innocent negro an hour of the

night, so that he might have time to

go home and back.)

W. F. Anderson, sworn for the

State, said that when the call came
from the night-watchman at the fac-

tory, Lee phoned that a woman was
dead at the factory.

"I asked him if it was a white

woman or a negro woman. He said

it vjas a white woman.''"'

Anderson went to the factory, used

the ladder to reach the basement, and
at about 3 :30 he began to use the tele-

phone trying to get Leo Frank. "I

heard the telephone rattling and buz-

zing: I continued to call for fve min-

utes: got no answer.
"/ called Mr. Tlaas^ and Mr. Mon-

tag, too; I got a response from both.

I tried to get Frank again at 4 o'clock.

Central said she rang, and couldn't

get him.

"There are plenty of pencils and
trash in the basement. The trash was
all uj) next to the boiler.''''

H. L. Parry, and G. C. February,

stenographers, swore to their reports

of Frank's statements to Chief Lan-
ford, and to the coroner's jury.

Albert McKnight, a negro, testified

that his wife, Minola, cooks for Mrs.

Selig. with whom Frank and wife

lived : on Saturda}^ April 2Gth, he

wos at the home of Frank to see

Minola. He saw Frank when he came
home, "close to 1:30. He did not eat

any dinner. He came in, went to the

sideboard of the dining room, stayed

there a few minutes, and then he goes

out, and catches a car. Stayed there

about five or ten minutes.

"I certainlv saw Mr. Frank that
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day, from the kitchen, where I waa
sitting."

Cross-examination failed to shake

the negro, and he was corroborated

later by white men who said he had
made the same statements to them,

soon after the murder.

Miss Helen Ferguson testified that

she worked at the pencil factory.

"I saw Mr. Frank on Friday, April

25, about 7 o'clock in the evening, and
asked for Mary Phagan's money. Mr.
Frank said, 'I can't let you have it.'

"

Witness had got Mary's money be-

fore, but not from Frank.

R. L. Waggoner swore to seeing

Frank on Tuesday morning, walk to

the window of the pencil factory, a

dozen times in half an hour, look

down on the sidewalk, and twist his

hands. In the automobile, after his

arrest, Frank's leg was shaking.

J. L. Beavers, Chief of Police,

swore: "Saw what I took to be a

splotch of blood on the floor, near the

dressing room door. It looked like

blood."

R. M. Lassiter swore that he found
a parasol in the bottom of the elevator

shaft, Sunday morning; also a ball of

small wrapping twine; also a person's

stool.

"/ noticed evidenec of dragging

from the elevator in the basement

.

The umbrella was not crushed. There

is a whole lot of trash at the bottom"

of the elevator shaft.

W. H. Gheesling, funeral director

and embalmer, testified

:

"I moved the body of Mary Phagan
(from the factory) at 10 minutes to

4 o'clock, in the morning, April 27th.

This cord was around her neck.

There was an impress of an eighth af

an inch on her neck. The rag was
around her head, and over her face.

The tongue was an inch and a quarter

out of her mouth, sticking out. The
body was rigid ... in my opinion, she

had been dead ten or fifteen hours.

probably longer. The blood was very

much congested. The blood had set-

tled in her face, because she was lying

on her face.

"I found some dirt and dust under
the nails. Some urine and dry blood

splotches on the underclothes. The
right leg of the drawers was split

with a Imife, or ripped right up the

seam.

"/7er right eye was very dark^ and
very much swollen^ like it was hit

before death. If it had been after

death, there wouldn't have been any
swelling.

"I found a wound 2^/4 inches on the

back of the head. It was made before

death, because it bled a great deal.

The hair was matted with hlood^ and
very dry. There is no circulation

after death. / dldnH notice any
scratches on her nose. I don't think

the little girl lost much blood."

Dr. Claude Smith testified that on

one of the chips brought him, he

found three, four, or five corpuscles

of blood. Couldn't say it was human
blood. A drop, or half a drop, or

even less, would have caused it. Ex-
amined the bloody shirt found at

Newt Lee's. It was smeared inside

and out. "I got no odor from the

armpits that it had been worn. The
blood was high up about the waist-

line."

Dr. J. W. Hurt, County Physician,

testified to the wounds, one back of

the head, and the other on the eye.

"Black, contused eye. A number of

small minor scratches on the face.

Tongue protruding. Cord around the

neck. She died of strangulation.

There was swelling on the neck. The
wound on back of head, made by blunt

instrument, and the blow from down
upward. It was calculated to produce

unconsciousness. Scratches on face

made after death. Hymen not intact.

Blood on the parts. Vagina a little

large for her age: enlargement could

have been made by penetration before
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death. Normal virgin uterus. She

was not pregnant.

"T^Ae body looked as if it had been

dragged through the dirt and cinders.

It was my impression that she was

dragged face forward."

Dr. H. F. Harris, a practising phy-

sician, testified:

"I made an examination of the body

of Mary Pliagan on May 5th. On

DR. H. F. HARRIS, CHIEF STATES WITNESS AS
TO CONDITION OF MARY'S BODY.

removing skull, found a little hem-

orrhage under the skull, correspond-

ing with point where blow was re-

ceived. Blow hard enough to render

person unconscious. Injury to eye

and scalp made before death. Strang-

ulation by cord, the cause of death.

Examined vagina. No spermatazoa.

On walls of vagina, evidence of vio-

lence of some kind. Epithelium pulled

loose, completely detached in places,

blood vessels dilated immediately be-

neath surface, and a great deal of

hemorrhage in surrounding tissues.

"Indications were that violence had

been done to vagina some little time

before death. Perhaps ten or fifteen

minutes.

"'There was evidence of violence in

the neighborhood of the hymen. This

violence to the hymen had evidently

been done just before death.

"Menses could not have caused any
dilation of blood vessels, and discol-

oration of walls.

"Contents of stomach showed that

very little alteration, if any, had
taken place in the cabbage and biscuit

eaten for dinner. She died in half-

an-hour, or three-quarters afterwards.

"The violence to the private parts

might have been produced by the

finger or other means, but I found
evidence of violence.''''

C. B. Dalton, sworn for the State,

said that he knew Leo Frank, Daisy
Hopkins, and Jim Conley. He had
been to the pencil factory several

times. Had been in the basement.

"Daisy Hopkins introduced me to

Frank. When I went down the lad-

der (into the basement) Daisy Hop-
kins went with me. We went back to

a trash pile in the basement. I saw
an old cot, and a stretcher.

"Frank had Coco-Cola, lemon and
lime, and bee)\ in his office. I never

saw the women in his office doing any
writing. The first time I went to

Frank's office, it was Saturday eve-

ning. I went in there with Daisy

Hopkins. There were women in the

office. I have been in there several

times. Conley was sitting at the front

door."

S. L. Rosser: "I am city police-

man. On May th or 7th, I Imew that

Mrs. White claimed she saw a negro

at the factory on Saturday morning,

April 26th.

"Mrs. White volunteered the in-

formation about seeing the negro."

Harry Scott, recalled:

"I knew on Monday (April 28),

that Mrs. White claimed she saw a

darkey at the pencil factory. I gave
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the information to the police depart-

ment.

HARRY SCOTT.

"il/r. Frank gave me the informa-

tion when I first talked to him.''''

(Pray observe that Frank not only

told the detective whom he employed.^

that he knew Mary Phagan, and that

he knew J. M. Gantt was paying con-

siderable attention to her, but that he

knew Jim Conley was in the factory

on the day of the crime.

Yet he was directing the police to a

negro Avho was not there until night-

fall, and to a white man who merely

went in to get some old shoes!)

"I got information as to Conley
•writing, through my operations while

I was out of town. Personally, / did

not get the information from; the pen-

cil factory, I got it from outside

sources, wholly disconnected with the

pencil company."
Misses Myrtice Cato and Maggie

Grifiin, both swore that they had seen

Frank and Rebecca Carson repeatedly

go into the ladies' private room, on

the fourth floor, and remain fifteen or

twenty minutes. This was during

work hours. Rebecca Carson carried

the key to this room.

Let us now give the gist of the evi-

dence of Jim Conley, the accomplice,

whose confession blocked Leo Frank's

deliberate scheme to hang the innocent

negro, Newt Lee.

Jim told how Frank would have

private meetings with women in the

factory, while he, Jim, kept a watch-

out. He told of how another young
man (Dalton) visited the factory, and
how there would be "a lady for him,

and one for Mr. Frank."

J. M. GANTT, ARRESTED FOR CRIME ON AC-
COUNT OF FRANK'S STATEMENTS.

He told of how Frank would signal

to him, by "stomping" on the floor,

when a woman was alone with Frank,
and how he, Jim, was then to lock the

door. When Frank got through with
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his woman, he would whistle, and Jim
would unlock the door.

Conley told of meeting Frank near

Montag"s, that Saturday morning, and

of their talk: on this point of the

meeting, and an apparently confiden-

tial talk, the negro was corroborated

by Mrs. Hattie Waites.

Tlie negro told of how the Jew
instructed him where to sit, and what
to do, when they reached the factoi-y

after Frank got back from Montag's.

Mary Phagan was expected; and
Frank was planning to prevent inter-

ruption, while he was alone with her.

The negro then told of how he sat

where Frank told him to, and he

named the several visitors that came
to the factory during the morning.

At length, he reaches the doomed
girl, and he said

—

"The next person I saw. was the

lady that is dead.

"After I went upstairs. I heard her

footsteps going towards the office; and
after she went in the office, I heard
two people walking out of the office,

and going like they were coming
down the steps; but they didn't come
down the steps; they went hack
toicard the metal department.'^''

("Has the metal come? Will there

be work for me, next week?"
No more work for you, Mary Pha-

gan!

You can die in defense of 3^our vir-

tue, but never more will you turn

the dull wheel of Labor!)
"'After they went back there, I

heard the lady scream, but I didn't

hear no more; and the next person

that came was Miss Monteen Stover.

She sta^'ed there a pretty good while
—it wasn't so very long, either—she

came back down the steps, and left.

"After she came back down the

steps, and left, I heard somebody from
the metal department come running
back there upstairs, on their tip-toes

:

then I heard somebody tip-toeing back
to the metal department."

Next, he heard the "stomp," and the

whistle, and went upstairs.

"]\fr. Frank was standing there at

the top of the etairs, shivering and
trembling, and rubbing his hands, like

this"—illustrating.

"Pie had a little rope in his hands

—

a long, wide piece of cord.

"liis eyes looked funny. His face

was red.

"After I got to the top of the

stairs, he asked me:
" 'Did you see that little girl that

passed here just a while ago?'

"I told him I saw one come along

there, and she come back again, and
then I saw another one come along

there, and she hasn't come back down.
"And he says, 'Well, the one you

say didn't come back down, she came
into my office, and I went back there

to see if her work had come, and I

wanted to be with the little girl, and
she refused me, and I struck her, and
I guess I struck her too hard, and she

fell and hit her head against some-

thing^ and I don't know how bad she

got hurt."

At the time Jim made this state-

ment first to the officers, he did not

Imow that there was a wound in the

back of the girl's head ; and, of course,

he did not know it rangea "from down
upward."

He did not know that her eye was
black and swollen, and that scientific

testimony would prove the two wounds
to have been given at practically the

same time.

Without Jim's story of the blow in

her face, and her fall against some-

thing, it would be impossible to take

the official record and explain those

two wounds—front and rear.

One man could not have made the

two wounds, simultaneously : the fall

against the handle of the machine
made the rear wound, and explains

its peculiar range.

Had Jim been making up a story,

he would have said that she fell
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against the crank,, or against some
sharp corner, naming it.

In the excitement of the moment,
Frank himself did not know ichat it

was that the girl had struck in fall-

ing,, else he would have removed her

tress of hair from the crank.

Is it not an evidence of the veracity

of the negro's story, that he repre-

sents Frank as saying he had hit the

girl too hard, and in falling she had
hit something,, and he did not know
how bad she was hurt?

The fact is. Frank expected to over-

come the girl's resistance without any
more violence than rakes usually exert

on modest girls who stoutly resist,

and even cry out, at first.

Her determined fight enraged him;

and, knowing that he had but a few
minutes in which to accomplish his

purpose, he struck her, believing she

would then yield, through fear.

. When she fell on the floor, he may
have thought she was shamming un-

consciousness ; and he therefore ripped

her drawer-leg, clear up, and did the

violence to the vagina. HOW? Not

in the natural way.

Then, his passion cooled, he saw
that the girl was badly hurt ; and that

if he allowed her to leave, in her

pitiable condition, she would go out

into the streets, and make the city

ring with what she could tell,, and

what she could show.

Having gone that far

—

it was death

anyway—he ran for the cord, tied it

around her neck, as tight as he could

tie it; and left her, to call for help

from Jim, his confidential man, in

such matters.

The strip from her underskirt was

probably torn off, and wadded under

the girl's head, when he pushed up
her clothes, and ripped the leg of her

drawers.

Conley continued his testimony, as

to what Frank said to him:
" 'Of course you know / ain't huilt

like other men.''
"

Note, farther on, that Miss Nellie

Woods swore that Frank used these

identical words to her, when he had

her in his office, and was trying to get

his hands under her clothes.

Of course, Jim Conley did not know

that Frank had ever used those words

to a white girl, and the corroboration

IS powerful.

The negro continued:

"The reason he said that was, I had

seen him in a position I haven't seen

any other man," etc.

The language is set forth in the

opinion of the two Justices of the

Georgia Supreme Court, who dis-

sented from the majority. They con-

sidered the evidence improper, and

their dissent was based upon this, and

upon other evidence of Frank's vices.

What Jim described, was the crime

of Sodom.
"He asked me if I wouldn't go back

there, and bring her up, so that he

could put her somewhere; and he said

to hurry ! that there would be mone}''

in it for me.

"When I came back there, I found

the lady lying flat of her back, with a

rope around her neck. The cloth was

also tied around her neck, and part of

it was under her head, like to catch

blood. She was dead when I went back

there, and I came back and told Mr.

Frank the girl was dead, and he said,

'Sh, sh.' He told me to go back there

by the cotton box. get a piece of cloth,

put it around her, and bring her up.

I didn't hear what Mr. Frank said,

and I came on up there to hear what

he said. He was standing on the top

of the steps, like he was going down
the steps, and while I was back in the

metal department. I didn't under-

stand what he said, and I came on

back there to understand what he did

say, and he said to go and get a piece

of cloth to put around her, and I went

and looked around the cotton box, and

got a piece of cloth and went back

there.
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The girl was lying flat on her
hack', and her hands were out this

way. I j)ut hoth of her hands down
easily, and rolled her up in the cloth,

and taken the cloth and tied her up.

and started to pick her up, and I

looked back a little distance and saw
her hat and piece of ribbon laying
down, and her slippers, and I taken
them and put them all in the cloth,

and I ran my right arm through the

cloth and tried to bring it up on my
shoulder. The cloth was tied just like

a person that was going to give out
clothes on Monday; they get the

clothes and put them on the inside of

a sheet and take each corner and tie

the four corners, and I run my right

arm through the cloth after I tied it

that way and went to put it on my
shoulder and I found I couldn't get it

on my shoulder; it was heavy, and I

carried it on my arm the best I could,

and when I got away from the little

dressing room that was in the metal
department, I let her fall, and I was
scared and kind of jumped, and I said,

'Mr. Frank, you will have to help me
with this girl, she is heavy,' and he
come and caught her by the feet, and
I laid hold of her by the shoulders,

and when we got her that way I was
backing and Mr. Frank had her by
the feet, and Mr. Frank kind of put
her on me; he was nervous and trem-
bling, and after we got up a piece

from where we got her at, he let her
feet drop, and then he picked her up.

and we went on to the elevator, and
he pulled down on one of the cords
and the elevator wouldn't go, and he
said, 'Wait, let me go in the office, and
get the key; and he went in the ofice

and got the key and come hack and
unlocked the sicitchhoard, and the ele-

vator went down to the basement, and
we carried her out, and / opened tli

cloth and rolled her out there on the

floor, and Mr. Frank turned around
and went on up the ladder, and I no-

ticed her hat and slipper and piece of

ribbon, and I said, 'Mr. Frank, what
am I going to do with these things?'

and he said. 'Just leave them right

there,* and I taken the things and
jiitched them over in front of the

boiler, and after Mr. Frank had left,

I goes over to the elevator, and he
said, 'Come on up and I will catch

you on the first floor,' and I got on

the elevator and started it to the first

floor, and Mr. Frank was running up
there. lie didnH give me time to stop

the elevator, he icas so nervous and
tremhly, and before the elevator got

to the top of the first floor, Mr. Frank
made the first step onto the eleva'or,

and by the elevator being a little

down, like that, he stepped down on

it and hit me quite a blow right over

about my chest, and that jammed me
up against the elevator, and when we
got near the second floor he tried to

step off hefore it got to the floor, and
his foot caught on the second floor as

he was stepping ofl", and that made
him stumble and he fell back sort of
against me, and he goes on and takes

the key hack to his ofice and leaves

the hox unlocked.

"I was willing to do anj'thing to

help Mr. Frank because he was a

white man and my superintendent,

and he sat down and I sat down at

the table, and Mr. Frank dictated the

notes to me. Whatever it was, it

didn't seem to suit him, and he told

me to turn over and write again, and
I turned the paper and wrote again,

and when I done that he told me to

turn over again, and I turned over

again and I wrote ont he next page
there, and he looked at that and kind
of liked it .and he said that was all

right. Then he reached over and got

another piece of paper, a green piece,

and told me what to write. He took

it and laid it on his desk, and looked

at me smiling and rubbing his hands,

and then he pulled out a nice little

roll of greenbacks, and he said, 'Here

is $200,' and I taken the money and
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looked at it a little bit, and I said,

*Mr. Frank, don't you pay another

dollar for that watchman, because I

will pay him myself,' and he said, 'All

right, I don't see what you want to

buy a watch for, either; that big, fat

wife of mine wanted me to buy an

automobile, and I wouldn't do it.'

And after a while Mr. Frank looked

at me and said, 'You go down there

in the basement and you take a lot of

trash and burn that package that's in

front of the furnace,' and I told him
all right. But I ivas afraid to go down
there hy myself^ and Mr. Frank
wouldnH go down there with me. He
said, 'There's no need of my going

down there,' and I said, 'Mr. Prank,

you are a white man, and you done

it, and I am not going down there and
burn that myself.' He looked at me
then kind, of fnghtened.^ and he said.,

*Let me see that money^ and he took

the Tnoney hack and put it back in his

pocket, and I said, 'Is this the way
jou do things?' And he said, 'You
keep your mouth shut, that is all

right.' And Mr. Frank turned round
in his chair and looked at the money,
and he looked back at me and folded

"his hands and looked up and said,

^Why should I hang? I have wealthy
people in Brooklyn^ and he looked

down when he said that, and I looked

up at him, and he was looking up at

the ceiling, and I said, 'Mr. Frank,
what about me?' And he said. 'That's

all right, don't you worry about this

thing; you just come back to work
Monday, like you don't know any-

thing, and keep your mouth shut; if

you get caught, I will ^(^i you out on

bond and send you away,' and he said.

•'Can you come back this evening and
do it?' And I said, 'Yes,' that I was
coming to get my monej'. He said,

'Well, I am going home to get dinner,

and you come bqck here in about
forty minutes and I will fix the

money, and I said. 'How will I get

in?' And he said, 'There will be a

place for you to get in all right, but
if you are not coming back, let me
know, and I will take those things

and put them down with the body,'

and I said, 'All right, I will be back
in about forty minutes.' Then I went
down over to the beer saloon across

the street, and I took the cigarettes

out of the box and there was some
money in there and I took that out,

and there was two paper dollars in

there and tw^o silver quarters, and I

took a drink, and then I bought me a

double-header and drank it, and I

looked around at another colored fel-

low standing there, and I asked him
did he want a glass of beer, and he
said no, and i looked at the clock and
it said twenty minutes to two, and the

man in there asked me was I going
home, and I said, 'Yes,' and I w^alked

south on Forsyth Street to Mitchell

and JNIitchell to Davis, and I said to

the fellow that was with me, 'I am
going back to Peters Street,' and a

Jew across the street that I owed a

dime to called me and asked me about
it and I paid him that dime. Then I

went on over to Peters Street and
staid there a while. Then I went
home and I taken fifteen cents out of

my pocket and gave it to a little girl

to go and get some sausage, and then

I gave her a dime to go and get some
wood, and she staid so long that

when she came back I said, 'I will

cook this sausage and eat it and go
back to Mr. Frank,' and I laid down
across the bed and went to sleep, and
I didn't get up any more until half-

past six o'clock that night.

That's the last I saw of Mr. Frank
that Saturday. I saw him next time on
Tuesday, on the 4th floor, when I was
sweeping. He walked up and he said,

''Now., remember^ keep your mouth
shvt,^ and I said, 'All right,' and he
said, '// you'd come, hack on Saturday
and done what I told you to do with
it doxim. there., there icould have heen

no trouble!' This conversation took
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place between ten and eleven o'clock

Tuesday. ^Mr. Frank knew I could

write a little bit, because he always

gave me tablets up there at the office

so I could write down what kind of

boxes we had, and I would give that

to Mr. Fi'ank down at his office, and

that's the way he knew I could write."

On cross-examination—it lasted 8

hours—the negro stated that he was
•27 years old: that before he went to

the pencil factory, he worked a year

and a half for Dr. Palmer; that he

had worked for the Orr Stationery

Company, and for S. S. Gordon. Be-

for that, for Adams Woodword and

Dr. Howell. Got his first job with

S. M. Truitt. Next with W. S. Coates.

Went to school one year. Can write

a little. Worked for Truitt two years.

For Coates, five years.

He admitted he had stooled in the

elevator shaft, Friday evening.

"/ have never seen the night watch-

man^ Newt Lee.''''

(Notice that Lee had only been

there three weeks, and that Conley

had never seen him; and therefore it

was Franl\ not Conley, who knew

that the night-watch was a ''tall., slim,

black negro.''''

Therefore, it was Frank., not Con-

ley, Avho was able to accurately de-

scrihe Lee, in the notes, where he is

twice described I

This immensely important detail has

heretofore been overlooked.)

''T heard them say there was a negro

night watchman, but I did not know
he was a negro.

"The lady that I saw with Mr.

Frank was Miss Daisy Hopkins. It

would alwaj's be between 3 and 3:30

(o'clock p. m.). I was sweeping the

second floor; (Frank's office floor).

Mr. Frank called me into his office.

Miss Daisy was with him."

Then Jim told of how Dalton and

another woman came'; how Dalton

and his went down into the basement,

and how Frank and his, remained to-

gether; and how, after the two men
got through, each paid him 25 cents

for watching while they were with

the women.
Then Jim told of the Avoman who

came down from the fourth floor, to

be with Frank in his office, while the

negi'o watched.

(The manner of Frank with these

women is set forth in Volume 141 of

the Georgia Reports, page 287. Any-
one can obtain a copy by writing to

the State Librarian, Atlanta.)

"I never was drunk at the factory.

Yes, I sometimes drank beer in the

basement with Snowball"—another

negro employee.

Jim admitted that he had told lies

about the case, until he decided to

confess.

''Mr. Quinn came in, and then went

away before Mary Phagan came. Mr.

Quinn had already gone out of the

factory when Mary Phagan came in.

I didn't see Mr. Barrett, nor Miss

Corinthia Hall, or Hattie Hall, or

Alonzo Mann, or Emma Clarke.

"/ never was in jail until April,

1913. I have been down at police bar-

racks several times. I was arrested

for fighting black boj^s. I have never

fought a white man, or woman.
"While I was writing the notes,

Mr. Frank took the pencil out of my
hand, and told me- to rub out that 'a'

in 'negro.'

"I saw Mary Phagan's mesh-bag,

or pocketbook, in Mr. Frank's office,

after he got back from the basement.

It was lying on his desk. He taken

it and put it in the safe.''''

"Mr. Frank told me he would send

me away from here if they caught

me. He would get me out on bond,

and send me away.

"I had orders from Mr. Frank to

write down how many boxes we
needed.

"il/n Frank knew for a whole year

that I could write. I used to write

for him, the name of the pencils we
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made, 'Luxury,' 'George Washington,'

'Thomas Jefferson,' 'Magnolia,' and
'Uncle Remus.'

"Yes, / wrote him orders to take

money out of my wages^
(See the importance of this—un-

known to the negro: Frank, familiar

with his writing, sees two specimens

of it in the basement, Sunday morn-
ing, soon after the corpse is found,

and yet never says a word about the

''''hand-write'''' being Conley'^s^ nor

about his, Frank's, knowing that

Conley could write.)

"The pocket-book was a white-look-

ing pocket-book, with a chain to it.

You could take it and fold it up and
hold it in one hand."

(Mary's mother referred to it as a

silver mesh-bag.)

Ivie Jones testified that he met Jim
Conley on the street, between 1 and
2 o'clock, Saturday afternoon, of

April 26th; and that they walked on

together toward Conley 's home.

The State here "rested" its case.

It had traced Mary into Frank's pos-

session, and had thrown upon him
the burden of explaining what became
of her, for she was found dead, in his

possession (in law), and the condi-

tion of her stomach and limbs proved

that she was murdered at about the

time he got possession of her.

In the effort to save his life, he pre-

tended that she had gone into Newt
Lee's possession, after nightfall; but

he was foiled in his purpose to hang
the innocent negro, by unforeseen cir-

cumstances :

(1.) The inabilit}^ of his friends

to prove that anybody saw Mary
alive, after she had been traced almost

to the factory door:

(2.) The providential visit of

Monteen Stover to Frank's office, at

the time when he told Harry Scott

—

and swore at the inquest—that Mary
was in his office, and that he himself

never left it:

(3.) The call of nature, 3 o'clock

after midnight, that same night,

which providentially caused the en-

dangered Newt Lee to discover the

corpse—which Frank had intended to

either drag out into the alley behind,

or bury in the dirt floor, or burn in

the furnace, when the fires were
started again, Monday.

(4.) The break-down and confes-

sion of Jim Conley.

Thus the circumstances forged a

pei-fect chain around l"'rank.

Like a shuttle in a weaver's loom,

the girl was on the stairs, between
Conley and Frank: both knew she

was there; each man knew the other

was there; and each man knew that

if he did not kill the child, the other

did!

If she had left the hands of Frank,
she was flung towards the hands of

Conley, at the foot of the stairs; and,

as Frank knew Conley was there, he
knew the negro assaulted and mur-
dered the girl, if he himself did not

do so.

There isn't a law^yer living who can

get over this point, and explain

Frank's screening of Conley, save

upon the idea of their joint guilt.

The Jew^ never hinted a suspicion

of the negro, until after the negro

exonerated Newt Lee, and put the

awful crime where it belonged.

And, without the negro's evidence,

no man can possibly explain that hair

and blood on Frank's floor; the ab-

sence of blood or signs of struggle,

elsewhere; the loose cloth around the

head, which soaked up the blood; the

hands folded across the breast, and
so frozen into position that, when the

fiendish Jcav dragged her by the heels,

over a cinder-strewn and gritty dirt

floor, those little fingers remained in

position across the bosom, which was
never to pillow a husband's head, or

nourish an honest man's babe.

"I put both of her hands down,
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easy;" and, as the negro had seen

people cross the hands of the dead,

he crossed hers upon her breast : and

so they found them, next morning.

Everlasting honor to the race which

produces girls of this heroic mold

—

girls who will not live, unless they

can live purely I

Everlasting honor to the work peo-

ple, and the common people, who
have fought so grandly, for two long

years, to avenge that innocent blood I

xVnd honor forever to the brave men
of Cobb County who carried out the

legal sentence of the courts, after

one of Frank's own lawyers had

contemptuously upset the legal ma-

chinery which had judicially ascer-

tained Leo Frank's terrible guilt.

THE CASE OF THE DEFENSE.

The first two witnesses, Matthews

and Hollis, merely swore to street-

car schedules, and the time Mary
Phagan rode into the city.

Herbert SchitF, Assistant Superin-

tendent of the factory, testified to the

system of business, manner of paying

off, how pencils are made, etc.

He saw the blood spots, and the

hair. His most important statement

was made on cross-examination:

"/ knew on Monday that Mrs.

White claimed she saw a negro there^

Then, ISIr. Schiff, why didn't you

go after that negro, instead of Newt
Lee, who was at home, asleep?

Answer the question^ NOW^ Mr.

Eerhert Schifff

You knew, on Monday, that the

negro whom Mrs. White saw, must
have been Jim Conley ; and you swore

that you saw Conley in the shipping

room of the factory on Monday, and

on Tuesday, following: you did not

ask Conley a single question about

the crime; and yet you knew he must

be the guilty man, if Frank wasn't.

How do you explain your failure

to catechise Jim Conley?

Explain it, NOW, Mr. Schifff

A detail of Mr. Schitf's evidence

was, that '"''empty sacks are usually

m.oved a few hours after they are

taken off the cotton^

Frank's gubernatorial attorney

argued that there was no use for

cloth, or sacks, at a pencil factory.

Miss Hattie Hall, stenographer,

swore she finished her work, carried

it to Frank, and left at 12:02, Satur-

day, punching tlie clock as she went
away.

She said Frank did not make up
his financial sheet that morning, but

admitted she had testified differently

at the inquest.

Miss Corinthia Hall, sworn for the

defense, stated she was forelady at

the factory. Got there Saturday about

25 minutes to 12 o'clock. Mrs. P^mma
Clark Freeman was with her. They
left at about 15 minutes to 12. Frank
was in his office.

On cross-examination, witness stated

that she and Mrs. Freeman met
Lemmie Quinn a few minutes later at

the Greek Cafe, and Quinn told them
he had just been up to see Mr. Frank.

Mrs. Freeman's evidence was to the

same effect.

Miss Eula May Flowers merely tes-

itfied that she gave Schiff the data

for financial reports.

Miss Magnolia Kennedy swore that

Helen Ferguson did not ask for Mary
Phagan's pay envelope.

On cross-examination, she said:

"Barrett called my attention to the

hair. It looked like Marys. My
machine was right next to Mary's."

She had never before seen the spots

on the floor, but on Monday could see

them ten or twelve feet away.

Wade Campbell, another employee:

His sister, Mrs. White, told him,

Monday, that she had seen the negro

Saturday. "I saw the spots they claim

was blood. Have never seen Frank
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talk to Mary Phagan. I knew that

Conley could write."

(Tlien, Mr. Campbell, why didn't

you suspect Conley, whom yon knew
to be the negro your sister saw there,

and whom you knew could write?)

Lemmie Quinn came next:

He is foreman of the metal depart-

ment. About 100 women work at fac-

tory. Couldn't tell color of hair Bar-

rett found. Noticed the blood spots.

"I was in the office, and saw Frank
between 12:20 and 12:25."

He "reckoned" the time, and did

not go by any clock or watch. He
admitted that he met Miss Hall, and

Mrs. Freeman after he had been to

see Frank.

(This was the only attempt at alibi

:

and tioo of FranJvS own loitnesses

smashed if, hy FranJc's own clock.

Note how they were corroborated

by Mrs. White and Holloway, both of

whom swore that the ladies, Miss Hall

and Mrs. Freeman, were at the fac-

tory some 10 to 20 minutes before

noon.

The attem'pt to place Quinn in

Frank's office at 12 :20, shows how they

needed help, there and then: its

break-down, left them without a leg

to stand on.)

Harr}^ Denham, one of the carpen-

ters at work on the fourth floor, tes-

tified to the hammering, forty feet

from the elevator. Was pretty sure

elevator did not run that day. He
could have seen wheels moving, and
heard the noise. Finished and left

about 3 p. m. Frank was there.

Minola McKnight:
Testified to Frank's natural and

regular conduct on Saturday and Sun-

day. Swore her husband bulldozed

her into making that affidavit about

Frank getting drunk Saturday night,

confessing to murder, and wanting to

kill himself.

"My husband tried to get me to tell

lies," she said. "All that affidavit is

a lie."

Emil Selig, father-in-law to Frank,

testified to his natural conduct, and
conversation on Saturday. Flatly

contradicted Albert McKnight.
Miss Helen Kerns swore she saw

Frank on the street, that Saturday,

10 minutes after 1 p. m., on Alabama
Street.

Mrs. A. P. Levy: Saw Frank get

off car near his home, between 1 and

2 p. m., that Saturday. Was looking

at the clock, and knows it was 1 :20.

Mrs. M. G. Michael, of Athens, tes-

tified that Mrs. Frank is her neice.

She saw Frank at about 2 o'clock

Saturday. He greeted her. She saw

nothing unusual about him.

Jerome Michael, of Athens, swore

that he had his watch in his hand
Saturday, and saw Frank that day

between 1 and 2 o'clock. Saw noth-

ing unusual about him.

"I practise law. I had my watch

in my hand when I saw Frank."

Mrs. Hennie Wolfsheimer swore to.

about the same thing. She was

Frank's aunt. She was corroborated

by Julian Loeb, cousin to Mrs. Frank;

Cohen Loeb, and H. J. Hinchey.

Miss Eebecca Carson testified that

she was foreladj^ at the pencil fac-

tory; that the elevator is noisy when
running, and that Jim Conley told

her, on Monday, he was so drunk the

previous Saturday he did not know
where he was or what he did. She

also heard Jim say that Frank was

as innocent as an angel.

Mrs. E. M. Carson testified that

Conley said that Frank was innocent.

She has seen blood spots on floor.

Girls would hurt their fingers.

On cross-examination, she admitted

she had seen Frank and Conley, on

fourth floor, at the same time, the

Tuesday after the murder.

(This was an important corrobora-

tion of Conley 's evidence.)

Miss Mary Pirk, another forelady

at the factory, swore that on Monday
she accused Jim of the murder, and
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that "he took his broom and walked

right out of the office." Miss Mary
swore she wouldn't believe Jim on

oath. She did not report to Frank
that she suspected Jim. "I accused

Jim before I saw the blood at the

ladies' dressing room."

Miss Dora Small testified that she

worked at the factory: saw Jim Con-

ley on fourth floor Tuesda3\ Didn't

see Frank talk to Jim. "I have never

seen him talk to that nigger in my
life." Miss Dora said that Jim worried

her for money to buy newspapers,

and that she wouldn't believe him on

oath. P^very time he heard a newsboy

yell "Extra!" Jim would go to Miss

Dora and beg to see it, before she had

finished with it.

Miss Julia Fuss, who also worked

there, testified that Jim said, on Wed-
nesday, after the murder, that Frank
was as innocent as the angels in

heaven; she added that Jim "was
never known to tell the truth."

She testified that Frank came up
stairs where Conley was, that Tues-

day moiviing, but she did not see

them in conversation.

Annie Hixon, a lady of color, testi-

fied that Frank called up the Ursen-

bach home, about half-past one, April

26, and told them he would not be

able to keep his engagement to go to

the ball game.
Alonzo Mann, office boy at the fac-

tory, swore he left at about 11:30 on

Saturday. Had never seen Frank
have any women there. Had never

seen Dalton there.

Mr. M. O. Xix identified the finan-

cial sheets as being in Frank's hand-
writing.

Harry Gottheimer travels for the

pencil factory. Saw Frank at Mon-
tag's that Saturday morning. Said
Frank invited him to call at the fac-

tory that afternoon.

Mrs. Rae Frank, mother of defen-

dant, identified some writing, especi-

ally' a letter written by him to his

uncle, Moses Frank, who "is supposed
to be very wealthy."

Oscar Pappenheimer, stockholder in

tlie pencil factfjr}', swore to receiving

i-oport ^Monday, April 28th.

C. F. Ursenbach, brother-in-law of

Frank, said he had an engagement
for the ball game with Frank, for

Saturday afternoon, and Frank called

it ort'; saw Frank, Sunday: seemed
all right.

I. Straus swore he was at Frank's

home, Saturday night, and while

others played cards, Frank sat in the

hall, reading.

Mrs. P^mil Selig testified that the

contents of the Minola McKnight affi-

davit were false.

Sig. Montag, Treasurer of the fac-

tory, testified to Frank's coming to

his house, Sunday morning, after the

crime : looked all right : witness went
to the factory that morning: sent for

Haas and Rosser, Monday: made no
trade about fees. Don't know who is

paying Frank's lawyers.

Many witnesses for the defense

either confined themselves to the good
character of Frank, or to the bad
character of Conley, and to contra-

dictory statements made by him; and
not one of these witnesses swore to

any fact of real importance.

The defendant's lawyers carried the

character business too far, by putting

up Miss Irene Jackson, who, after

saying that Frank's "character was
very well," swore that he had a habit

of leering at the girls in their private

room, while they were partly un-

dressed.

jNIiss Bessie Fleming testified that

Frank made out his financial sheets

on Saturday mornings.

Then came defendant's statement:

It covers forty-five pages of printed

matter, and less than five of these

touch the merits of the case.

He stated that after Hattie Hall

left (12:02), Mary Phagan (he did
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not know her name, he said) came
into his office, ten or fifteen minutes

later, and that he did not know where

she went after he gave her the pay
envelope.

He stated that Quinn came in, after-

wards, and that if he (Frank) left

his office, after 12 o'clock, before he

went upstairs at 12:45, he must have

"unconsciously^" gone back to the

toilet

!

(This toilet is back of the metal

room, and he had to go to the metal

room, and, if he went to it, then^ he

had to go to the metal room where
Mary Phagan's hair was, and over

the very spot where her blood stained

the floor
!

)

Almost the entire statement of the

defendant, as shown in the record, was
taken up with a tedious and pro-

longed explanation of his manner of

doing his work at the factory.

One thing Frank did try to do

:

he attempted to explain why his wife

would not come to see him at the jail.

He said he did not want her in that

crowd of reporters, detectives, and
snap-shotters

!

(Three of Frank's male relatives

had virtually dragged her to the

police headquarters; but she would
go no further; and when she went
away, she stayed away three wee'ks.

In the Atlanta papers, Eabbi Marx
explained this by saying, she was ex-

pecting every day that Frank would
be released, although the ' fact was
universally known that he had been

bound OA'er for trial, and could not

be bailed out.

In rebuttal, the State proved that

Frank's character for lasciviousness

was bad. The witnesses who swore

it, were M^^rtie Cato, Maggie Griffin.

Mrs. C. D. Donegan, Mrs. H. R.

Johnson, Marie Karst, Nellie Pettis,

Mary Davis, Mrs. Mary E. Wallace,

Estelle Winkle, and Carrie Smith.

These white ladies had worked for

Frank, and not one of them was im-

peached, or cross examined^ by his

lawyers.

By Ruth Robinson, Dewey Hewell,

and W. E. Turner (white), it was
proved that Frank not only Imew
Mary Phagan, but talked to her by
name, had his hand on her shoulder,

tried to push his attentions on her;

and that she was holding him off,

repulsing his advances.

George Eppes made affidavit that

Mary told him, the Saturday morning
he saw her last, alive, that Frank had
been trying to flirt with her.

\

One of the notes found near the

corpse read:

"He said he would love me, laid

down play like night witch did it

but that long tall black negro did

boy hisself."

The other read:

"Mam that negro fire down here did

this i went to make water and he
push me down a hole a long tall

negro black that had it wase long

sleam tall negro i wright while play

with me."

Note, that unnatural sexual inter-

course seems to be suggested; and
that Newt Lee is designated by occu-

pation once, and by personal descrip-

tion, twice; and that the place of tlie

crime is placed on the floor above—
not in the basement itself.

Excepting a mass of immateriMl

evidence, as to how long cabbage lies

in the stomach undigested, and as to

whether the girl's privates had been

violated, the defendant had nothing

except what I have stated.

How could he have?

The case hinged on the few minutes
after Hattie Hall left at 12:02, and
before Mrs. White's return at 12:30;

and the disappearance of Frank and
his victim, during the time that Mon-
teen Stover waited for him in his

office, could never be explained.

His conviction rested upon undeni-

able physical facts, and his own state-
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ments, made hefore he learned how
Monteen could disprove them.

The lawyers for the defense took

three lines, and three only—each of

them leading into what the French

call a cul de sac. we Americans call

it, a blind alley.

A number of witnesses, following

one of these paths that didn't go any-

where, testified to a time or times

when they had seen varnish and paint

spilled, or when they had seen some-

body hurt at a machine, and bleeding

on the floor. None of these witnesses

made the slightest effort to explain

away the spots of red, with white

powder over them, which were not

on the floor when it was swept Fri-

day, but was seen there th-e first thing

Monday morning.

Consequenth', this line of evidence

stopped in a cul de sac.

Another lot of witnesses were put

up, to prove that Frank had never

been seen by them to have had a

woman, or women, in the factory on

Saturday afternoons.

Even a layman will perceive, that

no matter how strong this point was
made, it did nothing more than con-

tradict Conley, as to one detail of his

testimony. The evidence of these

witnesses was consistent with the

idea, that Frank was too sly in his

secret vices to be caught up with by

the ordinary employees of the place.

Jim was his confidential man, and
Jim was just the sort of negro to

keep the secret, and to care nothing

about the sexual practices of his white

boss.

So you see that this path of the

defense also led to nothing: it did

not tend to clear up the mysterj' of

Mary Phagan's death, in Frank's

house., shortly after she went into his

possession.

The third line of the defense con-

sisted of scientific testimony as to the

cabbage in the girl's stomach,' and the

blood on her person.

An incredible amount. of time was
devoted to this point ; and the law-

yers of Frank really appeared to at-

tach tremendous importance to it.

Doctor after doctor gave the most

learned and exhaustive dissertations

on the digesti])ility of cabbage: and
doctor after doctor uttered wisdom,

on the possibility of ascertaining, from
the examination of a woman's corpse,

whether she had suft'ered sexual vio-

lence before she died.

Can you not see at a ghmce how
futile all this sort of tiling was?
There was no dispute about the girPs

going into Frank's possession, soon

after she ate her dinner; there was
no dispute that somebody murdered
her, in Frank's own house, almost im-

mediately after she entered it ; and

nobody was being prosecuted for any
other crime than murder!
Frank was not being tried for

rape, nor sodomy, nor adultery. He
was being tried for THE MURDER
OF MARY PHAGAN, who was found
dead, hij violence, IN HIS HOUSE,
shortly following her coming into his

possession.

He admitted the possession; fixed

the time by his own clock: and made
false statements as to his then where-

abouts; consequently the scientific tes-

timony concerning the contents of the

girVs stomach, and the condition of

her vagina, was almost ludicrously

unimportant.

That laborious path led nowhere,

for the simple reason that it threw no

light on the question in the case—that

question being, "TFAo fastened the

cruel cord around the child's neck,

and choked her to deathf
The astounding fact to be learned

from this official Brief of Evidence

is, it fails to show that defendant'^s

lawyers had any consistent theory

as to who committed the crime. AND
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WHERE. I never saw such an in-

stance of water-muddying, and beat-

ing about the bush. At no pivotal

point (lid Frank's attorneys grapple
with the facts. You search in vain to

find how they expected to show the

jury that Mary Phagan came out of

Frank's possession safely, after she

came in, next to Hattie Hall, and was
followed so closely by Monteen Stover.

The jury could see—as you do—that,

had she gone on down stairs, as Frank
said she did, "at 12:05, or 12:10, or

maybe 12:07," she would have met
Monteen; and that the negro, at the

foot of the stairs, could not have done
what icas done to her, without being
ta/icn in the act, hy the other white
girl.

When Frank told the jury he must
have been at the toilet during the

five minutes that Monteen waited, the

jury must have felt the cold chills

run up their spines, for the jury knew
that Mary had not "unconsciously"
gone to the toilet, at the same time
Frank did!

What the doomed man, and his

bewildered lawyers failed to see was
this:

It was just as necessary for him to

explain WHERE MARY WAS, while
Monteen waited, as to explain HIS
OWN DISAPPEARANCE, at that

fatal time.

Frank's repeated statements en-

trapped him beyond escape. He said,

again and again, that Mary came next
to Hattie Hall, and he did not mention
Monteenh coming at all. This proved
to the jury that he did not know of

Monteen's coming. And he would
have known it, had he been in his

office, when he said he was. Now,
as he had (in ignorance of Monteen's
visit) placed both Mary and himself
in his office—while Monteen waited

—

he had deliberately and repeatedly

lied as to Mary's whereabouts, as well

as his own. He might have "uncon-

sciously" gone to the toilet. Very
well; hut where did Mary go?
Her hair, and her blood, and the

only possible explanation of the
wounds—the swollen eye in front, and
the scalp cut on the back of the head,
ranging from down upward—were
all back there at the metal depart-
ment, where the toilet was.

Infatuated young degenerate! To
escape Monteen's evidence, and to

explain his absence from his office, he
supposed himself to have gone, "un-
consciously," to the only place in his

house where there were damning evi-

dences of the crime.

Ask the finest criminal lawyer of
your acquaintance, if he ever knew of
a great case of circumstantial evidence,
where the defendant was not con-
victed hy something which HE said,
or did. It happens so, almost invari-
ably. Guilt cannot talk, or be mute;
move, or stand still, without revealing
the difference between the slush and
the snow; the crystal fount, and the
turbid stream. God so made the
world that truths p: lies never do.

No innocent man ever pretended
not to know a murdered person with
whom he had been in daily contact,
for a year; with whom he had
familiarly conversed, and upon whom
he had put his hands: and no guilty
man ever took hold of the upraised
arms of his victim, crossed them
decently over her bosom, and then
bore her away from the scene of the
crime.

When the defendant made his ex-

traordinary motion for a new trial

(the Supreme Court having unani-
mously refused to grant a re-hearing
on his regular motion for a new trial)

there was developed the most amaz-
ing series of operations, conducted by
the W. J. Burns Agency, and by C.
AV. Burke, private detective of Gov-
ernor Slaton's law-firm.

Practically all of the employees of
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the pencil factory, whose testimony

had made out the State's case, were

either threatened, or ottered money,

to change their evidence.

Much of this foul work was done in

the private office of Governor Slaton.

His detective, l^nrke, using the assumed

name of Kelley, tampered with George

Eppes, and took him to Birmingham.

Albert McKnight was tempted with

money, and with otters of employ-

ment at high wages. Burns tried to

get him to swear, that some injuries

he had received in a railroad accident

were caused by a beating given Albert

by the Atlanta detectives.

The work-girls were oti'ered money

to make affidavits contradicting the

evidence given at the trial.

Carrie Smith was threatened by

Burke with the exposure of alleged

misconduct, if she did not come across,

and make the statement Burke de-

sired. The girl, being innocent, defed

Governor Slaton''s detective!

Burns kept an Atlanta negro, Aaron

Allen, several days in Chicago, talk-

ing to him daily, and having Burns'

underlings talk to him; and they were

assisted by Jacob Jacobs. They
wanted the negro to swear that Con-

ley had confessed that he alone com-

mitted the murder. One day, in Chi-

cago, Allen was ushered into a room

of the Burns suite of offices; where

somehody had left on the table a

large pile of money^ golci? silver, and

greenbacks. The negro was too wary

to touch it.

Marie Karst testified that Burke

and Lemmie Quinn came out to her

home, and "Lemmie set up to drinks,"

and Burke talked to her. Wanted her

to come to the office of Kosser, Bran-

don, Slaton & Phillips. "I didn't go."

Then Burke met her on the street,

and offered to employ her to work

for him. Gave her $2 a day for work-

ing in the afternoons. "Burke wanted

me to go around and see the girls who
had sworn for the State in the Frank

trial . . . and see if they would not
change their evidence.

"He told me that what I swore to

did not bind me, because I was not

cross-examined, and said it was not
recorded.

"I saw several of the girls, and they

told mo they would not change their

evidence, because what they swore to

was true.

"Burke wanted me to see Monteen
Stover, and talk with her, and see if

I couldn't get her to change her evi-

dence.

"Ho wantea me to go down and
live with Monteen, and 'pick' her. My
mother refused to let me do it, aiid"

Avould not let me work for Burke any
more.

"/ met Burke., and talked with him,.

in THE PRIVATE OFFICE OF
VOVERNOR JOHN M. SLATOX:'
Mrs. Cora Falta testified that she

had been working at the factory five-

years.

"On Monday, April 26, 1913, we
were all at work, and Magnolia Ken-
nedy came running into the room, and'

said: 'TFe have found some of Mary''s

hair on the lathe machine!'' We all'

quit work, and went there and looked'

at it."

(Remember, that no one, at this

time, suspected Leo Frank.)

R. L. Craven swore that he heard

J. N. Starnes urge Minola McKnight
to tell something favorable to Frank,.

if she could, because they would rather

learn something in his favor than

something against him; and, in the

presence of Minola's husband, and'

her lawyer, Starnes told the woman
not to swear to her statement unless-

it was true.

This statement of Minola was in

reference to Frank'^s heing di^nk dur-

ing the night after the crime; his

wife sleeping on the rug on the floor;

and his calling for his pistol to kill

himself. After these exhortations, the-
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woman swore to the statement, and
signed it.

Mrs. Carrie Smith swore that she

was offered $20 to sign an affidavit

favorable to Frank. She had worked
three A^ears at the factory, and knew
Frank's character was bad. The man,
Maddox, who wanted lier to change
her evidence, was in Governor Slaton's

private office, in the Grant building,

when she went there to see Marie
Karst.

Mrs. ]\Iaggie Nash (formerly Grif-

fin) swore to the efforts of Burns to

(jet he)' to change her evidence as to

Frank^s had character, and Frank''

s

going into the private room, on the

fourth floor, with a forelady. She
told Burns he might try one hundred
years to change her evidence, but she

would never do it, because it was the

truth.

Ruth Robinson swore that she had
known Mary Phagan as a little girl,

in Cobb County; and that she had
seen Frank at Mary''s 7nachine, several

times a day, talking to her, and call-

ing her ''''Mary,'''' when it was not

necessary from any business reason.

"Mary had worked there a good, long

time, and understood her business."

"Sometimes Frank would remain at

Mary's machine fifteen or twenty min-
utes. I never saw him show that

much attention to the work of the

other girls on that floor. I have seen

Frank, in showing Mary about her

work, take hold of her hands, and
hold them. Frank's visits to Mary,
and talks with her, and assistance

given her, hecame more and more fre-

quent.

"The very last day I worked there,

T saw Frank talking to Mary. /

heard him call her 'Mary.''

"The said Leo Frank undertook to

give me seven dollars, when he knew
I was not entitled to the money, and
he endeavored to have an assignation

with me, some time the next week.

This occurred in his office."

Miss Nellie Pettis made affidavit

to the ell'orts of Frank's detectives,

and lawyers, to change her evidence;

but she reiterated with emphasis that

Frank had insulted her in his office,

by making an indecent proposition

which she indignantly rejected—fol^

lowing which she left his office and
employment.

Mrs. Mamie Edmunds (formerly
Kitchens) swore that when Frank,
without knocking, would open the

door of the ladies' private dressing

room, and see girls in there partly

dressed, she thought it would have
been as little as he could have done to

say, "Excuse me, ladies," and go
away. But instead of doing so, "he
would stand m the door, and laughed
or grinned. I don't know when a

Jew is laughing, or when he is grin-

ning; but he stood there, and made
no ert'ort to move."
"Miss Jackson exclaimed, 'We are

dressing, blame it!' and then he shut
the door and disappeared."

C. W. Burke tried to persuade wit-

ness that 1^'rank's conduct was all

right, and urged her to sign a paper
to that effect.

"I took Burke's word for what tlie

papers contained. I did not tell

Burke anything different from what 1

have sworn before."

C. B. Dalton swore that Burke
offered him $100 to sign a paper, "to

be used before the Pardon Board, to

keep Frank from hanging." He said

he went to Dublin, Ga., to do some
work for a bank, and two Jews came
to h'lm and offered him $400 to leave

the State. They came to him several

times, and renewed the offer, stating

that they meant to get Frank a new
tried.

"I have, on several visits to Frank's
( ffice. seen girls there. Have seen him
play with them, hug them, kiss them,
iind pinch them. I saw him, on sev-

eral occasions, take a girl and go back
of the room where the dressing room
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is. On one occasion, Frank had six

bottles of beer, and I caried three

more to his ofiice. Frank told Dalton

he needn't rent a room; to take Daisy

Hopkins to the basement, where there

was a cot. ''I used this cot with

Daisy Hopkins half a dozen times."

Helen Ferguson swore that Jimmie

Wren, who worked for C. W. Burke,

offered her $100, if she would leave

Atlayita. Frank was going to get a

new trial, and her hoard and all ex-

penses would be paid while she was

out of the State. She said that Wrenn
made violent love to her, and tried to

persuade her to marry him! He took

her up to the Grant building, and in-

troduced her to his "father."

"Jimmie made love to me, and said

he wanted to marry me, hut wanted

me to sign an affidavit first.''''

They were worlring on the girl to

get her to repudiate her statement,

that Frank had refused to give her

Mary's pay envelope.

It was this refusal, on Friday eve-

ning, to give Helen the $1.20 due to

Mary, that compelled the girl to go

to Frank herself for it, next day.

Burns, Burke, and Wrenn were

working desperately, us'ing John M.
Slaton/s private office, to get out of

their way the evidence which tended

to show that Frank deliberately laid

a trap for Mary Phagan.

It was not until several weeks after

Jimmy Wrenn introduced Helen Fer-

guson to his "father," in Governor

Slaton''s private office., that she dis-

covered that Jimmy^s
'"''
father'''' was

the unscrupulous scoundrel, C. W.
Burke, who was worlring for the firm

of Rosser, Brandon, Slaton & Phil-

lips, and trying, in the interest of this

law-firm, to criminally defeat Law
and Justice.

Miss Nellie Wood gave testimony

which corroborated Conley in a most

remarkable manner. She said:

"I told the Solicitor before he put

me on the stand, that I was in the

office of Leo Frank on one occasion,

when the said Frank made an indecent

proposal to me. My experience as a

trained nurse enahled me to fully un-
derstand and know what Frank in-

tended.

••He said, 'You know, / am not like

other people.'' and. drawing his chair

closer up to me, says, 'I don't think

j^ou understand me,' and put his hands
on me: and I resisted, and got up and
opened the door," etc.

Frank's detectives endeavored to

secure from this witness a statement

that would negative her former evi-

dence; but, as in every other instance,

they fell short of success.

Two white men—(iraham and Til-

lander—made affidavit that they went
to the pencil factory, Saturday. April

26th, between 11 and 12 o'clock; and
that they saw a negro seated near the

foot of the stairs. Being unacquainted

with the interior of the building, each

of these men asked the negro where
the office was located, and he directed

them to it. If the negro was drunk,

these men didn't notice it.

Mrs. Hattie Waites made an affi-

davit to the fact that, on Saturday
morning. April 26th. between 10 and
11 o'clock, she saw a white man and
a negro talking together on the street,

near Montag's place of business. She
afterwards recognized Frank as the

white man, and Conley as the negro.

The most abominable a'ttempt to

manufacture evidence was made while

Conley was in jail, awaiting trial. A
white convict, George Wrenn—who
had stolen $30,000 worth of diamonds,

but who was nevertheless a "trusty"

in the prison—was the instrument

used by the Frank detectives.

He. in turn, employed a negro

woman, Annie Maud Carter, a notori-

ously low character. Wrenn coached

this black strumpet, and put her into

Conley 's cell, to entice him into com-

mitting the unnatural act with her.
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They wanted to show that it was
Conley who was the sodomist.

"Mr. Gillem (a prison oificial) told

me he would give me $2.00 if I would
go in there and see Jim Conley.

George Wrenn wrote a letter, and
gave it to me, and he said, 'Yon give

it to Jim Conley, and tell him it just

came in through the mail.'

"Gillem said to me, that Conley
was a (a most nasty term for

sodomite) and said, *I just want to

see if he will fool with you with his

— (the rest is too obscene to print). I

have asked Conley, and he said he
would never do a thing like that; said

he had never done except in

the natural way.

"The first Sunday in December, a

Jew came up—Mr. Pappenheim was
_

there, too"—and the woman went on

to tell how the Jew told her she could

make a pot of money, and get rich

quick, if she would put something in

Jim Conley's victuals

!

The Jew said to the negress

—

"I want you to take this little vial,

and put a drop in his food, and give

it to him."

When the negress recoiled from the

Jew's offer, he said to her, "You're a

d—d fool," and walked off.

"I don't Ivnow his name, but he

comes up here" (where Frank and
Conley were imprisoned) '"''with the

Klein hoys. He has black hair, and
his hair stands up, and his hat is

pulled to one side."

The detectives not only tried to get

the Carter woman to inveigle Conley
into the unnatural vice of which
Frank was accused, but endeavored to

get up a marriage between the two

!

Conley and the woman both swore

that their letters had been changed,

and that the unprintable filth put in

them, had been forged.

Forged time-slips against Newt Lee

!

Forged bloody shirt against Lee

!

Forged affidavits against the girls

!

Forced letter of the dead Judge

Roan ! Forged letters of a couple of

negroes

!

The Avhole case of the defense

reeked with fraud, bribery, perjury,

and forgery.

Never in the world was there a

more infamous episode than which
followed the organization of the

Haas Finance Committee, after the

legitimate litigation in this case had
ended.

Having lost at every point in the

legal contest, the Haas Finance Com-
mittee was appointed for no other

purpose than to defeat Law and Jus-

tice, hy unparalleled and illegitimate

means.

It is almost miraculous that the in-

domitable Solicitor, Hugh Dorsey,
was able to defeat the Haas Commit-
tee, defeat the detectives of Governor
Slaton's firm, and defeat the criminals

of the Burns "Detective" Agency—

a

villainous gang whose work consists of

just such attempts to bribe witnesses,

as was seen in their manipulations of

the Frank case.

With the following, clipped from
current news reports in Atlanta, I

close the review of the corrupt prac-

tices used in the extraordinary mo-
tion for new trial:

Atlanta, Ga., Jan. 28.—The Rev. C. B.
Ragsdale, formerly pastor of a local

church, today testified he was paid $200
for signing a false affidavit in connection
with the Leo M. Frank case. Mr. Ragsdale
was the first witness in the trial of Dan S.

Lehon, soutiiern manager of the William
J. Burns National Detective Agency; Ar-
thur Thurman, a lawyer, and C. C. Ted-
der, a former policeman, who are charged
with subordination of perjury. It is

alleged they procured false affidavits from
Ragsdale and R. L. Barber shortly after

Frank's extraordinary motion for a new
trial was filed.

In the affidavits Ragsdale and Barber
declared they overhard James Cor ley, a

negro, tell another negro that he had
killed a girl in the factory where Mary
Phagan was murdered.

The former pastor still was on the wit-

ness stand when court adjourned for the
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day. He testified to alleged meetings with

the defendants when he said the affidavit

was discussed, describing the signing of

the document in the office of Luther Z.

Rosser, who was one of Frank's principal

counsel, and told of the alleged payment

of the money later. He added that the

night he received the money "a man rode

up to my house on a motorcycle and told

my sons to tell their father not to say any-

thing to anybody unless it was a Burns

man."

By the skin of his teeth, Lehon

escaped conviction, because the State

was not able to trace the payment of

the $200 cUreethj to him, beyond a

reasonable doubt. At least, that is

the most charitable view to take of

the verdict. Some man, or men, on

the panel may have suspected that the

$200 fell out of the moon, and just

accidentally dropped into Ragsdale's

pocket.

But you Avill have no doubts as to

who hired, and paid, Ragsdale to

swear that he had overheard Conley

confess, because you have already seen

how Burns had vainly tried to bribe

Aaron Allen, in Chicago; and how

they had tried to bribe the white girls,

and how they tried to bribe R. P.

Barrett, and Albert McKnight: and

how they tried to use Annie Maud
Carter.

Decidedly, it is the blackest record

of systematic effort to save the guilty,

destroy the innocent, debauch wit-

nesses, manufacture evidence, and

create a public sentiment in favor of

a fictitious case, AGAINST THE
REAL ONE, that ever has been

known in the New World.

The Appellate Court of New York

—the highest tribunal in that State

—

said, in the Becker case

:

Extensive as is the power of review

vested in this court on a judgment ot

death, the law does not intend to substi-

tute the cncUisions of fact, wliich mny
be fliawn by seven jud'-es. frr the conclu-

sions of the fact wliich have been drawn

from the evidence by twelve jurors,

unless we are clear that the view of the
facts taken by the jury is wrong. It is

our duty to affirm, if the trial was fair

and without legal error, and the verdict
was not u^ainst the weight of evidence.

We are to see to it that the trial was
fair and that there was suA'icieut evi-

dence witli recofoiized rules of law to

support the verdict. This done, the re-

.si>on.sibility for the result rests with the
jurors.

Tiiat is good law—good wherever
the system of jury-trial prevails.

Our Supreme Court reviewed the

evidence in the Frank case, and found
it "sufficient to support the verdict."

(See page 284, 141 Georgia Reports.)

The Court held unanimously that

the new^ evidence, pretended to have
been discovered after the verdict had
been affirmed, was not of such a char-

acter as to warrant another trial.

The United States Supreme Court
decided that Frank's lawyers had not

been able to show that he had been

denied a fair trial, or deprived of any
legal right.

Surely, a case should come to an

end, some time. Surely, Frank's case

ought to have ended when the highest

court on earth said the verdict must
stand. Surely, his own lawyer, Gov-
ernor John M. Slaton, had no legal

right to annul the solemn adjudica-

tions of the supreme heads of our

judicial system. Surely, the Law
never meant that a defendant''s own
attorney should become his jury, his

'

trial judge, and his reviewing court.

When Slaton comnnited the sen-

tence of his client, his act was null

and void. Time could not validate it.

Frank was legally under sentence

of death when the Vigilance Commit-
tee took him out, and hanged him by
the neck until he was dead.

All power is in the people. Courts,

juries, sherili's, governors draw their

authority from this original source:

when the constituted authorities are
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unable, or unwilling to protect life,

liberty, and property, the People

must assert their inherent right to

do so.

Womanhood must not be left at the

mercy of the libertine: the Rich must

not trample upon the children of the

Poor: the Jew must learn to distin-

guish between the Midianite and the

American.

Prison Commissions and Governors

must learn that it is dangerous to

usurp power, and to undo the official

work, done legally by the Judicial

Department.
In Frank's case, all legal tribunals

were appealed to, by the best of law-

yers; and every decision was against

him. They had to be: there was no
escape from it.

His own lawj'er then commuted his

sentence, and fled the State.

The Vigilance Committee took the

condemned man out of the State

Farm, carried him almost to the grav •,

of his little victim, and hanged him,

in accordance with the sentence which
had three times been pronounced from
the bench.

It was a long, hard fight, and the

Law won, over Big Money.

There are some legal trials that are

more than mere hiAV cases.

There are some that involve a

dynasty, test a system, and throw
light upon national conditions.

There are some that change the

course of events, and leave their effect,

for weal or woe, upon the era in

which they are tried.

A court-house case, in France, drag-

ging into it a king's wife, a pope's

cardinal, and a corrupt judicial sys-

tem, led the way to the overthrow of

an ancient monarchy.
A court-house case, in Virginia, fol-

lowed by another, in Massachusetts,

set in motion the ball which never
ceased to roll until Thirteen Colonies

had become Thirteen Independent

States— the eloquence of Patrick
Henry, and of James Otis, rather
than the musket in the Ohio wilder-

ness, being the shot that was heard
around the world.

A law-case in England, rocked the

throne, and tested, with a supreme
severity, the strength of England's
judicial fabric.

The fabric stood the test: and the

vindicated system, which would not

bend, even though the king sought to

hend it., filled Englishmen with honest
pride.

It was the great case where George
IV. brought to bear all the powers of

a monarch and a bad mad, to crush
one friendless woman—AND
FAILED!
Not all the patronage of the crown,

not all the money of the Secret Ser-
vice, not all the clamor of place-

holders, place-seekers, time-servers,

court sycophants, and unscrupulous
politicians, could hend the Law of
Great Britain.

Personally weak and without
friends, the foreign princess who had
married the king, saw a host of de-

termined supporters come to her re-

lief, when English ministers sought
to use the LaAV, as the instrument of

a had man.
When the long legal combat drew

toward its close, and Lord Brougham
had brought to shame and defeat the

crowned libertine, we are told that a

scene of indescribable excitement took
place in the House of Lords—the high
court which had tried the case.

The Prime Minister rose to "with-

draw the bill," equivalent to quashing
the indictment against the persecuted

woman.
"Cheers loud and long rose from

the opposiiton benches"—where sat

the champions of the Law.
"But the House hushed to silence,

when the venerable Erskme arose,

with eyes aflame"—Erskine. the in-

domitable lawyer who had fought so
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hard, so long, and so triumphantly,

to vindicate the jury system,

"My lords," he said, and his voice

rang out with the clear tone that had

entranced the tribunals of thirty years

before—

•

"My lords, I am an old man, and

my life, for good or evil, has been

passed under the sacred rule of the

law.

"In this moment, I feel my strength

renovated and repaired by that rule

being restored—the accursed change

wherewithal we have been menaced,

has passed over our heads—there is

an end of that horrid and portentious

excressence of a new law, retrosf-ec-

tive, and iniquitous

—

a)id the consti-

tution and scheme of our polity is

once more safe.

"My heart is too full of the escape

we have just had, to let me do more

than praise the blessings of the sys-

tem we have regained," a system of

which Hooker, in his great work on

Ecclesiastical Polity, said

—

"Of Law there can be no less

acknowledged than that her seat is

the bosom of God: her voice is the

harmony of the world; all things in

heaven and on earth do her homage.

the very least as feeling her care,

and the greatest as not exempt from

her power.

"Both angels and men, and crea-

tures of what condition soever . . .

admiring her as the mother of their

peace and joy.'
"

"There was silence as the silvery

voice ceased. It was as if men wished

to hear the last echo of those won-

drous accents. Then broke out a cheer,

•such as was never before heard in

that august assembly."

The Law had won! against the

licentious king; against the truckling

ministers; against the servile aristo-

crats; against the detectives of the

secret service, and the hirelings of the

reptile press:

Yea, by the living God! the Law

had won ! and all men in England,
all women in England, all children in

England, ^VP:RE SAFER FROM
THAT HOUR, when the grand old

lawyer rose, with full heart and
flashing eyes, to quote the words of
the grand old preacher, whose tribute

to Law, is a tribute to the God that

inspired the Law.

Have the children of Moses the

right to break the Sinai tables?

Do they deserve death when they

slay Hebrews, only?

Is there some unwritten law, which
absolves them, when their victim is a

Gentile?

They are taught in their Talmud
that, "As man is superior to other

animals, so are the Jews superior to

all other men."
Do the Hebrews of today hold to

that, in their heart of hearts?

They are taught by their great

teacher, Rabbana Ashi, that "Those
who are not Jews, are dogs and
asses."

Are the Hebrews true to Talmud,
and to their learned Rabbana?
Was Mary Phagan—the Irish girl

—legitimate spoil for the descendant

of those who divided among them-

selves the daughters of the Midian-

ite?

Is there a secret tenet of tlieir re-

ligion, which compels the entire race

to combine to save the neck of sucli n

loathsome degenerate as Leo Frank?

They did not waste a dollar, nor a

day, on the Jews who were electro-

cuted for shooting Rosenthal: was it

because Rosenthal was a Jew?
If the victim in that case had been

an Irishman, would there have been a

Haas Finance Committee? a nation-

wide distribution of lying circulars?

a flying column of mendacious detec-

tives? a constantly increasing supply

of political lawyers? the muzzling of

daily papers? an attempt to enlist the

jSTorthern school-children. Peace So-
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cieties, and Anti -Capital-Punishment

leagues?

Money talks; and m this Frank-

case, money talked as loudly, and as

resourcefully, as though Baron
Hirsch's $45,000,000 Hebrew Fund
had been copiously poured into the

campaign.

Like Thomas Erskine, I am noth-

ing but an old lawyer, no longer in-

clined to the hot combat of the arena

where I once loved to light; but I'm
not too old to make a stand for the

Law ; for the integi'it}^ of the system
which our fathers handed down to

us; and for the inflexible Justice, in

whose scales the murder of one little

factory girl weighs as heavily, as

though she had been the daughter of

Rothschild.

Let the Jews of Georgia, and else-

where, look to it.

They are putting themselves on
trial; and, if they continue the malig-

nant crusade which they have been
waging, by libels and cartoons,

against a State which has never done
injustice to a single Jew, they will

reap the whirlwind.

// Mary Phagan had heen a rich

man'^s daughter, and Frank, a poor
man's son, his neck would have
cracked, a year ago!
This case is more than a law case.

This case involves the honor of a

State! This case drags the judicial

ermine into the ditch. This case is

an indictment against jury trial. This
case is an attack upon the fortress

of the Law. This case pollutes the

holy temple of Justice.

There never were such foul meth-
ods used to besmirch honest men,
mock the truthful evidence, gull a

generous public, and defeat the very

purposes of the criminal code.

There never were such prodigious

energies put forth to conceal the

Truth, and to put Falsehood in its

place.

In the whole scope of American
history, no such campaign of abuse,

of misrepresentation, of deliberate

fabrications, and systematic elforts to

humbug outsiders, to close the mouths

of editors, to corrupt or intimidate

officials; and to ^''get axoay with it,^''

in defiance of the record, the verdict,

and the decisions of the courts.

They have never darned TO PUB-
LISH THE EVIDENCE!

It is a peculiar and portentious

thing, that one race of men

—

and one,

only—should be able to convulse the

world, by a system of newspaper agi-

tation and suppression, when a mem-
ber of that race is convicted of a tap-

ital crime against another race.

Does anybody in this country know
what was the truth about Dreyfus,

the French officer who was convicted

of treason, and, at first, sentenced to

death ?

Nobody does. All we know is, what
the newspapers told us; and it leaked

out, long afterwards, that the wife

of Dreyfus abandoned him, as soon as

he was turned loose.

Presumably, she was a Jewess; but,

like the other Hebrew champions of

Dreyfus, she dropped him, as soon as

she had accomplished her purpose.

One of the Eothschild banking

houses exerts a powerful influence

over French finances; another in

Frankfort, another in Vienna, and
another in London, have often stood

together to control the policies of

European governments: if they in-

sisted upon the liberation of Dreyfus,

the French Republic—beset by royal-

ists, socialists, and clericals—was in

no condition to resist the demand.
The peculiar thing, and the sinister

thing, is, that some secret organiza-

tion existed which could permeate the

whole European world, and the

United States, also, with the litera-

ture which clamored for Dreyfus.

The father of Dreyfus was an
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Alsatian banker—a Jew, of course

—

and a sijl)ject of the Kaiser. He was
a cog in the wheel of the German spy-

system; and he used his son, the

French officer, to secure for the Ber-
lin Government, the military secrets

of the French War Office.

France had not then formed her
defensive alliance with Great Britain,

and was not strong enough to fully

expose Dreyfus, and the Kaiser—thus
precipitating a war. The French
officer, Ricard, who was the stanch
champion of Dreyfus in every one of

the investigations, turned against the
Jew, after he himself was given a

position in the War Office and learned
the* truth, from indubitable docu-
mentary evidence.

The Beiliss case, in Russia, was
equally remarkable, in its progress
and its end.

A Gentile boy was found dead, with
more than forty small incisions in his

veins and arteries, from which prac-

tically every drop of his blood hnf^

been drawn

—

and the hlood had left

no marks, anyichere.

That much triclded through the
newspapers to the American people,

and they realized, of course, that here
was a novelty in deliberate and atroci-

ous crime.

Beiliss, a Russian Jew, was accused
of kidnapping the little boy, and
emptying his blood-vessels of their

contents, in order that it might be
used in "a religious sacrifice."

The Russian court found Beiliss

guilty; but, apparently, the same
mighty engine of agitation, and sup-
pression, that had worked for Drey-
fus, was put in motion for Beiliss.

Mankind was told, that there was
no such thing as "blood sacrifice'"

among Russian Jews; and that Beiliss

was the victim of jungle fury, race

hatred, lynch law, &c., &c.

In the meanwhile, the hysterical

public lost sight of the pallid corpse

of the Gentile boy, whose veins pre-

sented the pale lips of forty-five cuts,

made hy a sharp instrument.

Somebody had killed the lad—most
deliberately, most cruelly—and the

Russian courts, in full possession of

the facts, declared that Beiliss had
done it.

But the American people—not know-
ing the facts, and totally in the dark
as to who did get the blood out of the

boy's veins—were excitedly certain

that Beiliss didn't.

Consequently, a pressure of the

same peculiar and irresistible sort that

had saved Dreyfus, caused Russia to

stay her uplifted hand, and spare

Beiliss.

To this day, the Americans who
blindly, hysterically helped to put thq

pressure on the Czar's Government,
have no idea who made the forty-five

slits in the blood-vessels of the little

boy; and, what's more, they don't

care.

They accomplished their emotional

purpose, blew off their psychological

steam, and then forgot all about

Beiliss, and the boy.

Is there such a thing as "blood sac-

rifice" in Russia? We don't know.

Nobody can dogmatize on such a sub-

ject.

Even in our own country, there is a

blood sacrifice, practised in the re-

moter wilds of Arizona. The Indians

who practised it, welded Christianity

to some ancient tribal rite, and

adopted the custom of crucifying an

Indian, as Christ was crucified.

When I see Abraham with his

knife uplifted over the breast of his

boy; and when I see Agamemnon
covering his face to shut out the sight

of the priest and his knife—about to

slay the Greek king's daughter; and

when I see the sacrifice of the idolized

girl who ran out, radiant with joy, to

greet Jeptha on his return from bat-

tle—I feel myself lost in doubt as

to ichat a Russian fanatic might do.
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Let all this be as it may, the other

races of men must "sit up and take
notice," if the repeated campaigns of

this Invisible Power seem to mean,
that Jews are to be exempt from pun-
ishment for capital crimes, when the

victim is a Gentile.

If the work of this Invisible Power
has been substantially the same in a

third case, as in the other two; and
this third case is that of Leo Frank,
then the Frank case assumes a nev
aspect, of new importance, and of

formidable portent.

America is big enough to be "the
melting pot" of the Old World, pro-
vided the metals melt—otherwise, it

isn't.

If the Jew is not to amalgamate
and be assimilated; if all the very
numerous foreign nationalities that
are being moved over into this coun-
try are to retain their several lan-

guages, customs, flags, holidays, ideas
of law, education, government, etc.,

then the melting pot will fail to fuse
into ore another, these conflicting ele-

ments.

In such a case, the melting pot be-

comes a huge bomb, loaded witli

deadly explosives.

Has the menace of secret organiza-
tion, of an Invisible Power, and of
cynical defiance of law, revealed itself,

in the Frank case?

Reflect upon it!

Reflect upon it, Avith especial refer-

ence to recent announcements, in

metropolitan dailies, that the Jews
mean to use the Baron Hirsch
Fund of $45,000,000 to carve out a

new Zion in this country. From all

over the world, the Children of Israel

are flocking to this country, and plans
are on foot to move them from Europe
en masse. Poland, Hungary, Kussia.
and Germany are to empty upon our
shores the very scum and dregs of the
Parasite Race.

The papers state that the- heads of

the vast Hebrew societies of this

Union will soon "submit a proposition

to the United States Government."
AVhat? The subject treat with the

Sovereign ?

This is what comes of unrestricted

Immigration, just as 90 per cent of

our crimes come from it.

What a fine illustration of Jewish
arrogance it will be, if such Amer-
ican citizens as Rabbi Wise, Nathan
Straus, Adolph Ochs, Joseph Pulitzer,

et al., make a proposition to our Gov-
ernment, for an American Zion, the

Jew millionaires negotiating with the

Government as its equals

!

In 1813, the rich Jews compelled

Congress to abrogate the Russian
treaty, as a rebuke to Russia, for her

treatment of her own subjects.

They naturalized a German Jew,
Paul Warburg, and placed him at

the head of our new Jew-made finan-

cial system.

Meditate upon these points:

(1.) Never before was a Jewish
or Gentile Finance Committee organ-

ized, and funds raised, to fight a case

which had already been thrice ad-

judged by a State Supreme Court

:

(2.) Never before, was unlimited

money spent in publishing lies about

an official record which was accessible

to everybody, and which itself could

have been laid before the public for

less money than the lies cost:

(3.) Never before, did a murder
case, tried in Georgia, secure an ap-

peal to the Supreme Court of the

United States:

(4.) Never before, did any defen-

dant employ so many lawyers, in so

many different cities, as were em-
ployed for this degenerate Jew:

(5.) Never before, were the At-

lanta papers, the Hearst papers, and

the Jew papers so doggedly deter-

mined that the public should not have

a chance to learn what was the evi-

dence, upon which the Jew had been

legally convicted.

(6.) Never before did a criminal's
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own liiwver, holding tlie office of Gov- Supreme Court of the Union said

ernor, defy and reverse all the courts, must die, ana whom Superior Court

and virtually pardon his own client. judges had, three times, sentenced to

(7.) Never before did the Jew bo hanged,

papers, and the Hearst papers, so When the Jews, and the Hearst

provoke a State, as to insolently de- papers, are especially and peculiarly

raand, from day to day, that the legal Avrought up over this land of a "lynch-

sentence on Frank be annulled, and ing,' you may feel quite sure that

that he he set at liberty. their unwritten law exempts a Jew,

(8.) Never before did a Vigilance when his victim is a Gentile.

Committee execute a criminal whom r:r:rrrrrr=:^^r=^^rr=rrrr=:=^
a iury had convicted, whom the Su- i--« ^i • ^ for the prospector.

J 'I > %^ - :. .^-^m.^ -^^m.-m -mj^ j^ v-^"' cholce of 4 locatinffEverything Kupreme Court of Georgia had declared J-/VCry llllll^ instrumentaj^frecK^ si^-

was properly found guilty, whom the gj'g^lfo" utc^t^^i^fm^^'^^
novelty co., Dept. e."
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The Rich Jews Indict a State! The Whole

South Traduced.

In the Matter of Leo Frank.

ABNORMAL conditions prevail

in this country, and the situa-

tion grows more complicated,

year by year. We have carried the

"asylum" idea to such extravagant lib-

erality, that the sewage of the whole
world is pouring upon us. The human
race was never known to do, before,

what it is doing now, to America. His-

tory presents no parallel case. From
the Great Lakes to the Gulf, and from
Cape Hatteras to the Golden Gate, we
see the same ominous, portentious phe-
nomena, of peoples ditsinct from our
people—distinct in language, in man-
ners, in standards, in customs, in Na-
tional observances.

Huge sections of our over-grown
cities are as foreign to us, as any ter-

ritory that lies beyond seas. Our laws
are powerless in these unassimilated
settlements. "Little Italy," in New
York, is, to all practical intents and
purposes, a section of Naples trans-

ported to our shores.

Chinatowns in America are minia-
ture Cantons. The industrial colonies

of West Virginia, Colorado, Michigan,
Pennsylvania and New Jersey, are just

that many small Hungarys, ir*olands,

Germanys and Italys. As for the Jews,
they have found our "asylum" a para-
dise; and from the uttermost ends of
the earth, they are rushing through
our ports. The Zionist Societies,

financed by the Hirsch endowment of

$45,000,000, are planning to bring 3,-

000,000 European Jews here, at the

close of the present war.
So wide open have been the doors of

our "asylum" that the native stock

which made tne Republic, is already in

the minority. Its relative strength
grows less with every shipload of im-
migrants.

Under these torrents of foreign peo-

ples, whole States have lost their orig-

inal character.

Massachusetts is not what she was
before the Civil War, nor is Colorado.

Puritan New England has been sub-

merged. The hordes from abroad are

m possession; they fill the shops, the
quarries, the factories, the mills, and
the offices.

An Ambassador of a foreign nation
coolly proposes to his government to

tie up the munition plants of this coun-
try, and leave us without means of self-

defense !

How? By bribing the subjects of

Austria-Hungary to quit work.
An Ambassador of a foreign Nation

coolly informs Germans in this coun-
try, that they will be punished for

treason under German law, if they ac-

cept employment from manufacturers
who are selling arms to Germany's
foes.

It is an open secret that our Govern-
ment hasn't on hand enough ammuni-
tion to supply an army four months.
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and the Anihassndors of (iiM-ni:»iiy and
Austria have demonstrated their al^ili-

ty to lock our wheels, so completely,

that we couldivt get^ for ourselves from
our own plants^ the wherewith to de-

fend ourselves froiri German attml'!

If such recent events do not startle

our Statesmen into new views of the

immi<j:ration question, our future will

be tragic, indeed.

AMiere so nuiny elements entei- into

National life, unusual combinations
take i)hice. Strange conditions make
strange l)edfellows. We have seen the

Irish-American Catholics unite with
the (ierman-American Protestants

against the English.

We have seen the Irish-American
Catholic embrace the opulent Jew,
against the Protestant.

The Tagehlatt (Jewish Daily News)
of Chicago, is puljlished in the Yid-
dish language. Its editor wrote to the

Pope, sending the letter through the

Papal ambassador at Washington.
Bonzano transmitted the communica-
tion to his government, the Italian Pa-
pal establishment, and in due course,

the Secretary of State for Bonzano's
government sent the Pope's reply to

the Jews, through the Papal Ambassa-
dor

!

Thus an American citizen, a Jew,
placed himself in the position of a gov-
ernment dealing independently with a

foreign potentate.

The transaction is so unprecedented
that I present the correspondence, as
it appears in the Tageblatt of August
25th, 1915:

"The Jewish Daily News is in receipt of

a striking communication from Pope
Benedict XV, in reply to a request made
by us for an expression of opinion on the

Jewish question.

The Jewish Daily News Letter to the Pope

June twenty-third. Nineteen Fifteen.

His Holiness, the Pope, Benedict XV.
The Vatican, Rome, Italy.

Your Holliness:—
The denial of justice, aye the depriva-

tion of the very elementary rights inalien-

able to the welfare of all human beings.

has characterized the attitude of the world

towards the Jews since the destruction

of Jerusalem by Titus. Your heart has

been stirred to its very depths by the out-

rages and excesses committed upon Jewish

men, women and children, and we are

most sincerely grateful for this expression

of horror on the part of your holiness.

"Encouraged by the sympathy of the

Head of the Church of Christ, we humbly
appeal to you to arouse Christendom to

a realization of the sufferings of millions

of human beings—the Jews—so that they

may be accorded—wherever they now
lack these—full equal rights and treat-

ment.

"Such a call, coming from Your Holi-

ness, will be heeded throughout the world

and will meet with the recogn.tion de-

sired.

The Jewish Daily News, the oldest and

leading Jewish paper in America, speaking

in behalf of the three million Jews in the

United States of America, and voicing not

only their innermost sentiments, but the

v.ews of the Jews the world over, prays

that Your Holiness may send through its

columns the message that will awaken
the conscience of mankind.

Most respectfully and humbly yours,

(signed) "S. MASON,
Managing Editor.

"This letter was sent to Monsignor Gi-

ovanni Bonzano, the Apostolic Delegate

at Washington, with the request that

it be forwarded to the Vatican.

"Monsignor Bonzano has now received a

reply, which he has transmitted to us."

Monsignor Giovanni Bonzano,

Delegato Apostolico,

Washington,

TRANSLATION.

The Vatican,

22, July, 1915.

Sir:—I hasten to present to the Holy
Father the letter transmitted to me by you
Xo. 18051 D, of the 25th of June, in which
-Mr. S. Mason, Editor of the New York
Jewish Daily News, asked the aid of His
Holiness in favor of the Jews who are per-

secuted and still deprived, in some nations,

of full c'ivil rights.

The August Pont.ff has graciously taken
note of this document and has desired me
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to request you to write to Mr. Mason that

the Holy See, as it has always in the past

acted according to the dictates of justice

in favor of the Jews, intends now also to

fellow the same path on every propitious

occasion that may present itself.

Yours, etc., etc.,

P. CARD. GASPARRI.

IMonsignor Giovanni Bonzano,

Apostolical Delegate,

Washington.

What view will Confess and the

President and Secretary Lansing take

of the flagrant breach of propriety?

What wonld be thought of a (xerman
Society—tlie Central \'erein, for ex-

ample—if it should open a correspond-
ence through Ambassador Bernsdorff,

directly with the German Emperor?
What better cloak for a system of es-

pionage and secret treason could be de-

vised, than private correspondence car-

ried on b}' Austrian and German and
Jewish spies, through the Papal Am-
bassador ?

As everj^body knows, the President
himself Avould not have written to the

Pope, except through Secretary Lan-
sing. But the Jewish organization,

which publishes its purpose to carve

out a Jewish State in this Union, and
its intention to submit certain "propo-

sitions"' to our Government, has al-

ready anticipated its independent ex-

istence, by ignoring our diplomatic rep-

resentatives. It goes over their heads,

and deals directly with the Pope,
through the Papal Ambassador, just

as though the Jewish organization at

Chicago were an inde]:)endent State

!

These Jews might be pardoned, for

their outrageous breach of loyalty and
decorum, on the ground that they do
not know any better—but what about

Bonzano, the Papal secretary, and the

Pope?
They knew better; and they knew

they were insulting the Government
and i)e()ple of the United States, when
they set the precedent of dealing di-

rectly Avith citizens of this Republic.

NO ' SUCFI THING WAS EVER
DONE BEFORE!
These insolent Jews take it upon

themselves to acknowledge the Italian

Pope as the true and only "Head of

the Church of Christ."

All Protestant churches are nieiitally

obliterated. There are no Christians

save the Romanists. 'Waldensians,

Greek Catholics, and Armenians—all

more ancient than Romanists—are left

with the heathen. Bai)tists, Method-
ists, Lutherans, Presbyterians, Acivent-

ists, etc., are mere trash—ephemeral
and negligible—in the eyes of the lead-

ers of the three million Jews. Thfe

Pope is the earthly embodiment of

Christ, the Head of the Church, the

one potentate enijiowered '"to arouse

Christendom" in behalf of the poor,

down-trodden Rothschilds, Belmonts,
Guggenheims, Warburgs, Strauses,

Ochses, Pulitzers, Abells, Schitfs,

Kuhns, Loebs, Montags, Seligs, Dan-
nenbergs, Waxelbaums, and Haases.

With a fine display of scorn for our
President and Secretary of State, the

Three Million Jeics slap the face of
Diplomatic Etiquette; and with a no-

ble exhibition of contempt for non-

Catholic churches, tJicy spit upon the

creed of Christianity.

Two years ago. I thought that there

Avere evidences of a league between
American priests and the rich Jews
of our large cities, and our readers
may remember my comments.
There is no longer any doubt that

the Roman priests and the opulent
Jews are allies.

"The Holy See, as it has always in

the past acted according to the dictates

of justice, IN FAVOR OF THE
JEWS, intends now to follow the

same pathP
What marvelous liars these priests

are I How boldly they i>resume upon
short memories, selfish opportunism,
and ignorance of historv ! They can
rely upon the Catholic to believe ev-

erything they say. for they know that

the Catholic will not read after a

"heretic." They are not much afraid

of the "heretic," for they know that his

readers are inditferent, his churches
decadent, his daily papers choked with
gold, and his political leaders afraid

of the Catholic vote.
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Therefore James Church, the Pope,
never bats an eye, when he tells the
Jews that he means to follow in that
path of justice to the Jews^ which his

predecessors have always trod.

We'll be learning next, that Nero
was a great friend to the Christians,
that the Duke of Alva protected the
Dutch, that Claverhouse cherished an
ardent affection for Scotch Presbyte-
rians, that Catherine de Medici flung
her queenly mantle over the Hugue-
nots, and that the Hapsburgs of Aus-
tria were iiidoinitable defenders of
the Keformation.
"The Holy See has always acted ac-

cording to the dictates of justice, in

favor of the Jews !"

^\e\\,well, WELL!
So it is not a Papal Spain that for-

bids a Jew to enter the realm

!

It is not a Papal Poland that grinds
the Israelites to the ground.

It was not a Papal England that out-

lawed the. Jeic nor a Protestant Eng-
land that enfranchised him

!

It was not a Papal France, that de-
graded the Jew, nor a Revolutionary
and Xapoleonic France which rehabil-
itated him

!

How long has it been since Pope
Pius IX. kidnapped the son of the
Mrrtaias to make a priest out of him?
All I^urope rang with the scandal, and
the Emperor of the French implored
the Holy Father to restore the boy to
his distracted parents. But the Pope
was unrelenting, and those Jews never
saw their son, again.
How long has it been since modern

liberalism -ompelled (iir, l*opes to dis-

continue their annual custom, at
Eome, of publicly cursing the Jews?
How long has it been since the 29th

canon of the Aurelian Council was
rigidly enforced—the Papal law which
made it death for a Jew to even speak
to a Catholic during Holy Week?

fv'^ee Roha di Roma, by W. W. Sto-
ry, page 423.)

Who was it that destroyed Jewish
libraries, forced Jews to wear badges,
forbade them to eat and drink with
Catholics, closed all the professions to
them, and taxed faithful Jews, to sup-

port Jews who consented to change
their religion?

Pope Eugenius IV. did it.

Who expelled the Jews from all

Italy, except Rome and Ancona?
Pope Pius V. did it.

AVho sent the murderous, devilish
Inquisition into Portugal, to first tor-

ture and then burn, the Jews?
Pope Clement VII. did it.

AVho ordered the general destruction
of the Talmud, and sanctioned the
wholesale massacras of Jews in

France?
Pope John XXII. did it.

Who ordered the punishment of Jew-
ish physicians for entering Catholic
houses, and denied Christian burial to

Catholics who employed Jewish phy-
sicians?

Pope Gregory XIII. did it.

Who controlled Europe during the

dismal ages when Jews were hounded
like wild beasts, denied human rights,

and grudgingly permitted to dwell in

pestilential ghettos?

The Popes did.

Wio ruled the nations and directed

the consciences of monarchs and minis-

ters, during the fearful centuries when
a Jew could not own a home, could not

hold an office, could not hold up his

head among men, and was forced to

eke out a squalid existence, on such ig-

nominous terms, and amid such dwarf-
ing conditions, that the Jewish race,

even now, shows the physical ana mor-
al effects of that long night of slavery?

The popes did.

Who liberated the Jews from these

horrible conditions?

Modern democracy did it.

When Great Britain, less than 100
years ago, removed the Civil Disabil-

ities of the Jews, it was Protestani
statesmanship repealing Catholic lav)s.

"Wlio was the Papal theologian who
taught, that '''Jews are slaves

f''

It was Saint Thomas Aquinas, the

chiefest of all Roman Catholic theolo-

gians.

For hundreds of years the legisla-

tion of Europe was based upon this in-

fernal teaching—the teaching of a the-

ologian who was such a favorite of the
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recent Popes^ Leo XIII., and Pius X.,

that they ordered all Catholic teachers

to again instruct their students in the

Papal theology which forfeits the life

of the "heretic," and imposes serfdom
on the Jew.
See Barnard Lazare's Anti-Semit-

is7n, page 125.)

But how could you expect these his-

torical facts to be known to a Chicago
editor, who informs the Pope and the
world, that the Jews lost their rights

—

the natural rights of man—when Ti-

tus stormed Jerusalem?
According to the Tageblatt, the Jews

have been the pariahs of the human
race, ever since the year 70, after

Christ ! Mason, of the Tageblatt,

ought to at least consult some simple

authority on Eoman history, Merivale's

book, for example. It won't take him
but a few minutes to learn what an
ass he made of himself, when he told

the Pope that the Jews had never had
a square deal in the world, after Jerusa-

lem fell. If the Tageblatt Solomon
will study the subject, he will discover

that the real persecution of the Jews
began after Constantine the Great had
made his famous alliance with the

Christian bishops. Solomon may also

learn that when the Emperor Julian,

"the Apostate," undertook to re-estab-

lish paganism, he emancipated the

Jews, and attempted to rebuild their

temple at Jerusalem. Solomon will

learn that so long as Popery was su-

preme, the Jew was the vassal of the

bishops and the kings, and that it was
the Reformation which brightened the

skies for the outlawed race.

Bernard Lazare, the scholarly Jew,
says in his AyitiSemAtisin^ page 131;
"But new times were approaching;

the storm foreseen by everybody broke
over the church.
"Luther issued his 95 theses * * *

For a moment the theologians forgot
the Jews; they even forgot that the
spreading movement took its roots in
Hebrew sources * * * *

''THE JEWISH SPIRIT TRI-
UMPHED WITH PROTESTANT-
ISM. In certain respects, the Reform-
ation was a return to the ancient Ehi-

on/sm, of the evangelic agesy
Lazare proceeds to prove that al-

though Luther was provoked into vio-

lent language against the Jews, be-

cause they refused to become his con-

verts, the Protestants of Germany
never ill-treated the Jews.

(See page 133.)

In the United States, the priest and
the Jew have need of each other and
the Pope has blessed the alliance.

That the Hearst papers are leagued
with this queer combination of Jew
financier and Roman priest, is an in-

teresting detail; whether important
as well as interesting, remains to be
seen.

In the case of the Russian Jews, the

new combination worked so well that

our Congress, in 1913, abrogated a

time-honored treaty, as a protest

against Russia's alleged mistreatment

of her own subjects.

Descending to particulars, the new
combination was able to save the Rus-
sian Jew, Beiliss, who was accused of

taking all the blood out of a Gentile

boy, through forty-odd incisions in his

veins.

In the Leo Frank case, the new com-
bination almost won, but not quite.

And, of course, the unexpected defeat

it sustained, profoundly enraged the

new combination.
The Roman Catholic papers are as

bitter against the State of Georgia, as

are the papers of Hearst and the Jews.
The same Romanist journals that

condoned and defended the deliberate

assassination of the Protestant lectur-

er, William Black, by the Knights of

Columbus, at Marshall, Texas, are un-
measured in their denunciation of the

State wherein a convicted and thrice-

sentenced Jew was hanged by the Vig-
ilantes.

These Romanist papers indecently
exulted in the military murder of
Francisco Ferrer, whose crime consist-

ed of teaching progressive ideas in a

modern school, but they are rabidly at-

tacking a People who were determin-
ed that one of Leo FranMs lawyers
should not annihilate our "judicial sys-

tem.
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The same Komanist papers tnat glo-

ried in the burning of eight Mexican
''heretics" in 1895. at Texacapa, by the

fanatical Catholic priests, can find no
words too severe to condemn the legal

conviction of as vile a sodomite as ever

awoke the wrath of God.

THE GOVERNOR WHO REVERSED ALL THE
COURTS, TO SAVE HIS OWN CLIENT! .

This new combination of rich Jew.
Konian ])riest and Hearst newspaper,
has arraigned the State of Georgia, at

the bar of public opinion; and so art-

fully persistent hjis been the propagan-
da of misrepresentation, that hi;n-

dreds of editors and preachers, totally

disinterested, have been swept off their

feet. These honest, but deluded, de-

famers of Georgia, have broken the

bounds of temperate discussion; and
their abuse has become so indiscrim-

inate, that it spares no State in the

South, and it calumniates both the liv-

ing and the dead.

AVe (leorgiaus. particularly, are a

mean, low-down lot. and always were,

because our torbears were the sweep-

ings of London jails. Since our an-

cestors were criminals—a sort of Bota-

ny Bay and Devil's Island settlement

— it is natural that we should be a

disgrace to the Union, and a reproach

to the human race.

Even a Virginia pa|)er can bring it-

self to publish the following:

The guilt or innocence of I^o M. Frank
in the matter of the murder of Mary Pha-

gan has absolutely no bearing on the

crime committed by these savageL In

Georgia. Frank had been confined in this

I)rison for life because a fearless Governor

preferred to commit political suicide and
endure social boycott in the state of his

nativity raflier than permit the hanging of

a man who had been convicted on the q les

tionable evidence of a criminal negro and
regarding wnose guilt there certainly ex-

isted a most reasonable doubt.

Is this in any way surprising? Not in

the least bit when we review the history

of Georgia. It was originally a penal col-

ony and was settled by the worst felons

and perverts that England could export to

her blistering shores. Succeeding genera-

tions grew up with criminal instincts just

as marked and with ignorance, supersti-

tion and physical unfitness far more mark-
ed. These are the Georgia crackers, the

t'layeaters among whom hookworm and
pellagra and other disgusting diseases run
rampant. Not in the entire history of the

state has pure Georgia blood produced a

really great man. They were cowards and
skulkers and camp followers in our Civil

War, and that Gen. Sherman should have
cut himself off from his base of supplies

•and marched entirely across the state un-

opposed is not in the least bit surprising

when we consider the caliber of the male
citizens of that commonwealth. Its first

families have now established what they

are pleased to call "society" in their cap-

ital city of Atlanta, where they spend their

ill-gotten gains acquired through manu-
facturing nostrums 'and other quack de-

vices guaranteed to do everything from
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taking the kink out of a negro's hair to

turning the darkest Ethiopians into a

pure-blooded Anglo Saxon.—The Virgin-

ian.

The Milwaukee Free Press or August
18, 1915, said:

THE SOUTH AT THE BAR.

"The spirit and method of the Ku Klux

Klan has once more triumphed in Georgia.

"Once more Southern "gentility" and

"chivalry" have revealed their true c*har-

is a paradise of civilization compared with

the state of Georgia.

"And this is not the worst. The worst

is that the spirit of Georgia is typical of

the spirit that prevails throughout a large

portion of the old South. Every Southern

state that tolerates lynch law, whose peo-

ple revel in the writhings of tortured

blacks, is capable of Georgia's monstrous

outrage. Every community that burns ne-

groes at the stake or hangs them for un-

proven or petty c?rimes, would act as Geor-

gia did in the case of Frank.

JEWISH ATTACK UPON A STATE WHERE NO JEW WAS EVER MISTREATED.

acter in murder, secession and anarchy.

"For the same bestial spirit that sought

to disrupt this Union, the same spirit that

lashed and ravished the helpless slave, the

same Southern spirit that even today is

celebrating the blood-lust oi the Ku Klux

Klan as a virtue, is living in the persecu-

tion and murder of Leo Frank.

"The trial and conviction of this unfor-

tunate Jew, as accomplished by the courts

of Georgia, was enough to damn the peo-

ple of that state as unfit for citizenship.

The horrible sequel of his assassination

proves them to be something worse than

barbarians.

"Americans have gazed askance at the

bloody immorality of Serbia. But Serbia

How can the nation—the civilized, re-

sponsible and self-governing part of it

—

longer tolerate this anarchy, this blood-

lust on the part of a section that once de-

fied humanity and government till it had

to be broken with swords and bullets?

"And then this rot about the dangers of

miscegenation! Who is responsible for

the mixture of Caucasian and Ethiopian

blood in the country, the negro or the

Southern white? Not one light-colored

black in 5,000 is the result of a negro's

design on a white woman. The light-col-

ored black, with scarcely an exception,

dates his ancestry to the lust of some
Southern white master, who did not hesi-

tate to make the creature he bought and
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sold as an animal the motber of his chil-

dren.

"So much for the Southern hypocrisy

that prates of misc'egenation to justify its

crimes.

"If the cries of the burning black vic-

tims of a hundred Southern stakes have

not been able to rouse the conscience ot

the North, can .t remain deaf to the last

LOOK AT GEORGIA.

As a spectacle fit to make the gods

weep we commend to the people of the

other States in the Union and especially

those inclined to try the experiment of

prohibition the prohibition State of Geor-

gia. Georgia stands today pre-eminent in

disgrace before he rsister States in the

Union.

?^^TT«>.T»f

LOOK AT GEORGIA !—From Denver Post.

agonized prayer of Leo Frank as his tor-

tured body was swung by "Southern gen-

tlemen' from a Southern pine?

"If Georgia cannot be scourged from
out the sister-hood of states, if she cannot
be reduced to a condition of dependance
lower than that of the Philippines, she can

at least be visited with a commercial, so-

cial and political ostracism which will don-

vince its gentry that true Americans still

enthrone justice and humanity as the chief

bulwarks of the nation.
'

The Wine and Spirit Bulletin is

mighty hard on us; it says:

"The professional prohibitionists have

a way of tracing to the licensed liquor

traffic the blame for nearly all crime in

general and for every startling crime or

terrible disaster in particular, it remain-

ing for them to even connect the slaugh-

ter of the innocents, women and children,

as well as men, in the Eastland disaster,

with drinking. What then can they say

for Georgia, one of their banner prohibi-

tion States? And in view of their habit

are we not justified in reversing the situa-

tion?

"Yet the shameful acts of citizens of
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the prohibition State of Georgia, in intim-

idating the court of justice and the jury

in the Frank case, in threatening the Gov-

ernor who had the courage to defy the

mob, and their subsequent acts in mur-

dering their helpless victim and making a

morbid show of his corpse, are but logical

and natural results following the teach-

ings of the prohibitionists and of prohi-

bition.

"Yes, Georgia is disgraced today as the

natural consequence of adopting prohibi-

tion doctrine, which in its very nature is

anarchistic and puts the rule of the mob
above the rights of individuals, above

courts and law, above constitutions, above

human life, even, when they stand in the

way of accomplishing its mad purposes.

"Look at Georgia, oh ye citizens of the

United States, and then decide whether

you want prohibition and its conse-

quences!"

The Chicago Tiihune said

:

"The South is backward. It shames the

United States by illiteracy and incompe-

tence. Its hill men and poor whites, its

masses of feared and bullied blacks, its

igno'-ant and violent politicians, its rotten

mdustrial conditions and its rotten social

ideas exist in circumstances which dis-

grac'e the United States in the thought of

Americans and in the opinion of foreign-

er's.

"When the Noi'th exhibits a demonstra-
tion of violence against law Dy gutter rats

of scciety, there is shame in the locality

which was the scene of the exhibition.

When the South exhibits it there is defi-

ance of opinion.

"The South is barely half educatea.

Whatever there is explicable in the mur-
der of Leo ]\I. Frank is thus explainable.

Leo Frank was an atom in the American
structure. He might have died, unknown
or ignored, a thousand deaths more 'agon-

izing in preliminary torture and more cru-

el in final execution, and have had no ef-

fect, but the spectacle of a struggling hu-
man being, helpless before fate as a mouse
in the care of a cat, will stagger Ameri-
can complacency.

"The South is half educated. It is a

region of illiteracy, blatant self-righteous-

ness, cruelty and violence. Until it is im-

proved by the invasion of better blood and

better ideas it will remain a reproach and
a danger to the American Republic."

The Pueblo, Colorado, Star-Journal
said:

Georgia has added another chapter to

its disgraceful story of the Frank case,

the climax coming in the cowardly lynch-

ing of Leo Frank by an armed mob that

forcibly removed him from the state pris-

on farm and deprived him of life near the

home of the young girl for whose murder
he was convicted by a jury. The lync^hing

of Frank is the logical outcome of the law-

less scenes attending his trial and follow-

ing the change of his death sentence to

life imprisonment by a courageous gover-

nor who felt that Frank had not been giv-

en a square deal. After the attack on
Frank by a fellow prisoner it was ev-

ident that further attempts would be made
to kill him, and the lynching therefore is

no great surprise. It vms what could be

expecte<i from blood-hungry, law-defying

demons.

"The lynching of Frank is inexcusable

and those responsible for the horrible af-

fair deserve the punishment that should

be given to the perpetrator of any delib-

erate murder. Georgia will merit the con-

tempt of every other state if the murder-
ers of Leo Frank are not captured and
convicted by due process of law. This

crime against justic'e ought to arouse ev-

ery decent citizen of Georgia in an effort

to partially blot out the shame of their

state.

"Those who doubted the charges that

Frank had been unfairly tried will change

their opinion as a result of the mob ven-

geance visited upon him. The same spirit

that caused his hanging undoubtedly was
present during his trial and resulted in his

conviction by jurors who feared for their

own safety if they cleared him of the

charge of murdering a young girl in tb"

pencil factory of which he was superin-

tendent. The general opinion is that

Frank wag innocent of murder and should

not have been convicted on the unsupport-

ed testimony of a worthless negro."
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AUO^VJST 1915 lO CENTS

IN THE OUTCAST STATE- According to the Denver paper, published where the Pope"s;Knights of Columbus,
brutally lynched the Baptist Preacher.

The Denver, Colorado, Express said

:

"The assasination of Leo Frank by cit-

izens of the sovereign state of Georgia
brought disgrace, not only upon that com-
monwealth, but upon the entire nation.
The arrest, ctonviction and the final mur-

der of the unfortunate victim of brutal

blood-lust will go down in history as the

vilest miscarriage of justice ever record-

ed.

"Taken nearly a hundred miles, the ex-

hausted invalid, handcuffed, was hanged
and then, lest Georgia savages shpuld mu-
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tilate his mangled body, it was spirited

away.

"The wars with the early Indians were

marked by scajlping and sometimes by

burning at the stake. The story of the

torture of explorers by savage tribes of

cannibals has been written. The perpe-

trators of this cruelty were savages.

And yet, in this Year of our Lord, 1915,

in the Twentietn Century of civilization to

the Nth power, a stricken man under the

protection of what we are pleased to term

the Law, is cruelly assassinated in an or-

ganized State. Savages is too mild a term

for the Georgia outlaws.

"The stain which tfie assassination has

brought upon the nation can never be

washed out. Georgia today is an outc'ast

among the States.

The Chicago Post said

:

"If there is self-respect in Georgia, if

there is courage in it^ governor, the men
who have dragged its name in the mire of

infamy will be found and punished as

they deserve—^and they deserve hanging.

Georgia may resent outside interference,

as some local Mississippian suggests, but

Georgia cannot be law and license to her-

self in this malter. Her shame is the

shame of the nation. Nor will the old ex-

cuse that it was the deed of an impusive

and ignorant mob satisfy. It was the

deed of deliberation, not of impulse, and
ognorant mobs do not travel in automo-
biles."

The Boston Traveler said

:

"In this crowning demonstration of her

inherent savagery Georgia stands revealed

before the world in her naked, barbarian

brutality. She is a shame and a disgrace

to the other states of the bnion, who are

powerless in the matter of humane justice

to put upon her the cori-ective punishment
her crimes deserve. But the consciences

of the American people are not so callous

as those of the Georgians, who sanction

by silence or take part in such crimes

against fellow-beings, black and white.

And to the degree that a humane public*

can rebuke the state of Georgia by refusing

to have any part of her unholy peoples'

products they will do so. Anything made

or grown in Georgia will bear a sinister

baud and be suggestive of lynchings and

burnings and especially of this brutal

murder of Frank, and it ought to be and

doubtless will be left untouched. The onlv

way in whic'h Georgia can be made to feel

the shudder of horror which is sweepinp.,

the country and the utter contempt in

which she is held by the rest of the na-

tion, is by a deliberate boycott of Georgia-

grown and Georgia-made goods—peaches,

cotton, or whatever else bears the stamp

of the so-called "Empire State of the

South."

The Louisville, Kentucky, Herald

(owned by a Chicago Jew), said:

"Surely such a state of aff'airs is the

South's shame and Georgia's shame!

"Georgia's shame lies in the c.ty govern-

ment of Atlanta, which railroaded Leo

Prank to an unmerited conviction, in her

polic'e force which made him a victim o'

the demand of an inefficient constabulary

to ocnvict someone at all hazards, which

turned loose the degenerate Conley be-

cause it had made up its mind too soon

that it could and would convict Frank.

"The shame of the State is no greater

on account of thfe lynching of Frank than

because of any of the other almost in-

numerable lynchings which have preceded

it in that State and others.

"But because of these other things

which preceded his conviction, her shame

is blacTi and continuing.

"It will continue until it may be said

in Georgia that a man may be prosecuted,

no matter what his crime or how clear his

guilt, without the presence of the police in

the prisoner s dock asking for the vindi-

cat'on of a detective theory, and without

a press which panders to the lowest pas-

sions of the mob by such methods as

makes a fair trial and a just sentence be-

yond the power of ordinary men in the

jury box or on the bench to render.

The Investment Magazine^ Canton.

Ohio, said

:

"Thousands of impartial investigators

are convinced that Frank was not guilty,

Millions have read the evidenc'e and know
that he was convicted on "framed up" tes-
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timony—and that he did not have a fair

trial. But Georgia was fletermined to

"Hang the Jew' and has done so; in spite

of law and police protection and all the

other apparatus of government.

"The lynching was participated in by

the entire commonwealth of Georgia. All

right minded mem 'familiar ^ with state

prisons know that FranK could not have

been taken from bis cell without conniv-

ance on the part of state officials. If this

der which led Austria to undertake the

punishment of Servia was insignificant.

Georgia should be punished."

In piou-s Boston, Massachusetts, the

Jews and the Knights of Cohimbiis

hehl a niass-niootiii<; in Faneinl hall,

to oxpre.ss their mixed emotions.

As reported in The Glohe^ the Jews
and the Knights said some violent

thinffs. For instance:

AS THE NEW YORK WORLD- JEW OWNED—SEES US.

is not sufficient proof, take that speech

in which tne Mayor of Atlanta openly

gloated over the affair. The meeting was

not one of criminals, nor of light minded
people in the street. It was a solemn

gathering of the Chamber of Commerce.

Listen also to the Sheriff of the county,

who asserted tuat he would make no ef-

fort to arrest the lynchers because a jury

could not be found that would indic't

them.

"Compared to such a crime, the mur-

"The next speaker, Dr. Coughlin, ex-

Mayor of Fall River, who was a member
of the committee that visited Atlanta and
met Gov. Slaton, reveived a warm recep-

tion. During his stirring address Dr.

Coughlin was continually interrupted by

applause.

"Dr. Coughlin said that he had told the

other members of the committee who
were with him in Georgia that the spirit

of the people and the press showed him
that if Frank was freed by Gov. Slaton



WATSON'S MAGAZINE. 313

he would be killed by a mob. The speaker

lauded ex-Gov. Slatou for his action. He
attacked Thomas Watson, the editor of

the Jeffersonian, and said it wias a dis-

grace to have the American flag float

over him, as he was a disgrace to Ameri-

can citizenship.

"Dr. Coughlin said that he knew that

Leo M. Frank died because he was a Jew
He also said that it was not true that

race prejudice showed itself on account of

outside interference, as is claimed in Geor-

gia. The speaker stated that the stories

circulated about the behavior of Frank
i

are not true and are used to cover over

the crime of the ones that killed him.

"In closing he said that he did not be-

lieve it was going too far when he said

that the present Governor and every of-

ficial in Georgia knew the ones that took

part in the lynching of Frank. He plead-

ed with his auaience when they left the

hall not to forget to work in aiding in

vindicating the name of Leo M. Frank.

"Rabbi M. M. Eichler of Temple Ohabei

Shalom, stated that he firmly believed in

the innocence of FrauK ana said that the

meeting was both one of protest on ac-

count of the lynching and a memorial
meeting for the martyrdom of Frank. He
claimed that Frank never had a chance

and receiverd a mistrial because he was
a Jew and a Northerner. In closing he

said that Georgia is not fit to be a sister

State of Massac'husetts.

"Rev. Charles Fleisher created some
enthusiasm when he spoke of boycotting

the State of Georgia. He said that it

might have some effect to refuse to travel

there, to trade there, to loan money there

or to spend money there, for he said that

if the pocket nerve is touched it will make
the State squirm. H ealso said that, if

Germany is wrong regarding the Arabic

matter, America should boycott Germany
for at least five years and such action

would bring results.

"After the addresses Secretary Silver-

man read the resolutions which were unan-

imously accepted:

"One of the resolutions declares that

the Jeffersonian has "aroused hatred

among the citizens of the United States

and incited the mob spirit among the peo-

ple of Georgia," and demands that 'the

United States postoffice authorities exclude

this paper from the United States mail.'

The second resolution was as follows:
" 'Resolved, That citizens of Massa(?hu-

setts, in Faneuil Hall assembled, denounce
the lynching of Leo Frank by a Georgia

mob as a deliberate and cowardly murder
a high crime against civilization, and a

disgrace to the United States, and urge

upon their fellow citizens of Georgia,

both those who know the perpetrators and
those whose duty it is to enforce the laws

to redeem the honor of their state and
nation and their own past reputation for

high-minded citizenship, by bringing those

who are responsible for the outrage to

prompt and adequate justice."

One point stressed in most of these-

attacks on the South is, that Leo Frank
was serving a life term in the peniten-
tiary, and in good faith meant to take
his medicine.

The Hearst papers argue it from
that point of view, and so do most of
the other traducers of Georgia.
Yet every one of these editors know

that the Burns agency, the Jew pa-
pers, and the Hearst writers nad de-

clared that the State "must redeem'
herself" by granting Frank a full par-
don.

The Burns agency blatantly an-

nounced that "the fight" was to be im-
mediately renewed; and, since Frank's
execution. Burns seems almost beside
himself because of the loss of so lu-

crative a case. Are the editors at all

chagrined for the same reason? Are
these virtuous publishers feeling sadly
the loss of the Jewish ducats that paid
for so much front-page space? During
a whole year, Burns, Lehon, and a bat-

talion of lawyers—some in New York
and some in Georgia, luxuriated in tha-

Frank case.

The Kansas City Star^ the New Or-
leans Item^ the Chicago Tribune^ and
various other righteous dailies, to say
nothing of "farm" papers, have ban-
queted on the Frank case. When he
was put to death according to Law,
they had lost a gold mine. Of course,

they deplore it. Othello's occupation's

gone, unless Slaton's attempt at a
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''come back'' in Georgia re()[)en.s the

golden vein.

As to that, we will soon know.
Did Leo l^rank take the comnuited

sentence in good faith, intending to

serve a life sentence? Did his i>artisans

regard the 81aton commutation as any-
thing more than a prelude to a pardon,
or an escape?

Let us see.

The Straus Magazine, Furk^ said:

"All credit to Governor Slaton, of Geor-
gia. His was a noble stand by his con-

science and by his convictions against the

clamor of prejudice and public opinion.

"Close upon the news of the commuting
of Frank's sentenc'e came news of rioting

in the streets of Atlanta, of the same mob
spirit that has so often resulted in crimes

that are a stain upon Georgia's record.

"The fight for the vindication of Leo M.

Frank has not ended; and even with his

acquittal—and his ultimate acquittal is

only a matter of time—the fight for de-

cency in Georgia will only have begun.

This fight for decency will not end until

low-lived slanderers without moral char-

acter, without public spirit, are run out of

the state of Georgia. Tiie tight will not be

won until men like Ihomas Watson, the

very embodiment of the beast in looks,

manners and conduct, are removed from
any influence upon the public sentiment of

the community. This creature, whose
private conduct is such that we (?annot

describe it in our pages, will be further

exposed as our probe goes deeper.

Burns said:

Ultimately, perhaps in the very near fii-

tui'e, Leo tYank will he fi-eed. He will

come from the Georgia prison, where he

has been since Governor Slaton commuted
his sentence of death to life imprison-

ment, vindicated of the murder of Mary
Phagan, and the crime laid on the shoul-

ders of the principal state's witness in

the famous trial. Governor Slaton, hissed

by mobs in Georgia, will be hailed a hero.

In the New York Evening Journal
(Hearst-Jew-Catholic), the Rev. Dr.
Charles H. r*arkhurst said;

At the time of this writing this young
liero i? hovering between life and death.

The situation is pathetic. We want him
to live. The country wants him to live,

with the exception of some portions of dis-

honored Georgia. Our ambition for him
goes farther than that. We want to have
him restored to the enjoyment of that

liberty of wh.ch it is the almost univer-

i^al sentiment he has been unjustly de-

prived.

It is entirely safe to claim that in the

judgment oi ex-Governor Slaton, the man
ie either innocent or unfairly convicted.

In either alternative a life sentence or any
other penalty is an injustice. Under the

c'ircumstances the only course open to

the ex-Governor was to commute. Frank's

safety lay not in freedom, but in impris-

onment. Jail was supposed to be at

least a place of security. It was assumed
that convicts already immured there, es-

pecially if they were convicted murderers,

would not be allowed to roam around
the jail yard with concealed butcher

knives.

If poor Leo lives he will have to pos-

sess his soul in patience till the unac-

countable bitterness of his persecutors has

worn itself out, which it will do in time.

Passion cannot maintain itself indefinite-

ly. It is like tire which goes out unless

fed with fresh combustibles. We may
safely believe that unless he is set free

by the liberating mandate of death, he

will eventually have freedom given him
by the order of the court.

When the New York preachers

—

Parkhurst. Hillis and others—first butt-

ed into the (ieorgia situation, I wrote
each of them a courteous letter, aslc-

ing them to allow me to put before
them the evidence on which Frank was
convicted.

Neither of the minsiters of the gospel
condescended to give me an answer.
The New York Evening Mail pub-

lished the following:

If Georgia would nivite the respect of

law-abiding c'itizens the governoT- would
proceed to pardon without any further

delay the man who stands before the

whole world as an innocent man, except

in the estimation of some Georgians.
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Blin. the Boston Jew who had been
sj'ndicating articles in Frank's behalf,

followed the commuting of his sen-

tence, by publishing a philip])ic

;iti:iinst The Jett'ei'soiiian. in which he

declared that before any ettective move
could be macie to release Frank from
the State Farm, Watson and his pub-
lications must be outlawed. Blin stat-

ed that certain "gentlemen" were at

work on a plan to have the Post-office

de})artment issue an order against me.

The son of William J. Burns, in

charge of the Xew York office of that

notorious crook, gave out a statement

to the papers immediately after the

commutation, that "the fight"' to secure

freedom for Fi-ank was to be renewed
at once.

Therefore, the evidence is overwhel-
ming; Frank and his partisans did

not take the commutation in good
faith. They regarded it as a necessary

step to a full pardon, or to an arrang-

ed escape.

AMien Frank reached the State Farm,
lie was received as a guest of honor.
He was given a separate room and his

oAvn furniture : his floor was carpeted,

and an electric fan was installed. He
even had his electric cigarette lighter.

A negro convict was assigned to wait
on him. His roller-top desk was moved
in, and he went to work on his cor-

respondence, preparatory to shaping
public sentiment again. Only one day.

and not all of that, did he wear stripes,

and that was the day the Farm was
under inspection. The other convicts

were so maddened at the favoritism
shown this vilest of criminals, that

Creen tried to kill him. Of course, a

great uproar followed, and the attempt
was credited to The Jeffersonian. It

transpired that Creen had never seen

a copy of my paper; and, of course, the

paper never contained anything incit-

ing to murder.

All the outside papers were astound-
ed that no ett'ort was made to resist the
few men who took Frank away from
the guards, is it possible that the ed-

itors have not guessed the reason?
There are but two possible solutions

:

One is that the guards were infuriated

at him, and at the double duty they
were made to do for him, aloiie; the
other is, the guards believed that
Frank^n friends were talcing him out.

On his night ride to Cobb county.
Frank told the Vigilantes that, at first

he did not know whether they were
his friends, or his enemies.

I may as well state it here, as else-

where, that i^ rank did not at any time
protest his innocence; but, on the con-
trary, he said just before he was exe-
cuted: ^'The negro told the stori/.'^

Then, he added the remark about his
wife and mother, a remark which
meant he would rather die silent than
to bring shame upon his people.

The Vigilantes said to Frank, just
before he was executed:

"Tell us if the negro is guilty. We
know where he is, and if you say he.
too. is guilty, we will give him the
same that you are to get.'''

Frank i^emained silent. He did ask
the Vigilantes to shoot him.
They answered, ''No, you were not

.sentenced to be shot; you were sen-
tenced to be hanged, and that's what
we are going to do."
He seemed about to make a full con-

fession, but a nervous A'igilante said
something about the soldiers coming
to rescue him, and he closed up.
He asked for a box, that he might

jump off, and break his neck. He was
told that there was no box at hand,
and no time to get one.
His last words were:
"God, forgive me!''''

Not once did he say that the negro
had lied on him: not once didhe
claim that the other witnesses had
sworn falsely: not once did he claim
that the trial was unfair and the ver-
dict unjust.

He made one very significant state-

ment which seems to prove that the

.

negro held back some part of the
truth. He said. "The ne^ro did not
tell it all''

Once or twice, he appeared to be on
the point of telling what it was the
negro left out, but he checked him-
self.

Strange to say, he slept uk st of the
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way, on that long night-ride; his

wound had practically healed, and all

talk upon the "tortures" he suffered

on the road, or at the tree is utterly

unfounded.
He Avas treated just as though the

Sherill' and Bailitts were taking him
to the gallows, under the sentence of

the courts.

My information as to Frank's con-

fession ("The negro told the story")

came to me September 12th, from a

gentleman who got it from one of the

Vigilantes.

The negro did tell the story, and he

was corroborated, not only by the tes-

timony of more than forty white wit-

nesses, but by the physical condition of

the second floor of the factory, by the

physical conditions in the basement, by

the physical condition of Mary Pha-

gan's body, and hrj the physical condi-

tion of Leo Franks on the morning aft-

er the crime.

Celebrated crimes have their uncan-

ny fascination, else so many books

would not have been written about

them, I fear that wicked people in-

tei'est us more than the good ones do;

and I feel certain that most boys would
rather read about robbers, highwaymen
and pirates, than about Moses, Job, and
the other Saints, Give us the biogra-

phy of a truly virtuous man, like

Archbishop Whatley, and we are apt

to doze over it; but place in our hands
the memoirs of some grand rascal-
like Benvenuto Cellini— and we will

get wide awake at once.

Now, this Frank case has been made
one of the celebrated cases; and, for

many years to come, its baleful conse-

quences will be felt. Let us, therefore,

try to understand it.

In the August and September num-
bei-s of this magazine, the official evi-

dence was discussed and a digest of ii

published. I will not repeat anything
contained in those issues, but will give
you a view of the case from altogether
another standpoint.

1, The negro's story was corrobor-
ated by more than forty white wit-

nesses, in that Frank was proven to

have been just the kind of man the ne-

gro said he was; in that the elevator

was found unlocked, as the negro said

it had been left, after the carrying of

the corpse to the basement; in that tiie

signs of dragging over the gritty dirt

floor came straight and continuous^
from the elevator to where the corpse

lay; in that lliero wci'c al)sohUely no
signs of any struggle on any floor ex-

cept Frank's; in that the girl's face

showed she had been dragged on it : in

that her drawers showed a rip-up, to
the vagina, which had been penetrated
hut which contained no seminal emis-
sion; in that white o^irls swore to

Frank's lewd doings with one of the-

girls in the factory in the daytime; and
in that one white girl swore that

Frank had proposed sodomy to her, in

his office, on the second day she went
to work for him.
A stubborn contest was made by the

defense in the effort to show that Frank
was not aware of Jim Conley's where-
abouts, on the day of the crime, the
same being a legal holiday, and there

l)eing no aj^parent cause for Jim's
presence at the factory.

If Frank was in touch with the negro
that morning, and kept him at the

closed-down factory, there would he

something to explain. Besides, it would
powerfully corroborate Jim.

It so hoppened that Mrs. Hattie

Waites and her husband were return-

ing by rail from Savannah, where he

had been attending an Odd Fellow con-

vention. At Jesup they saw the At-
lanta paper which told of the arrest

of Leo Frank and the supposed com-
plicity of Jim Conley.

On seeing the picture of Frank in

the paper, the lady exclaimed, "Why.
that's the man I saw in close conversa-

tion with a negro, last Saturday morn-
ing."

Mrs. Waites had taken Frank to be

a friend of hers and had approached
him to speak to him, when, on getting-

close to him and looking into his face,

she saw her mistake.

Therefore, when she saw the face in

the paper she recognized it, for it was
a face not easy to forget.
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When the solicitor heard of this piece

of evidence, he ran it down, by havinf;

Mrs. Waites taken to see both Frank
and Conley. She unhesitatingly iden-

tified them as the two men she had seen

talking together, between 10 and 11

o'clock, on the day of the crime, near

Sig Montag's place, where Frank ad-

mitted he had gone, at that time.

Three other white witnesses placed

the negro in the factory, that morning,

sitting at the foot of the stairs, near

the front door.

What bvsiness had he, loitering

there, on that legal holida?

What did Frank talk to him about,

on the street, so near the time of the

crime ?

Obviously, these questions could not

be answered to the satisfaction of the

jury ; and therefore Frank had to braz-

en it out that he had not seen the negro

that day, at all.

Which would you have believed

—

the four disinterested white witnesses,

or the man on trial for his life?

You would have believed the four

white witnesses, two of them honest

men—Tillander and Graham—and two
of them ladies of unimpeachable char-

acters. Mrs. Arthur White and Mrs.
Hattie Waites.

Believing these witnesses, you might
have felt constrained to place credit on
the explanation of the negro, as to why
he came to the factory, that closed

•down that morning, and remained un-

til Frank got through with him.
There had to he a reason for the ne-

:gro's giving up his holiday, and stay-

ing at the factory. Isn't it so?

Well, then, what was the reason?

Frank gave none ; the negro did. The
negro said it was to keep a watchout
while Frank was with a girl whom he

-expected to come. Conley did not even

kn* w what girl Frank expected.

2. The negro's story was corrobor-

ated l)y the pliysical condition of the

•second floor. Frank's office floor.

Swoim to as Man/s, the hair found
on the handle of the lathe machine
could never be shown to have possi-

bly been the hair of another girl. Those
"few strands of the dead child's o-olden

crown, literally dragged Leo Frank to

inevitable conviction. They had to he

accounted for, because they had come
upon that projecting crank-handle, aft-

er Friday evening and before Monday.
Whose hair i and how came it there

at that time?
Nobody could answer. Even the ne-

gro did not ioiow what it was that

Mary fell against when Frank struck

her; but his evidence cleared up the

mystery, and without his story, it

would still be a mystery.

The blood on the second floor, and
the absence of blood anywhere else,

corroborated the negro; and the fact

that neither Frank nor Mary could be
seen by Miss Monteen Stover, when
she searched for Frank and waited for

him from 12:05 to 12:10, most power-
fully supported the negro's story of
Mary's previous coming, and of the
steps of two persons that he heard
walking hack to the metal room, where
the identified hair of the murdered girl

was found, the next time the loorkman
came to put his hand on his lathe ma-
chine.

3. The negro's story was corrobor-
ated by the physical condition of the
basement.
There were no signs of any struggle

in it; no blood, no torn-out hair, no
unusual appearance on the dirt floor.

There was a trail leading from the
elevator shaft to the corpse, showing
that she had been dragged from the
one place to the other, and her face
showed that she had been dragged by
the heels.

This indicated the work of one man,
and a man not strong enough to lift

and carry the body. Conley had done
it, but Frank was not strong enough.
Therefore, when Frank returned to the

factor3^ that holiday afternoon, and
locked himself in, he had to get the
girFs body away from the elevator,

where he and Conley had left it, and
he had to drag it. He wanted to place

it as far as possible from the elevator,

and in the darkest part of the base-

ment to prevent the night-watch from
discovering it.

(I may here state that there was no
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bank of cinders in the basement, noth-

in<j: ill Avhich the girl coiikl have been

siiKjthered; and there were no cinders,

or ashes, or sawdust in her mouth, in

her nostrils, or in her lungs, as some
of the recklessly mendacious writers

have alleged.)

4. The negro's story Avas corrobor-

ated by the physical condition of the

girl's body.

One leg of her drawers had either

been carefully torn all tlie way uj) the

seam, or a knii'e had ciil ii in a

straight, even line.

The drawers were stained with hev

blood. Iler uterus was virginal, but

her h3'men had been ruptured, and vi-

olence done to the parts a few minutes

before she died, according to Dr. H. F.

Harris. The inner walls of the mem-
ber showed rougli use, by finger or

tongue, or male organ. But there was
no seminal fluid.

"'You know I ain't built like other

nien^' was the negro's statement of

what Frank said to him, at the time.

PoAverfuUy corroborative, was the

affidavit of Miss Nellie "Wood that

Frank made the same remark to her.

in the privacy of his office, when he
moved his chair close up to hers, tried

to insinuate his hands under her

clothes, and proposed unnatural con-

nexion.

That the cord had been around JNIary

Phaoans neck a longtime, was proved
by the purple-black color of her face,

and the deep impression in her flesh.

The strip torn by Frank from her
underskirt, and folded under her head
to catch the blood, was there to shoT^

for itself: and it had served the pur-

pose of keeping the blood off the floor

in the metal room. If Jim hadn't let

the body fall, no blood would have
been found anywhere, except in her

hair, and on that cloth

!

Her hands were folded across her
bosom: so stiffly fixed in position that

they did not come apart when she was
being dragged sidewise, and partly on

her face. Jim's story is that he put
them down, easy, on the second floor,

when he went to where she was lying
on her back, dead.

Reject his statement, and you can't

explain the position of those little

hands.

(There is a detail here, that has baf-

fled me: The girl had evidently been
carrying her handkerchief either in

her mesh bag, or in her hand ; Jiow

came it to he hloody?
Jim nowhere mentions that it was

bloody, when he picked it up from the

floor in the metal room. But it was
found near the body, in the basement,
and it was bloody: how came it so?

Either Frank, or Conley must have
wiped his hands on it.)

T). The negro's story was corrobor-

ated hy Franl'\'< pJiysical condition, the

morning after the murder.
The two officers who went out to his

house, not to arrest him, but to invoke
his assistance in starting clues to the

criminal, found him in a rickety state

of nerves, and calling for coffee to

drink. They describe him as a man
irJio had been drunk the night before.

They knew nothing on that line, and
were not looking for evidences of a

debauch, but that is what they describe.

''The morning after," was there.- So
much so that John Black adcised Mrs.
Frank to give her husband a drink of

whiskey.
Now listen: The answer given was

that Frank's father-in-lair had iiscrl it

all up during the night.

His father-in-law, Mr. Emil Solig.

had had acute indigestion, it was said,

and had used all the whiskey in the

house that night, on this sudden and
always alarming, illness.

I'm not doctor enough to say wheth-
er whiskey is the usual remedy for

acute indigestion, but I am lawyer
enough to see in Selig's sudden use for

it on that particular night, a most sus-

picious corroboration of that cook who
swore that Frank got wildly drunk
on the same night Selig got his acute

indigestion.

Strange to say, Selig went on the

stand at the trial of Frank, swore to

eating breakfast, as usual; swore to

eating dinner, as usual ; and never said

one word about that night attack of

acute indigestion, which had caused
him to exhaust the whiskey supply, the

niffht after the crime.
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Selig, on Sunday morning, had not
onl}' made a full recovery from his

alarming illness, but showed no bad ef-

fects fro^i the liquor.

It was his soii-iu-law tliat looked and
acted like the man who had been at

tacked by indigestion, and who had
used up -iill the Avhiskey.

As you know, the murder of ISfary

Phagan was committed on the South-
ern JSIemorial day, April 20th, 1913.

At that time Leo Frank was entering

the 3'2d year of his age, and Mary lack-

ed a few da3's of being fourteen. For
sentimental reasons, Nathan Straus,

AA'alliam J. Burns, and the Jewish
press generall}^, have referred to

Frank as a "boy;" and Governor Sla-

ton went so far as to say in defense of
his virtual fardon of his client, that

Frank was "too delicate" to have
struck Mary the blow which knocked
her down.
This delicate middle-aged Jew

weighed 127 pounds, and was so full of

vitality that no ordinary amount of

venery could satisfy him. His eyes,

mouth, chin, nose, ears and neck typed
him as a sexual pervert.

His lawyers announced ready for

trial, when his cnse '>vas called in ccurt,

and they did not suggest a change of

venue. The}^ had had months to pre-

pare; they were intimate with local

conditi(!ns: and, while their manage-
ment of themselves, their client and
their witnesses, showed the grossest

lack of discretion and preparedness,
they never at any time moved for a

mistrial.

Let me explain to the layman, that

a presiding judge will stop a trial, dis-

charge the jury, and set another time
for the case to be tried, before another
jury, if anything occurs in the court
room to prejudice defendants right to

a fair trial.

Had any "mob spirit," any "jungle
fury," and "psychic drunk," any
"blood lust" manifested itself in the
sight or hearing of the ]ury, it would
have been the duty of Frank's lawyers
to have put an end to the proceedings,
then and there, hy moving that a mis-
trial he declared.

No such motion could be made, be-

cause no such facts existed. FranFs
lawyers filed, a length]/ affidavit, as a
part of their extraordinary motion for
a new trial, and nowhere do they state
that anything occurred in the court-
room, outside those inevitable peals of
laughter when one lawyer "chaws" an-
other. I went over this affidavit, of
Frank's lawyers, reading it carefully,
and was amazed to see that they did
not even accuse the court of tolerating
misbehavior. These lawyers explicitly
say that the jury was not present at
all, when the audience in the court-
room applauded a ruling, by Judge
Roan, m favor of Solicitor Dorsey.

It seems that Dorsey was hailed, in
the streets, with cheers, and these
cheers were all that the lawyers of
Frank could allege in support of the
charge of mob violence, mob spirit,

jungle fury, psychic drunk and blood-
lust.

On the contrary, it was shown by
the affidavits of the Sheriff, and all his
deputies and the court bailill's, that no
disorders took place during the trial.

Col E. E. Pomeroy, of the Fifth
Georgia regiment, swore to the same
thing, and so did the newspaper re-

porters. Every member of the jury
made affidavit to the good order main-
tained, and to their freedom from any
disturbance, interruption or attempt-
ed influence.

But it is the Sunday American (Mr.
Hearst's Atlanta paper), that fur-
nishes the most remarkable evidence
as to what was thought, at the time,
of the fairness of Frank's trial.

On Sunday, August 21, 1913.
"Hearst's Sunday American" publish-
ed a story of the' four weeks' trial, "By
an old Police Eeporter," which con-
cludes as follows:

Regardless of all things else, the pub-
lic is unstinting in its praise and approv-
al of the brilliant young Solicitor General
of the Atlanta Circuit, Hugh Dorsey, for

the superb manner in which he has han-
dled the State's side of the case.

"It all along has been freely admitted
that those two veterans of criminal prac-

tice, Luther Rosser and Reuben Arnold,
would take ample care of the defendant.
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"Two more experienced, able and ag-

gressive attorneys it would be impossi-

ble to secure in any cause.

"When it was first learned that Rosser

and Arnold were to defend Frank, the

public realized that the defendant had

Chap,' not widely experienced, willing and
aggressive enough, but

—

"He had been but lately named Solicitor

General, and he hadn't been tried out ex-

haustively.

"Maybe he could measure up to the

determined to take no chances. He se- standard of Rosser and Arnold, but it

EX-GOV. JOHN M. SLATON AND MRS. SLATON, FROM A PHOTOGRAPH TAKEN
AT THE PANAMA EXPOSITION FOR A LOS ANGELES NEWSPAPER.

lected from among the cream of the Geor-

gia bar.

"That the state's interests, quite as sa-

cred as the defendant's, would be looked

after so jealously, so adroitly, and so

shrewdly in the hands of the youthful

Dorsey, however—that was a matter not

so immediately settled!

Dorsey an Unknown Quantity.

"Dorsey was known as a 'bright young

was a long way to measure up, neverthe-

less!

"It soon became evident that Dorsey

was not to be safely underrated. He
could not be sneered do^^•n, laughed do^\•n,

ridiculed down, or smashed doAvn.

"He took a lot of lofty gibing, and was
called 'bud' and 'son' right along—but

every time they pushed him down, he arose

again, and generally stronger than ever!



WATSON'S MAGAZINE. 321

"Time and again he outgeneraled his

more experienced opponents.

"He forced them to make Frank's char-

acter an issue, despite tnemselves.

"He got in vital and far-reaching evi-

dence, over protest long and loud.

"Whenever the Solicitor was called

upon for an authority, he was right there

with the goods. They never once caught

him napping. He had prepared himself

for the Frank case, in every phase of it.

"The case had not progressed very far

before the defense discovered unmistak-

ably that it had in Dorsey a foeman wor-

thy of its most trustworthy and best-tem-

pered steel

!

"And the young Solicitor climaxed his

long sustained effort with a masterful

speech, that will long be remembered in

Fulton county!

"In places h© literally tor© to pieces the

efforts of the defense. He overlooked no
detail—at times he was crushing in his

reply to the arguments of Kosser and Ar-

nold, and never was he commonplace!

Fixed His Fame by Work.
"Whatever the verdict, when Hugh Uor-

sey sat down, the Solicitor General had fix-

ed his fame and reputation as an able and
altogether capable prosecuting attorney

—

and never again will that reputation be

challenged lightly, perhaps!

"Much credit for hard work and intel-

ligent effort will be accorded Frank Hoop-
er, too, for the part he played in the Frank
trial. He was at all times the repressed

and pains-taking first lieutenant of the

Solicitor, and his work, while not so spec-

tacular, formed a very vital part of the.

whole case made out and argued by the

State. He was for fourteen years the So-

licitor General of one of the most impor-
tant South Georgia circ'aits, and his ad-

vice and suggestions to Dorsey were in-

valuable."

"A noteworthy fact in connection witli

the Frank trial is that it g/enerally is ac-

cepted as having been as fair and square
as human forethought and effort could
make it.

It may be true that a good deal of the
irrelevant and not particularly pertinent
crept into it, but one side has been to

blame for that quite as much as the other
side.

lluUng Cut Both Ways.
The judge's rulings have cut impartially

both ways—sometimes favorable to the

State, but quite as frequently in favor of

the defense.

Even the one big charge of degeneracy,

which many people hold had no proper

place in the present trial, wsnt in witliout

protest from the defense, and cross-ex-

amination upon it even was indulged in.

Unlimited time was given both the

state and the defense to make out their

cases; expense was not considered. Tha
trial has lasted longer than any other in

the criminal history of Georgia. Nothing
was done or left undone that could give

either side the right to complain of unfair-

ness after the conclusion of the hearing.

It is DirncuLT to conceive how hu-
man MINDS AND HUMAN EFFORTS COULD
PROVIDE MORE FOR FAIR PLAY THAN WAS
PROVIDED IN THE FrANK CASE.

Mark it ! This was published after

the evidence was all in^ and while Dor-
sey was closing the argument for the
State.

Nobody knew what the verdict
iLwuld he. But Hearst's Atlanta pa-
per told the world, that it is difficult to

conceive hoAV human minds and hu-
man efforts could provide more., FOR
FAIR PLAY, than was provided in

the Frank case.

The trial had been generally re-

garded "a^ fair and square., as human
forethought and human effort could
make it.''''

So said the Hearst papers on Sunday
before the verdict had been rendered.
After the verdict of "Guilty" was

Hearst one of the men who bitterly

denounced the jury, and the courts?
He was.

When the officers told Frank that a
girl named Mary Phagan had been
found in his basement, he did not
make any exclamation of surprise and
horror ! He took the news as a matter
of course. He did not ask anything
about the condition of her body, the

physical evidences of the crime, or the

probable time, place, manner and mo-
tive of the act. He did not offer any
surmise as to who did it. He expressed
no concern whatever. His demeanor
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was exactly' that of a man who knew
all about it and who had no questions

to ask, (iftev bein<; told of the murder.
Was tiiat the conduct of an innocent

employer, whose little employee had
been found dead in his house? If

Mary Phagan had been a cow that had
been choked to death in Frank's en-

closure, his conduct could not have
been more unfeeling, more stoical.

He did say that he did not know any

denied responsibility, and refused to

make it goo<l, Fratik diMchartfrd hiu).

So recently had Frank got rid of

Gantt. that the man came l)ack to tiie

factory to get awo pairs of shoes which
he had left there, and this was on the

same day that the Jew killed the girl.

To fasten the crime upon some one
else, and to hang an innocent man. Leo
Frank accused the night-watch in the

two notes, describing him twice—which

THE COURT-ROOM DURING FRANK'S TRIAL. PHOTO TAKEN AT THE TIME.

girl of her name, and couldn't tell, un-

til he consulted his pay-roll whether
Mary Phagan had worked for him, or

rot.

In passing to the toilet daily for a

A'ear, he had almost brushed Mary on
his way; and four disinterested white
witnesses swore that he knew her well,

and familiarly called her "Mary."
Not onl}^ that, he seemed jealous of

J. M. Gantt because of his apparent
intimacy with the girl, and he spoke
to Gantt about it. An unexplained
shortage in the cash account Avas soon
afterwards discovered, and when Gantt

Jim Conley could not have done, for

he had never seen the night-watch and
did not know he was tall, slim and
black. Frank also secreted the true

time-slij) that was in the clock, the

night after the murder, and substitut-

ed another, Avhich left one hour of the

watchman's time unaccounted for. This
hour was to be filled with a supposed
return of the watchman to his house,

the purpose of the return being to

change his shirt. Accordingly, a bloody

shin was found in the watchman's
clothes-l)arrel I Had not Jim Conley
l)roken down and confessed, it is prac-
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tically certain that the Burns agency
would have hired Ragsdale and Bar-

ber to swear tliat it was the night-

Avatchman whom tliey heard confess

the crime, instead of Jim Conley.

This deliberately planned scheme to

lay the crime on the night-watch re-

veals itself in the notes, in the forged

time-slip, in the ''planted'' shirt, and
in Frank's sinister suggestions to the

detectives that the night-watch ought

to know more about it.

If a black case could be made black-

er, this diabolical attempt to hang the

innocent negro, while shielding the

guilty one, would deepen the darkness

of this terrible crime.

During the days of excitement, sus-

pense, eager inquiry, tireless research

tdiat followed the crime.

Leo Frank never uttered a sylla-

ble which would implicate Jim Con-
ley. Yet he was familiar with Con-
ley's crude ''hand-write,'* had seen the

notes when they Avere first found, and
saw that in those notes Jim Conley
was describing and accusing the night-

watch, who had onlj^ been three weeks
and whom Conley had never seen

!

Standing out in the turbid waters of

this case are three peaks upon wdiich

the Ark of Life would have rested,

had the Jcav been innocent

:

1. He would have explained, and
had his parents-in-law to explain, why
their daughter, Frank's wife, shunned
the imprisoned husband for three

whole weeks, after he was committed
to jail.

His father-in-law and his mother-in-
law both went on the stand to testify

to Frank's natural conduct on the Sat-

urday night of the crime, and the Sun-
day following.

^yhlJ didn't they explain the unnat-
ural conduct of their daughter?
The Solicitor could not have gone

into this, for it would have been using
wife against husband, which our law
will not allow. But the defendant
could have gone into it fully, to ex-

plain an extraordinary fact that was
already in evidence.

AAHiy didn't Frank's lawyers call

upon the Seligs to tell the jury why

their daughter shrank away from her

husband for three whole weeks, when
he was in jail, accused of rape and
murder ?

2. When eleven white girls swore
to Frank's vicious character, the indig-

nation of an innocent inan^ would have
prompted him to a rigid cross-examin-
ation of those witnesses.

The innocent man would have faced

those perjured women, and fired at

them questions like these:

What did you ever see me do, or at-

tempt to do, that W'as immoral'^

What did you ever hear me say, that

was lewd?
Did I ever attempt to mislead you?
If so, where and when?
What did I say, and what did you

Did you ever notice any lascivious

conduct of mine in the factory?

If so, with w^hom?
AVere you ever in my employ, and

did you quit, or were you discharged?
If you voluntarily quit, what was

your reason?

If you were discharged, w^hat was
the cause?

To whom, before now, have you ever

stated that my character was lascivi-

ous ?

In other words, if these women were
perjurers, defendant hneio it., and his

lawyers should have riddled them on
cross-examination.

On the contrary, if they were tell-

ing the truth, defendant l-iuw it. and
it w^as better not to make matters

worse by a cross-examination.

Which course did Frank and his

lawyers adopt?
The latter!

3. Beleaguered by false witnesses

and suspicious circumstances, the in-

nocent man invites investigation,

courts inquiiy, offers to explain away
what is otherwise inexplicable.

The guilty man fears investigation,

and shuns inquiry. It told heavidly

against Police Lieutenant, Charles

Becker, of Xew York, that he did not

go to the witness stand. His seeming
fear of cross-examination -Jiurt him
badly in public opinion.
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But Leo Frank went to the stand,

and occupied many, many hours talk-

ing to the jury, and then refused to

allow the Solicitor to ask him one sol-

itary question

!

Our Georgia law gives that privilege

to every defendant, and this most len-

ient of codes gives the jury the light

to believe the unsworn, unsifted state-

ment of the defendant in preference to

all the sworn and sifted testimony I

Accused by a "low-down, drunken,
shiftless negro!"
Accused of indescribable practices

in his place of business

!

Accused of proposing the obscene

thing to a girl on the second day of

her employment

!

Accused of bringing a most dissolute

woman of the town into his office, and
acting lower than any beast with her

!

Accused of taking Rebecca Carson
into the ladies' private room, and
shuUing himself in there with her
alone for 15 to 30 minutes

—

the grVs
mother heing a worker on the same
floor!

Accused of lusting after Mary Pha-
gan, pushing his attentions on her.

laying a trap for her by refusing to

send her pittance by her chum.
Accused of giving Jim Conley his

instructions the morning of the crime,

and causing him to come and be ready
to watch the front door, when the

doomed child should arrive.

Accused of decoying the little one
to the metal room on the pretence of

looking to see whether there would be
material for her to work with, the next
work day

!

Accused of shutting the door on this

employee of his, and attempting to get

her to let him do, with her^ what Miss
Nellie Woods swore he wanted to do.

with herself, and what Dewey Mollis
told Judge Roan, to Frank's face, he
did do with her

!

Accused of resenting the girl's hor-
rified i-efusal, and of knocking her
down, committing the act with her,
after she was down, and then, to pre-
vent exposure and punishment, tieing
a hemp cord around her throat and
choking her to death

!

Accused of dragging the dead girl

by the heels over the basement floor,

until she was lying prone upon her

purpled face, in the obscurest nook of

that dark room, and of then turning
down the gas-jet, until it was no big-

ger and brighter than a "lightning-

bug," so that the night-watch would
never see that grewsome figure lying

—

all rumpled, and bruised, and bloody

—

away off there by the back door.

Accused of all this, menaced by the

coinciding testimony of more than for-

ty white witnesses, encircled by a chain

of physical facts which no human
power could annihilate, ignore, con-

fuse, or elucidate—compassed round
about in this way, and then stand upon
the privilege of not allowing a single

question to be asked him?
Never in God's world did Innocence

so act, never!
After the verdict of guilty, the de-

fendant made a motion for a new tri-

al, alleging many errors committed by
Judge Roan, and, also, that there was
not sufficient evidence to support the

verdict.

After a long, careful, conscientious

consideration of the motion, Judge
Roan overruled it. In doing so he
said that he himself did not know
whether Frank were guilty, but that

the law placed the responsibility for

that issue upon the jury. Of course it

does. For hundreds of years, juries

have been the judges of the facts.

Governor Slaton stated the legal prin-

ciple, in almost the same words, when
in 1914, he denied the application for

clemency in the Nick Wilburn case. He
did the same thing, last year, in the

Umphrey ana Cantrell cases.

Frank's lawyers took the case to the

Supreme Court, where the alleged er-

rors were elaborately argued. The
majority Justices held that the evi-

dence was sufficient to support the ver-

dict, and that Judge Roan had not
committed any substantial errors of
law.

The minority Justices held that

Judge Roan nad committed one error,

to-wit: He had allowed the evidence
of Dalton and Conlev to establish in-
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dependent acts of licentiousness on the

part of Frank. This evidence, how-
ever, was merely cumulative, there be-

ing enough unquestioned testimony
before the jury to convmce them of

i* rank's vices.

The majority Justices reasoned that

the evidence m question was properly
admitted, because it tended to prove
Frank's character and conduct in the

place where the crime was committed;
and, therefore, tended to establish the

identity of the criminal.

The State's theory being that the

murder was incidental to a sexual act,

and there bemg evidence to support
this theory, it was competent to intro-

duce testimony to prove that it was
Frank who used the factory for sexu-

al acts.

The minority Justices never said

that the evidence was not sufficient to

support the verdict.

After the Supreme Court decided

the case, the trial recommenced, in the

newspapers. According to all prece-

dent and practise, the question of

Jb rank's guilt had been settled. His
guilt had been judicially ascertained.

The Law had done its do. The Law
said "It is finished."

Not so the newspapers. The Atlanta
Journal (whose managing editor is a

Jew), published an inflammatory edi-

torial, demanding that the decision of
the Supreme Court he defied!
The Journal announced a new doc-

trine as to the responsibilities of a

State for the administration of justice.

It said:

"Responsibility for the enforcement of

the law and the punishment of crime rests

largely but not exclusively upon the

courts. The press also has its share of

responsibility, and It seems to the Journal
that the time has come foT the press to

speak. The Journal will do so now even
though every other newspaper in Georgia
remains silent. '

Here was a novelty. Never before had
any Southern man announced that a por-

tion of the judicial power is vested in the

publishers of newspapers.
The Constitution of Georgia puts the

responsibility on judges and juries; but

the Journal declared that "a share" of

this responsibility is on the press.

What share? Half, or less than half?

Where is the "share" to be allotted, when,
and by whom?

Did the press tote its "share" in the
3'ear 1914, when four Gentiles were
hanged for murdering men? "WHiat

did the Atlanta Journal do with its

"share," when Lep Myers got off at

manslaughter, after going to a Gen-
tile woman's room, in Macon, and atro-

ciously shooting her to death.

The Journal further said:

The courts have their great responsi-

bilities and their arduous duties to per-

form, and be it said to their everlasting

credit, they discharge those duties to the

best of human ability. But even juries

are sometimes swayed by environment
and the judicial ermine is not infallible.

Infallibility is an attribute of omnipo-
tence.

The Journal further said:

"Leo Frank has not had a fair trial.

He has not been fairly convicted and his

death without a fair trial and legal con-

viction will amount to judicial murder."

The Journal further said:

"Unless the courts interfere we are go-

ing to murder an innocent man by refus-

ing to give him an impartial trial."

The Jew Editor of the Atlanta Jour-
nal further said

:

"It was within the power of human
judges, human lawyers and human jury-

men to decide impartially and without

fear the guilt or innocence of an accused

man under the circumstances that sur-

rounded the trial. The very atmosphere
of the courtroom was charged with an
electric current of indignation which
flashed and scintillated before the eyes of

the jury. The courtroom and streets

were filled with an angry, determined

crowd, ready to seize the defendant if the

jury had found him not guilty.

"A verdict of acquittal would have
caused a riot."
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When John Cohen published this in-

famous libel in his Athmta -JonriKih lie

lired the signal for every Jewish editor

in America. From that day to this,

the scurrility of outside writers has

been fed on John Cohen's lying edito-

rial in the Journal.

The only evidence these hack writ-

ers and their honest dupes have had
as to mob spirit, mob atmosphere and
the rest of it, has been the unsworn,
uiisu})ported, and utterly false state-

ments of this Atlanta Jew.
Judge Roan had seen no mob "scin-

tillation" in the court-room; the other

ofhcers of the court swore there was
none; the Colonel of the Fifth regi-

ment testified, on oath, there Avas none;
the reporters of the papers made af-

fidavit there was none; and the Hearst
paper emphatically stated before the

verdict Avas known, but after the tri-

al was closed, that there never had
been a fairer trial.

Xot until the Supreme Court decid-

ed against Frank, did John Cohen
himself allege that the trial had been
unfair. If he knew it to have been
unfair, why didn't he contradict

Hearst's paj^er the year before^ when
it paid so high a tribute to Judge
Roan, and the State? Why wait un-
til another year, and then discover that

the trial was a mob-controlled affair,

and that Frank's death under Judge
Rian's sentence would be "judicial

murder?"
Xot long after John Cohen opened

his cannonade on our Courts, Colliers
sent C. P. Connolly to Atlanta to write
up the case. Connolly took his cue
and his tone from Cohen, and other
writers followed the lead of Connolly.
Concerning the story of our Montana
patriot. Coll'ierH has recently said:

"We cannot find it in us to cry out for

vengeance upon the men who lynched
Frank. We know as well as anyone else

that Frank was innocent—we know it bet-

ter than some folks, for we think the

painstaking investigation made by Mr.
Connolly in Collier's was not excelled in

thoioiiohness or conscientiousness by any
other review. Nevertheless we find it im-

possible to get up any blood lust of our

own. The feeling that the whole thing

inspires in us is a good deal nearer to

sadness than to anger. Consider the men
who did this act. Consider their motive.

It could by no possibility be selfish. They
did not expect to make any money out of

it. They had no personal feeling against

Frank—they had never seen him. For
them there was neither gain nor satisfac-

tion in what they did. On the other hand,

they took grave risks—risks in the

shadow of which they will continue to

walk until they die. It is impossible to

conceive that their motives were other

than patriotic. By all accounts they were
the best men in the community—they

carefully excluded the violent element
from their counsels and their action.

These men were inspired by the kind of

high devotion that has frequently made
heroes. Of course they were utterly

wrong, but the place for the blame, as we
see it, is not on the individuals who did

the act, but the state of ignorance which
made it possible for these individuals to

think their act was good. It is not a

time for self-righteousness. It is not a

time to cry out against anyone. Georgia
is not a neighbor; she is a part of us. It

is time for searching of hearts. It is a

time for all of us to enlarge our hearts

by being charitable.

Collier's may very well feel like

"forgiving" us: whether we can for-

give Collier's, is another question. It

lent itself—if lent is the right word

—

to a most unscrupulous falsification of

the official record, and is largely re-

sponsible for the tragedy of a fugitive

governor, an informal enforcement of

a formal death-sentence on Leo Frank,
and such other tragedies as may at-

tend John M. Slaton's return to Geor-
gia .

Let me take up the Connolly story,

and prove to you how untruthful it

was, and how shamefully it traduced
us.

The first statement of Connolly is:

"Saturday, April 26, 1913, a holiday,

Mary Phagan went from her home in At-

lanta to the National Pencil Factory at

which she worked, to get some pay still

owing her. She did not return to her

home. A search was instituted, without
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success. At 3.30 o'clock the following

morning her dead body was accidentally

discovered in the basement of the pencil

factory by the night watchman, whose

duty it was to make the rounds of the

building. Two men were immediately ar-

rested. One was Leo M. Frank, the sup-

erintendent of the factory, who admitted

having paid the girl her wages in his of-

fice at noon on Saturday. The other was

Newt Lee, the night watchman, who had

discovered the body.''

How very superficial must have

been Connolly's study of the facts!

Leo Frank was not '•'immediately ar-

rested." Newt Lee was immediately

arrested at Frank^s instigation^ and

Jim Gantt was next jailed, because of

what Frank insinuated as to his inti-

macy with the dead girl. Frank was
not arrested until Tuesday.
Frank did not "pay the girl her

wages at noon^ His stenographer did

not 'leave until 12 :02, and Mary then

came, next.

Connolly's next statement is:

"Then a third man, a negro named Jim

Conley, who also worked in the factory,

but who was not known to have been in

the factory at the time of the murder,

was accidentally discovered wasliing a

stained shirt. He was arrested and held

as a suspect, but suspicion was not seri-

ously directed toward him. The stained

shirt was returned to him by the police,

and his name was practically eliminated

until three weeks later, when it was dis-

covered that he could write. He had pre-

viously denied that he could write.

Connolly says "stained shirt ;" those

who trod in his tracks impi^oved on
this and called it "a blood-stained

shirt!"

The official record, page 79, shows
that E. F. Holloway, the day watch-
man—^the man who twice swore he
left the elevator locked Saturday
morning, and then changed his story

—

swore

:

"I saw Conley * * * down in the

shipping room watching the detec-

tives, officers and reporters. I caught
him washiniT his shirt. Looked like

he tried to hide it from me. / picked

it up and looked at it carefully^

Any stains'^ None. Any hlood

stains? None. Just dirt, that was all,

and the negro was washing it, not in

secret at home., but in public, at the

factory. He washed that shirt to clean

it up for court next day, and he wore

it next day, ]ust as he had been wear-

ing it Monday morning. The police

never took it away from him.

Yes, he denied that he could write,

and Frank did not tell the police any

better. The two men were then pro-

tecting one another, and Frank was

framing a case on the night watch.

Connolly states that:

"No defendant in a criminal case in

Georgia may give testimony under oath

in his own behalf, nor is his wife allowed

to testify either for or against him; but

he may make a statement not under oath

to the jury. His own lawyers are not

allowed to ask him any questions, and

the prosecutor never asks any, for he fears

the answers of a witness not subject to

the penalties of perjury."

The prosecutor always asks ques-

tions, provided the defendant will al-

loio it. Frank would not allow it.

Connolly again says:

"Frank was convicted solely on Conley's

testimony. Without it there was no case.

Not one person ever came forward on the

trial who saw Frank and Conley together

on the day of the murder, although Con-

ley swore they walked the streets of At-

lanta for blocks."

I have already shown from the of-

ficial record how the chain of circum-

stantial evidence was formed by many
white witnesses, most of whom were
the employes of Frank, and not un-

friendly.

Conley did not swear that he and
Frank "walked the streets of Atlanta

for blocks." vVhat he swore was, that

Frank and he met near Sig Montag's,

and that Franlc told him there what to

do for Frank at the factory, after the

girl should arrive. On this vital point

Conley w^as corroborated by Mrs. Hat-

tie Waites, a ladv of unblemished
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character, and of absolute disinterest-

edness in the case,

Connolly says:

"The State insisted that Mary Phagan
was attacked before Monteen Stover came
to the factory at 12.05. But Mary Pha-

,
gan, according to three of the State's wit-

nesses, was on the street car several

blocks away as late as seven minutes af-

ter twelve."

That no two watches or clocks tally,

is known to everybody, and the effort

to confuse the facts by time-tables,

outside the factory, was one of the nu-

merous devices of Frank's lawyers.

What's the use of street-car watches
when we have Frank's own clock to

go by? His stenographer punched his

clock as she went away at 12:02, and
Frank repeatedly said that Mary Pha-
gan came in a few minutes afterwards.

Xot until he discovered that Miss
Monteen Stover had been in his office

looking for him, at from 12 :05 to 12 :10

did he place Mary Phagan's visit later

than that.

Connolly then says that "tell-tale

cinders" proved that the crime was
committed in the basement. He puts

cinders in her mouth, in her nose, in

her lungs, and under her finger-nails

!

The evidence does not.

The undertaker, W. F. Gheesling,

took possession of the body soon after

it was found, and he washed it, washed
the hair in tar-soap water, opened her
veins to relieve the congested condi-

tion of her face, etc.

With the exception of some dirt un-

der the finger nails, and the dirt soil-

ure of the face and hair, he found
nothing unusual. There were no cin-

ders in her mouth, none in tier nose,

none in her nostrils, none anywhere.
Sergeant Dobbs, who first examined

body, sW'Ore to the same thing, W. W.
Rogers, who was with Dobbs, swore
to the same thing.

Where did Connolly, and those who
followed his lead, get all of these cin-

ders that were ^n the girl's mouth
and nose?
They got them from Leo Frank's

statement to the jury, and Frank, of

couTbo, git tliem from his lawyers.

Frank told tiie jury he saw the cin-

ders when he examined the corpse at

the morgue, whereas, the witnesses all

swore that he shrank away from the

sight of the girl, and never looked at

Jici' face at all.

Fraiilv's words were:
"Mr. Gheesling * * * took the head

in his hands, turned it over, put his

finger exactly on the wound on the

left side of the head; I noticed the
hands and arms of the little girl were
ver}' dirty—blue and ground with

dirt and cinders, the nostrils and
mouth—the mouth being open—nos-

trils and mouth just full, full of .saw-

dust and swollen.

"After looking at the girl, I identi-

fied her as the one that had been up
after noon the previous day and got.

her money from me," (Pages 202 and
203, Official Brief),

Hero was the corpse of a girl whom
he had claimed not to know; it *liad

undergone a frightful change since the
noon before; the face was swollen out

of its natural proportions; it was dis-

colored with dirt and congested blood:

the mouth was wide open in ghastly

disfiguration—and yet he told the jury

that he identified this corpse as that

of the girl who had come to him the

day before.

Even her chums had some difficulty

in recognizing her, and it was her hair

that enabled them to do it.'

"I loiew her by her hair," swore her
work-companion. Miss Grace Hicks.

(Page 15).

W. H. Gheesling, who turned the

girl's face so that Franlv could see it,

testified that ho did not know whether
Frank looked at it ! The officers swore
that he did not. No witness said that

her mouth was open, but everyone said

the tongue protruded through the

teeth. Xot a single witness said that

there were any cinders on her tongue,

on her nose, ??i her nose, in her mouth,,

or under her nails. "Some dirt" was
found under her nails, just as some
can be found under those of all per-

sons who are not very careful of their

hands,
Mr. I, U. Kauff'man was put up by
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Frank's lawyers to prove the condition

of the basement at the time of the

crime. He said, ''The floor of the base-

ment is dirt and ashes. The trash-pile

is 57 feet from where the body was
found. There are ashes and cinders

along the walk in the basement."
Xo witness swore to any pile of cin-

ders, pile of ashes, pile of sawdust,

bank of cinders or anything else in

which a person could be held face

downward and smothered. Absolutely
no evidence of that sort is in the rec-

ord.

How could anybody crush a girl's

face into cinders, or ashes, or trash,

and not leave evidences of such a crime
in the cinders, in the ashes, in the trash

and in the girVs face?
All the witnesses said there were no

bruises or even scratches on the

child's nose, but were on the eye,

where she had been struck, and on
her side-face, where she had been drag-
ged over the dirt floor.

And why would anybody need a cin-

der pile, when they had the horrible

cord tied fast and tight around her
neck?
Xo I Frank's lawyers invented the

banks and piles of cinders; and Frank
merely repeated what he told them:
but the jury could not disregard the

sworn testimon}^ of Gheesling, Doc-
tors Harris and Hurt, Sergeant Dobbs,
I. U. Kaufi'man and other disinterest-

ed witnesses.

Connolly proceeds:

"There was not an ounce of cinders on

the second floor, where Conley said he

found her dead. The upper floors were
swept clean every day. There were some
strands of loose hair found on a machine
on the second floor where Frank is sup-

posed to have struck Mary Phagaii They
were not discovered by the officers on
Sunday in a complete search of the fac-

tory. The expert who microscopically ex-

amined this hair and compared it with

Mary Phagan's informed the prosecutor

before the trial that the hair was not that

of Mary Phagan's; but this information

was withheld from the defense, and was
not brought out by the prosecutor on the

trial who afterward said the matter was

not important, and that he had proved by

other witnesses that the hair "resembled"

Mary Phagan's. On the trial the prose-

cutor claimed to have lost these strands

of hair."

Whose hair was it, Mr. Connolly?
You sav the officers failed to find it,

Sunday.
"^ What of that? They also

failed to find the blood-spots on the

floor. What difference does it make,
if they were not found Sunday and
were found, early Monday morning ?

The unanswerable question remains,

How came the hair and the spots to

he there?

You say the floor was swept every

day. So it was; and the man who
swept it Friday, to clean up before

closing for the week, swore that no
blood-spots were on the floor, then.

And Frank's machinist, whose hands
had left that lathe handle Friday
evening at 6:30, swore there was no
hair on it, then ,but he discovered it

immediately, when he went to use his

machine Monday morning.
At that time, nobody suspected Leo

Frank, except the rich Jews who had
pussy-footed to Kosser and employed
him to defend Frank.
They knew what was coming, for

they had learned of Frank's wild

drinking and confession, the Saturday
night of the murder

!

As an illustration of Connolly's

"thoroughness" and "conscientious-

ness," I respectfully beg the editor of

Collier's to consider the following:

"Monteen Stover's testimony contra-

dicted Frank, who swore he had not been

out of his office between 12 and 12:30

noon. .Frank said it was possible that he

had stepped out of his office for a moment
in the performance of some routine which

would not ordinarily hav? impressed itself

on his mind'"

It's a small matter, yet tremendous-
ly important, for that was one of the

fatalities against Leo Frank. He had
said so positively and so often that he

did not leave him office between 12 and
12 :30 o'clock, there was no way for

him to deny saying it. But there was
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Miss Stover who. 7nx)st unexpectedh/ to

/lim, proved that he had lied about it.

This created a fearful dilemma, the
existence of which had not been ex-

})ected until after Fi-anK for a whole
week, had stuck to the story that he
had not left his office, and that Mary
came to him there at "from 12:05 to

12:10, maybe 12:07."

Xobody at the factory knew that

Monteen had come at tluit time, hud
waited 5 minutes, and had ^one away.
Jim Conley told Frank he had seen

another <rirj ^o up stairs, but Jim did
not know her name, and Frank was S'

excited by the crime in which he had
involved himself, tiiat he either paid
no attention to Jim, or he supposed the
other frirl to have been Mrs. White.
Monteen, not seeing anyone in the

office, or anywhere about, went home
and reported to her mother her failure
to get her pay envelope. They were
poor ])eople. and the <rirrs wages were
a Saturday evening necessity.

She told her mother that there did
not seem to be anybody there, at the
factory, and she had come away aft-

er waiting five minutes. Her mother
went to the factory Jhe next Saturday.
to apply for Monteen's pay-envelope,
and the detective stopped her to in-

(juire who she was and what she want-
ed. Then, for the first time^ the terri-

ble fact was made clear, that Frank
and Mary were hoth missing^ at the
very t'line he had heen saying they
icerc together in his offee!

It was a crushing blow to the de-
fense.

Now, when Frank took the stand to

make his four-hour statement, he used
these extraordinary W(,rds: "To the
best of my recollection, I did not stir

out of my office, but i tis possible^ that
to answer a call of nature, or to uri-
nate, / may have gone to the toilet.

Those are things that a man does un-
consciously., and cannot tell how many
times nor when he does it."

This is what Connolly calls "the per-
formance of some routine which would
not ordinarily have impressed itself on
his mind."

If Connolly were a student of hu-
man nature, he'd know that there nev-

er was a jury who would believe that

a man is unconscious, when, in the

day time, he answers a call of nature.

If Connolly were a man of thor-

oughness in analyzing evidence, he'd

know that when Frank stej^ped out of

the frying pan, made for him by A'

teen's evidence, he fell into the fire,

made for him by the blood-spots and
the hair, near the toilet to which he
would have had to go. in response to

that call of nature

!

If Connolly Avere a lawyer, he'd see

the similarity between Frank's explan-

ation of his call of nature, and that

which the notes attrihute to Mary Pha-
gan. Frank told the jury that he
might have gone to the toilet, and the

notes say that Mary Phagan did go
there 1

It is a most peculiar feature of the

case, e(jualled only by the suggestion,

in the notes that the tall, slim, black ne-

gro had had unnatural connection

with the girl—a vice not of robust ne-

groes, but of decadent white men.

Sodomy is not the crime of nature,

Itarbarism or of lustful black brutes:

it is the over-ripe fruit of civilization,

and is always indicative of a decaying
society. A plowman-poet, like Eobert
Burns, would never dream of such a

vice, and it is well known that he

wrecked liis life by sensuality; but an
effeminate dude, like Oscar Wilde, was
convicted of it, and served his time at

Reading Goal—and his mentality was
perhaps greater than that of any Eng-
lishman since the days of Browning,

Mr. Connolly, of course, mentions
the unmashecl excrement at the bottom
of the elevator shaft, and adds:

"If the elevator cage had gone into the

basement that Saturday noon, it would

have been crushed. It was crushed when
the elevator was operated on Sunday This

is a physical fact which cannot be argued

away, and which unimpeachably disproves

Conley's story. The two silent workmen
on the fourth floor never heard the ele-

vator run that day. The gearing of the

elevator was on the fourth floor, unin-

closed, and they could not have avoided

hearing the noise and feeling the vibra-

tion.



WATSON'S MAGAZINE. 331

The two silent workmen on the.

fourth floor were noiselessly tearing

down a planked partition and build-

ing a new one—a process that never

makes any fuss. These carpenters

knew that Lonnolly required silence;

and they, therefore, persuaded the old

planks to pull the old nails out, easy,

and they sawed and fitted and nailed

the new partition into place, so deftly,

that Connolly never heard a single

hnmmei".

As silently as the Czarina reared

the famous ice palace, whose build-

ing is so beautifully described by
Cowper, these two Atlanta carpenters,

Harry Denham and Arthur White,
slipped a new partition in the place

of the old one.

If Connolly had studied this record

with thoroughness, he would have
learned that Conley described Frank
as being so excited that ]u jumped in

and out of the elevator before it reach-

ed its proper place, and came near
causing an accident. He fell up against

Jim twice, and nothing would have
been more natural for the cage not to

strike, evenly, the dirt floor of the

shaft. In fact, it was uneven; and,

therefore, the cage might very well

miss the excrement, if it were not care-

fully stopped at the very bottom.
It was a freight elevator, and they

seldom stop on a level with the land-

ings.

But in any event, the girl's dead
body was in the basement, with the

limbs rigid, the arras folded, the hair

caked with dried blood, and her pri-

vates in the same condition. Her face

showed signs of having been dragged
over the grit, and the dift floor showed
the trail, leading hack to the elevator

That trail of death was 136 feet long,

by Kauifman's evidence; and nobody
ever found on the ladder, at the foot

of the same, or anywhere in the base-

ment, a single sign of blood, or a strug-

gle.

How unreasonable it is to contend
that, because the cage of the elevator

did not do what it might or might not

have done, we. must obliterate all the
damning evidence on the second floor.

and forget the absence of evidence on
anij other floor/
Connolly concludes

:

"All this trouble has come upon Frank
because of a bottle of cheap whisky pur-

chased by one worthless negro from an-

other negro in a Southern city which pro-

hibits the sale of whisky.

The verdict of the jury was but the

echo of the clamor of the crowd."

So, you see, this writer who was the
ally of Burns, misrepresented the rec-

ord, ever\' time he touched it, and
failed to tell Colliers that Frank's
lawyers proved Conley's inabil-

ity to have described the night-

watch at the time the notes were writ-

ten; failed to tell Collier''s that Frank's
lascivious character had been proved
by a dozen unimpeachable white wom-
en; failed to tell Collier''s _that the

hair found on the machine handle had
been identified as Mary's, and that

Frank's lawyers never even tried to

prove that it was another girl's hair;

failed to point out that Frank refused

to question the women who swore
away his character, and refused to let

questions be put to him; and told CoJ-

liers a most arrant, inexcusable false-

hood when he said that our Supreme
Court did not possess legal jurisdiction

over the evidence in a cmninal case!

And this writer whose thoroughness
and conscientiousness are still believed

in by ColUer^s, declared that one bottle

of mean liquor, in a prohibition town,
caused Leo Frank to be arrested, tried

and condemned for the murder of a

Southern girl.

"The verdict of the jury was but the
echo of the clamor of the crowd," and
the Supreme Court was powerless to

right the wrong, because it had no le-

gal authority to review the evidence

!

On that kind of stuff which Connol-
ly knew was untrue, he followed the

lead of the Atlanta Journal, and oth-

ers followed his lead, until the conti-

nent vibrated with the tread of the

disciplined Hessians of villification.

Xot one of those hired writers, or

their honest dupes, have ever been to
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Solicitor Dorsey, to go over the record
with him ,ana to learn the real evi-

dence upon which he relied to con-

vince the jury, satisfy Judge Jioan,

and satisfy our Supreme Court fwlrc—
the last time, unanimously.
The editor of Colliers has himself

been so warped, blinded and embit-
tered by Connolly, Burns, Hearst,
Straus, Ochs & Co., that he publishes

the following:

"Our own ea-Otions about the Frank
case are expressed by the words of a

Pittsburgh reader, Mrs. Iva Jewel Geary:

"There was not only no reason to con-

vict Frank, but there ivas no reason to

suspect him. His persecution outdoes
anything I have ever read in Russian his-

tory. The wanton cruelty of his murder-
ers is the most heartbreaking glimpse into

hell that I have ever known. I am not

a Jewess, I am only a human being, the

mother of a little boy. For three days
and nights the consciousness of that

cruelty has suffocated me. Is this hu-
manity?

I beg of you not to let the matter rest.

It must not rest. I feel that Leo Frank
was a little comforted in his last agony by
the thought of all the people who believed
in him and had tried to help him. It

might have been your son or your young
brother caught in the hellish trap—it

might sometime be my son."

"That's just it. It might have happen-
ed to any of us and it may happen to any
of us in the future unless we stop it. And
our idea of stopping it is not by piling

vengeance on top of vengeance in an
increasing mass. Let us look very closely

into it. Let us admit the very obvious
fact that the men who lynched Frank
thought they were doing the right thing.

Now let us try to find the thing that made
them think wrong. That is igjnorance, and
let us (leal with ignorance as ignorance
ought always to be dealt with—not with
a club, but with light and sympathy. What
is here said in charity is said for the bene-

fit of the men who lynched Frank. They
thought he was guilty. They thought they

were doing a right thing. But are there

men in Georgia among those who helped

prosecute Frank 'vho knew he was inno-

cent, but, notwithstanding, pushed the

prosei'ution from motives of thsir own? If

there are any such, for them there need

be no charity. If any vials of vengeance

are to be poured, let it be on these indi-

viduals. But for the lynchers and Georgia

generally let us seek the only things that

will cure, that is, sympathetic under-

standing—and education.

Such an editor as this, gives one
new conceptions of the self-compla-

cent imbecile. He probably has a col-

lege-diploma, framed in his study, and
he believes he is educated, for hasn't

he a written certificate, signed by the

President of the College?

Ho says that Mrs. Iva Jewel Geary
has expressed his emotions.

Mrs. Iva Jewel Geary says that

Frank might have been her son. Might
not Mary Phagan also have been her

daughter?
Is Mrs. Iva Jewel Geary ignorant

of the fact that Jewish employers use

the duress of employment to coerce

Gentile girls into compliance with the

wishes of Jew libertines?

Are the Mary Phagans to have no
sympathy, and no protection from
lustful Jews that never run after Jew-
ish girls?

In the Oregon Daily Journal (Port-

land), I find the following news item.

August 2."), 1915:

"Carl A. Loeb, floorwalker in a local

department store, was convicted of dis-

orderly conduct in the municipal court

yesterday for making improper proposals

to young women who came to him for

employment, and was sentenced to thirty

days in jail. Loeb was represented by

Attorney Bert E. Haney, and notice of ap-

peal to the circuit court was given. Bail

was set at $500. Miss Lillian Murdoch
was the complaining witness. Mrs. Lola

G. Baldwin, superintendent of the depart-

ment of public safety for women, said to-

day that similar complaints against Loeb
had been made by four other girls. Evi-

dence was introduced showing that Loeb

had no authority to hire employes for the

store.

Here was a wretch engaged in exact-

ly the same vile practises that Leo
Frank used on girls who were in his

employ.
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This floorwalker struck the wrong
girls at last, just as Frank did, but
how many girls had yielded to Loeb.
to keep their jobs? He gets oti' at 30
days, when the hungry boy who steals

bread, gets months, and even years.

AVould it not be more to the credit

of CoU/er^s and Mrs. Iva Jewel (xeary,

if they bestowed a moiety of their

tears and lamentations upon the girls?

Collier's saj^s that what we need is

"education." "Wliat do the Franks
and the Loebs need?
We have been so often reminded

that Frank was a college graduate, that

we may soon forget how the eminep<
negro educator, who is so popular
at the North, got chased through the

street sof New I'ork, and scandalously
beaten, because he happened to make
a little mistake in the street address of

a strange and scarlet woman?
What is mere education worth, when

Doctor Booker Washington has to flee

from the bludgeon of an infuriater^

but not educated carpenter, named Ul-
rich?

Alas I Education is a good thing,

but it isn't everything; else some of

our greatest scholars would not have
been some of our greatest criminals

!

Judge Eoan had officialh' declared

that Leo Frank had had a fair trial.

The Supreme Court had officially

declared that he had been legally con-

victed upon sufficient evidence.

The verdict of the jury w-as six

months old : and before it had been
announced, Hearst's Sunday American
had declared that the long trial of Leo
Frank, stretching over a period of four
weeks, had been as fair, as it was pos-

sible for human minds and human ef-

forts to make it.

Nobody contradicted this deliberate

statement of the Hearst Atlanta paper.

Frank's lawj-ers did not; the corres-

pondents of Northern papers did not.

But when the Haas brothers, months
afterwards, followed up the Cohen at-

tack on the witnesses, the jurors, the
judges, and the people of Atlanta,
there arose a clamor about the mob,
the frenzied mob, the" jungle fury of
the mob, the blood lust of the mob,

and the psychic drunk of the mob.
That clamor grew louder and loud-

er, spread farther and farther, be-

came bolder and bolder, until millions

of honest outsiders actually believed'

that the mob stood up in the court-

room during the month of the trial,

and yelled at the jury.

"Hang the damned Jew, or we will

hang 3^ou."

It was not until John Cohen and
James R. Gray, of the Atlanta Jour-

nal, had started this flood of libel

against the State, that The Jetfer-

sonian said one word about the case.

Then the Jetl'ersonian did what no
other editor with a general circulation

seemed willing to do: I came out in

defense of the Law, the Courts and
the People-

Are the Laws not entitled to sup-

port? Are the Courts not worthy of

respect? Are the People not deserv-

ing of fair treatment?
The Jett'ersonian did not stoop to

any personalities, or mean abuse, or

malignant misrepresentation.

We had given to Leo Frank as

much as we nad to give to anybody-

We had measured' him by the same
yardstick that measures Gentiles be-

fore they are condemned.
We could not kill poor old LTm-

phrey, of Whitfield County, on cir-

cnmstantial evidence, and then refuse

to execute a Jew.
The one was an aged tenant, aggra-

vated by a dispute with his landlord,

about his share of a bale of cotton;

the other was a middle-age Superin-
tendent of a factory, presuming on his

power over the girls hired to him.
We could not kill Bart Cantrell and

Nick Wilburn—led astray by evil

women—and then find a different law
for the 31-year-old married man, led

astrav by his own lusts.

No! By the Splendor of God! We
couldn't have two Codes in Georgia,
one for the Rich and the other for the

Poor.
At the time the Atlanta Journal

and other papers jumped on the wit-

nesses, the jurors, the judges and the

people, Governor John M. Slaton was
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a mcmhev of the fnn of Frank''a lend-

hif/ hnrj/cf.

lie had been so for nearly a year.

Mary Pha<^airs body was found
Sunday luorniufi^, and on Monday
morninj;, ccrb/^ Kosser showed up with
Haas, as Frank's lawyer.

Who hired him, and when?
Not a (lentik^ tongue had wagged

against Leo Frank I

No detective, no police-officer, no
civilian had accused this man.

117/// did his rich comwrtions em-
ploy the supposedly 'best lawyers for
him, before he had been aeeused?
Do Atlanta lawAers go to their of-

fices liefore 8 o'clock of Monday morn-
ings ?

Kosser and Haas were at Fraidv's

side, as his lawyers^ at 8 o'clock Mon-
day morning.
Had the Seligs tipped it otf to Mon-

tag and Haas, that Frank had drunk
heavily the featurdaj'' night of the
crime, and had raved about the mur-
der?
At any rate, Frank's lawyers were

on deck, bright and early the next
morning, at a time when nobody was
working up a case on him, and when
he was industriously working up a

case against the night-watch whom he
had accused in the notes that he plac-

ed near the dead girl.

Mark the date: it was April -28.

1913. when Rosser publicly appeared
as Frank's leading lawyer.

On June 22, the papers announced
that Slaton had become Rosser's part-

^ner.
Slaton had l)een elected governor

at the October elections of li>12: an*'

was to be inaugurated in June, 1913
Why did he need a new partnership '.

And why did Rosser need a new
one?
Ah, there's where the shoe pinches I

There's where the lash hits the raw
place on Slaton-

There are some of the commuters
who say that the Law does not forbid
a governor to take law cases.

Doesn't it ?

When the Law carves out an Execu-
tive Department, .separating it jeal-

ously frcm the Judicial and Legisla-

tive, and constituting in the Gover-
nor^ the embodiment of the Executive
power, with chief command of the

Army and Navy, to enforce the Laws,
does anybody, claiming to be a law-

)'er, deny that the very nature of the

office debars a governor from practis-

ing law?

I am not aware of any law which
prevents President Wilson from teach-

mg school, but the very character oi

his office does. Suppose President

Taft had taken law cases! Suppo.se

President Cleveland, or President

Harrison had done so!

You can't suppose anything of the

kind. You know that a holder of a

chief Executive office cannot be dab
bling in the judiciary, where cases

are always likely to come to him oi

some final appeal.

Governor H'l^rschel \. Johnson
quit the practise when he became gov-
ernor. So did Gov. Henry D. Mc-
Daniel. So did Gov. Nat Harris.

There has been a dispute as to the

date when Slaton became Rosser's

partner. Some sav it was in July,
1913.

Does that date make it any better

for Slaton?

Are we to be told that after Slaton
became our Chief Magistrate and
Commander of our Army, he needed
Ros.ser ?

What for?
Are we to Ije told that Rosser wait-

ed until Slaton was sworn in as gov-
ernor before he took him in as part-

ner ?

What for?
The new firm was announced in the

Atlanta Constitution of June 22. 1913
;

hence it was formed before Slaton's

inauguration. I see the advertise-

ment of the new firm, soon afterwards,

in "The P\ilton County Daily Record."
I see the same firm advertised in

the Record for May 14, 1915.

Therefore, Slaton and Morris Bran-
don had continued to be the partners

of Rosser & Phillips during the en-

tire gubernatorial term of John M.
Slaton.

In the Record for Auqust 1915, I
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find that Morris Brandon has left

Rosser and Slaton. Why did he leave?

It '^s reported that he withdrew

from the firm because he believed in

Frank's gnilt, and coulcl not endorse

the course which Rosser and Slaton

had decided to adopt.

Is it true?
Anyway, he left the firm. Who took

his place?

Stiles Hopkins- And who is he?

Why, Stiles is the hanger-on of

the Siaton-Kosser firm who did some
of the mole-work on that very Ex-
traordinary Motion for New Trial.

His affidavit is in the record, and in

it he swears he was doing this mole-

work for the firm of Rosser, Brandon,
Slaton and Phillips—a firm with

which he was "connected."

After Morris Brandon quit the firm.

Stiles was taken in—his intimate

knowledge of the inner workings of

the Frank case being perhaps too val-

uable to take any chances on.

We are blandly ,asked Ito believe

that, although this new firm of Ros-

ser and Slaton was formed soon after

Rosser was employed to defend Leo
Frank, there was a written agreement
to the eft'ect that partners should not

be partners.

They waived the Code; and, with
suave smiles at each other, obliterated

the encyclopedic accumulation of legal

lore on the subject of Partnerships.

In The Jettersonian, I have stated,

again and again, that just before ex-

Congressman Howard was employed,
Luther Rosser went to Senator Ollie

James of Kentucky, and made him a

proposition of a discreditable kind.

That proposition had no other

meaning than that Rosser knew the

sentence of Frank was to be commuted
by his j)artner, Slaton ; but, for the

sake of appearances, Rosser and Sla-

ton wanted to make the case for

Frank as imposing as possible.

Rosser offered Senator James a fee

out of all proportion to the service,

and told him that Ms argument would
he prepared for him^ and that he could
not possibly lose the case.

The accusation has been standino;

more than a month, and all of Sla-

ton 's commuters dodge it. TJtey

plough round it. THEY DON'T
DARE GO TO IT.
Do you need any better proof of

the complete understanding between
Partner Rosser and Partner Slaton?

Can you ask any clearer evidence of

the fact that Slaton wasn't caring two
straws about the Judge Roan letter,

the Chicago delegations, the Texas
legislature, the telegram from vice-

President Marshall, and the petitions

from "all parts of the world."

Rosser and Slaton realized the need

of all the strength they could muster,

on the side of their client, and every

possible resource was exhausted.

They drummed up commuters
wherever there was political, finan-

cial, or professional influence which
could be brought to bear.

It was a case where every little

helped ; and they got together as many
mickles as they could, in the effort

to make a muckle.

BUT THEY FAILED ON SEN-
ATOR JAMES!

If Rosser's assurance to the Senator

did not mean that he 'knew in advance
what his partner would do., WHAT
DOES IT MEAN?

In efiect, Rosser said to Senator
James

:

"T^e want to use you! We want to

buy your name and prestige. We
want you to act a part in the drama
of Treason, that we are staging in

Atlanta.

The Jews have bought the opera

house; our troupe of players is al-

ready large and well practised ; but
we need a first-class orator to make
a first-class appearance in the Final

Act of the play.

Here's a large pile of Jew money

!

Will you take it? Everybody else is

doing it.

You can't possibly lose the case."

But the Kentucky Senator remem-
bered there was something else he
might lose, and he spurned the offer

which the circumstances justify us in

believing was as much the ofi'er of

Slaton as it was of Rosser-
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Add to the shame of this rejected

proposition, the clandestine meeting
between the two crooks^ Rosser and
Slaton^ a few hours after the Prison
Commission startled them hy its ad-

verse decision.

Why did Kosser slink up a side

street, and take it afoot to hold a mid
night meeting with his partner, Sla-

ton?
Why talk to us about alleged agree-

ments which exempted this partner-
ship from the Law of Partnerships'?

Wh}^ ask us to believe the unbeliev-
able?

^

Tell us what Rosser meant by hi;-

statement to Senator James, and what
he meant by his stealthy, thief-lik'>

visit to John M. Slaton.

No legitimate errand demanded this

cover of darkness.

It is said that nobody raised the
point with Slaton that he ought not
to pass on the Frank case—being Ros-
ser's partner.

Wrong again ! The point was rais-

ed, by a member of the Atlanta bar,
and it was done in writing, and in a

most delicate, respectful way. I pul
lished the letter in The Jeffcrsonian.
The point was also raised, in a Cohl

county mass-meeting, held at Marietta.
last year.

The question was put squarely up
to Slaton, while he was in the race
for the Senate, and he evaded it

!

What a reckless thing it is, there-
fore to say the point came too late

'

Dorsey knew of the letter, and knew
of the Cobb county action; conse-
quently, he knew it was useless to
again endeavor to reach the "honor"
of a man who has none, or to arouse
a "conscience" that doesn't exist.

It has been said that it would have
been "cowardly" for Slaton to liav(

reprieved Frank and left him for
Governor Harris to dispose of.

Why. then, did he reprieve two ne-
groes who were under death sentences,
and leave them to Governor Harris?
And if he is such a brave man. why

didn't he pardon the Jew whom he
says was innocent?

I am very credibly informed tliat

Leo Frank., on his way to Cobb coun-

ty, denounced Slaton as a crook.

This must mean that Frank had
been promised a pardon.

If innocent, he was entitled to one;

and if Slaton believed him innocent,

he acted pusillanimously, in not set-

ting him tree.

There is no middle ground.
Those who admit that they believ-

ed Frank to be guilty, but favored
commutation, can only excuse them-
selves by saying they oppose capital

punishment.
If married men of middle age are

not to be hanged when they deliber-

ately leave young and healthy wives,

and pursue young girls to such a hor-

rible death as fell to the hard lot of

Mary Phagan, then we've got no use

for the law of capital punishment.
Slaton saw lots of use for it, last

year., as a protection to homes, and hu-

man lives; the commuters saw it, too;

it was not until this year, AND THIS
CASE, that the railroad lawyers and
some Doctors of Divinity became such

rampant commuters.
It is said that Slaton made no

money by the commutation.

That is an assertion which set-

tles the question without debate. It

is perfectly clear to every law3'er that,

ns Rosser's partner, he was legally en-

titled to share whatever Rosser got.

It is said that Slaton knew that the

commutation would kill him polit-

ically.

He doesn't talk that way- He ex-

presses the most buoyant confidence
in his future popularit}".

He says that none of the best peo-
ple are against him. He saj^s that
those who made the outcry against
him are mere scum, rifl'-ratf, rag-tag
and bobtail ; men whose wives take
in boarders and washing.

He sr.ys that these low-down crea-

tures have always been against him,
and he hopes they always will be.

Unless your political eye-sight is

failing, you can see a formidable line-

up in favor of Slaton for the Senate.
The Jews will be solidly for him.
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So will the Chambers of Commerce,
of Atlanta and Savannah.
So will the L. & N. Kailroad sys-

tem. So will the Hearst papers. So
will the Atlanta dailies.

The Roman Catholics will support
him almost to a man, on account of

The Jett'ersonian being against him.

You need not doubt that Slaton
made himself reasonably certain of a

powerful combination, before he took
the bit in his teeth.

He is crafty, and he doesn't act

upon impulse.

It will be remembered that while

the Frank case was on its way to him,
Xathan Straus, of New York, came
to see him.

It will be remembered that while
the Frank case was on its way to him,
William Randolph Hearst came to

see him.
It will be remembered that imme-

diately after the commutation, and
the flight from Georgia, he was ban-
queted by Air. Hearst n New York.

It will be remembered that Mr.
Hearst's personal representative, John
Temple Graves, in his address to a

Nortliern press-club, proclaimed the

intention of Mr. Hearst to put Slaton
in the race for the Senate or Vice
Presidency-

Si aton himself has repeatedly told

the Northern people that he would
re-enter politics in Georgia, and make
his action in the Frank case an issue

before the people.

Those who defend Slaton say that
his previous character had been good.

If the character of Judas Iscariot

had not been good, Christ would not
have made him one of the Twelve,
and Keeper of the Treasury.

If the character of Benedict Arnold
had not been good, Washington would
not have made him Commander at

West Point.

Lots of folks enjoy the reputation
of being straight, when in fact, they
are crooks who have, not been found
out.

WHAT WERE THE REASONS
FOR THIS COMMVTATWN?

In one place, Slaton says that he
was guided by the advice of Sally,

his wife. In another place he says he
was influenced by the dissenting opin-

ions of the minority Justices of the

Supreme Courts.

In another place he says that im-
portant new evidence, never produced
before any other tribunal, was pro-

duced before him.
In another place, he says that the

hair found in the metal room, and
proved at the trial, to have been
Mary Phagan's, was afterwards shown
to be the hair of somebody else.

Who this somebody is, he provok-
ingly keeps to himself. What that

new evidence was, he mysteriously de-

clines to state.

In still another place, he leans heav-
ily upon the tomb of Judge Roan, and
says that he commuted because of the

dead judge, when the official record

shows that Slaton paid no attention

to the pleas of living judges, last year,

and that he can't assign any reason

why L. S. Roan's alleged change of

mind should have out weighed Judges
Evans, Lumpkin, Hill and Atkinson,

who had not changed their minds.

Like many other mortals, L. S.

Roan's value was not appreciated un-

til after he died. To his pastor he
confided his worries about the Frank
case, and said that, according to the

evidence, Frank "was unguestionahly

guilty^
On his farewell visit to his daugh-

ter, at Tampa, Florida, he said the

same thing.

I have said, and repeat, that entire-

ly too much has been made of L, S.

Roan- When he ended his official con-

nection with the case, his opinion was
not worth a "bit more than that of arnj

juror^ or of any spectator who heard
the evidence.

L. S. Roan in Massachusetts, had
no more to do with the case than j^ou

or I did.

Every lawyer knows that our Su-
preme Court had exactly the same
power over the evidence., in this case.,

that Judge Roan had.

He had the right to say the verdict
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was not sufficiently supported by the

evidence, and the Supreme Court had
the right to overrule him on that very

pointy if the Justices believed the evi-

dence insufficient.

How dishonest, then, is the contin-

ued eti'ort to fool the people about

Judge Koan

!

What possible weight could be giv-

en to a tardy, unofficial, and doubtful
letter of a disabled, suflfering, en-

feebled judge, when the Justices of

the Supreme Court were all in life,

all in full vigor, and all firm in their

c<mA'icti()n tJuit tlw evidence agalmt
Frank was suffic-ientf

The effort to use a dead man to

shield John Slaton is the most cow-
ardly and reprehensible feature of

the campaign of the commuters.
The Atlanta Journal, the New York

Times and the Western papers are

saving that ''WATSON ATTEMPT-
ED TO BRIBE SLATON

r

They allege that Watson sent a mes-
sage to Slaton demanding that he
"hang the Jew," and that, in return
for this personal favor, Watson
would send Slaton to the Senate.

It is a characteristic Slaton false-

hood.
During the campaign, last year,

Slaton did his utmost to secure my
support for the Senate. He sent sev-

eral gentlemen to Thomson to Fee me
about it. The final desperate proposi-

tion that he made me, I will reserve

for the present. lie k?iows what I

7)war>.

But since he and his brotbei-inlow,
ai.d riieir hired writer, and tlio Rabbi
haAC endeavored t-o -besmirch the
character of Dr. J. C. Jarnagin, of
AVarrenton, I wil tell exactly what
happened.
Last year, my friend Jarnagin came

to my home several times to bring
messages from Slaton.

One message Dr. Jarnagin was re-

luctant to deliver to me, for he felt

that it put Slaton in a bad light.

Slaton had explained his failure to

run against Hoke Smith, for the Sen-
ate, on the ground that he. Slaton, ^cas

a poor man, and that his brother-in-

law, John Grant, would iwt let him
have the money foi' a campaign
against Smith!
On each of his visits to my home,

my friend Jarnagin was told that I

could not go back on Kufe Hutchins,
to whose support I was committed.

In May of this year. Governor Sla-

ton made an address, on a Warren
County—P^iir Educational Day-
While in Warrenton, he stopped

with Maj. Mc(Jregor, and he discuss-

ed the Frank case with particular ref-

erence to what Judge Koan had told

hi? pastor.

Slaton also talked with Dr. Jarna-
gin, and asked him if there was no
way for him. Slaton, and myself 'Ho

get together."^ He asked Dr. Jarna-

gin, if there w^as not something that

he, the Governor, could do for my son,

or for my son-in-law, Mr. Lee.

In reporting the conversation to

me. Dr. Jarnagin said, "Jack says we
must get together." I considered that

the Governor was making overtures

to me, as he had done last ye:>r, and,

oi course, some sort of answer irt j)ig

1 Offsage was necessary.

1 therefore said in substance to V>y.

Jarnagin

:

•'\()\\ tell Jack Slator lo >taji(l lil;e

a man against all this outside pres-

sure in the Frank case, and to uphold
the Courts and the Law, and I will

stand by him.
"Tell him that I have never allowed

my personal feelings to keep me from
supporting any man, when the good
of the State seemed to require it, and
that I have no feeling against him
that will prevent my upholding him
in doing what is right in the Frank
case.

"Tell him to do what is right, re-

gardless of these newspaper libels and
these foreign petitioiis.

"Tell him that I want nothing for

myself, nor for any member of my
family, but I do want to see the law
vindicated in this Frank case."

That was my answer to his message
—the answer which the jurors, and
the Supreme Court would have given

him; the answer which 90 per cent
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of the people of Georgian nould have
given him. *

That message was, in sulxstance, the

very same that I was sending to him,

from week to week, in the editarlal col-

umns of The Jeffersonian.

That message was in effect the same
that the mass meetings, in various

counties, were sending to him.

That message was given to him in

thousands of letters, telegrams and
petitions from all over Ijreorgia.

That message was the same in spir-

it and meaning, that the Cobb county

delegation carried to him.

Out of every hundred men in Geor-

gia, ninety would have been willing to

have gone upon the house-tops and
shouted a similar message.

All that we ever wanted Governor
Slaton to do, was, to enforce the Law
against rich people, as he had en-

forced it against the pooi"-

Had he proved himself a man, he

would have rallied to his enthusiastic

support thousands of voters who had
never supported him before—men
who believe that it is nothing but
right to reward a public servant, of

whom they can say, WELL DONE!
God in Heaven loiows how passion-

ately the people yearn for public serv-

ants of whom they can say that.

If John Slaton had just withstood
temptation and proved true, he would
today have been wearing the crown
of Georgia's admiring approval, a
crown more precious than that of any
King.
In 1914, John Slaton told Dr. Jar-

nagin to explain to me that the rea-

son why he did not run against Hoke
Smith for the Senate instead of
against Hardwick and Felder, was
that he, Slaton, was a poor man, and
that John Grant wouldn't let him
have the money to run against Smith.
John Slaton explained that it was

his wife who was rich, and that John
Grant was the manager of the prop-
erty, and therefore Slaton had to go
to Grant for cash.

In Los Angeles a few weeks ago, he
told the newspapers quite a different

story. He said

:

"/ am a man of 'wealth^
His exact language as reported iu

the Los Angeles paper is this:

Spends His Own Money.

"I have been accused of capitulating to

the overwhelming influence of public sen-

timent," he said, "of rerersing the judg-

ment of the courts, and many other viola-

tions of my oath, but no one in Georgia

who knows John Slaton believes th«

charges, and I am proud to say that,

amid all of the censure I have received,

there has not been even an insinuation that

I profited financially as a result of my
action.

"My record of seventeen years in pub-

lic life. Speaker of the House, President

of the Senate, and Governor for two
terms, precluded the possibility of such

a taint. I am a wealthy man, my fanuly

is rich, and I am one of the few men of

the country who has been elected to ofiica

without accepting funds from any outside

source for my campaigms. Every penny
spent In the interest of my candidacy came
fix>m either my own pocket or fi-om mem-
bers of my own family. A3 a result 1

have never been under obligations to any-

one. No corporation or clique has ever

been able to control me."

If Slaton told Dr. Jarnagin the

truth in the Spring of last year, and
told the California reporters the truth

in the Fall of this year, the question

arises,

Where did this sudden, wealth come
from?

THE ROIVIAN CATHOLICS.

Rosser, Grant and Slalon are well

aware of the animosity that I liave

arouted among Roman Catholns by
the attacks made upon their hierarchy
and secret organizations. They also

know that an alliance has been formed
in this country between the Jewish
organizations and.-ithe JPapal secret

orders.

They, of course, know that the Rom-
an Catholic Knights of Columbus
were able to use the Federal Govern-
ment against me, and that I am un-
der indictment for having copied
into one of my books a portion of the
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Moral Theology of Saint Alphonsus
Lif?iiori.

They loiow that the case is to come
up at the approaching November term

in a city where Jews and Catholics,

combined, are predominant, and where
okl political enemies of mine, are im-

jjlacable and revengeful.

Therefore, KoBser had a purpose in

lugging the Catholic question to the

front, just as he had in alluding to

Foreign Missions.

I have never insultetl any man on

the subject of his religion, and, in all

my articles, it has been my endeavor

to show that it was the system^ the

hierarchy^ the law and the real pur-

pose^ of the Italian Papacy^ that I an-

tagonized.

As a Jetfersonian democrat and
American citizen, I detest the foreign

church which has always been the bit-

terest foe to democracy, and whose
fundamental laws are irreconcilable

with ours.

I detest a Papacy which tells me
that I must take my religion and my
politics from a lot of Italian priests.

I detest a church which stigmatizes

the memory of my mother b}'^ saying
that she Avas not my father's wife, but
that they were living together "in fil-

thy concubinage"—as Pope Pius IX
did say while my parents were both
alive.

I detest a church which says by its

fundamental law, that your wife and
mine, your married daughter and
mine, your married sister and mine

—

is a concubine, not a lawful wife, and
that the children of our Protestant
marriages are nothing but bastards.

I detest a church which comes into

my state with its foreign law. and
breaks up the homes of lawfully mar-
ried people, as the priests broke up
those in Macon and at Arlington.

I detest a church which sends a for-

eign ambassador here to tell our peo-
ple to vote for the Roman Church,
rather than for our Country, and who
is now trying to plunge this country
into a war with Mexico, in order that
300 more years of oppression by Span-

ish priests may be the doom of the na-
tive ^Mexicans,

I detest a church which creates an
inuiginarv near-hell, fills it with suf-

fering souls, and sells releases from it-

I detest a church which puts a

bachelor priest between a man and his

wife, and orders the bachelor to use

filthy language to her in secret, such
as no decent husband would ever use,

even at night and in the marriage bed.

I detest a cnurch which has to have
:jJ many secret organizations, the oaths

and secret purj^oses of which make
those secret societies a deadly menace
to Protestants and Democrats, to true

religion and real civic liberty.

I detest a church whose fundament-
al law condemns "heretics" to death,

and whose records reek with the blood
of Christian martyrs.

I detest a church which declared
that "Ignorance is the mother of de-

votion," and which destroyed libra-

ries, closed the schools, penalized
mental research, outlawed science, and
plunged Europe into darkness and
horror and carnage for a thousand
years.

No Roman Catholic who knows the

law of his foreign church, and obeys
it, can be a loyal American citizen

;^

for the one master is the enemy of the
other, and a Catholic cannot serve

both.'

In public opinion throughout the

Union, Georgia has been condemned
for an unjust verdict, an unfair trial,

and a technical judgment of our Su-
preme Court, when the facts clearly

demonstrate the sole guilt of the
drunkest nigger that ever swilled rot-

gut.

They say the "mob" stood up in the
courtroom, and threatened the jury:
that the judge was as much terrified

by our "blood lust" as the jury was,
and that our Supreme Court passed
on nothing save the dry points of law,
not reviewing the evidence and not
expressing any opinion as to its suffi-

ciency.

This is the indictment against us,
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first made in Collier's, by the Hessian

from Montana, C. P. Connolly.

In the wake of this mendacious hire-

ling, came Macdonald, of the West-

ern press ; and after these, came troop-

ing scores of scribblers who took their

facts, from the arrant and abomin-

able lies of Connolly and Macdonald.

Uso your Keason! Call upon your

Common Sense!
Don't you know that Frank's law-

yers coufd not have lost their case at

every turn, in all the Courts, if it had
not been a desperately had case?

Don't 3^ou knoiv that the evidence

on which (yonnolly. Burns, Hearst
and Straus have acquitted l^'rank, at

the bar of public opinion, is different

Jrorn the evidence upon which the

jury acted?
Where did that hired cohort of Hes-

sians get the evidence which the}^ have
used in fooling the public?

They made it up! They took the va-

rious lies of Burns, of VV. E. Thomson,
of Luther Rosser, and of the excited

Jews of Atlanta ; and out of the med-
ley of falsehood, they have made the

abhorrent noise which caused other

States to turn against Georgia.
Are you willing to be governed by

the official Brief of Evidence? The
lawyers on both sides agreed to it, and
Judge Roan officially approved it.

Oughtn't that to settle the question

as to what is the real truth of the

case ?

Unless we go by the record, we are

at sea, and resemble angry boys, quar-
reling.

Unless we go by the record, we are
left to the folly of saying week after
week. "'You're a liar !" and "you're an-
other I"

To deal fairly with the jury, the
Supreme Court and the people of
Georgia, you must put yourself in

their place.

You must see what they saw, hear
what they heard, and learn ichat they
learned.

After doing this, judge us as you
would have vourselves judged.
BE fate'TO US/ DEAL JUST-

LY WITH US!

Would you outsiders want your

Courts and people condemned on the

unsworn statements of such hirelings

as Burns, Lehon, Connolly and Mac-
donald ?

Wouldn't you think that your
Courts had the right to be judged by

the evidence of sworn witnesses, :ill of

whom were put through the ordeal of

cross e^a.TiMiation?

Be fair to us, and JUDGE US BY
THE SWORN TESTIMONY; that's

all we ask of you.

Is it asking too much?
ARE YOU UNWILLING TO

GIVE US A HEARING?
Are we to be hounded and harassed

forever, on the unsworn statements of

interested parties?

Let us go to the record, and see

what the wtinesses said under oath-

That's the only way to try a law
case.

We did not carry this Frank case

into the newspapers; the other side

did it.

Gentlemen, it is high time these rich

Jews, and Slatons and Railroad Law-
yers quit misrepresenting this case.

THE PEOPLE are not going to al-

low a convicted criminal's own law-
yer to lynch the courts and save his

client.

THE PEOPLE ARE NOT GO-
ING TO ALLOW IT!
The People would deserve the con-

tempt of mankind, if they did allow
it.

Leo Frank was under sentence of
death, when the Vigilantes executed
him.

The commutation, signed by his
lawyer, was not only a nullity, but
was a most flagrant, intolerable insult

to the State, and a most unparalleled
attack upon out judiciary.

Time cannot cover that unpardon-
able sin of John M. Slaton, and he
will do well to remember that Trea-
son is not protected by any St a lute of
Limitations.

He betrayed us: he did it deliber-
ately I He made his bed ; now let him
lio on it

!
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ANOTHER V;E iV OF JOHN M. SLATON, POSED BY HIMSELF WHILE ON HIS TOUR OF THE WEST_


	Pages from leo-frank-case-watsons-magazine-1
	Pages from leo-frank-case-watsons-magazine-2
	Pages from leo-frank-case-watsons-magazine-3
	Pages from leo-frank-case-watsons-magazine-4
	Pages from leo-frank-case-watsons-magazine-5



